

1 2 2 00000 AUTOBUS 🎔 Tens Units 🗲 Т TELETASK TELETA TDS136 TDS13644 2A rOutput-N D1 N D3 D4 24 24 2A

### **Technical Handbook**

Systems features and software training book



For the most up-to-date information, visit: <u>https://professional.teletask.be/HomePage</u>

Version: 24 January 2019 PROSOFT Suite 3.7

# TELETASK Technical handbook

Table of contents:
Introduction
PROSOFT
The basic flow diagram of a configuration session
The full flow diagram
Starting up a new project
Collecting the project information
Starting a project
TELETASK CLOUD installation
Use of passwords and codes
The rooms
'O' Units: Outputs
Adding Output units
Assigning TELETASK Outputs
List of output units of your project
TDS13530 Fan coil unit interface
TDS13609: Dimmer interface 8x 0-10V
TDS13610: Fluorescent Dimmer Interface
TDS13621: DALI - DSI - DMX interface
TDS13632 and TDS13634: PWM LED Dimmers
TDS13642 and TDS13644: Universal power FET Dimmer
'I' units: Inputs and others
Adding TELETASK 'I' interfaces
General 'I' interfaces – Specific parameters
Advanced settings for AURUS touch panels
AURUS-2 SENSE
AURUS-OLED (TDS12022) and AURUS-OLED PLUS (TDS12032)
AURUS-TFT (TDS12064)
Digital Input interfaces – Specific parameters
Analogue input interface – Specific parameters
Audio Interfaces – Specific parameters
Overview list of 'I' Interfaces of your domotics project
TDS12117 Digital Input interface with Pulse counter sensor
TDS14061 HVAC Modbus Master interface
TDS14065 : IR-COOKIE INTERFACE
TDS15200 Airco Software license
TDS20065 Universal HVAC
Extra Parameters for External HVAC systems
Functions overview
The Relay functions
The Dimmer functions
Working with motors
The Fans

1	The Fan functions
1	The Timed functions
1	The Motion detector function
1	The Sensor Functions
1	The Fan (exhaust) function
1	The Local Mood function
٦	The Timed Local Mood function
1	The General Mood function
1	The Transparent function
1	The Messages and Alarms functions
1	The TP Buzzer functions
1	The 'If-Then-Else' function
٦	The Process functions
٦	The 'Flag' function
٦	The Condition
(	Calculation function
٦	The Service functions
٦	The clock functions
1	The audio functions
9	Send IR, RS232 OR IP Code
٦	The Auto start function
1	The Display Functions
1	Fouch screen functions
1	The step function
1	The RGB function
1	The tunable white function
Comr	nunication
	Connecting your PC with the central unit
(	Connection trouble shooting
(	Communication with the DOIP central unit
Ονοη	iow of your domatic project
Diagn	vostics
Diagi	
r	
L	Actors
ľ	
L /	
F	Analogue inputs
r	Addio Zones
	nterfaces
I	Achiter
TIMESOFT	
Actio	ns based on time programs
Defin	ing a clock action
CARDSOFT	Γ – PORTA
Steps	to set up CARDSOFT-PORTA
Acces	s control options in PROSOFT
Add P	Proximity readers

Create Users and Groups
Define 'Access rights'
Access management on users and groups
Schedule E-mail reports with TIMESOFT (or a function)
GUISOFT
Personalised graphical control
Glossary
System Requirements
Schematic Configurations
GUISOFT Licence
Making a GUI
Requirements Session workflow
CREATING A GUI
GUI Selection
GUI Properties
GUISOFT Screen
Adding items to the GUI
Creating a iSGUI
Start with the GUISOFT
iSGUI Selection
iSGUI Features
GUISOFT Screen (iSGUI)
Adding items to the iSGUI
Creating a Control Tower
Terminology
Workflow
Define Functions to monitor and control
Create an initial PROSOFT file
Create a Control Tower configuration
Event logs (alarms)
Get the GUI ready for use
Video door phone, Intercom on GUI and MAIOR Video door phone on GUI (TDS12052 and TDS12053 only)
AV-SOFT
Multi-Room Multi-Source
Multi-room/Multi-source: the differences
Phase 1: Choose the wanted audio-video configuration
Phase 2: Assigning the RS232 Port and the IR flashers
Phase 3: Configuring the Universal RS232 AV or IP interface
Phase 4: Configuring the audio buttons of the domotics installation
Edit library
Add and edit devices into the library
Record IR codes
Paste IR codes
RS232, IP
Polling codes
Special codes
BACK-UP the AV-SOFT Library

Connection to the RS232 UNIVERSAL AV INTERFACE
RS232 connection
Splitter Cable for audio system
Audio-IP software licence
DALISOFT
Multiple DoIP Central Units
Energy management
Application examples and technical cases
How to integrate IP camera's with TDS
How to intergrate streaming audio devices
Sonos integration
How to integrate a heating and cooling system
How to integrate a light sensor
How to setup an access control system
Configuring a NUVO installation with three RS interfaces
B&O Integration
Implementing NuVo with Audio IP License (TDS15240)
Configuring Audio Systems With the Audio IP License TDS15240
TELETASK Technical handbook

\_\_\_\_\_

. . . . . . . .

© 2018 TELETASK bvba

# Introduction

# The TELETASK domotics system

This guide provides an overview of how to configure a TELETASK Home Automation System (TDS). It is a complete guide to the PROSOFT -Suite configuration software and other TELETASK products with additions and tips for a stateof-the-art integration.

Prior to the configuration part you will find:

- Capturing the requirements and wishes of the end-user, in close cooperation with the end-user, architect and/or interior designer.
- The Lighting plan
- Choosing the appliances, motors, etc which will integrated by the to the TDS.
- Choosing the appropriate heating/cooling system.
- Choosing the appropriate security system.
- Capturing the typical routes throughout the house, to be able to decide where to place touch panels or screen.

Once all this is done, you can start configuring (also called 'programming') the system.

Comfort and flexibility are not only important for the user, but also for the integrator. The simplicity and comfort for the installer of a TELETASK automation system is possible thanks to its unique construction. The specific structure is characterized by the strict separation of inputs and outputs in the system.



With this way of working there is still something missing because there is nothing which defines yet that the push button on the wall is for example going to control the ceiling light in the dining room. Therefore the system needs a relation which is to be defined between that particular input and the related output.

In the TELETASK domotics systems the relation between inputs and outputs will be defined in the central unit. This central unit becomes the heart of the system and is a far more powerful and reliable solution than working with a decentralised approach which has by definition a more complex configuration and a larger chance that information gets lost.

In large installations you will learn that a multi-central unit approach will offer you simplicity, highest reliability and distributed intelligence without the need of a master-slave setup like traditional systems use. With a TELETASK system there is no central unit behaving like a master, so there are no such slaves either. In case of a failure, this guarantees no loss of functionalities except for the defect part itself. In a decentralised setup where a master can fail, the whole system may go down or at least lose a number of features which also effect non-defective parts of the

24/1/2019

system.

With a TELETASK domotics system, the central unit (with power supply) is the most important component. The inputs and outputs can communicate with this central unit. These are connected via a two-wire high-speed data cable (+ two wires for 12V power supply- which we call the 'AUTOBUS' cable. In traditional installations this would require a whole bunch of cables.

This way the input-to-output relations become both simple and flexible, because they are not defined as in a traditional solution, but by the powerful and flexible TELETASK software relations. These relations are configured in the TELETASK PROSOFT Suite. PROSOFT is offered free of charge with any TELETASK system and can be downloaded from the website.

As a result of this, when for example pushing a wall mounted momentary push-button (= the input), the ceiling light in the dining room (= the output), can be switched (= the relation between the input and the output) on/off.



The relations can be defined by you, by means of PROSOFT software. PROSOFT was specially developed by TELETASK to make it possible to define the inputs, outputs and the relations between them on a standard MS Windows based PC. As soon as your relations are defined, they can be downloaded to the TELETASK central unit which will keep them

in its non-volatile memory, where they always remain after disconnecting the PC, even when power fails for short or long (unlimited) periods.

As soon as the relations are downloaded into the central unit, the PC can be disconnected from the central unit and is no longer needed. You will be able to control all integrated (= connected) lights, curtains, shutters, heating, cooling, audio, etc... as defined. You can control all these outputs by means of standard buttons and specific touch panels, sensors, touchscreens or even by remote control, by mobile phone or on a PC, PDA/Webpad via Ethernet over LAN/WAN wired- or wireless connections.

# Hardware and Software

You will have noticed that there are both hardware and software items to be distinguished.

'The hardware part' contains the different TELETASK components and the connection to the central unit(s). All hardware components have their own specific features and may behave as an input, an output or sometimes even both of them. To find out more details about the hardware and its hardware aspects, please refer to the TELETASK ''datasheets'.

'The software part' contains the creation of the relations between the inputs and outputs, defining extra functions, setting up integrations like heating/cooling, audio, setting clocks, defining access control, etc...

## PROSOFT Suite

With PROSOFT SUITE you can define all integrations within your home automation project. If you install and run PROSOFT, you will see it consists of 5 different parts:

TELETASK	PROSOFT	This is the main and the most important software part. All relations between inputs and outputs are defined in PROSOFT. The file which is generated by PROSOFT is also the basic file which is used in the other software packages that are explained below.
TELETASK	TIMESOFT	In TIMESOFT you have an electronic calendar in which you can enter actions (for example switching a light or change the temperature at a certain time of the day) based on the internal clock of the central unit. Click the TIMESOFT icon to open the calendar and configure the desired clock actions.
TELETASK	CARDSOFT	CARDSOFT is another part of the PROSOFT Suite which is used to enter and edit the chip cards and tags which are to be used at the integrated access control interfaces from TELETASK. Click the CARDSOFT icon to define the cards or tags for the actual project.
TELETASK	GUISOFT	GUISOFT is used to generate one or more GUI's (both for standard PC and/or smaller mobile devices). With these GUI's you are able to control the TELETASK domotics system based on floor plans or menu's depending on the device you are using).
TELETASK	AV-SOFT	AV-SOFT is used to enter all needed parameters for the integration of any audio, video or home theatre system using the universal RS232 interface TDS14042 or an AV-IP license TDS15240. In AV-soft you can use existing protocols or add a custom protocol.

In this technical handbook you will find all software aspects of your TELETASK domotics system explained in detail. Because the hardware and the software items are connected close to each other, we will regularly refer to the DATA SHEETS handbook where you can find any specific datasheet you may need. You can always download the latest version of most of the documents from http://www.teletask.be/en/downloads. If you are using the latest version of the PROSOFT Suite, you can also open this Technical Handbook and the Datasheets Handbook via the Help menu.

C
 C
 TELETASK Technical handbook » Introduction

© 2018 TELETASK bvba

# PROSOFT

PROSOFT is the main software package to configure a TELETASK domotics installation. In PROSOFT you will define all the relations between all earlier defined outputs and inputs of your system.

Before you can start making relations, you need to enter the hardware configuration of your TELETASK domotics installation. All used parts will have to be entered and given some or more extra parameters.

Although every TELETASK installation is different, there is a fixed road map to be followed step by step. The different steps are covered in the headings below.

# Table of contents:

The ba	sic flow diagram of a configuration session
The ful	l flow diagram
Startin	g up a new project
Сс	ollecting the project information
St	arting a project
TE	ELETASK CLOUD installation
Us	se of passwords and codes
The roo	oms
'O' Unit	ts: Outputs
Ad	Iding Output units
As	signing TELETASK Outputs
Lis	st of output units of your project
TC	DS13530 Fan coil unit interface
TC	DS13609: Dimmer interface 8x 0-10V
TD	DS13610: Fluorescent Dimmer Interface
TD	DS13621: DALI - DSI - DMX interface
TD	DS13632 and TDS13634: PWM LED Dimmers
TC	DS13642 and TDS13644: Universal power FET Dimmer
'l' units	s: Inputs and others
Ad	Iding TELETASK 'I' interfaces
Ge	eneral 'I' interfaces – Specific parameters
Ad	lvanced settings for AURUS touch panels
AL	JRUS-2 SENSE
AL	JRUS-OLED (TDS12022) and AURUS-OLED PLUS (TDS12032)
AL	JRUS-TFT (TDS12064)
Di	gital Input interfaces – Specific parameters
An	nalogue input interface – Specific parameters
Au	idio Interfaces – Specific parameters
٥١	verview list of 'I' Interfaces of your domotics project
TD	OS12117 Digital Input interface with Pulse counter sensor
TD	DS14061 HVAC Modbus Master interface
TD	DS14065 : IR-COOKIE INTERFACE
TD	OS15200 Airco Software license
	TDS20065 Universal HVAC

#### Extra Parameters for External HVAC systems

Funct	ons overview
Т	he Relay functions
Т	he Dimmer functions
V	/orking with motors
Т	he Fans
Т	he Fan functions
Т	he Timed functions
Т	he Motion detector function
Т	he Sensor Functions
Т	he Fan (exhaust) function
Т	he Local Mood function
Т	he Timed Local Mood function
Т	he General Mood function
Т	he Transparent function
Т	he Messages and Alarms functions
Т	he TP Buzzer functions
Т	he 'If-Then-Else' function
Т	he Process functions
Т	he 'Flag' function
Т	he Condition
С	alculation function
Т	he Service functions
Т	he clock functions
Т	he audio functions
S	end IR, RS232 OR IP Code
Т	he Auto start function
Т	he Display Functions
Т	ouch screen functions
Т	he step function
Т	he RGB function
Т	he tunable white function
Comm	nunication
С	onnecting your PC with the central unit
С	onnection trouble shooting
C	ommunication with the DOIP central unit
Overv	iew of your domotic project
Diagn	ostics
R	elays
D	immers
Ν	lotors
D	igital Inputs
А	nalogue Inputs
А	udio Zones
С	ther Functions
Ir	nterfaces
N	Ionitor

© 2018 TELETASK byba

# The basic flow diagram of a configuration session

Setting up the relation between an input and an output is basically very simple. There are only about three steps to be done to define that for example a certain light is switched on/off by means of a certain (momentary) push button on the wall:



3 Define the relation between the input and the output (example: 'SWITCH' on/off) Cancel

Central Unit: A. MICPOS- Central Unit Address: AUTOBUS 1 v 1 Serface type: DS12020-AURUS-2	Sensor Zone: None RGB zone: Name Main Beep or IR
ledware AUTOBUS 1 v 1	RGB zone: Name Main Beep or IR
edress /pe: DS12020_AURUS_2	Hide Zone: Name Main Beep on IR
serface type: DS12020: AURUS-2	Nair Beep on IR
terface type: DS12020 AURUS-2	Beep on IR
terface type: DS12020: AURUS-2:	Diffus functions
D512020 AURUS-2	DUBUTTUTUTUTU
	Short
	Ralay v 25 Living a Light a Reading Light v
	Togole ON/DEF
3	1
4	None v
	1000
1 2	
6	
	Input definition
	Duration
	Uescription:
	Enable Button Control
	Enable Button Control
	Enable Button Control
	Input definition

Another very powerful relation can be the control of a number of outputs (loads) by only one button. This seems more complex, but you can define the relation between the button and the different outputs in only three steps.



2 Configure the button (input)

ine Interface Fun	ction				
Basio Advanced	1				
Name:	AURUS-2		Audio zone:	None	
Central Unit:	A: MICROS+ Central Unit		Sensor Zone:	None	~
Address	AUTOBUS 1 🗸 1		RGB zone:	None	
				Beep o	Asin IR Enable 🖟 e IR command 🖟
interface type:		Button functions			
TD512020 AURU	15-2	Short			1000
		Local Mood v			✓ 1 問
	3	Long None v			- D 27
	1 2 6 7 8	Input definition Description:	🖉 Erabk	e Button Control	
			⊠ Enabk	e Remote Control	Cancel

3 Configure the function which contains all the outputs (ex: list of all outputs which will have to be controlled at once)

Room:			Inne		Name			Discrable	OK	
None	~	1.69	Mood		LMD 1	_		Topple	Cano	el
select Output:		1000			harroota ta					
Relay	~	25 Livin	p > Light > Rea	sing Light		v	) if		0N/0#	÷
Relay	~][	26 Livin	p > Light > Upp	er light.		v	ा ही		ON/OF	v
Relay	~	27 Livin	g » Device » W	all sockets		v	112		0N/0#	÷
None	¥						1 12			
None	~						1197			
None	÷.					×	1 日			2
None	~						1 17			
None	÷.						112			
None	×						1197			
None	~						1 12			

4 Define the necessary relation between a button and the custom made function (ex. 'local mood')

The Interface Pur					
Sasio Advance	41615.2		fuels were		
Contraction of the second	A MARCAN C. A LLLA		A000 2016	none .	
Central Unit:	A: MCHDS+ Centrel Unit		Sensor Zone:	None	v
Address	AUTOBUS 1 V		RGB zone:	None	~
				Beep on	in IR Enable 🖉
terface type:		Button functions			
DS12020: AURI	15-2	Short	AV61000000000		100000
		Local Mood 🗸 🚺	s Mood > Reading		<ul><li>一</li></ul>
	3				
	4	None ~			- ) <u>6</u>
	1 2 5				
	7	Input definition			
U 1	8	Description:	🗹 Enable	Button Control Remote Control	

All relations which are defined between the inputs and the outputs are always based on one of the two flow diagrams above. It is the functionality of the chosen relation (sometimes this can be more than one function) between the inputs and the outputs which may increase the level of complexity of your work.

 Image: Image:

© 2018 TELETASK bvba

# The full flow diagram

The basic flow diagram above shows the simple basic task to be done in PROSOFT: defining relations between inputs and outputs. Because there is also the opening of the program, sending the configuration file to the central unit, etc... below there is the extended basic flow diagram which contains all necessary steps to be taken to complete a TELETASK / PROSOFT task from scratch to the end point where you can switch off your PC.

# 1 The start-up of a new installation

- Collect all project related information
- Open the new project (start PROSOFT on your PC)

## 2 Enter all the rooms of your project

(example: kitchen, office, garage, toilet 1, garden, etc.)

• Enter all rooms

# 3 Enter all outputs and give them a name

(R1 = light in toilet nr.1)
(R2 = wall socket on the terrace)

- Add all necessary output interfaces
- Give a name to every single output

## 4 Enter all inputs.

(Input 1 = "left button of the double button panel in the toilet nr. 1")

- Add all necessary input interfaces
- Enter the name of the input

# 5 Define all necessary functions

• Define the functions

# 6 Define the relations

• Enter the relations

# 7 Save and send the generated file from the PC to the central unit

- Save your file on the PC
- Send from PC to central unit

IMPORTANT: Don't forget to make a back-up of your .nbt file which is generated by the PROSOFT Suite. It is important to keep this back-up file available over the full life-time of the installation.

 Image: Image:

© 2018 TELETASK bvba

# Starting up a new project

# Table of contents:

Collecting the project information Starting a project TELETASK CLOUD installation Use of passwords and codes

 Image: Image:

© 2018 TELETASK bvba

# Collecting the project information

Before starting up a new project, it is recommended to have all technical details of the TELETASK hardware components which are needed in the project. This information is to be given by the system integrator. The information is necessary to be able to use PROSOFT in a simple and straightforward way. The information will also result in a correct documentation print-out of the full custom project. Below you can find an overview of the information you need before you can proceed with the next step.

# The TELETASK central unit

You will have to define which central unit is going to be used in the project. As this is one of the first items which is decided, you should easily find out which central unit is used for the project. Please refer to the data sheets of the available central units.

# The list of rooms

The 'list of rooms' contains an overview of all rooms in your project. Not only indoor rooms, but also outdoor areas will be needed to be divided into 'rooms'. Rooms are best to be obtained from the architectural drawings. The room names you use are important because the people living in the house need to be able to understand them. A simple' bedroom' name will not be sufficient as name if there are more bedrooms in the house. We recommend giving a more detailed name. You can add the name of the person that will live in the bedroom to the word 'bedroom'. For example 'bedroom parents' or 'bedroom Maria' is better than 'bedroom 2'. Using familiar names is better for a good communication with the occupants. It will save you time and it increases the quality of the solution you are offering with TELETASK.

PROSOFT makes no distinction between indoor and outdoor rooms.

# The list of outputs

The 'list of outputs' gives an overview of all TELETASK output interfaces (for example relay interfaces), with an overview of which output interface and contact is connected to which load. This list is based on the electrical board information and is obtained from the electrical contractor. This list may be, depending on the project, several pages long and is absolutely needed before you can proceed. Please be sure that you have all information as listed below.

#### Type of output

depending on the connected load and the desired control:

#### Relay

used to switch on/off (for example a switchable light)

#### Dimmer

used to dim (for example a dimmable light)

#### Motor

used to control AC or DC motors (for example: opening/closing a curtain of shutter).

24/1/2019

#### Fan interfaces

used to control fan (for example a ceiling fan or fan coil unit)

#### Type of output interface

the specific type of interface (for example: 'TDS13510' for a 'Relay output')

#### **Output number**

for example Relay output nr. 1, or Dimmer nr. 10

### Extra Information:

#### Room

This is the room where the connected load is installed (for example 'living room'; to be chosen out of the 'rooms' list).

#### lcon

describes which kind of load is connected: here you have the choice out of a list: light, device (wall socket or other ON/OFF loads), motor or mood.

#### Name

gives a more precise load description (for example work top, washing table; reading light...)

More information about these items can be found in heading 'O-interfaces: outputs'.

# The list of inputs

The list of inputs contains all TELETASK input interfaces and the names (with location indication) of the connected inputs such as window contacts, sensors, pushbuttons etc... Having this full list (from the electrical contractor) is necessary before you can proceed. The following information has to be available:

#### Type of input

depending on kinds of signal, this input must be connected to a certain type of input of the TELETASK system (only one of the different types below can apply):

#### General type of input

external (not in the MICROS+/PICOS central unit housing) interface like for example a touch panel AURUS ref. TDS12021xx.

#### **Digital type of input**

this is an input for all kind of voltage free contacts. For example coming from a standard momentary push button, a window contact, a motion detector contact or similar.

#### Analogue type of input

this is an input for an analogue signal for example a signal received from a TELETASK temperature sensor.

#### AV type

for the integration of external AV systems

#### Type of input interface used

this is the TELETASK interface type to which the concerning input signal is to be connected. For example TDS12125 (Cookie

with feedback),

#### Input number

for example digital input- or button number 1

#### **Extra information**

custom note; for example 'push button in the kitchen next to the stove'.

# Information about the electrical contractor or system integrator.

To complete the report print-out, you need the name and the address of the electrical installer or system integrator. Add this information in PROSOFT menu 'Extra' - 'Options' - 'System Setup'

# Information about the owner of the house

A project is always related to a house or building. You need the fill in the name and address of the owners in the dedicated area in PROSOFT.

 Image: Image:

© 2018 TELETASK bvba

# Starting a project

As soon as all project details are available, you can start configuring your TDS (TELETASK Domotics System). This is by using the PROSOFT software.

# Installing PROSOFT on a PC

PROSOFT Suite (V3.2 and higher) runs on Windows 7 / 8.1 / 10 .

You can download the installation package of the PROSOFT Suite via this link. Remark: You may have to 'register' first before you can start downloading.

# Starting PROSOFT the first time

- Click on the 'Start' button in the lower left corner on your screen.
- Select 'Programs' in the start menu.
- Select 'TELETASK' in the programs list.
- Click on 'PROSOFT Vx.xx' in the TELETASK program list (x.xx stands for the PROSOFT version).
- PROSOFT starts now.

# Select the central unit which will be used in your project

When PROSOFT has started, you will be asked if you want to start-up a new project or an existing project for a specific central unit.

# Saving project option on the PC

It is necessary to save the .NBT file on you PC. Don't forget to save it when working on it, not only when you have finished it. TELETASK suggests to add a new file (version) number (example: MyProject V01.nbt) each time and increase this number every time you've made essential changes. This way you can easily go back to an older file version when the new version contains a mistake. It is also a practical tool to make a difference between older and newer back-up versions of the file. You can easily see which the old are and which the new files are.

## Practical

- Click on 'FILE' in the PROSOFT menu.
- Click on 'SAVE' or 'SAVE AS' in the 'File' menu.
- Give the project a name and add V01 (f.e. JAMES V01.NBT if you save this file for the first time).
- When you will save a new version, use regularly 'SAVE AS' and increase the version number V01 to V02, V03,.... (f.e. JAMES V02.NBT,...)

## REMARKS

Make regular backups of your .NBT file and keep them safely for future use.

As soon as the project is finished, make a back-up of the latest version and keep it safe (f.e. safe deposit box). The file can be very valuable because of all the efforts which were made and possible private information such as entrance code for the house, etc...

# Project options (menu 'extra')

Click on 'OPTIONS' in the 'EXTRA' menu to fill in the project related details. The Option window will appear on the screen. In this window all the options are grouped in different tab pages. We will describe them here:

### System setup

stem setup Op	otion Se	ensor	Motors	RGB Settings	Time settings	E-mail	Access control	
Principal/Site:								
Name:								
Address:								=
nstaller:								
Name:								
Address:								
PROSOFT pass	sword:							
Protect NE	BT file ar	nd cen	tral unit	with password				
Remo	ove pass	sword	on 'Back	to factory settin	gs'			
Change		ord						
Citaliy	e hassw							

In the tab window System Setup you can fill in the global project details: the details of the electrical installer and the details of the owner of the house/project.

Password protection can also be enabled.

24/1/2019

## Option

ptions	×
System setup Option Sensor Motors RGB Settings Time set	tings E-mail Access control
Language: English ~	
Specials:       50 mSe         Relay Delay:       50 mSe         Interfaces (Bus), LONG press:       1.2 Sec         Direct Inputs, LONG press:       1 Sec         Image: Special Sector Se	e(↓ C↓ ↓ ts)
Service Options: Auto Start Function:	None ~
No-Action timer:	0d 10h 00m 🖨
No-Action alarm:	None  V
	OK Cancel

#### Language

here you can select the necessary language version you prefer for PROSOFT Suite. You have to re-start the PROSOFT SUITE to activate changes. This setting is no setting in the .NBT file but will be kept globally by the PROSOFT Suite.

### Special:

#### **Relay delay**

here you can determine which time has to be elapsed between the switching of a relay (this to avoid problems with inrush current).

#### **Press Long bus interfaces**

this determines how long you have to push on a button before it will be recognized as 'Press Long'.

#### Feedback LED's blink on error

if this option is checked the feedback led's of the touch panels will start to blink when the function behind is in 'error' (f.e. when an output interface could not be found on the AUTOBUS). This is very useful during the start-up of the installation.

#### Service:

#### **Auto start function**

24/1/2019

this function will always be executed when the central unit is started (after sending from PROSOFT, after a voltage loss,) Thanks to this function you can assure that some 'critical' functions always will be executed/started (e.g. process functions).

#### **No Action timer**

This time determines after which period the 'No-Action alarm' will be executed. This timer can be put ON or OFF or RESET by the service function.

#### No Action alarm

Here you can define a function which has to be executed after the 'No Action timer' has elapsed. A typical application is an emergency alarm in service flats.

### Sensor

Options	×
System setup Option Sensor Motors RGB Settings Time setti	ngs E-mail Access control
Temperature Settings:	
Heating system type:	Standard (no cyclustime hyst 0.5°C) $\qquad \qquad \lor$
Cooling system type (air conditioning):	Standard (no cycle time hyst 0.5°C) $\qquad \qquad \lor$
Temperature zone ON if target is changed from Display inter	face
Temperature / 10V or 100% time:	5.0 °C 🜲
Delta Heat / Cool:	0.0 °C
Frost protection temperature:	5.0 ℃
Energy management and Charts:	
Energy settings Charts	
Others:	
Hysteresis Light sensor:	5
Hysteresis Humidity sensor:	5 %
	OK Cancel

### Temperature settings:

#### Heating system type

Here you can set up the heating cycle (only applicable for sensor zones with control method 'relay', 'flag' or 'local mood'). Standard there is no cycle and hysteresis of 0.5C° used. In this case the heating is activated when the temperature is 0.5C° lower than the demanded temperature and turned off when the demanded temperature is reached. When you have activated a cycle, the heating will be periodical ON. How long there will be heated depends on the chosen cycle and the difference between the desired and measured temperature. Via this method the temperature can be kept more optimal and the energy consumption will be lower.

### Cooling system type: see 'Heating system type'

#### Temperature zone ON if target is changed from Display interface

This option determines whether a temperature zone will be switched on automatically when the user changes the target temperature of that zone, using the UP / DOWN buttons on a display interface. Display interfaces that support this are: AURUS-4 TEMP, AURUS-0LED (PLUS), AURUS-TFT, iSGUI, GUI+.

#### Temperature / 10V or 100% time

this parameter is only applicable for a heating system: with multistage control, analogue control and other methods of control WITH regulated cycles. This parameter determines at which temperature difference between the measured and the regulated temperature the heating/cooling has to be controlled maximal. (high speed with multistage control, 10V for analogue control and 100% cycle for the others).

#### Activate the 'AUTO' modus

when this parameter is checked, the system will automatically be able to switch from heating to cooling or the other way around, depending on the measured and regulated temperature. REMARK: if the 'AUTO' mode is activated it is still possible to select the mode HEAT or COOL for every zone, the system then will only heat or cool, it will never change the mode by itself.

#### Delta Hot/Cool

this is a temperature difference. If the measured temperature is higher than the regulated temperature increased with Delta Hot/Cool, the system will go in AUTO mode and start cooling. The regulated temperature for cooling for Day or Standby in a zone is the regulated temperature for heating in this zone increased with Delta Hot/Cool.

#### Freeze protection temperature

the temperature which has to be obtained minimally, even when the zone is "OFF" or there is a window open in this zone, to avoid frost damage.

### Others:

#### Hysteresis light sensor

the hysteresis which has to be used for a light sensor. Because Lux values are a logarithmic scale this is not stipulated in absolute values but in amount of steps.

#### Hysteresis humidity sensor

the hysteresis for a humidity sensor

### Motors

Options							×
System setup Option	Sensor Motors	RGB Settings	Time settings	E-mail	Access control		
Sun function overu	le loverrule of the sur	n function.					
						OK	Cancel

### Sun function overrule

Enable manual overrule of the sun function.

### RGB settings

Options	>	<
System setup Option Sensor Motors	RGB Settings Time settings E-mail Access control	
1         2         3         4         5         6         7         8         9         0	Add Edit Remove	
▲ ↓		
	OK Cancel	

Here you can define maximum of 10 basic colours for RGB functions as a kind of general colour pallet. These values can be used with the TDS12502 (remote control) via the RGB button + (0 - 9).

Remark: an RGB zone needs to be defined for the touch panel that receives the IR commands.

When you want to assign a colour to an RGB function in a Mood or from a button, these colours will also show as the 'Custom colours'. So once these colours are defined to your wishes you can easily use them anywhere.

Colour	×
Basic colours:         Image: Colours:<	
Custom colours:	
Define Custo <u>m</u> Colours >>	Hue:         160         Red:         255           Sat:         0         Green:         255           Colour/Solid         Lum:         240         Blue:         255
OK Cancel	Add to Custom Colours

### Time setting

ptions								×
System setup	Option	Sensor	Motors	RGB Settings	Time settings	E-mail	Access control	
Clock								
Select Time	zone:							
Europe/Brus	sels						~	
<b>.</b>								
Automati	cally adj	ust Centra	al unit l ii	me (from Interne	et)			
O Set Centre	ral unit T	ime to PC	C time					
Workdays:								
Monday								
🗸 Tuesday	r							
✓ Wednes	day							
Thursday	у							
🗸 Friday								
Saturday	,							
Sunday								
							UK Cancel	

### Clock:

#### Time zone

here you can define the time zone which has to be used by the central unit. This time zone also contains information about the use (or not) of summertime and when this starts and ends.

#### Adapt time automatically (via the Internet)

this regulation is advised when you have a continuous connection with the internet. This way your central unit clock will be synchronised with the 'Time Servers' on the internet. This results in a very accurate clock which always will be correct in the whole project (all touch panels and screens).

#### Synchronize de time of the central unit with the time of your PC

with this regulation the clock of the central unit will be set even with the clock of your PC when synchronising (each time when sending the .NBT file).

#### Workday

Select all the days in a week which are 'Workdays' for you. This is important when the regime will be on 'Automatic'.



ptions	×
System setup Option Sensor Motors RGB Settings Time settings E-mail Access control	
Sender display name:	
Sender E-mail address:	
SMTP Server (outgoing mail):	
SMTP port (default = 25):	
ОК	Cancel

#### **Report sender's name**

this name will be used as sender's name of an e-mail whenever the central unit will send an e-mail.

#### Sender's e-mail address

this address will be used as sender of an e-mail whenever the central unit will send an e-mail. If the receiver of this e-mail replies at this message, the message will be sent to this address.

#### SMTP Server (sent mails)

the SMTP server address which has to be used for sending the e-mails. This address is depending on the internet provider

and can be asked for at your internet provider.

#### **SMTP port**

the port has to be used for the SMTP, normally this is port 25.

### Local Settings

Options								×
System setup	Option	Sensor	Motors	RGB Settings	Time settings	E-mail	Access control	
Manage a	ccess cor os (defaul s s & Group	ntrol in CA t) is (Advan	RDSOFT ced)	by				
CARDSOF	T logging )FT loggi	ng e-mail	recipien	ts:				
Enter re	cipients, s	eperate n	nultiple ad	dresses by a ','				
							OK Can	cel

# Cameras & Doors

If your project includes IP cameras or door phones you have to add them to PROSOFT to integrate them into the TELETASK system. The cameras can be configured with or without video-door-phone functionalities. It is also possible to add a door phone with speech only.

When integrating a video door phone system with multiple doors there are 2 possibilities:

- The video door phone system manages the different doors itself and there is only 1 outgoing video and phone connection. This type of video door phone system is integrated as 1 IP camera. (This is typical for analogue video door phone systems that are converted to IP using a TDS10119 and a video to IP convertor).
- The different outdoor units are accessible individually. When integrating this type of video door phone system an IP camera is added in PROSOFT for each outdoor unit.

Analogue cameras can be converted to IP cameras by using additional hardware. Check with your local camera

TELETASK can't be responsible for potential errors in the data sheets and technical documentation. Changes in the product features can be made at any time, without prior notice. o, TELETASK, GENT

Be sure that the selected IP camera supports Motion JPEG (MJPEG) encoding (Still Image or Streaming) via HTTP protocol (URL must be available). Must be tested before use. Password protection is supported.



### Practical

- Click "Extra" in the main PROSOFT menu bar.
- Click "IP Cameras"
- Click the "Add" button to add a new camera

### Parameters

### IP Cam/Doors

Define IP camera or video d	oor phone		×
General			
Camera name:	Video Doorphone	Rooms	
Video settings			
Camera Url:			
http://192.168.0.24/	axis-cgi/jpg/image.cpi?resolution=	-320x240	
Camera port for cloud acc Motion JPEG mode: Still Image: fast re	ess: esponse, but lower framerate		
O Server streaming	: higher frame rate		
Authentication (optional, n	ot recommended for 'Still Image')	):	
User name:	admin		
Password	••••	Test video	
VoIP Settings			
VoIP Call ID:	901		
DTMF accept call:	#5		
DTMF end call:	#		
Door opener settings			
TELETASK function:			
Timed function	~ 🗋		
01 Garden » Devi	ce » Open gate 🗸 📑		
DTMF door code:	*001		
	C	DK Cancel	

#### Name

Enter the name of the camera. For example 'front door' or 'back garden'

#### Rooms

Select in which rooms the camera is displayed on the target device (e.g. on the AURUS-TFT).

REMARK: by default a camera is available in all rooms

#### Video Doorphone settings

Enter the camera features of the selected door. The 'Video settings are optional, leave this part blank when integration a door phone or intercom station that has no camera.

#### Camera URL

Depending on the IP camera type this URL can contain the resolution setting. See the remark of the resolution settings at

the end of this chapter.

#### **Motion JPEG mode**

Select the mode that this camera will use

#### Still Image

Use this mode when the Camera URL results in a still image in your browser. The advantage of using 'Still Image' is the fast response for the first image. Disadvantage is the lower frame rate

#### **Server Streaming**

Use this mode when the Camera URL results in a video stream in your browser. This mode takes somewhat longer (about 1s) to load the first image but subsequent images are loaded at a higher framerate resulting in more natural video.

REMARK: The framerate of the video is depending on the camera settings (framerate can be limited in most camera), the network (on the LAN a higher framerate will be possible than when viewing the camera remotely), and the device displaying the video (a PC running GUI+ will process video faster than an AURUS-TFT).

#### Authentication

Enter a user name and password to login to the camera (optional)

REMARK: Authentication is not recommended for 'Still Image'.

#### Test video

Click this button to test the video settings

REMARK: The 'Test video' will display the video in its original resolution. The video may be scaled or clipped on the actual device (e.g AURUS-TFT, GUI+, iSGUI).

REMARK: Not all video options are available on all uses interfaces (see table below)

	Still Image	Server Streaming	Authentication
GUI+ (TDS15105)	V	V	V
iSGUI v2.5 (TDS15101)	V	V	V
AURUS-TFT (TDS12064)	V	V	V
iSGUI v1 (old)	V	Х	Х
GUI (old)	$\vee$	Х	Х

#### **VoIP Settings**

These settings are used by GUI+ only. These settings are optional

#### VoIP Call ID

Enter the Call ID of the (video) door phone or intercom station. The call ID will be used by GUI+ to identify the caller.

- DTMF accept call: Optional. Some door phone systems require a DTMF code to start the conversation. Enter this code here. This code is sent when an incoming call is accepted by the user.
- DTMF end call: Optional. Some door phone systems require a DTMF code to end a conversation, enter this code here. This code is sent when an call is terminated by the user.

#### **Door opener settings**

These settings are used by GUI+ and AURUS-TFT to open a door. These settings are optional (e.g. when there is only an iSGUI or when this IP camera is associated with an intercom station).

#### **TELETASK function**

Select a function here that will open the door associated with this IP camera. When integrating a single door or a video door phone system where the individual doors are accessible, this function can be the electric door opener itself. When integrating a video door phone system that manages the doors itself this can be a relay connected to an input of the door phone system. This function can also be used for other actions as well (e.g. a local mood that not only opens the gate but also switches on the driveway lights).

#### DTMF door code

(only to be used when a door phone system is connected to a GUI+) Enter here the number(s) of the DTMF code(s) which are to be generated to open the door via the (video) door phone system. The DTMF code(s) is/are defined by the brand and the type of door phone system. Ask the supplier of this system which code(s) are to be generated to open the door. In most of the cases this is one or two digits. Example: '\*001'.

REMARK: The TELETASK function and the DTMF door code can be used together (e.g. the DTMF door code for the door and the TELETASK Function for the driveway lights).

REMARK: DTMF codes do not work across all VoIP system, so if possible use the TELETASK function.

All the IP Cameras added in PROSOFT will be available in the 'Phone book' on GUI+, so for intercom functionality also add the intercom stations here (without camera).

Be aware of the camera resolution. When you add a camera to display it on a AURUS-TFT (TDS12064), select it to be as close as possible to the AURUS-TFT resolution of 480x272 (for example 480x320). The frame rate will drop with higher resolutions. See for your IP camera configuration settings if you can select different resolutions.

When the same camera is used for the AURUS-TFT (TDS12064) and for example also for the MAIOR-19 (TDS12053), it

is recommended to add the camera two times with different resolution settings (URL address) matching the resolution of the target device (e.g. 480x320 for the AURUS-TFT and 640x480 for the MAIOR). Depending on you IP camera configuration possibilities, this can be displayed as a different URL address.

IMPORTANT: When adding a camera with different resolution keep in mind that most cameras only support encoding to 1 resolution at a time for each mode. So for example add the low resolution as 'Still Image' for AURUS-TFT and the high resolution as 'Server streaming for GUI+ and iSGUI.

 Image: Image:

© 2018 TELETASK byba
## TELETASK CLOUD installation

## Introduction

In this manual you can learn how to setup a connection to control your home/building from a mobile device.

Therefore you need to:

- connect your TELETASK system to the TELETASK cloud service
- connect your mobile device (with 'iSGUI' app) to the TELETASK cloud service

Once these two connections are made, the mobile device will be able to talk with your house/building via the TELETASK cloud service.

Requirements:

• PROSOFT 3.6.0.0 or higher.

Remark: during this setup your PROSOFT PC needs to be connected both to the central unit and to the internet.

The procedure to connect a central unit to the TELETASK cloud is divided into five different steps:

- 1. Create a system integrator (SI) account on the TELETASK cloud server (with a browser).
- 2. Create additional cloud users in PROSOFT and transmit the newly obtained PROSOFT .nbt file to the central unit.
- 3. Activate a TELETASK cloud account(s) on the mobile device(s).
- 4. Create and configure the users
- 5. Use the iSGUI app on the mobile device(s).

## Create a SI (System Integrator) account first

A system integrator account is the same as a standard user account, but when a TELETASK installation is first connected to the TELETASK Cloud, the initial account automatically becomes the system integrator account for that installation (required for every installation).

To create the SI account, go to cloud.teletask.be and click 'create account'.

Or use the link provided by PROSOFT (see chapter Connect the central unit to the TELETASK cloud) to go directly to the 'create account' page.

Enter the required information (name, e-mail, country and password) of the system integrator, and click 'create account'. The Si will receive an e-mail immediately. It contains a confirmation link. Click on the link to activate the account.

Remark: if the email is not found, it may be arrived in another mailbox (spam, clutter or other...).

# Connect the central unit to the TELETASK cloud service

This step is done in PROSOFT and requires a connection with the central unit and the internet. To connect the central unit to the cloud:

- In PROSOFT, select 'Communication', 'Cloud'
- The 'Login to TELETASK cloud' window appears.
- Enter your email address and password (created in the previous step, or if you have not yet created an account, click create account).

×
ord on this PC
in
Create account

Remark: you can optionally save your "user name" and "password" on the PC so that you don't need to enter them again for other installations (= other central units of other customers) which you want to add to the TELETASK cloud service.

When the login is successful, the "Define installation" window appears

- Enter a name for the installation (customer name or for example 'Home', 'Office', 'Cabinet', 'Shop'... We strongly recommend ;not to use the site address or building name for security reasons). This name will appear on your iSGUI app screen.
- Click 'Connect installation to cloud'

System integra	tor:		
the state of the s			
	Login with a dif	ferent e-mail address	
Installation nar	me:		
Installation nar	me: Connect in	stallation to cloud	
Installation nar	me: Connect in	stallation to cloud	

The installation is now added to the Cloud. If you visit cloud.teletask.be and log in with your SI account, you will be able to see your new installation.

## Create and configure the users

The next step is to configure the users. These are the persons who want to use the iSGUI app on their device(s) and the persons who need to do the management of the rights of the users. Most of the time it the owner who have all the rights and he/she is a user as well.

Configuring the (cloud) users is done in PROSOFT. To do this click the menu "Extra" and "Users and settings", the define users window appears.

User properties:

### Name

A user name (required; f.i. 'Matheo', 'Sarah'...)

### Email address

the user's email address (required if the user wants to use the iSGUI app)

### **Cloud access**

Can be 'No access', 'Owner' or 'User'. Can only be set if an email address has been assigned to the user. The different settings are explained in the next paragraph.

### Proximity tag", "Proximity card", "PORTA" and "Group

are settings specific for CARDSOFT, see the CARDSOFT chapter for more info

Define U	sers							_		×
User co	de (AURUS-TF	T, iSGUI,	GUI+)							
Us	er code:		•••••							
CARDS	OFT									
Users	Groups									
	Name		Email address	Cloud access	Proximity tag	Proximity card	PORTA	Group		
•	John			No access		1234567		None		
*										
						[	ОК		Cancel	

## Cloud access

The TELETASK cloud defines 4 types of users: "System integrator", "Owners", "Users", and "None".

### System integrator

The system integrator is the account which was used to initially connect the installation to the cloud. The system integrator has access by default, but an owner can switch this off. When switched off, the system integrator can't use iSGUI or edit users via the TELETASK Cloud website.

Remark: The system integrator is obliged to give notice to the owners if he has full right to manage the rights and the use of iSGUI (it is like having a spare key of the main door). We recommend to make a written notice via e-mail and keep a confirmation of agreement of the owner. We don't recommend to do so to avoid unwanted responsibilities to the system integrator. At the other hand, it is an interesting feature to give maximum service to the owner(s).

### Owner

a type of user that has iSGUI access and who can change settings of other users in the TELETASK Cloud.

### User

regular users who has iSGUI access but can't change settings (like adding or deleting another user or change his own or somebody else's iSGUI rights).

### None

users without TELETASK Cloud access.

Remark: the owner can change the status of any user at any time by simple login to the cloud service (no need to use PROSOFT). This feature can for example be used to activate (='User') or block (='None') the access to the iSGUI app for temporary employees, external technical staff, lock-out of the system integrator when no services are wanted, etc...

# Transmit the PROSOFT file to the central unit(s)

Once the previous steps are done, the PROSOFT- .nbt file is ready to be transmitted to your central unit(s).

This can be done in the usual way (for more details see 'Technical Handbook' in the PROSOFT help menu). The central units will be notified that they should connect to the TELETASK Cloud as soon as a network becomes available to them. If PROSOFT is 'running', you can track the connection status of each central unit in the bottom panels in the PROSOFT screen.

## Camera's on iSGUI without Dynamic DNS or

## fixed IP- address

IP cameras do not connect to the TELETASK cloud directly. They still require port forwarding, but the TELETASK cloud will make sure that a connection from the iSGUI application can be made to the router on which the port forwarding is configured. So a VPN, Dynamic DNS account or a fixed IP address from your ISP are no longer required.

There are many manufactures of IP-routers, so for information on how to setup port forwarding on your device, please contact your network specialist.

When the port forwarding is set up, the only thing that you need to do is to add the 'public port' used for the port forwarding to each camera in PROSOFT.

De	fine IP camera or video doo	r phone	×
	General		
	Camera name:	Front door	Rooms
	Video settings Camera Url:		
	http://192.168.5.5/vide	0	
	Camera port for cloud acces	S:	
	Motion JPEG mode:	oonse, but lower framerate	
	O Server streaming: h	igher frame rate	
	Authentication (optional, not	recommended for 'Still Image'):	
	User name:	admin	
	Password	•••••	Test video
	VoIP Settings		
	VoIP Call ID:		
	DTMF accept call:		
	General       Camera name:       Front door       Rooms         Video settings       Camera Url:       Image: Camera Url:       Image: Camera Dirl:       Image: Camera Dirl: <td></td>		
	Door opener settings		
	TELETASK function:		
Define IP camera or video door phone General Camera name: Front door Video settings Camera Url: http://192.168.5.5/video Camera port for cloud access: 1000 Motion JPEG mode: Still Image: fast response, but lower framerate Server streaming: higher frame rate Authentication (optional, not recommended for 'Still Image'): User name: admin Password VoIP Settings VoIP Call ID: DTMF accept call: DTMF end call: DTMF end call: DTMF door code: DTMF door code:			
		*	
	DTMF door code:		
		ОК	Cancel

Remark: For security it is important to use a password on camera's that are used with the TELETASK cloud.

Remark: Normally the public port number will be different for every camera, unless multiple camera's are accessed through an intermediate device (e.g. a multi channel analog to IP convertor or a DVR).

Remark: The 'test video' functionality in PROSOFT only tests the 'local operation' of the camera, not the remote access.

## Network specifications (used ports)

Although the TELETASK cloud is designed to work with most networks, some networks (offices, hotels,...) may block the ports used by the TELETASK cloud system. The ports used differ between the central unit and a device (e.g. smartphone) that connects to the central unit.

- Central unit: outgoing traffic on ports 9000 and 9443 must be allowed on the network on which the central unit is connected.
- iSGUI: outgoing traffic on ports 5671 and 8443 must be allowed on the WiFi network to which the device is connected. If the device is connected on 4G (or another mobile communication standard), these ports should be open by default.

The TELETASK cloud does not require VPN or port forwarding (with the exception of cameras). The TELETASK cloud does not require a static IP or dyndns service (not even for the cameras).

 Image: Image:

## Use of passwords and codes

## User code

On certain graphical interfaces (like on the iSGUI and AURUS-TFT) it is possible to protect specific items with a code. For the iSGUI it's also possible to have a user code protection during startup (see iSGUI properties in GUISOFT).

This code can only be changed inside PROSOFT and is the same for all AURUS-TFT', iSGUI's, ...

The user code is default 12345 and can only contain numbers (4 to 10 digits).

.ber co	de (AURUS-TF	T, ISGUL	GUI+)						
			-	-					
Use	er code:								
ARD9	OFT								
lsers.	Groups								
	Name		Email address	Cloud access	Proximity tag	Proximity card	PORTA	Group	
•	1								

• For configuration go to: Extra > Define Users

## PROSOFT password

The DoIP central as well as the .NBT file, can be protected with a password if desired. By doing this you can prevent unauthorised access.

The password will be asked every single time you open a protected .NBT file or connect with a protected DoIP central. After the password has been set, it can only be changed or removed from inside PROSOFT after giving the current password.

The password is alphanumeric (like a typical PC password).

ROSOFT	Options 2	
THESOFT	Spitien extup Option Sensor Notors RGB Settings Time settings E-mail Access control Principal/Ste	
ARDSOFT	Nome: Address:	
ULSOFT		
V-SOFT	Installer: PROSOFT pessword X	
ALISOFT	Name: Address: New PROSOFT password: Hepeat new PROSOFT password: DK Cancal	
	PROSOFT permitted	
	Protect NBT file and central unit with password     Perneve password on 'Back to factory settings'	
	Change password	
	OK Cancel	

• For configuration go to: Extra > Options > System setup

#### Security

Check "Protect NBT file and central unit with password" if you wish to prevent unauthorized access to the .NBT file. When the .NBT file is password protected, it will be:

- impossible to open the NBT file without the correct password
- impossible to make a connection with the password protected central unit without the correct password. This means that sending a new file, receiving the existing file or using Diagnostics, will be impossible.

Every time you change these settings, you will be asked to save the .NBT file.

If you send a password protected .NBT file to a non-password protected central unit, or if you send a non-password protected .NBT file to a password protected central unit, both will get password protected.

If the password of the .NBT file gets lost, the only solution will be to reset the central unit back to factory settings and start a new .NBT file. See also the remark below.

IMPORTANT REMARK: By default the "Remove password on 'Back to factory settings'" is enabled. If you wish to keep the password when the central unit is reset by pressing the SW1 and SW2 button, uncheck this mark. Be aware that if you forget the password, you will not be able to create a new .NBT file. It can only be reset by sending the central unit to TELETASK for repair!

## Technical code

The technical code will give you access to certain configurations like AUTOBUS address, IP address, ... on some

interfaces like the AURUS-TFT, etc. ...

Ex.: with interfaces without rotary switches, you have to set the AUTOBUS address in the configuration screen after giving the correct technical code.

This is always 09876 and it is impossible to change.

 Image: Image:

## The rooms

Every home is divided in several rooms: the kitchen, living room, the office room, the bathroom(s), the different sleeping rooms, the garden, etc... Because this is a clear and logical approach for every home, PROSOFT also approaches your home by using the different rooms.

The defined rooms are also very important for the automatic generation program of some of the menu operated TELETASK user interfaces (mobile phone iSGUI interface). It is very important to insert the rooms correctly!

## Overview of the rooms

## List of rooms

In the list of rooms you have an overview of all available rooms. Every room is substituted of the following information:

- Code: Every room automatically gets a code which is used by the system. This code is not changeable and is made out of:
- RM: this is the abbreviation of 'Room'
- Number: every room gets a number for internal system use. It starts with 01 and is incremented (+1) every time you enter an additional room.
- Name: contains the room name as entered in PROSOFT by the user.

When you want to change an existing room name, select the room in the list of rooms. It will turn blue. Then double click on it or click the 'edit' button. Now you are able to change the different parameters.

## Possible actions in the list of rooms menu

- New: Click the 'New' button to add a room.
- Edit: Click the 'Edit' button to edit the parameters of a room
- Delete: Click the 'Delete' button to delete a room from the list of rooms.

## In practice

- Click 'Edit' in the PROSOFT menu bar.
- Click 'Rooms'.
- The 'list of rooms' window appears on the screen

## Adding rooms to the list of rooms

## The different parameters for every room

Rooms		
Select Room	Dooms	OK.
Type of myt.	Patrice	
Number V N	E76	100
P04_01 Kb		New
RM 01 Re	19	
FM 04 Ga	den	Edit
		Garry
		Delete

### Name

Enter the name of the room (short and easy to understand and to locate).

### Audio Zone

If you have an audio system integrated with your TELETASK system, you will have to connect the room to a specific audio zone (amplifier).

You will have to select this audio zone later, after the audio interface and the audio zones on this interface have been defined. Please refer for more information in the 'Audio Interfaces' chapter, but we recommend not doing this right now.

### Sensor Zone

If you are using TELETASK temperature sensors for heating and/or cooling control (recommended), select the applying sensor zones with which the room is to be related.

The sensor zones are entered when the sensors are entered in PROSOFT. So please also come back here later, as soon as the sensors for your project are entered. For more information refer to the 'Analogue Input Interfaces' chapter.

## In practice

- Click 'Edit' in the PROSOFT menu bar.
- Click 'Rooms'.
- The 'List of Rooms' window appears on the screen. In this screen the standard rooms are reproduced.
- Click the 'NEW' button to add a room to your project.
- The 'Define Room' window appears on your screen. Set up the different parameters for this room.
- Click 'OK: now a room is added to your TELETASK domotics project. The window 'Define Room' will disappear.

In the 'List of Rooms' which is visible again, the added room is displayed.

] [] [] [] TELETASK Technical handbook » PROSOFT » The rooms

## 'O' Units: Outputs

## Output

An output connects one electrical load or circuit with the TELETASK system. Thanks to this connection, you can control this load out of the domotics system. There are different groups of outputs.

### Relay

this output switches a load between the 'ON' (relay contact is closed) and the OFF (relay contact is open) status.

### Dimmer

this output varies an analogue output signal from 0 to 10Volt. This signal is mostly used to control a power dimmer. 0V output means the dimmer is at 0% (load is off). 10V on the output means the dimmer is at 100% (the load is ON). This means that a light or group of lights connected to the power dimmer are OFF or ON or dimmed somewhere between 0 and 100%.

Instead of 0-10V, this may also be 1-10V, 0-100% (for example when using a DMX output interface).

### Motor

this output controls a motor rotating left or right during a limited number of seconds. The motor can also be stopped at any time. So this output can be set in the LEFT/ RIGHT or STOP status. LEFT/RIGHT can also be considered as UP/DOWN, depending on the connected motor (in most of the cases this is for control of electrical motorised curtains, sun blinds and shutters).

## Fan

This output controls multi speed ventilator.

## Output unit

Outputs with the same functionality and the same technical specifications are grouped per type of output unit. The output units can be divided in two different breakdowns:

- Based on their function (relays, dimmers, motors)
- Based on the system relation (integrated in the MICROS+/PICOS central unit, external but plug-in on the MICROS(+ upgrade version)/PICOS central unit and externally connected via the AUTOBUS).

## System related classification

The output units can also be grouped depending on the way they are connected with the TELETASK central unit. There are two system related categories:

### **Standard Output units**

these output units are integrated in the central unit (only in case of MICROS+/PICOS central units.

### **AUTOBUS Output units**

these types of output units are all output interfaces with an AUTOBUS connection. For example TDS13510, TDS13524, TDS13525, TDS13609...).;

Remark: All AUTOBUS in- and output units are in general also called in- and output 'interfaces'.

## Output numbers

When an output interface is added to the project, all available outputs will automatically get an output number. Once an output has been given an output number, this number cannot be changed any more during the project, even if the address of an output interface (for addressing see later in this text) would change during the project.

The numbering starts for the different groups (relays, dimmers, motors and fans) with number '1'. Depending on the kind of output, PROSOFT will add an abbreviation in front of the number e.g.: 'REL' for relay, 'DIM' for a dimmer, 'MOT' for a motor output and 'FAN' for a fan output.

When there are several central units connected, a letter which indicates to which central unit the output is connected, will be added. (from A to J, because up to 10 central units can be coupled to each other over IP).

## 'O' Address (Output Address)

For all interfaces connected to the AUTOBUS, so also for the output interfaces on AUTOBUS, it is necessary the system is able to distinguish the different interfaces from each other. Therefore every AUTOBUS interface has a hardware address setting.

The address numbering starts at '00'. This address is reserved for the central unit.

So in a practical situation, the address setting will always start with a higher number. This is also because the central unit has other predefined address settings for its internal (general) outputs. The number of predefined (reserved for the system) addresses, depends on the type of central unit you use and they will be reserved automatically in PROSOFT.

PROSOFT automatically assigns an address to every new defined output unit. You will have to set the same address on the hardware interface (connected on AUTOBUS) as the address given in PROSOFT. If the hardware AUTOBUS address of an interface has been set to a certain address already, you can change the address in PROSOFT.

Additionally, PROSOFT assigns for internal use an 'O' letter to the address. This way it is clearly noted that this concerns an Output address on an Output interface. This is necessary because there are also AUTOBUS Input addresses. These 'I' addresses are independent of the 'O' addresses. This means that 'O16' and 'I16' can exist on the same AUTOBUS. Within the 'O' and 'I' addresses each address setting must be unique. So there can't be two 'O16' addresses because the system cannot distinguish these two from each other and the system will not behave properly in this case. Hardware damage will not occur due to double addressing, but outputs behave unpredictable. Refer to the 'I interfaces' chapter for more information on 'I' addressing.

The number of addresses available on the AUTOBUS is limited. The highest settable output address ('O' address) is defined by the limits of the concerning central unit you use. Please refer to the data sheet of your central unit for system limits.

IMPORTANT REMARK: Using double addresses is not allowed and can generated danger and non-secure situations. So always check very carefully before powering your system if no double addressing occurs.

## Table of contents:

Adding Output units Assigning TELETASK Outputs List of output units of your project TDS13530 Fan coil unit interface TDS13609: Dimmer interface 8x 0-10V TDS13610: Fluorescent Dimmer Interface TDS13621: DALI - DSI - DMX interface TDS13632 and TDS13634: PWM LED Dimmers TDS13642 and TDS13644: Universal power FET Dimmer

TELETASK Technical handbook » PROSOFT » 'O' Units: Outputs

## Adding Output units

When you start-up a new TELETASK project, you will have to choose for a certain central unit. By selecting the central unit, PROSOFT automatically generates all standard available internal Output Units of the central unit. When you need more output units than the ones available in the central unit (MICROS+/PICOS), you will have to add extra output units. The AUTOBUS output interfaces have to be added in PROSOFT by the user. When adding output units, there are two parameters to be set:

### Name

enter in this field a short and understandable name for the output. In most of the cases you can just leave the name as it is given by PROSOFT. If you have more than one electrical cabinet at different locations in your project, we recommend to add to the output numbers (for example '25-32') the name of the floor of the electrical cabinet wherein the output unit is installed.

### Address

This setting is done automatically by PROSOFT, but you can always change the address if the concerned interface was already given another (available) hardware address setting.

Tip: It is always easier and faster to change the address setting of an interface in PROSOFT than changing it somewhere in an electrical cabinet or on a wall mounted panel.

## In practice

- Click 'Edit' in the PROSOFT menu bar.
- Click 'Outputs'.
- The 'List of Outputs' window appears on the screen. In this screen the standard (internal) available output units are already there because they are automatically predefined by PROSOFT.
- Click the 'New' button to add an extra output unit.
- The 'Select interface' window appears. The interfaces are grouped by their function on this screen.
- Select the correct interface and click OK
- The 'Define Output' window appears on the screen. Enter the different parameters for this interface.
- Click 'OK: an additional Output unit is added to your TELETASK domotics project. The 'Define Output' window closes.
- In the 'List of Outputs' window, which appears again, the output unit is added.
- Repeat this way of working for all TELETASK output units which are to be added to your project.

 Image: Image:

## Assigning TELETASK Outputs

An important step to fluently parameterise your project is the assignment of a name for all individual outputs (relays, dimmers, motors). In a later stage it will be a continuous job to use these assigned names when defining relations and functions. The assigned name of an individual output will always refer to the connected load or circuit. For example: 'main light' (in the kitchen), 'wall sockets' (in the home office) or 'left curtain' (in the living room).

## The different available parameters:

ame	Datas Interface (25 - 37)			_				OK
eperet.	(Heldy Mierace (20 - 32)			_				
entral Unit	A: MICHUS+Central Unit							Cancel
ddress:	AUTOBUS 1	~ 1						
ype Output DS 13510. Relay Inter	face BritsA	Name	Outputs loom			lean	,	larre
		25	None	v	16	Not visible	*	
		26	None	¥	12	Not visible		
		27	None	v	1 12	Not visible	*	
		28	None	¥	10	Not visible	÷	
		- 29	None	v	1 12	Not vebie	÷	
	TELETASK	30	None	¥	112	Not visible	÷	
000	Queens Q Q Q Q	31	None	v	1 12	Not visible	~	
nina.	ന നേന്ദ	22	None	~	1 12	Not visible	~	
-	NEN CONTRACTOR	Option						
		_						

In the 'Define Output' window of the concerned Output unit of which the output that has to be assigned is part of, you can enter the name of all individual outputs. The name exists out of three parameters which are to be defined:

### Room

Select the room where the load is installed.

If the room is not in the list of rooms yet, you can directly enter a new room via the 'New' button.

If you have to change the characteristics of an existing room, you can use the 'Edit' button.

### lcon

This is a way of grouping outputs on graphical TELETASK interfaces like the AURUS-TFT and iSGUI. The different available icons are:

### Not visible

the output will not be visualized on graphical interfaces. This is to be used for all technical outputs which are not to be controlled by the user. For example: A water valve which is mostly controlled by timers and by the access control functions.

### Device

Select this option for outputs which are controlling wall sockets (all general non dedicated wall sockets, cooker hood;

micro wave, fans, coffee machine, ...) and other general on/off devices which are to be controllable by the occupants of the project, like there are garden sprinklers, etc...

### Light

Select this option if the concerned output is controlling a light or a group of lights.

### Heat/cool)

Assigning this icon to an output will not cause it to be displayed on a Touch screen. It is only meant to sort outputs more easily by Icon

### Motor

Select this option for motors. This will be displayed on touchscreens.

### Mood

Select this option for moods. This will be displayed on touchscreens.

### Motor (Power)

Only for relays that will be used in a 'motor function'. Assigning this icon to an output will not cause it to be displayed on a Touch screen. It is only meant to sort outputs more easily by Icon.

### Motor (Direction)

see motor power

### Control';

Only for flags, use this icon to display a flag as a read only item on a Touchscreen in the motor Icon.

Remark: TELETASK touch screens also define other Icons like 'Thermostat', 'Audio' and 'Sensor'. Items like a Temperature sensor or an Audio zone are automatically added to the correct icon if they are assigned to a room.

### Name

Enter a short name of the load/circuit which is connected to this individual output. Remember that this name will appear on the graphical interfaces (if there are any in your project) and there is a limited room on the screens to display this name. So keep the name length as short as possible.

### Examples:

- 'light in the parents' bedroom' is not a good name, because the room identification is already done in the 'room' section, so it would be better to use 'main light' or 'main', because the user also already knows that it concerns a 'light' because it has been assigned to this function.
- 'Ambient light', 'left sockets', 'sprinklers left', 'staircase to cellar' are good names. 'Colour lights on staircase to first floor' is not good, because it is too long to be displayed. 'Staircase light' would be better.

## In practice:

- Click 'Edit' in the PROSOFT menu bar.
- Click 'Outputs' in the 'Edit' pull down menu

Select the desired Output unit by clicking on it. The selected output unit turns blue.

- Click the 'Edit' button. The 'Define Output' window appears.
- Click on the picture of the interface the desired individual output. The selected output turns yellow.
- Select/enter in the 'Output name' field one by one the 'Room' of the load, the related 'Icon' and enter the name you want to be displayed.
- Click 'OK', the selected individual output is ready for later use.

 Image: Image:

## List of output units of your project

## Generating Lists on the screen of your PC

An overview of all output units and their individual output can be made in several sort modes. You can find the lists in the 'list of outputs' window.

The mast		Dimmer list	~ OK
Number *	Name	'0' Interfeces Rolay list	
000 900	MICROS C	Dimmer list Mator list	New
001500	MICROS C	Cailing fan list	
007 DIM	MICROS D	Fan coll unit list	Edit
			Cont.
			Defen

There are four different list types for searching individual outputs.

## List type ''O' Interfaces:

## Content of the list:



The TELETASK output units can be reviewed in the 'list of outputs' list. The following items are contained in this list:

### Output

the 'O' reminds you that this line is concerning an Output unit.

### Address

This is the software address of the concerning output unit.

### Abbreviation

for internal use by the system.

24/1/2019

## Description

this is the name which you or the system gave to the output unit.

## The available control buttons:

When you have selected the desired output unit (line turns blue), you have the possibility to select one of the following actions:

### New

to add an extra output unit.

## Edit

to edit the parameters of an existing output unit.

### Remove

to remove an existing output unit and all its parameters.

# Types of list: 'Relay List', 'Dimmer List', 'Motor list', 'Ceiling fan list', 'Fan coil unit list'

## List information:

ype of list			Dimmer list		~	OK
Number	× R	noc	lcon	Name		
GM 1	168	chen	Liefe	Main	1.0	New
(M.2	Kb	chen	Light	bland		
(M 3	Liv	ing .	Light	Mood lights		542
(M 4	Liv	ing .	Light	Central		546
(M 5	Liv	ting	Light	Spota		2000
6 M 6	Be	droom	Light	Spota		(4997)
(M 7	Be	droom	Light	Reading Light		-
XM 8	Ge	rden	Light	Back		

## **Functional Group**

indicates to which functional group the output belongs

## REL

a relay (classified in the 'Relay list')

## DIM

a dimmer (classified in the 'Dimmer list')

## мот

a motor (classified in the 'Motor list')

## FAN

a fan (classified in the 'Ceiling fan list')

## FCU

24/1/2019

a fan coil unit (classified in the 'fan coil unit list'

#### **Output Number**

contains the output number which was automatically given by PROSOFT

#### Room

is the room to which the individual output is connected.

### lcon

the icon to which the individual output is connected.

#### Name

the name of the individual output.

## Actions

When you have located the desired individual output, you can select it by simply clicking on it (turns blue). The following actions can be done from here:

### New

The 'select interface window' will be shown.

#### Edit

click 'edit' to open the 'define output' window. You can now edit the parameters of the selected individual output.

### **Test Online**

when your computer is connected to an operational central unit, you can control the selected output via this button (for relays, dimmers and motors). At the same time the actual status of the output is displayed.

Remark: While 'Test online' is useful to test a specific output, the advised method is to use Diagnostics (see the chapter 'Diagnostics').

 Image: Image:

## TDS13530 Fan coil unit interface

## General

A fan coil unit (FCU) is a simple device consisting of a heating/cooling coil and a fan. It's part of an HVAC system found in residential, commercial and industrial buildings. Heat is transported from a central heater/chiller to the individual FCU's using water (like with traditional radiators).

Due to their simplicity, fan coil units are more economical to install than HVAC systems with air handling units.

Typically an FCU is installed in every room (comparable to the indoor units in a VRV system). An FCU doesn't measure temperature, so a TELETASK temperature sensor needs to be used e.g. from AURUS touch panel or a TDS12250 TELETASK temperature sensor.

FCU's can be divided into two types:

### 4-pipe systems

Systems where there are different pipes for hot and cold water. This means that it's possible to heat in one particular room and to cool in another at the same time. 4-pipe systems are mainly used in larger buildings (industrial, hotels, hospitals,...).

### 2-pipe systems

Systems with only one set of pipes for hot or cold water. This means that the entire system is either in heating or in cooling mode. It's impossible to heat in one room and cool in another at the same time. 2-pipe systems are mainly used in smaller installations (private houses) or climates where only cooling (or only heating) is necessary.

## Configuring a Fan coil unit interface

To add a Fan coil unit interface to your TELETASK system, follow these steps:

- In PROSOFT Suite, go to the menu "Edit", "Outputs"
- Chose "New"
- Select "TDS13530 Fan coil unit interface" from the list of interfaces
- Enter a Name for the fan coil unit interface
- Enter the AUTOBUS address for the interface
- Enter a Name for the fan coil unit.
- System type: select '4 pipe system' or '2 pipe system'.
- HVAC operation modes: Select the applicable modes for this FCU
- HVAC fan speed settings: Select the correct speed settings.
- Fan ON delay (heating): sets the delay between opening the heating valve and activating the fan. Use this setting to avoid that unheated (cool) air is ventilated in the room. This setting only applies in heating mode
- Fan OFF delay (cooling): Set the delay between closing the cooling valve and deactivating the fan. Use this setting to avoid freezing of the coil.

When this setting is set to 0s, it can damage the fan coil unit! Contact the FCU supplier for the appropriate value for this setting.

incrose pare			
tame:	Fan Coll Interface (1)		CR
Central Unit	A MICROS+ Central Un		Carcel
iddress:	AUTOBUS 1	V 1	
ype Output		Fan col properties	
DS 13530. Fan coll un	L vtoface	Name:	Office
		System type:	4 pipe system 🗸
-	B. BEIGT	HVAC operation modes:	Coal
A173848	▼	HWC fan speed settings:	3 speed + OFF (aff, low, med, ma ~
III T	ELETASK	Fan ON delay (heating):	00w 30s  \$
	TD513530 Fue for that transfere	Fan OFF delay (cooling)	01w 30s (\$)
5116			

To configure and link a temperature sensor in PROSOFT with a fan coil unit, select 'Fan coil unit' as control method for the sensor and select the corresponding 'Fan coil unit'.

If the selected fan coil unit has both 'Heat' and 'Cool' modes enabled, PROSOFT will automatically select that fan coil unit for the heating and for the cooling output of that sensor.

D TELETASK Technical handbook » PROSOFT » 'O' Units: Outputs » TDS13530 Fan coil unit interface

## TDS13609: Dimmer interface 8x 0-10V

The TDS13609 Dimmer interface is an output interface that can be used to control eight 0-10V dimmable power dimmers (or 0-10V LED drivers)

For some lights, dimming only works between a minimum voltage (e.g. 2.5V) and 10V. On the TDS13609 you can therefore specify a 'Minimum DIM level' on each output individually. The Minimum DIM level can be set from 0 to 4V.

E.g. if the 'Minimum DIM level' is set to 2.5V, the voltage on the output of the TDS13609 will be 2.5V for 1% dimming.

sineer ongong								
Interface-gegevens Naarr:	Dimmer Interface (9 - 15	)					OK	Ċ
Centrale:	A MICROS+ Centrale						Anule	ren
Adres:	AUTOBUS 1	୍ (ଅ						
Type utgang TDS13609: Denver Interla	oe 8e5-10V	Naam uitgang Ruimte	en:		looan	1	Naam	
		9 Geen	v	16	Net scht.		-	
		10 Geen	Ý	1 12	Net sicht.	~		
		11 Geen	v	1 12	Net acht.	~		_
AUTOBUS	🕈 Tera Unita	12 Geen	¥	10	Net sicht.	~		
1000	and the second second	13 Geen	×	1 12	Net scht.			_
TI TI		14 Geen	v	112	Net sicht.	÷		
Sec. 111	TDS13609	15 Geen	~	1 12	Net sicht.			
	Deconstruction in D-thy	16 Geen	~	1 17	Net scht.	~		
1 2 3	4 8 8 7 8 6	Optie:						
					Minimum DIM	lievel:	0.0 V	
					Vern	nogen:	0	_

 Image: Image:

## TDS13610: Fluorescent Dimmer Interface

The Fluorescent Dimmer interface is an output interface that can be used as:

- Fluorescent Dimmer (1-10V)
- Dimmer (0-10V) and Relay (10A)

Remark: This option assigned to a group of four outputs. The first till fourth are one group and the fifth till the eighth are a second group.

fine Output							
Interface Data							
Name:	Fluorescent Dimmer Interf	ace (9 - 16)					OK
Central Unit	A MICROS+ Central Unit						Cancel
Address:	AUTOBUS 1	<ul> <li>□</li> <li>2</li> </ul>					
Type Output TDS 13610. Ruonacient	t Denner Interface Sc1-10V	Name Outputs Room			lean		Name
		9 Living	~	112	Light		Main
		10 Living	¥	15	Light		Upighters
	1234567	11 Living	~	1 12	Light	~	At
		12 Bedroom	¥	1 12	Light	÷	Main
THE PARTY OF	photococcessing and the second s	13 Kitchen	×	1 12	Light		Main
tates (124557)	TELETASK I	14 Kitchen	~	112	Light		Warkplace
	at TENEN	15 Ritchen	~	1 12	Light		Table
(EDDIOA)	+ 310199	16 Kitchen	~	117	Light	. 4	Sink
		Option     Option     OPluorescent Dimm     (@ Dimmer (0-10/) a	ver (1-10V) nd Relizy (10	4)		Power:	0

Remark: PROSOFT will automatically add an additional interface with the relays of the TDS13610. For the dimmers that are defined as 0-10V, the relay is available for other uses. E.g.: switching a light.

fine Output							
Interface Data			_				CW.
Name:	Fluorescent Dimmer Inter	face (9 - 16)					- Crit
Central Unit	A MCROS+ Central Unit	L.					Cancel
Address:	AUTOBUS 1	- J					
Type Output TDS 13610. Ruorescen	t Denmer Interlace Sc1-10V	Name Outputs Room			loan		Name
		25 Nores	-	18	Not visible		Main
		25 None	4	1 12	Not visible		Uplighters
		27 None		18	Not visible		Art
-	In the second se	28 None		10	Not visible		Man
terms I I	Distance of the local	29 None	v	1 12	Not veble		
tatan 11343578*	TELETASK 1	30 None	~	112	Not visible	÷	
	and Table and the second secon	31 None	~	1 12	Not visible		
	- 30,000	32 None	~	1 17	Not visible		
0.0000	1 10000	Option					
							2
						Power:	0

 Image: Image:

## TDS13621: DALI - DSI - DMX interface

## Introduction

The DALI / DSI / DMX interface is an output interface that can be used in DALI 2, DALI, DSI or DMX mode. Depending on the mode you can configure up to 64 dimmers to this interface.



## DSI mode

DSI is a protocol with one master (the TDS13621) and up to 100 slaves (the ballasts). There is no addressing for the individual ballasts and all ballasts are always on the same dimming level.

So DSI is very well suited for large rooms, where a lot of lights need to be in the same state.

For the TELETASK system you can add only 1 Dimmer (but 100 ballasts) per TDS13620.

Interface Data Name:	DALIZ / DSI / DMX Inter	Aace (1 - 64)				OK
Central Unit	A NANOS					Cancel
Address:	AUTOBUS 1	© [1				
DALI2 / DSI / DMX Interface		Dinmer properties Room		loan		Name
O Use interface for DAU m	de	1 None	~ 1 67	Not visible	~	DIM 1
Use interface for DSI more	ie .					
O Use interface for DMX m	de					
Denen						
Lower and Marca						
01 s s DIH 1						
01 + > DIH 1		-				
01 s s DIH L		-				
01 + + 53H 1						
01 s s DIH 1						
01 * * D1H 1						
0] » » DIH 1						
01 - STH L					Pouver	0

## DMX mode

DMX is a protocol with one master (the TDS13621) and up to 512 channels (e.g the multicolour LED-strips). Each device on the DMX bus gets one or more addresses from 1 to 255 (for an RGB light this are 3 addresses, 1 for RED, 1 for

GREEN and 1 for BLUE). The TDS13621 supports 64 slaves in the DMX address range 1-255.

If you add multiple dimmers you can select the dimmer to edit in the list on the left ('1'). The properties of this dimmer are then shown on the right ('2').



## DALI mode

DALI is a protocol with one master (the TDS13621) and up to 64 drivers. Each driver has an address from 0 to 63. The advantage of DALI is that the driver can send error information to the master e.g. Lamp defect, Power failure,.... This information is available from Diagnostics.

The drivers can be addressed (see chapter DALISOFT) individually (as a single driver) but DALI also supports up to 16 'Driver groups'. A driver group is a group of dimmers that you want to control simultaneously. For the TELETASK system a 'driver group' is a dimmer like any other. A driver that is assigned to a 'driver group' can't be addressed individually by the TDS13621.

For Dali ballasts, the TDS13621 will read the minimum dim level from the ballast, and recalculate dimmer values (e.g. 50%) as for the TDS13609.

There are 500 outputs available on a DoIP central unit, if you have 64 ballasts which you want to control individually this are 64 outputs, if you control these 64 ballasts as 1 DALI group this is only 1 output for the TELETASK system.

There are some similarities between a DALI 'ballast group' and a TELETASK 'local mood: They both set a group of outputs. But there are also some differences which will determine in which case a 'ballast group' will be used and in which case a 'local mood' is more appropriate.

- You can add a dimmer to different 'local moods' but a DALI driver can only be assigned to 1 group.
- A DALI ballast group can be dimmed simultaneously.

When a new Dimmer is added, the first available ballast is assigned to this dimmer.

123 23									
Interface Data		dama (2. Cdl		-					OK
Name.	DHUE / USI / DHIA HIE	arade (1 - 64)		_					
Central Unit	A: NANOS							0	Cancel
Address:	AUTOBUS 1	~ 1							
DALI2 / DSI / DMX Inter	tace	Dimmer p	roperties Room			loan		Name	
(ii) Use interface for D4	4.1 mode	1 No	ne	v	1 17	Not visible	~	DIM 1	1
O Use interface for DS	2 mode	(# Sad	e Ballast (Defaul	m					
		0.00		2					
O Use interface for DM	6X mode	U DATE	et group						
O Use interface for DI Dimmen	(A mode		BAL D		BALLAST O	l.		DIMI	^
O Use interface for D1 Demen	UK mode		BAL 0 BAL 1		BALLAST O BALLAST 1	1		DIMI	^
O Use interface for DM Dennem	1		BAL 0 BAL 1 BAL 2		BALLAST O BALLAST 1 BALLAST 2			DIMI	^
O Use interface for DI Dimmens	U. mode		BAL D BAL 1 BAL 2 BAL 3		BALLAST O BALLAST 1 BALLAST 2 BALLAST 3			DIMI	•
O Use interface for D1 Danmens	1		BAL 0 BAL 1 BAL 2 BAL 3 BAL 4		BALLAST O BALLAST 1 BALLAST 2 BALLAST 3 BALLAST 4			DIMI	^

You can change the 'Single Ballast' to a 'Ballast group' to add more ballast to the dimmer. The table with the ballasts has four columns:

- A checkbox to show if the ballast is assigned to the current dimmer.
- The DALI address for the ballast
- The name for the ballast, you can enter a name for the ballast in this column.

Remark: Names for ballasts that are not assigned to a dimmer are not saved in the .nbt file.

• The dimmer to which a ballast is assigned to (or empty if the ballast is not yet assigned to a dimmer).

Remark: ballast that are already assigned to the current dimmer are shown in top rows of the table.

REMARK: ballasts that are assigned to another dimmer than the dimmer that is currently edited will be shown at the bottom of the table. You can't assign these ballasts to the current dimmer, if you would like to do this you need to unassigned them from the dimmer to which they are assigned.

۰	BAL 0	BALLAST 0	DIM17	^
C	BAL 1	BALLAST 1		
C	BAL 2	BALLAST 2		
С	BAL 3	BALLAST 3		
C	BAL 4	BALLAST 4		
C	BAL 5	BALLAST 5		۰.

Remark: Dali2 now supports Colour control (see the lamp specifications what is supported).

## Tunable white

With tunable white you can change the kelvin (colour temperature) of a lamp value. The kelvin value is used to express the colour feeling of a light source (warm or cold).

You can enable tunable white by checking the 'Tunable white supported' checkbox.

### Set default to human centric lighting

Indicates that the colour temperature is default controlled by the human centric lighting. This means that the human

centric lighting will take back control of the colour temperature each time the lamp is turned off (when the colour temperature was manually overridden).

## RGB

With RGB you can change the colour of lamp. You can enable RGB by checking the 'RGB supported' checkbox.

 Image: Image:

## TDS13632 and TDS13634: PWM LED Dimmers

## General

The TDS13632 (2 channel) and TDS13634 (4 channel) are PWM dimmers to control DC dimmable LED light systems (e.g. LED strips). The interface can dim any monochrome or colour LED system, from cold to warm light including RGB and RGBW for standard and high end residential and professional applications.

## Configuring a PWM dimmer interface

To add a TDS13632 or TDS13634 PWM interface to your TELETASK system, follow these steps:

- In PROSOFT Suite, go to the menu "Edit", "Outputs"
- Choose "New"
- Select "TDS13632 or TDS13634" from the list of interfaces
- Enter a Name for the dimmer interface
- Enter the AUTOBUS address for the interface
- Enter a name for each dimmer output(channel) that will be used

## The different available parameters



#### Rooms

Room selection. For more info, go to page The rooms.

### lcon

Visualization category of the output.

## Name

Name of the output.

## Minimum DIM level

Specifies the initial start dim percentage. the minimum dim level will recalculate the actual dimmer values (percentage range beween 0 and 40).



## TDS13642 and TDS13644: Universal power FET Dimmer

## General

The TDS13642 (2 channel) and TDS13644 (4 channel) are universal power FET dimmers for 230V/50Hz dimming of traditional-, LED- and other dimmable lights. The dimmers can also control lights and LED's which are connected via traditional and electronic transformers. Therefore, the dimmers can be configured to work in Leading or Trailing edge mode.

## Configuring a power FET dimmer interface

To add a TDS13642 or TDS13644 power FET interface to your TELETASK system, follow these steps:

- In PROSOFT Suite, go to the menu "Edit", "Outputs"
- Choose "New"
- Select "TDS13642 or TDS13644" from the list of interfaces
- Enter a name for the dimmer interface
- Select the AUTOBUS
- Enter the AUTOBUS address for the interface
- Enter a name for each dimmer output(channel) that will be used

## The different available parameters

nterface Data							
ame:	Power FET Dimmer 230	W 4ch (1 - 4)		1			OK
entral Unit:	A: NANOS Central Unit						Cancel
ddress:	AUTOBUS 1	~][1					
ype Output:		Name Outputs					
ower FET Dimmer 230	V 4ch	Room			lcon		Name
		1 None	~		<sup>a</sup> Not visible	~	
		2 None	~	0 6	<sup>3</sup> Not visible	~	
		3 None	~		<sup>2</sup> Not visible	~	
	100 C C 100 C C 10 C C			The second second	41 F.		
anner C	ADMD CC atom 7	4 None	~	1 12	* Not visible	Y	
	TELETASK solar Strapen TDS13844 DS13844 TS151501 State Tables State Tables State Tables State Tables State	4 None	Dimmable LED (	<u>)</u> <u>1</u> 2	Not visible		
		4 None	Dimmable LED (	  	Not visible		14.6

#### Rooms

Room selection. For more info, go to page The rooms.

#### lcon

Visualization category of the output.

### Name

Name of the output.

### Lamp type

preset for the options Leading/Trailing edge, curve type, minimum DIM level.

### Leading/Trailing edge

defines the phase cutting.



- Leading edge: the cutting of the phase will occure at the begining of each phase.
- Trailing edge: the cutting of the phase will occure at the end of each phase.

This option can only be set manually when the lamp type has been set to "Others".

### **Curve type**

The curve at which the dimming will occur.

- Linear: The voltage will increase linear for each dimming step.
- Fast: The voltage will increase at a faster rate then the other curves at the beginning of the dimming curve.
- Medium: The voltage will increase at a medium rate at the beginning of the dimming curve.
- Slow: The voltage will increase very slow at the beginning of the dimming curve.

### Minimum DIM level

Specifies the initial start dim percentage. the minimum dim level will recalculate the actual dimmer values (percentage range beween 0 and 40).

## Image: Image:
# 'l' units: Inputs and others

Before you can enter all inputs and input units (= 'I' units) into your TELETASK project, it is essential to have a good understanding of some basic items.

# 'l' interfaces: Inputs and others

In contrast with the 'O' interfaces, the 'I' interfaces are less conveniently arranged because there is a wider range of input units and input interfaces available. Additionally, interfaces which may be both input and output are added to the inputs list.

As with the 'O' units, the 'I' units are divided in a functional as well as in a system related way.

# Functional classification

There are four different types of input units:

#### **General Interface**

these are all TELETASK (AUTOBUS connected) touch panels, touchscreens, etc... (See more details in the overview list further in this text). When somebody pushes a button on a touch panel, a command is sent to the central unit, and the predefined action for this button is done.

#### **Digital Input Interface**

digital inputs are contact inputs for all kind of external on/off signals like there are from standard voltage free push buttons (any brand), motion detectors (often via a relay to be connected to the voltage free contact inputs of the TELETASK input). When the concerned external contact is closed, the input unit or interface generates the related command and the central unit processes this command just like it was coming from a touch panel and the predefined action is done.

#### **Analogue Inputs**

analogue inputs are the connection between the TELETASK system and the different kinds of TELETASK sensors. The sensors send their signal to the analogue input (internal in the central unit or external on AUTOBUS). This signal is continuously processed by the central unit and depending on the related function, actions are taken at certain times.

#### AV - Interface

(Audio/Video) This is a whole family of different general and dedicated (brand dependant) interfaces. All audio interfaces are AUTOBUS interfaces. By these interfaces it becomes simple to control connected audio systems with standard buttons and/or special touch panels and touchscreens.

# System classification

Beside of the functional classification, the 'I' interfaces can also be classified based on the way they are connected with the TELETASK central unit.

There are two groups to be distinguished:

#### Direct or Internal 'I' Interfaces

these 'I' interfaces are integrated in the central unit. Depending on the type of central unit you use, there may be different types of internal 'I' interfaces available in the central unit. Please refer to the concerning data sheet of your central unit for more details.

#### **AUTOBUS 'I' Interfaces**

these 'I' interfaces are connected on the AUTOBUS. Most of the 'I' interfaces are of this kind (TDS12117, 16 digital inputs for voltage free contacts).

# 'l' Address:

The address setting is necessary for the system to be able to communicate with the individual interfaces and modules. Every 'I' unit and interface has its own address. All external AUTOBUS connected 'I' interfaces have a hardware or software address setting on the interface itself (just like Output interfaces).

The address numbering starts with an 'AUTOBUS number'. Then PROSOFT ads for internal use an 'I' to the address. This way it will be very clear in PROSOFT that it concerns an 'I' interface. This is necessary because there are also TELETASK AUTOBUS 'O' interfaces which become an address (these are the output interfaces). These 'O' addresses are unrelated of the 'I' addresses. This means that there can be an 'O16' and an 'I16'. In the 'O' and 'I' address groups every address is unique. There can't exist 2 'O16' addresses or 2 'I16' addresses.

The actual 'I' address starts with '00'; these are the Master functions on the remote control. The first address which can be defined on an interface is '01'. PROSOFT automatically generates an address for every new 'I' interface which is added to the system. Be sure that this address is created for the 'I' interface or that the set-up in PROSOFT can be adapted to the set-up of the 'I' interface. Differences between the hardware (on the interface) address setting and the software (PROSOFT) address setting can result in incorrect and unpredictable behavior of the system. Please check this before starting-up the TDS system.

Some TELETASK interfaces use more than 1 address (e.g. the TDS12117 is a 16 input digital input interface, and occupies two AUTOBUS addresses. Only the first address of this input interface can be set-up in the hardware. The other addresses follow up this hardware set-up address and will automatically be assigned by PROSOFT.

To avoid errors in your configuration it is recommended to let PROSOFT decide what the addresses are. PROSOFT automatically takes care of multiple addressing and will avoid making errors about this.

The standard 'I' interfaces (f.e. TDS10012 MICROS+) start on AUTOBUS 0.

IMPORTANT REMARK: Using the same addresses twice on one bus is not allowed and can generated dangerous and non-secure situations. So always check very carefully before powering your system if no double addressing occurs (two or more interfaces are set to the same hardware address).

# Table of contents:

Adding TELETASK 'I' interfaces
General 'l' interfaces – Specific parameters
Advanced settings for AURUS touch panels
AURUS-2 SENSE
AURUS-OLED (TDS12022) and AURUS-OLED PLUS (TDS12032)
AURUS-TFT (TDS12064)
Digital Input interfaces – Specific parameters
Analogue input interface – Specific parameters
Audio Interfaces – Specific parameters
Overview list of 'I' Interfaces of your domotics project
TDS12117 Digital Input interface with Pulse counter sensor
TDS14061 HVAC Modbus Master interface
TDS14065 : IR-COOKIE INTERFACE
TDS15200 Airco Software license
TDS20065 Universal HVAC
Extra Parameters for External HVAC systems
I I TELETASK Technical handbook » PROSOFT » 'I' units: Inputs and others

© 2018 TELETASK bvba

# Adding TELETASK 'l' interfaces

When you start a new TELETASK project you have selected the central unit type (MICROS+, NANOS or PICOS). By doing this, PROSOFT automatically generates all standard available (internal) digital and analogue inputs (and outputs) of the central unit.

PROSOFT also adds an input unit called 'Master' functions. These are the Master functions which can be allocated for extra eight functions on the TELETASK remote control.

When you need additional inputs (like in most of the cases) than the ones standard available at a central unit, you will have to add extra input interfaces.

When adding interfaces, there are four different parameters to be set:

# Parameters for adding new 'l' interfaces:

#### Group

Choose the (functional) group to which the new 'I' interface belongs: 'General Interface', 'Digital Input Interface', 'Sensor or Heat/Cool interface' or

'AV - Interface' (see 'I' interfaces: Inputs and others).

Be sure to choose the correct group, because it is not possible to change an interface from one group into an interface of another group any more. In such case, you will have to delete the wrong interface first and then add the correct one.

#### Interface type

select the interface you want to be added. The interfaces are shown in the list sorted by their individual TDS reference.

#### Address

The address can be changed by the user at any time if you want. PROSOFT takes care of impossible or not allowed address settings. So if you change the address to a not allowed address, PROSOFT will not allow you to do any changes on the address setting.

#### Name

enter here a description of the location where the interface is installed together with the inputs numbers which are already entered by PROSOFT (if it is a contact input interface).

After all 'I' interfaces are added to your project, the different settable parameters of each of them are to be configured. The parameters are different for the four groups of 'I' interfaces:

### In practice:

Select T interface Type of list T Interfaces Number Name 0 100 SEM Remote control MASTER functions 0 101 SIN Input 1 to 8 0 102 SIN Input 17 to 24 0 104 SIN Input 25 to 32 0 105 SIN Analog Input 1 and 2	Touch panels & screens         TDS12001: LATUS         TDS12015: LATUS         TDS12015: LATUS-LCD         TDS12015: JATUS-LCD         TDS12020: AURUS-2         TDS12020: AURUS-2         TDS12020: AURUS-2         TDS1202: AURUS-4         TDS1202: AURUS-4 S         TDS1202: AURUS-4 SENSE         TDS1202: AURUS-2 SENSE         TDS1202: AURUS-0LED PLUS         TDS1212: Cookie         TDS1212: Cookie         TDS1212: Cookie         TDS1212: Cookie         TDS1230: Analog input interface         TDS1230: Universal analog input interface         TDS1230: DAIKIN interface         TDS1200: DAIKIN interface         TDS1200: DAIKIN interface         TDS1200: Coll AV/ IP License         Access & security interfaces         TDS1402: VAV IP License         Access & security interfaces	<ul> <li>Interface types</li> <li>Touch panels &amp; screens</li> <li>Digital Input interfaces</li> <li>Sensor or Heat/Cool interfaces</li> <li>AV - interfaces</li> <li>Access &amp; security interfaces</li> <li>Discontinued interfaces</li> </ul>
MICROS, Central Unit		GKC Cancel

- Click on the 'Inputs Icon'.
- The 'List Interfaces' window appears on the screen. The standard 'I' interfaces are displayed here.
- Click the 'New' button to add a new 'I' interface to your project.
- Click the desired interface in the 'Select interface' list and click OK..
- The 'Define Interface Function' window appears on the screen. Configure the parameters of the concerning interface (see below for more details).
- Click 'OK: the 'I' interface is added to your TELETASK project and the window 'Define Interface Function' is closed.
- The new interface is added in the 'Interfaces list' window.
- Repeat this way of working for all TELETASK 'I' interfaces which you want to add in your project.

# [] [] [] [] TELETASK Technical handbook » PROSOFT » 'I' units: Inputs and others » Adding TELETASK 'I' interfaces

© 2018 TELETASK byba

# General 'I' interfaces – Specific parameters



# 'Basic' parameters which are available for every 'General interface:

Advance	d				
Vame:	AURUS-4 S		Audio zone:	None	~
Central Unit:	A: MICROS+ Central Unit	~	Sensor Zone:	None	~
Address:	AUTOBUS 1 V 1		RGB zone:	None	·
				M Beep on	ain IR Enable
efface type:	1040	Button functions			
7012024. NUT	5545	Short			V 1 PG
					~
		Long			
	1 2 5	None ~			~ ] 聞
					Ŷ
	3 4 8	Input definition			
	TIL TAOR	Description:			
			Enable	e Button Control e Remote Control	

#### Main IR enable

By default, the 'Main IR enable' is on. When this parameter is marked ('V'), then every button can be controlled with the TELETASK infrared remote control. If you don't want the panel to be controllable by IR remote, remove the 'V' mark in this field.

The IR control can also be individually disabled for each button. See for more details below at 'button' parameter settings.

#### **Beep on IR command**

Marked 'V' by default. When a function is controlled by the TELETASK IR remote control, the panel buzzer will beep short when this parameter is marked with 'V'.

This parameter is not yet available on all interfaces.

For some of the older interfaces this setting is done by hardware (refer to the data sheet of the concerned interface). New interfaces support this 'Beep on IR' by software.

#### Audio Zone

A 'General interface can be related to a certain 'Audio Zone'. This is important when controlling audio functions on your TELETASK IR remote control (TDS12502). Example: when you click the 'CD' button on your remote control, the system needs to know in which audio zone the interface is installed, so it can start the correct CD and the correct audio zone power amplifier. Select the audio zone from the predefined zones. If you didn't yet entered the different audio zones in your project, please do so first (in the PROSOFT screen of the concerning audio interface which you are using in your project).

#### **Sensor Zone**

Familiar to the audio zone setting, you must connect the interface to a certain sensor zone. When using a temperature control function on your remote control (TDS12502), the interface (for example a touch panel) must me dedicated to a certain heating/cooling zone for the system to be able to change the correct temperature setting for you. Select the Sensor zone out of the sensor list which you have entered already or, if not, add the temperature sensors and their zone names first before proceeding here. Sensor zones are defined at the level of the analogue (sensor) input unit. Look also in the thematical chapter 'setting up a heating/cooling system' for more information on this subject.

• RGB Zone: in this field you can link a multi-colour lighting zone (RGB) to a 'General Interface'. This means that the selected RGB function will be controlled when you activate it with the remote control when pointing at the IR receiver of the General Interface. (when using the TDS12502)

## Parameter per individual button/input:

				(c)	
ame.	AURUS-4 S		Audio zone:	None	`
entral Unit	A: MICROS+ Central Unit	~	Sensor Zone:	None	```
ddress:	AUTOBUS 1 v 1		RGB zone:	None	
					Main IR Enable [
				Be	ep on IR command [
erface type:		Button functions			
S12024: AURI	US-4 S	Short			
		None ~			<ul><li>&lt; ) 留</li></ul>
				4	~
1.12					
		Long			
	1 2	None ~			~ D 🛱
				1.41	
	7				
	3 4	1			
	8	input definition			
		Description			
	TUTAOR	Description:			
	TELITAGE.	Description:	Enabl	e Button Control	
	3 4 8	Input definition			
		Descriptions			
	Thut face	Description:			
	TUTAK	Description:	Enabl	e Button Control	

#### Relations

The definition of the functional features of a 'General Interface' is mainly defined by the relations between the inputs (for example the buttons of a touch panel or contact inputs of a digital input interface) and the outputs (relays, dimmers, motors...) of the system. Due to the characteristics of a relation, decide what the actions are to be done after pushing a button or closing an input contact of a general input interface. Additionally, there may be two different relations for every input (button or contact). There is a possible relation for pushing 'short' and another relation for pushing 'long' on the concerned button / contact:

#### Short

the function behind the 'short' action will be used to be processed when the user pushes only briefly on the concerning button or when the concerned input contact is only closed briefly.

#### Long

the function behind the 'long' action will be used to be processed when the user pushes longer than 1,2s on the concerning button or when the concerned input contact is closed for a 'long' time.

Refer to the 'Extra' - 'Options' menu in this handbook for custom setting of the 'short' time definition. TELETASK recommends not to change this setting. There are two differences about time settings for short/long:

#### LONG push on general interfaces

This time can only have two settings: 1,2 or 3 seconds. This setting is automatically adapted to the value of the direct input Long push.

#### LONG pushing internal contact inputs

To be set between 1 second to 5 seconds in steps of 0.5 seconds. By default this time is 1 second.

#### Button

In this field there are two more settings possible for each individual button/input:

#### **!!!** Take care about the important remark below in the frame!!!

#### **Enable Remote Control**

when this parameter is marked 'V' (default), then you can control the individual button (short and long) or contact input which is currently selected on the picture of the interface.

Buttons/contacts 1 to 8 are on the picture of the interface and can be selected by clicking on them with the mouse pointer. The IR remote control activates the same buttons as the ones on the wall panel or input interface.

This item is marked by default.

If your 'l' interface has more than eight buttons or inputs, the IR remote control controls the first 8 of them. There may be exceptions on this rule.

IMPORTANT REMARK: Remove the 'V' mark when you control a door opener or another security related item with that particular button. Otherwise anybody having a remoter control and standing outside may be able to open your door via a remote control which is transmitting through a window or any other visual open surface. For security and safety reasons this is absolutely not allowed and must be avoided in any case! It is the responsibility of the programmer of the system that these and comparable actions are to be blocked.

#### **Enable Button Control**

this parameter is available for the physical buttons on the touch panel or the physical inputs on the input interface. It is similar to the 'enable Remote Control'. By default this parameter is marked for all individual buttons/contacts. So when somebody pushes a button which is not marked at the 'Enable Button Control' nothing will happen. The relation of that button, although it is defined, will not be processed because the button activity is disabled.

Disabling the button function is seldom used, but is for example usable if visitors are not allowed to control something in the house. The occupant can for example control that function with a remote control. Can be useful in public areas.

#### Info

This is a text field for your information only (on screen and on paper). You can enter a specific description here about the location of the concerning button. This is particularly useful on digital input interfaces. This text will displayed in the 'Input list' on the 'List interfaces' window and in Diagnostics/Digital inputs.

Example: 'motion detector driveway' or 'push button hallway'.

# Clean button on AURUS touch panels

All AURUS touch panels have a (hidden) clean button which disables the operation for a couple of seconds. Pressing short will switch the display ON (only for AURUS-4 TEMP and AURUS-OLED (PLUS)). When pressing for a couple of seconds, it will set the Touch panel in clean mode. During this time the panel can be cleaned without activating any buttons.

For the AURUS-1, AURUS-2, AURUS-2 SENSE, AURUS-4S, AURUS-4XL, AURUS-4 TEMP and AURUS-OLED, this hidden clean button is situated at the top in the middle. For the AURUS-OLED PLUS it's the middle dot on its left side.

×		×
×	Main Art	×
×	▼ 21°C ▲ Living	×
×	Relax All off	×
TELETASK		

For the AURUS-TFT it's a wiper icon on the 'Home-page' or the 'Favorites-page:

	Garden
	Kitchen
	Living room
	Hallway
	M. bedroom
	Dining room
TELETASK	

or

Main light Dishwasher
20,5 °C Living Hallway
Door Kitchen
Living 23kWh Power
TELETASK

 Image: Image:

© 2018 TELETASK byba

# Advanced settings for AURUS touch panels

An AURUS touch panel is similar to the other TELETASK touch panels. In this section we go deeper into all the specific settings.

# Advanced tab

**Define Interface Function** 

Orientation   Default					Feedback Feedback LED's	'ON' brightnes	s:		Maximum	~
Rotated					Feedback LED's	Night illumina	tion':		Minimum	~
Display					Feedback LE	D's OFF when	OLED is OF	F		
OLED Displa	y OFF after:			15min ∨	Auditive feed	back on touch				
terface type:				Sensor definition						
DS12022 AU	RUS-OLED			Sensor Typ	pe: AURUS tempe	arature sensor	~ Co	mpensation:		
Main	Sensors	Audio	Extra	Nan	ne: Sensor 17		-2	0.0	3	
	3	4 6 0		Analog ou	tput (0.5°C =10%)				~	]
				Presets			20.0 1		At easiling: 20%	
	0.0			Standby Preset	e	2510	- 17.5%	•	At eaching: 20 C	-
	Customize	this screen		Standby Preset		2.3 0 0	10.05	· ·	At cooling: 22,5	-
				Night Temperatu	re		10.0	-	30.0 C	•

#### Orientation

Available on AURUS-2, AURUS-4XL and AURUS-OLED. Here you can choice between 'Default' and 'Rotated'. This way you determine how you will mount the touch panel horizontally or vertically.

The default state of the AURUS-2 is with the two buttons horizontally positioned.

This setting can always be changed. The configured functions of the buttons won't be deleted.

Pay attention: Always check if the notes are displayed completely on the AURUS-OLED. By turning the AURUS-OLED the positions of the icons and the notes will change.

Check this in the 'Edit this screen'-menu.

#### **Display Brightness**

Only available on the TDS12064. Switch between High (default), Medium or Low. In a bright environment it is advised to keep it on High where in a rather dark environment (e.g. bedroom) it is recommend to set the brightness on Low.

×

#### (OLED) Display OFF after

Only for the TDS12022, TDS12032 and TDS12064. Here you can change the default 15 min from 1 to 60 min (6h for TDS12064).

Be aware that increasing the time the AURUS-TFT is ON will decrease the display life time

#### Feedback LED's 'ON' brightness

you can choose between 'Maximum' (Default), 'Medium' or 'Minimum'.

#### Feedback LED's 'Night illumination'

you can choose between 'Maximum', 'Medium', 'Minimum' (Default) or 'OFF'. It can be wisely to change the Night illumination to OFF in a bedroom.

#### Feedback LED's OFF when OLED if OFF

Only for the TDS12022 and TDS12032.

#### Auditive feedback on touch

by default the AURUS-TFT will give a click every time a button is pressed. When preferred, this can be switched off.

#### Motion detection feedback on IR LED

indicates that the IR LED of the TDS12025 will be on when motion is detected.

### Compatibility list:

Setting	TDS12019 AURUS-1	TDS12020 AURUS-2	TDS12024 AURUS-4S	TDS12021 AURUS- 4XL	TDS12026 AURUS-4 TEMP	TDS12022 AURUS- OLED	TDS12032 AURUS- OLED PLUS	TDS12025 AURUS-2 SENSE	TDS12064 AURUS- TFT
Orientation	NA	V	NA	V	NA	V	NA	V	NA
(OLED) Display OFF after	NA	NA	NA	NA	V	V	V	NA	V
Display Brightness	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	V
Feedback LED's 'ON' brightness	V	V	V	Ver. 10	V	Ver. 20	V	V	NA
Feedback LED's 'Night illumination'	V	V	V	Ver. 10	V	Ver. 20	V	V	NA
Feedback LED's OFF when OLED if OFF	NA	NA	NA	NA	V	V	V	NA	NA

Auditive feedback on touch	V	Ver. 4	V	Ver. 10	V	Ver. 27	V	V	$\vee$
Motion detection feedback on IR LED	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	V	NA

# Built-in temperature sensor.

The AURUS-1, AURUS-2, AURUS-2 SENSE, AURUS-4S, AURUS-4XL, AURUS-4 TEMP, AURUS-OLED and AURUS-OLED PLUS contain a built-in temperature sensor. This can be used as sensor zone through the complete Domotics project.

The built-in temperature sensor isn't activated by default. To activate, follow the following instructions:

- Click on the temperature sensor icon
- Choose 'AURUS Temperature sensor' as 'Sensor Type' and give the sensor a proper name: e.g.: Sensor AURUS-OLED Living.
- If the sensor will be used to control a heating/cooling system, complete the settings at 'Output properties:

Ineritation					Feedback						
Default					Feedback LED's	'ON' bright	ness:			Maximum	~
O Rotated					Feedback LED's	'Night illun	nination':			Minimum	~
)isplay				1	Feedback LE	D's OFF w	hen OLED	is OFF			
LED Displa	y OFF after:			15 min ∨	Auditive feed	back on to	uch				
aface type:				Sensor definition							
S12022: AU	RUS-OLED			Sensor Typ	pe: AURUS temp	erature sen	BOR	Compens	ation:		
Main	Sensors	Audio	Extra	Nan	ne: Sensor 17			-2.0 °C	\$		
	5	e e		Analog ou	tput (0.5°C =10%)						1
	L-I			Presets							
	TILIBAR			Day Temperatur	e			20.0 °C	÷	At cooling: 20	°C
1	Customize t	this screen		Standby Preset		2.5 °C	÷ -	17,5°C	0	At cooling: 22	,5°C
				Might Tamparat				10.0.10		30.0.10	

TELETASK Technical handbook » PROSOFT » 'I' units: Inputs and others » Advanced settings for AURUS touch panels

#### © 2018 TELETASK bvba

# AURUS-2 SENSE



The AURUS-2 SENSE with built-in motion and light sensor, can be set to the specific needs of your project and to the specifications of the user.

# Motion detector:

Define Interface Fun	ction		×
Basic Advanced	đ		
Name:	AURUS-2 SENSE	Audio zone:	None ~
Central Unit:	A: MICROS+ Central Unit	Sensor Zone	None 🗸 🗸
Address:	AUTOBUS 1 🗸 1	RGB zone:	None ~
			Main IR Enable 🗹 Beep on IR command 🗹
Interface type:	IC 2 CENCE	Motion detector Extra functions	
*	3 4 5 6 7 8	Motion detector function  None  Kone  Kone Kone	Ch 01m 00s 🔹 None 🗘
			OK Cancel

For the 'motion detector' of the AURUS-2 SENSE there are two options:

#### **Motion detector function**

This is the default option, where the 'motion detector function' is defined directly on the AURUS-2 SENSE.

#### Link with other AURUS-2 SENSE

Use this option if a 'motion detector function' was already created on another AURUS-2 SENSE and you want this AURUS-2 SENSE to work the same way. If you select this option, all that remains is to select the 'other' AURUS-2 SENSE from the drop down list.

To Define the motion detector function the following parameters need to be set:

#### Output

This is the light (or other function) to be controlled by the motion detector function.

#### Active time

This is the time the output needs to be activated after the closing edge.

#### Light level

Optional, this is the light level below which the motion detector function needs to activate the output. If 'None' is selected here the motion detector function will always activate the light when motion is detected.

Remark: If a light level is selected the build-in light sensor will be activated automatically (if necessary).

Remark: The 'motion detector function' created by the AURUS-2 SENSE is also available in the list of 'motion detector functions' so it can also be used by a traditional motion detector that needs to work together with the AURUS-2 SENSE (see chapter 'motion detector function').

Remark: The motion detector button is always edge triggered (see chapter 'Digital Input interfaces – Specific parameters').

Remark: The motion detector button cannot be used from the TELETASK remote controllers.

# Built-in light sensor:

The AURUS-2 SENSE contains a built-in light sensor. This can be used as sensor zone through the complete Domotics project.

The built-in light sensor isn't activated by default. To activate, follow the following instructions:

- Click on the light sensor icon
- Choose 'AURUS Light sensor' as 'Sensor Type' and give the sensor a proper name: e.g.: Sensor AURUS-2 SENSE Living.
- If the sensor will be used to control a function, complete the settings at 'Output properties:

efine Interface Fu	nction					×
Basic Advance	d					
Name:	AURUS-2 SENSE			Audio zone:	None	~
Central Unit:	A: MICROS+ Central Unit	<i></i>		Sensor Zone:	None	~
Address:	AUTOBUS 1 V	]		RGB zone:	None	~
						Main IR Enable 🗹
						Beep on IR command
Interface type:		Sensor del	inition			
TDS12025: AUR	US-2 SENSE	Sens	or Type: AURUS light sensor	r v		
			Name: Sensor 4			
		Linht earle				
		3	-			
		4 None	~			~ [] [ff]
					Y	
	1 1 2	5				
		6				
		7				
	TELEVAN .					

I TELETASK Technical handbook » PROSOFT » 'I' units: Inputs and others » AURUS-2 SENSE

TELETASK can't be responsible for potential errors in the data sheets and technical documentation. Changes in the product features can be made at any time, without prior notice. o, TELETASK, GENT

#### © 2018 TELETASK byba

# AURUS-OLED (TDS12022) and AURUS-OLED PLUS (TDS12032)



### Main page and general notions.

The AURUS-OLED (PLUS) contains four pages with each eight different buttons. You can thumb through these pages by turning them in a virtual manner. Just stroke with your finger on the hidden buttons to thumb to the next or previous page.

As soon as the AURUS-OLED (PLUS) has been tipped, the main page will illuminate. The eight functions which are defined on the main page must be the functions that the end user needs the most.

In contrast with the sensor- and audio pages, there are no predefined buttons on the main page. The Sensor- and Audio pages contain already all needed settings to regulate the temperature or audio on a user-friendly way. The main page on the other hand will always depend on the domotics project. It is possible to define a sensor or audio function on this page when this function will be used very often.

PAY ATTENTION: there is a difference between an audio-/sensor function and a LCD/VFD (DISPLAY) FUNCTION!

A sensor- or audio function is always linked to one sensor- or audio zone.

A LCD/VFD (display) function regulates the sensor- and audio functions depending on the selected zone on the display. Here you always have to configure a zone-selection button (e.g. 'Display function: sensor: next zone').

TIP: Configure on the first page a coupled sensor function 'preset down' and 'preset up', for the built-in sensor of the AURUS-OLED. This way you will have an easy read out of the temperature in the room where the AURUS-OLED will be

# Sensor Page

The sensor page, just like the main page, can be adapted to the customers' wishes. As the AURUS-OLED (PLUS) is extremely suitable for the visualisation and regulation of heating-, cooling-, or fan systems. TELETASK already predefined the functions. The functions on these pages are all LCD/VFD (display) functions. This means that they are depending on the 'zone' button (by default button 7)! A long press on the 'zone' button will lead the user to the page to predefine the temperature presets

### How to show the "power consumption" on an AURUS-OLED (PLUS)

When you don't change anything on the second page of an AURUS-OLED (PLUS), it will automatically display all the different sensors in your project. Any type of sensor will be listed here unless it was removed from the AURUS-OLED (PLUS) using the "Customize this screen – sensor and audio zones" option.

Sometimes it could be interesting to bring forward one of even more of these "sensors" and put them on the first page of the AURUS-OLED. One clear example is to show the power consumption.

To do this, choose a button of the AURUS-OLED (PLUS) that you want convert to a shown value and select "sensor function" under the short press. Next select the sensor you want to display and choose the "show measured value" option.

ine Interface Fur	iction			×
Basic Advance	4			
Name:	AURUS-OLED	Audio zone:	None	~
			120000	
Central Unit:	A: MICROS+ Central Unit	Sensor Zone:	None	~

You will now get the measured value shown underneath the icon. To bring forward the sensor value even more, select the "couple horizontally/vertically" option!

		Construction and and and and and and and and and an			
Address:	AUTOBUS	31 V 3		RGB zone: None	~
				Main IR	Enable 🛛
				Beep on IR co	mmand 🖸
Interface type:				Button functions	
TDS12022: AU	RUS-OLED			Short	
Main	Sensors	Audio	Extra	Sensor zone v 03 consuption v	) 間
		_		Show measured value	~
	1 5	<sup>2</sup>		Long	
	and the second second	**		None	1 121
	3	0 4			~
	3	# 4			~

## Audio page

The audio page can also be adapted to all the wishes of the end user, just like the main page. As the AURUS-OLED (PLUS) is extremely suitable for the display and control of audio-and video systems, TELETASK already predefined these functions. The functions on this page are all LCD/VFD (display) functions. This means that they are depending on the 'zone' button (by default button 7)!

For track feedback on the AURUS-OLED (PLUS), you have to couple the previous and next buttons.

# Extra page

The fourth and last page is completely adjustable to the wishes of the end user, just like the main page. This page contains no predefined functions.

# Delete or adapt order

It is always possible to adapt the order of the pages or to restrict the number of pages on the AURUS-OLED (PLUS) to only three, two or even one page.

TDS12022: AU	JRUS-OLED	

### To move a page:

- Click on the page you want to move and keep the mouse pressed.
- Move the page to the new place.



When deleting a page, all functions on the page will be deleted and the page will be moved at the back. A page on which no function is predefined and which is not followed by a page with functions, will not be displayed on the AURUS-OLED (PLUS).

PAY ATTENTION: this page will be displayed in the PROSOFT Suite. It doesn't disappear completely.

# Coupling buttons

The AURUS-OLED (PLUS) offers the possibility to couple buttons with each other. When mounting vertically the buttons can be coupled horizontally and when mounting horizontally the buttons can be coupled vertically.

Coupling buttons is only suitable for functions where it makes sense to split the control over two buttons, e.g. control of a curtain/shutter, the control of a dimmable light, the control of a temperature setting.

TIP: always consider the correct way or direction for these functions: up/down, open/close, less/more, in the 'Edit this screen' menu the corresponding arrows can be selected!

asic Advance	be						
Name:	AURUS 8 buttons and	OLED display		Audio zo	ne: None		~
Central Unit:	A: MICROS+ Central U	init	4	Sensor Zo	ne: Sensor 4		· [] 、
Address:	AUTOBUS 1 ~	3		RGB zo	ne: None		
						Main I Beep on IR (	R Enable
terface type:			Button functions				
DS12022: AUR	US-OLED		Short				
Main	Sensors Audio	Extra	Display function	(0 V Sensor: Target down		~	1 12
	3	1	None	<u> </u>			- I III'
	5 Um 6	1	Input definition				
	Customize this screen		Description:		able Button Co able Remote Co puple Horizonta	ontrol Control al	

### Practical:

- Click on the first of the two buttons you want to couple. E.g.: button 1.
- Select under 'short' the first half of the double button combination, f.e. a dimmer or a Display function like 'sensor down'.
- Click on 'Couple horizontally'.
- Check the functions which will be automatically defined on this coupled button. In this example = button 2.
- Click on 'Edit this screen' to finish the details of the coupled buttons: icon, note.

### Customize this screen-menu

In this 'Edit this screen'-menu you can adapt the visual details of the touch panels. You can:

- Change the page name.
- See a realistic preview of the AURUS-OLED (PLUS) screen.
- Change or create icons.
- Adapt the notes.
- Adapt the sensor- and audio zones.

Define OLED Layout	×
Select Page and button Main Sensors Audio Extra	Page 1, Button 1 Text
Page Name: Main	Line 1: Line 2:
× 1 ×	Preview 21.0°C  Living Lon
34	
<b>5 6 ×</b>	0 0 1 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
× 7 8 ×	
TELETASK	
O Show preview OK Cancel	Sensor and Audio zones

#### Page name

the page name is only for use within the PROSOFT Suite.

#### **Show Areas**

this way you can see which buttons are coupled and which button you are editing.

#### Show preview

you will see a visual example of the AURUS-OLED (PLUS) screen.

#### Text

Every button is provided with an icon and two lines of text (note). The length of the text is limited to the width of the icon. With coupled buttons there is more place for notes. For some functions the second line will be reserved for the indication of the status; e.g. a dimmer where the dim value is displayed in %.

#### lcon

depending on the type of function which is coupled to a button, PROSOFT will suggest an icon. If you want to change this icon, you can choose out of the TELETASK library with existing icons (ranked in different categories) or you can draw your own icon!

#### Sensor and audio zones

in the underlying screen you can select and reorder the sensor- and audio zones which have to be displayed on the AURUS-OLED (PLUS). All available zones are selected by default.

### Draw an icon.

The AURUS-OLED (PLUS) offers the possibility to draw a personalized icon:

• Click on the work bar beneath the list of icons:

#### D / B ×

- Here you can choose respectively 'new icon'- 'edit present icon'-'copy present icon' and 'delete present icon'.
- A new icon is always added to the list 'user'. Only the self-drawn icons can be changed and/or deleted.
- The TELETASK icons can be copied. They will be copied to the list 'users' with a new name which was entered in the draw screen.



TIP: the icons of the AURUS-OLED (PLUS) are saved in the .NBT file. They aren't lost when the file is opened on another PC.

Also the self-drawn icons are kept in the .NBT file.

### Practical:

- Click on 'new icon'
- Give a name to the new icon.
- Draw the new icon in the left drawing field:



#### **ON and OFF State**

Every icon knows two states: 'ON' and 'OFF'. Normally the 'OF' status is automatically built based on the 'ON' status. This means: the 'OFF' status is identical to the 'ON' status but less clear!

;Draw a custom OFF status'. When this is selected the 'OFF' status won't be built automatically. Now you can provide an adapted 'OFF' status. Example:



TIP: by clicking a field with the left mouse button, you give the selected pixel the selected colour (always 7 colours available).

# Displaying the Sensor and Audio zones.

In the 'edit this screen'-menu, you can, just like all the other control panels with a display, adapt the displayed sensor- and audio zones. Check the selection field out if you don't want to display the sensor or audio zone.

To change the order you have to select a zone and then click on the large arrow 'up' or 'down'.

Select Sensor zones	Select Audio zones
Select the sensor zones you want to display on this LCD. You can also change the order in which they appear by using the Up and Down buttons at the bottom.	Select the audio zones you want to display on this LCD. You can also change the order in which they appear by using the Up and Down buttons at the bottom.
Date and time Source temp Vind Vind Viate tank Ground Floor First Floor OLED Keuken OLED eetkamer OLED Living OLED Slaapkamer	Home Office Garden Bathroom Bedroom Michael Alanis V Nuvo 7 Nuvo 7 Nuvo 8 Living (L) Kitchen (R)
OK Cancel	

# Delete the AURUS-OLED (PLUS) memory & demand the version number.

When the AURUS-OLED (PLUS) screen isn't built-up correctly, you can 'delete' this (the icons will be saved in the intern memory of the AURUS-OLED by starting up or after sending the NBT to the Central Unit):

Push LONG simultaneously on the two hidden 'thumb'-buttons until the screen turns black and is re-built.



• When re-starting the AURUS-OLED (PLUS), the version number of the intern software of the AURUS-OLED (PLUS) will be displayed and the configuration data will be reloaded automatically.

 Image: Image:

© 2018 TELETASK byba

# AURUS-TFT (TDS12064)



In PROSOFT there are different parameters which can be set to the specific needs of your project and to the specifications of the user.

### Customize this screen:

	10	Central	Unichters		
			~		
		Binds Left	Binds Righ		
		Ground	First Floor	3	
		Coming home	Leaving		
				-	
TELETASK					

#### **Favorites tab**

When you click this button, the "Define AURUS-TFT" window appears. In this screen, you will find a simplified AURUS-TFT screen where you can edit the 8 AURUS-TFT favourites buttons to your personal needs. You can modify the names and change the icons.

	URUS-TFT		- D
Rooms	& items Settings		
Visible	e Room Name		
	Living		
	Kitchen		
	Entrance		
	Dining		
	Hallway		
	Bedroom		
	Bathroom		
	Garden		
	Technical room		
		Visible Item Name	Passcode Read on
	Nº S	Visible Item Name Main lights Uplighter	Passcode Read only
	EX NO	Visible Item Name Man lights Uplighter	Passcode Read only
	STA S	Visible Item Name Main lights Uplighter	Passcode Read on
		Visible Item Name Man lights Uplighter	Passcode Read on
		Visible Item Name Main lights Uplighter	Passcode Read only
		Visible Item Name Man lights Uplighter	Passcode Read only
		Visible Item Name Main lights Uplighter	Passcode Read only

#### **Rooms & Items tab**

In this window you can change the different control menus of the AURUS-TFT.

#### Sorting the menu items

you can change the order of appearance of the items in the menus. If you want for example to display the 'kitchen' on top of the rooms list, select the 'kitchen' button and drag the room to the desired place.

You can do the same sorting for the functions when you click the functions. Place the most often used functions on top of the list and the seldom used functions at the bottom.

#### Visualisation

you can hide a room or function by removing the 'V' mark next to it.

!!! Be sure that all to be hidden functions are effectively hidden, because in some cases this can generate unwanted results by fault use of the buttons on the AURUS-TFT screen. An example of a function which is to be hidden is a relay output which controls a heating valve or circulation pump or a fan of a heating or cooling system. These kinds of relays are to be controlled by the intelligence of the TELETASK system and are not to be controlled directly by the user.

A function will be automatically shown on the AURUS-TFT screen when the parameters 'room', 'icon' and 'name' of the concerned function are entered.

#### **User code protection**

A function can be user code protected. This means that the function only can be controlled after clicking that function with your finger on the AURUS-TFT touchscreen and after entering the correct user code.

To protect a function, just check the "Passcode" mark.

The standard factory user code is "12345". This user code can be changed any time in PROSOFT in the "Users & groups" configuration menu.

#### **Read only**

This parameter is unchecked by default, when this is checked the item will only show the status but cannot be controlled.

## Settings

In this window you can change the different control menus of the AURUS-TFT.

Define AURUS-TFT	- D X	2
Rooms & Items Settings		
Configuration		
Allow user to change sensor presets and clock actions.		
Screen saver		
Screen saver type	Clock screen saver 🗸 🗸	
Time format:	11:19 ~	
Date format:	21/03/2017 ~	
Camera captures		
	OK Cancel	1

#### Configuration

Select if the user is allowed to make changes to the sensor presets and clock actions.;

Not all clock actions can be edited on the AURUS-TFT. Only the clock actions for a thermostat and clock actions for which the option "Allow user to change this clock on Touchscreen" is checked can be edited (see TIMESOFT).

#### Screen saver type

The screensaver will be Default off. If desired, you can select the "Clock screen saver" to display the time when the AURUS-TFT is in standby mode. Regardless of the selected screensaver, the display will switch off after the selected time (see the "Display OFF after" setting).

- Time format: Here you can switch 23:59 or AM-PM notation.
- **Date format:** The same as with the time format, here you can choose your preference of the way the date displays on the Screensaver.

#### **Camera captures**

Add an email address (max. 5 for every AURUS-TFT) if you would like to receive an email with camera captures every time a screen capture is made. If black, the camera capture functionality will be unavailable.

All the above settings are to be set on each individual AURUS-TFT unit (in PROSOFT). When you have more than one AURUS-TFT panel in your project, every AURUS-TFT can be set in a different way. Example: In the master bedroom all functions in all rooms may be accessible. But in the guest room, only functions in the guest room and for example in the guest bathroom are shown on the screen.

The sensor and audio zones are only available in the 'Edit screen' window when they are connected with a room in the 'list room' window. One audio zone and up to five sensor zones can be connected to a room.

### Energy management

With the AURUS-TFT you can visualize the energy generation, consumption and balance of your project in kW, kW/h or in the desired currency. Per installation you can have one overview screen.

If you visualize the values in kW, be aware that this will be the total of today (starting at midnight) or the total of the last 24h. This depends of the sensor 'Timebase' which you can configure in the TDS12117.

Example:

		Energy Bala	nce	1	
(	25 kW			5 kW	
	; <b>.</b> :		$\sim$		
				24	
		20 kW			

### How to configure the Energy balance screen

- Go to Extra > Options > Sensor tab
- Click on 'Energy settings' under 'Energy management and Charts'

Options		×
System setup Option Sensor Motors RGB Settings T	Time settings E-mail Access control	
Temperature Settings:		
Heating system type:	Standard (no cyclustime hyst 0.5°C)	~
Cooling system type (air conditioning):	Standard (no cycle time hyst 0.5°C)	v
Temperature zone ON if target is changed from Disp	olay interface	
Temperature / 10V or 100% time:	5.0 °C	
Delta Heat / Cool:	0.0 °C 🚖 🗌 Enable Auto modus	
Frost protection temperature:	5.0 °C	
Energy management and Charts:		
Energy settings Charts		
Others:		
Hysteresis Light sensor:	5	
Hysteresis Humidity sensor:	5% 💠	
	ОК	Cancel

#### **Energy management window**

In this window you can configure the energy management parameters.

rgy management				
Preview		Properties Currency:	¢	
Energy production		Energy consumption		
Maximum production (kW):	10	Maximum consumption (k/w):	10	A. V
Average Profit per kWh:	0,120	Average cost per kWh:	0,190	-
Pulse counter sensor for energy produc	tion:	Pulse counter sensor for energy consum	ption:	
V PV		PV PV		
🗐 eCar		eCar		
E-consumption		E-consumption		
			OK Cancel	

#### **Preview window**

In the left corner you will see a preview of the energy balance screen on the AURUS-TFT with at left, the energy generation visualised as PV panels and at the right the house as consumer.;

- Maximum production (kW): In order to have a correct scaling (balance) between the production and consumption, you will have to fill in an assumption of the possible maximum production (eg.: of you PV panels).;
- Average Profit per kWh: Here you fill in the profit you will get when you put your generated electricity back to the electricity grid.;
- Pulse counter sensor for energy production: In this column you can select which 'kWh (pulse) sensor' will act as the 'Energy production' counter. You can select multiple.;

To see something in this column you will have to add a sensor which is defined as a 'kWh (pulse)' 'Sensor Type' on one of the inputs of a Digital input interface TDS12117. See image below.

Be sure that all sensors have the same 'Timebase' (last 24h or Today) to prevent an incorrect balance.



#### Currency

Type here your desired currency (eg.: €, \$, £,...). ;

The AURUS-TFT will display the currency as value/kWh.

#### Maximum consumption (kW)

In order to have a correct scaling (balance) between the production and consumption, you have to fill in an assumption of the possible maximum energy consumption.;

- Average cost per kWh: Here you fill in the price you have to pay per kWh when you buy it from your energy supplier.;
- Pulse counter sensor for energy consumption: In this column you can select which 'kWh (pulse) sensor' will act as the 'Energy consumption' counter. You can select multiple.;

To see something in this column you will have to add a sensor which is defined as a kWh (pulse) sensor type on one of the inputs of a Digital input interface TDS12117.

### Chart visualisation

All types of sensors can be displayed on the AURUS-TFT as trend lines or block diagrams to visualize gas consumption, rainfall, energy production, temperature, wind velocity, light intensity, etc.

The AURUS-TFT can display sensor values per day, week, month, year and always with a comparison of last day, week, month, year, in the background. Depending of the type of sensor (analogue or digital) these will be visualized as a trend line
with min/max lines in the 'month' and 'year' screens, or as block graphs with totals per hour, day, week or month.

#### Example:



Up to 100 sensors can be visualized per central unit.

The sensor data is collected and memorized in the DoIP central unit. So if the AURUS-TFT is replaced, the sensor values will still be available.

You can only visualize the current and last day in hours, the current and last week in days and, the current and last month in weeks and the current and last year in months. The AURUS-TFT cannot visualize for example the hours of a particular day two weeks ago. On the GUI+ (TDS15105) this is possible. Refer to the chapter of GUI+ for more details.

### How to enable in PROSOFT:

- Go to Extra > Options > Sensor tab
- Click on 'Energy settings' under 'Energy management and Charts'

tions									
System setup	Option	Sensor	Motors	RGB Settings	Time settings	E-mail	Accer	ss control	
Temperature	e Settings	i:							
Heating sy	stem type	BC			S	tandard (	no cyclu	ustime hyst 0.5°C)	~
Cooling sy	stem type	e (air con	ditioning	1:	S	tandard (	no cycle	time hyst 0.5°C)	Ŷ
Temper	rature zo	ne ON ift	target is o	changed from D	isplay interfac	e			
Temperatu	re / 10V o	or 100% ti	ime:		5.	0 °C	*		
Delta Heat	/ Cool:				0.	0 °C	*	Enable Auto modus	
Frost prote	ction tem	perature			5	5.0 °C			
Energy man Energy s	agement ettings	and Char	ts: Charts						
Others:									
Hysteresis	Light set	nsor:			5		\$		
Hysteresis	Humidit,	sensor:			5	%	-		
									-

• Enable the sensors for which you want to have a chart available on the

AURUS-IFI.
------------

Cala	sensors	IC
On C	h screens (e.g. AURUS-TFT). SUI+ (TDS15105) charts for all sensors are always available. For more mation on the difference between GUI+ charts and charts on AUTOBUS h screens, see the technical handbook.	s
V	Living	-
1	PV	
1	eCar	
V	Gaz	=
	E-consumption	
V	Water	
1	M Bedroom	
C	Lounge	
1	Bathroom	
record.	Bedroom Kids	
	and the second	
	Bathroom Kids	100

• The charts symbol will now be available on the sensor page on the AURUS-TFT after you transmit the .nbt file to the DoIP central unit.

### AUTOBUS and network settings on the AURUS-TFT

#### AUTOBUS

- Go to the home-screen and press the configuration icon (gears) at the bottom to go to the configuration-screen.
- Press on the AUTOBUS address to make a change.
- Fill in the technical code: 09876
- Fill in the correct AUTOBUS address.
- Press OK

#### **Network configuration**

- Go to the home-screen and press the configuration icon (gears) at the bottom to go to the configuration-screen.
- Press on the 'network configuration'
- Fill in the technical code: 09876
- Set everything as it should and press OK every time.

## Upgrading the AURUS-TFT software version:

To upgrade an AURUS-TFT, go to Extra > Diagnostics > Interfaces and look for the AURUS-TFT in the list. If a new version is available, an "Upgrade" button will be displayed in the "Version" table. In the 'Upgrade interface' window, the necessary components will be automatically be selected. Click the Upgrade button to start the upgrade process.

The upgrade process can take up to 45min. Other interfaces will function as normal but a small lag is possible.

When the upgrade process is started, it is not possible to cancel the action.

Once the upgrade is started, you may close PROSOFT. The upgrade process will continue.

To see if the upgrade process is still running or has been finished, let Diagnostics search the interfaces again to see the current status.

 Image: Image:

© 2018 TELETASK byba

# Digital Input interfaces – Specific parameters

# The different available parameters

Name:	Cookie with feedback		Audio zone:	None	×
Central Unit:	A: NANOS Central Unit	÷	Sensor Zone:	None	Ý
Address:	AUTOBUS 1 V 1		RGB zone:	None	Ŷ
					Main IR Enable 🗟
terface type:		Input functions			
DS12125: Cook	se with feedback	Short			
-		None ~			~ ] 🖻
		Long None ~		×.	~ ] ff ~
	<b>7</b> 8	Input definition			
	1234	Engraving top:	Enable	Button Control Remote Control input	1
			Edge t	riggered	1

The adjustable parameters of the digital input interfaces are the same as these of the 'General Interfaces'. Depending on the selected interface, the following parameters can be added in the 'Button' field:

#### **Invert Input**

when this parameter is marked with a 'V', the input will work inverted. So the central unit is not taking action when the contact is closed (for most of the functions) but when the contact opens.

This is most often used when a NC (Normally Closed) contact is connected to the input.

#### **Edge triggered**

when this parameter is marked with a 'V', the 'short' and 'long' names will change into 'on closing' and 'on opening'.

#### **On closing**

the coupled action is processed at the moment that the contact closes and for as long as the contact remains closed (or the button remains pushed in case of a normal open contact).

#### On opening

the coupled action is processed on the moment that the contact opens or the button is released (in case of a normal

open push button contact).

When an input works 'Edge triggered an 'Extra function' tab will be available on which a second 'on closing/on opening' pair of functions can be defined.

_	
None 👻	* 1.2
	* <b>*</b>
On opening	
None -	-
put definition	
escription:	
	V Enable Button Control
Engraving top:	
Engraving top: Engraving bottom:	Enable Remote Control

Remark: For some functions the 'Edge triggered' option is automatically set e.g. motion detector functions, transparent functions, ... In these cases the 'Edge triggered' option cannot be cleared.

[] [] [] TELETASK Technical handbook » PROSOFT » 'I' units: Inputs and others » Digital Input interfaces – Specific parameters

© 2018 TELETASK bvba

# Analogue input interface – Specific parameters

# 'Sensor definition' field

Define Interface Fur	nction			×
Basic				
Name:	Universal analog input interface			
Central Unit:	A: NANOS Central Unit	2		
Address:	AUTOBUS 1 🗸 1			
Interface type:		Sensor definition		1
TDS12310: Unive	ersal analog input interface	Sensor Type:	No Sensor 🗸	
AUTOBUS TELE made in Art. TDS1 8x Universa	2       5       6       7       8       1	Name	No Sensor TDS12250: Temperature sensor TDS12251: Temp sensor with cable (u TDS12260: Humidity sensor TDS12270: Light sensor (normal) TDS12270: Light sensor (sun)) General analog linear sensor Wind sensor	
			[	OK Cancel

#### Sensor Type

this parameter defines the type of sensor which is connected to the concerning analogue input. There are several different types of sensors which can be connected.

#### Temperature sensor.

Select this sensor if you have connected a TELETASK temperature sensor TDS12250 or TDS12251 to your analogue input.

By using a TDS12019/20/21/22/24/25/26 AURUS family touch panel, the built-in temperature sensor will be configured the same way as another temperature sensor.

#### **Humidity sensor**

Select this sensor if you have connected a TELETASK humidity sensor TDS12260 to your analogue input.

#### Light sensor (dark)

Select this sensor if you have connected a TELETASK light sensor TDS12270 to your analogue input, which is set (hardware setting) as a 'dark' light sensor. Refer to the data sheet of the TDS12270 for details about this setting.

#### Light sensor (normal)

Select this sensor if you have connected a TELETASK light sensor TDS12270 to your analogue input, which is set (hardware setting) as a 'normal' light sensor. Refer to the data sheet of the TDS12270 for details about this setting.

#### Light sensor (sun)

Select this sensor if you have connected a TELETASK light sensor TDS12270 to your analogue input, which is set (hardware setting) as a 'sun' light sensor. Refer to the data sheet of the TDS12270 for details about this setting.

Remark: the hardware settings of the light sensor are to be done by setting the appropriate jumpers like described in the TDS12270 data sheet.

#### DAIKIN, Airzone, Mitsubishi Electric sensor

These sensors are only available on the specific interface (see chapter Airco Software license).

#### General linear sensor

these sensors are only available on the TDS12310. With this every type of linear sensors can be read with a standard analogue output signal (0-10V, 4-20mA,...) This sensor gives an average value (=sudden changes are not directly noticed)

#### Wind sensor

These sensors are only available on the TDS12310. With this every type of linear sensor can be read by an analogue output signal (0-10V, 4-20mA,) this sensor reports advanced changes immediately! (f.e. by measuring blasts of wind)

#### Sensor Name' or 'Sensor zone

In this field you can enter the name of the sensor. This should be the temperature / light or humidity zone for this sensor.

Example: 'ground floor', 'bath room', 'bedroom Lucas', 'South sensor', 'Twilight East'. If it concerns a temperature sensor which controls only the temperature of the room where the sensor is installed, then the name is the room name. If the T sensor controls several rooms, than the name may be 'ground level' or 'sleeping area' or something similar. Keep the name short, because this name is to be displayed on the displays and touchscreens which have a limited number of characters available for the name of the sensor zone.

#### Compensation

This parameter is only available when you selected a temperature sensor in the sensor type field. The content of the compensation field defines an offset to the measured temperature value. The TELETASK system can work with compensation temperatures between -5°C and +5°C in steps of 0.5°C. This compensation is default set to -2°C for TDS12250 and 0°C for TDS12251 and is advised not to be changed.

### The 'Properties' field

After selecting a 'sensor type', different fields appear in the 'properties' window. The possible parameters for this field are: The following parameters can be entered:

### When a temperature sensor has been selected

efine Interface Fur	nction				×
Basic					
Name:	Analog input interface				
Central Unit:	A: NANOS Central Unit	v			
Address:	AUTOBUS 1 🗸 2				
Interface type:		Sensor definition			
TDS12309: Analo	input interface 🗸 🗸	Sensor Type:	TDS12250: Temperature sensor	<ul> <li>Compensation</li> </ul>	on:
	20 5 6 7 8 10000	Name:	Sensor 4	-2.0 °C	•
100000		Heat Cool	600	_	
Tens Un	S 5 6 7 8 C <u>TELETASK</u> made in Belgium Art. TDS12309 Bx analog input interface (ovy tor TDS122009 Bx analog input interface (ovy tor TDS12209) Bx analog input interface (ovy tor TDS1200) Bx analog input interface (ovy	Control method:	None	~	
				OK	Cancel

#### Heat - Control method

this parameter defines what kind of heating control method is to be used. You have the following choices:

- **Standard relay control method:** this is a traditional ON/OFF control. It means that the concerned Temperature sensor will control the heating system by means of one output relay of the TELETASK system. When the room has to be warmed up, the relay (contact) will close and when the target temperature is reached the relay contact is opened. This is to control a valve, a circulation pump or a fan or similar item.
  - **'On/off:** select the relay which you want to use to control the connected heating system. For example the relay that switches the electrical valve of the heating zone 'ground floor'
- Analogue control: this is when your heating system is to be controlled by a 0 to 10 V analogue output.
  - **'On/off:** Select here the relay which is to be switched (when necessary).
  - **'Analogue Output (5°C difference=100% heat/cool):** Select here the analogue (dimmer-) output which is to be used as the Analogue control output for this Temperature zone.
- **4 speed (OR) control:** To be used for multi speed (off/low/medium/high) fan motors. This option is about an OR system, so it means that only one of the controlled relays will be on at the same time.
  - **'Low speed (at -0.5°C):** Select the relay which is to be activated (close the contact) for low speed of the evolved fan.
  - 'Medium speed (at -2.5°C): Select the relay which is to be activated for medium speed of the fan.
  - 'High speed (at -5°C): Select the relay which is to be activated for high speed setting of the fan.
- **4 speed (AND) control:** To be used for multi speed (off /low/medium/high) fan motors. Same as for the 4 speed 'OR' control, but the lower speed output relays will stay on if a higher speed setting is set.
  - **'Low speed (at -0.5°C):** Select the relay which is to be on for low fan speed.
  - **'Medium speed (at -2.5°C):** Select the relay which is to on together with the low speed relay, when medium fan speed is needed.
  - **'High speed (at -5°C):** Select the relay which should be on together with the low and medium speed relay, when high fan speed is needed.

- Local Mood control: only for special applications.
  - **'On/off:** Select the local mood which is to be switched on/off when temperature control is done.
- Flag control: only for special applications
  - **'On/off:** Select the flag which is to be controlled when temperature control is done.
- Fan coil unit: select this type of control method to use a fan coil unit for your heating/cooling system.

Auvance	ed .			_					
Name:	AURUS-OLE	ED LG				Audio zor	ne: None		~
Central Unit:	A: NANOS C	Central Unit		2		Sensor Zor	e: None		~
Address:	AUTOBUS 1	1 ~ 1				RGB zor	e: None		~
								Main IR Enab Beep on IR comman	nd 🗹
nterface type:				Sensor definition	_		-		
DS12032: AUR	US-OLED PLUS		Y	Sensor Type:	AURUS tempe	erature sensor 🛛 🗸	Compensatio	on:	
Main	Sensors	Audio	Extra	Name:	Sensor 1		-2.0 °C	\$	
	1 2	3 4		Control method:		Standard relay	~		
	1 2 Customize th	3 4		Control method:	On/Off	Standard relay None Use system type defin	<ul> <li>ed in options</li> </ul>	~	~
	1 2 Customize th 5 6	3 4 is screen 7 8		Control method: Heating system typ	On/Off	Standard relay None Use system type defin Standard (no cyclust	ed in options time hyst 0.5°C)	~	~
	1 2 Customize th 5 6	3 4 is screen 7 8		Control method: Heating system typ Presets Max temperature Day Temperature	On/Off	Standard relay None Use system type defin Standard (no cyclust	ed in options ime hyst 0.5°C) 30.0 °C 20.0 °C	<ul> <li>✓</li> <li>At cooling: 20°C</li> </ul>	~
	1 2 Customize th	3 4 is screen 7 8		Control method: Heating system typ Presets Max temperature Day Temperature Standby Preset	On/Off	Standard relay None Use system type defin Standard (no cyclust	ed in options time hyst 0.5°C) 30.0 °C 20.0 °C 17.5°C	At cooling: 20°C At cooling: 22.5°	v rc

More information about the control of a heating system can be found in the thematical applications chapter in the heading 'how to integrate a heating/cooling system' further in this document and at the chapter about the 'extra menu' in this handbook.

#### Cool – control method

this parameter defines which type of cooling control is to be used. At the selection of the control method, there are some extra parameters available. You have the choice out of the same systems as for the heating control.

#### Max temperature

by default the maxium temperature for the presets and manual overrides is 30 degrees. But this can be increased or decreased by setting the specific desired maximum temperature. Setting range is between 20 and 40 degrees.

#### Day Temperature

This parameter is the threshold value of the sensor as set by the 'Day' preset temperature. This parameter can be set from 5°C to 30°C in steps of 0.5°C. By default, the 'day temperature is set by the system to 20°C.

The 'Day Temperature' is used by the TELETASK home automation system as a threshold for the 'heat' system. The 'Day' temperature for the cooling algorithm is x °C higher than the 'day' temperature parameter. The difference is defined by the 'Delta Heat/Cool' parameter. In PROSOFT this 'day' temperature for the 'cool' system is displayed in grey beside of the set 'Day' temperature which is shown at the left of 'Heat'.

24/1/2019

The 'Delta Heat/Cool' is changeable in the 'Extra' - 'Options' menu under the 'sensor' tab.

#### Stand-by Temperature' (economic energy saving preset)

the 'Stand-by' temperature is derived from the 'Day' temperature. Therefore the 'stand-by' parameter is not the effective temperature but contains the difference to the 'day' temperature. The 'stand-by' parameter can be set from 0.5°C to 5°C in steps of 0.5°C. Default the 'stand-by' parameter is set to 5°C.

The 'Day/Stand-by Temperature' is used by your system as a threshold for the 'heat' system. The 'Day/Stand-by' temperature for the 'cool' system is a changeable number of °C ('Delta Heat/Cool') plus the stand-by temperature parameter higher. (For Stand-by this is the Day preset plus the stand-by temperature plus the 'Delta hot/cool'). This 'Day/Stand-by' temperature of the 'cool' system is in PROSOFT displayed in grey beside to the 'stand-by' preset before 'heat'. The 'delta heat/cool' parameter is changeable in the 'extra' 'options' menu, under the 'sensors' tab.

#### Night Temperature

this parameter defines the threshold value of the sensors as set in the 'night temperature' parameter. This parameter can be set from 5°C to 30°C in steps of 0.5 degrees Celsius. By default the 'night temperature' is set to 5°C.

The 'Night Temperature' is used by the TELETASK system as a direct threshold for the 'heat' system. In the 'cooling' system, there is an individual 'Night' value available. This value can be set-up between 20 and 30°C but can never be less than the set-up Night temperature for heating plus Delta Heat/Cool.

Cooling at night: Unlike the day/standby cool presets which are related to day/standby heat presets via the "Delta Heat/Cool", the "Cooling at night" preset can be modified for each sensor zone individually without any correlation to another preset.

With this new preset you can for example keep the bedrooms, but not the other rooms, cool at the night. A good compromise between comfort and energy saving.

### When selecting a humidity sensor:

efine Interface Fur	oction			×
Basic				
Name:	Analog input interface			
Central Unit:	A: NANOS Central Unit	v		
Address:	AUTOBUS 1 🗸 2			
Interface type:		Sensor definition		
TDS12309: Analo	g input interface	Sensor Type: TDS12260: Humidity	y sensor 🗸 🗸	
-	5	Name: Sensor 4		
	5678	Humidity sens		
AUTOBUS	× 5 6 7 8 C	Relay ~	<ul><li>) 開</li></ul>	
	TELETASK made in Belgium Art. TDS12309 8x analog input interface (any tor 10512280-2001		×	
Tens Uni	is 🖶 ♥ 🛱 1 2 3 4 C C€	Presets		
		Preset 1 (Day)	0 %	
		Preset 2 (Night)	0 %	
			OK Cancel	

#### **Humidity sensor**

this parameter defines the function which is to be used at the moment that the humidity sensor function has to be executed. Depending on the integrated function, there will be more or less parameters to be set. Refer to the explanation of the specific functions which can be used here in the 'functions' chapter of this handbook. These are: 'Switch', 'Dim', 'Local Mood' and 'Flags' + 'process function'. These functions are activated, whenever there is measured a value that is lower than the set-up value (air is too dry!) For 'Moistening' you have to reverse it by hardware.

#### Preset 1 (=day)

this parameter defines the 'day' threshold preset which is to be used to control the related function. This parameter can be set from 0% humidity to 100% humidity in steps of 1%. By default this preset is set to 0%. The function will be active as soon as the actual value is below the preset value (Low Action).

#### Preset 2 (=night)

this parameter defines the 'night' threshold preset which is to be used to control the related function. This parameter can be set from 0% humidity to 100% humidity in steps of 1%. By default this preset is set to 0%. The function will be active as soon as the actual value is below the preset value (Low Action).

### When selecting a light sensor ('dark', 'regulating' or 'sun' sensor is set):

efine Interface Fun	oction					>
Basic						
Name:	Analog input interface					
Central Unit:	A: NANOS Central Unit	~				
Address:	AUTOBUS 1 v					
Interface type:		Sensor definition				
TDS12309: Analo	g input interface	Sensor Type:	TDS12270: Light sensor (dark)	~		
-		Name:	Sensor 4			
Parameter of	5 6 7 8	Light sens				
AUTOBUS	\$ 5 6 7 8 C	Relay	~			~ 🗋 😭
	TELETASK made in Belgium Art. TDS12309 Bx analog input interface low for 10512250-2201				5	×
Tens Uni	B + + € 1234.C CE	Presets				
		Preset 1 (Day)		0,00Lx	÷	
		Preset 2 (Night)		0,00Lx	÷	
					OK	Cancel

#### Light

this parameter defines the function which is to be executed on the moment that the sensor function is activated. Depending on the function which has been chosen, there are more or less parameters to be set. Refer to the description of the specific functions in the 'functions' chapter. You can choose here between the functions 'Switch', 'Dim', 'Local Mood' and 'Flags'.

#### Preset 1 (=day)

this parameter defines the threshold for the 'day' preset. This parameter can be set from 0 to 944060 Lux, according to a non-linear scale. By default this sensor is set to 0 Lux.

#### Preset 2 (=night)

this parameter defines the threshold for the 'night' preset. This parameter can be set from 0 to 944060 Lux, according to a non-linear scale. By default this sensor is set to 0 Lux.

# When selecting a non-TELETASK humidity sensor (DAIKIN, AIRZONE, Mitsubishi Electric):

efine Interface Fun	ction						×
Basic							
Name:	DAIKIN interface						
Central Unit:	A: NANOS Central Unit	4					
IP Address:				Port	t Nr:	80	
Daikin zones		Sensor definition					
1:1-00 Sensor 4		Sensor Type:	Daikin sensor		,		
		Name:	Sensor 4				
		Daikin indoor unit pro	operties Mode & Spr	eed			
		Daikin zone Nr:					1:1-00
		HVAC resolution:					0,5°C ~
		Presets					
		Day Temperature		1	20.0 °C	+ At coo	ling: 23°C
		Standby Preset	2.5 %	c 🛊 =	17,5°C	\$ At coo	ling: 25,5°C
Add	Delete	Night Temperature		[	16.0 °C	÷ 30.0 1	C 💠
						OK	Cancel

#### Properties

here is made a link between the TELETASK addresses and the addresses of the concerned system. See the manual of the concerning TELETASK interface/licence for more information. Here also the set-up 'Day/Night/Stand-by' presets are similar to the TELETASK temperature sensor.

When selecting a general linear sensor/Wind sensor:

efine Interface Fur	nction				×
Basic					
Name:	Universal analog input interface				
Central Unit:	A: NANOS Central Unit	14 M			
Address:	AUTOBUS 1 V				
Interface type:		Sensor definition			
TDS12310: Unive	ersal analog input interface	Sensor Type:	General analog linear sense	r Y	
21999	22 5 6 7 8	Name:	Sensor 4		
2.12.23		Settings Low Actio	n a anu	121010	
AUTOBUS	≥ 5 6 7 8 C	Signal.	0-10 V ~	Decimal places:	0
TELE	TASK + Input Signal	Min ( 0 V ):		Mia Braview	0.0977
made in		Max (10 V):	100	May Preview	100
Art. TDS1 8x Universal JTens Units	2310 C € C C 2.33miA i analog input C O 0.534 er sonst from C O 0.544 er sonst from C O 0.54	1946 ( 19 7 ).	100	max review.	100
-					
				ОК	Cancel

- Settings: here you chose the type of signal, the unity which has to be used, the precision, and the minimum and maximum values depending on the Properties of the sensor.
- Low action: here you can, just like for other sensors, couple a function which will be executed when the measured value is too low.
- 'Preset 1 (=day): this parameter defines the 'day' preset threshold value.
- 'Preset 2 (=night): this parameter defines the 'night' preset threshold value.

## In practice

- Click 'Edit' in the PROSOFT menu bar.
- Click 'Inputs and other'.
- Select the desired analogue input interface. The selected 'I' interface turns blue.
- Click the 'Edit' button. The 'Define Interface Function' window appears on the screen.
- Select the desired input on the picture of the selected analogue input interface.
- Select the desired sensor and set the different parameters depending on the needs of your project.
- Click 'OK' until you are back in the main PROSOFT screen. The analogue input is defined. Don't forget to save your work regularly. TELETASK recommends having an incremental counter in the file name you use. This way you can easily go back to an older version if you think you have made an error in one of your last saved versions.

# Image: Image:

#### © 2018 TELETASK bvba

# Audio Interfaces – Specific parameters

### The different available parameters

• Audio Zone: the audio zone is a room or a group of rooms wherein the audio can be listened coming from one audio power amplifier. Following to this, the volume level of the rooms in the same audio zone are depending on each other. As soon as you have been entering a name in the 'audio zone' field, the audio functions for this audio zone are released for use in PROSOFT.

Audio zone example names: 'Bath room', 'Kitchen', 'Office', 'Bathroom parents and dressing', 'bath rooms ground floor', 'outdoor', etc...

Add as much audio zones as the used audio interface is able to control. See for more details in the data sheet of the specific audio interface.

fine Interface function Interface data Name: IR Learnable audio interface Central Unit A: MICROS+ Central Unit  Address: AUTOBUS 1  2	Audio zone:	OK Cancel
teface type: DS14041: IR Learnable audio interface • 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8	Audio zone ? Audio Zone Uving	

### In practice

- Click 'Edit' in the PROSOFT menu bar.
- Click 'Inputs and other'.
- Select the desired audio interface by clicking on it.
- Click the 'Edit' button. The 'Define Interface Function' window appears on the screen.

- Select the desired audio zone on the picture of the audio interface.
- Enter the name of the audio zone.
- Click 'OK' until you are back in the main PROSOFT screen. The audio zone(s) is (are) defined now.

 Image: Image:

© 2018 TELETASK byba

# Overview list of 'I' Interfaces of your domotics project

An overview list of the 'I' interfaces, the different inputs, sensors and the audio zones in your project are easily overviewed in the different available lists. These lists are shown in the 'list interfaces' window. Click in the main PROSOFT menu 'Edit', 'Inputs and others' and select the desired on-screen overview list.

elect T interfa	08			
ype of list:		'l' Interfaces	~	OK
	1	T Interfaces		
Number	Name	Input list		
100 REM	Afstandsb	e Sensor zone list	1.12	Marri
I01 ANA	Analog inp	Audio zone list		new
121 AUR	AURUS 4	button		E-44
122 AUR	AURUS 8	buttons and OLED display		Edit
103 D16	Digitale inc	pangsinterface 16 ingangen (1-8)		
104 D16	Digitale inc	pangsinterface 16 ingangen (9-16)		
105 AUD	IR Leamat	ole audio interface	1.82	
102 AUD	Universal	RS232 audio interface		Delete

There are different lists which can be displayed:

## List type 'l' Interfaces:

### The list contains:



This list gives you an overview of the 'I' interfaces of your TELETASK project, conveniently arranged. In this list the next items are displayed:

#### 'Address

In the first part of the first column there is the software address of the concerned 'I' interface. PROSOFT adds the letter 'I' to remark that it concerns an input interface.

#### Group

In the second part of the first column the input interface group abbreviation is displayed.

#### Description

the name which you have been giving to the interface.

### Actions:

When the desired 'I' interface is found, you can select it and the line becomes blue when selected. The following actions can be taken starting from this list:

#### New

Click on the 'New' button to add an extra 'l' interface to your project.

#### Edit

Click on the 'Edit' button to open the 'Define Interface Function' window where you can change the settings of that interface.

#### Сору

there will be made a copy of the selected interface. All settings, except for the address, are kept.

#### Remove

Click to remove the interface from your project. Be careful, there is no undo button for this action, but PROSOFT will ask for a confirmation before it is finally removed.

### List type 'Input list'

### The list contains:

Select from input	list		
Type of list	Input list	-	OK
A INP 1	detector berging aan bar 1e verd.	*	
A INP 2	detector sas sanitair		-
A INP 3	detector WC		New
A INP 4	detector WC		
A INP 5	detectoren traphall		Edit
A INP 6	Digital input number 6		
A INP 7	Digital input number 7	=	Copy
A INP 8	Digital input number 8		
A INP 9	Digital input number 9		Delete
A INP 10	Digital input number 10		
A INP 11	Digital input number 11		
A INP 12	Digital input number 12		
A INP 13	Digital input number 13		
A INP 14	Digital input number 14		
A INP 15	Digital input number 15		
A INP 16	Digital input number 16		
A INP 17	Input from Ritto: Belknoppen		
A INP 18	Digital input number 18		
A INP 19	Digital input number 19		
A INP 20	Digital input number 20		
A INP 21	Input from back 1:		
A INP 22	loout from back 2	*	

This list gives an overview of the TELETASK individual digital inputs used in your project. Next items are displayed in this list:

#### INP

this abbreviation defines that the item displayed on that line is an input.

#### Number

the input number is divided into two parts. The first part is the AUTOBUS address of the digital input interface. The second part is the individual input number on that input interface (for example '4' is the fourth input of 8 or 16).

#### Description

contains the name you have been giving to this individual input...

### Actions:

When the desired input is found, you can select it by clicking on it and it will turn blue. The following actions can be done after selecting the input:

#### New

to add an extra input to the project.

It will be necessary to add a new 'I' interface here before you can add an individual input.

#### Edit

Click on the 'Edit' button to go to the 'Define Interface Function' window to be able to change the parameters of the individual input.

### List type 'Sensor Zone' and 'Audio Zone'

### The list contains:

These two lists give you an overview of all sensors and audio zones in your TELETASK domotics project. You can find the following information in both these lists:

Sensor zone list Name Heat kitchen Humdty Bedroom Ught sensor Studyroom Temp Living Temp Upstairs		OK New Edit
Name Heat bathroom Heat kitchen Humdty Bedroom Light sensor Studyroom Temp Living Temp Upstains		New Edit
Heat bathroom Heat kitchen Humdty Bedroom Light sensor Studyroom Temp Living Temp Upstairs		New Edit Copy
Heat kitchen Humdty Bedroom Light sensor Studyroom Temp Living Temp Upstairs		Edit
Humdty Bedroom Light sensor Studyroom Temp Living Temp Upstains		Edit Copy
Light sensor Studyroom Temp Living Temp Upstains		Сору
Temp Living Temp Upstains	-	
Temp Upstairs	- 10	

#### Туре

defines whether it concerns a sensor zone ('SEN') or audio zone ('AZN').

#### Number

shows the number which was given to the sensor or the audio zone.

#### Description

contains the name you have been giving to the sensor or audio zone.

### Actions

When the desired sensor or audio zone is located, you can select it by clicking on it and it will turn blue to confirm that you have selected that line. The following actions can be done in this case:

#### New

to enter an additional sensor or audio zone.

It will also be necessary to define a new 'I' interface here.

#### Edit

Click on the 'Edit' button to change the parameters of a sensor or audio zone.

[] [] [] TELETASK Technical handbook » PROSOFT » 'I' units: Inputs and others » Overview list of 'I' Interfaces of your domotics project

© 2018 TELETASK bvba

# TDS12117 Digital Input interface with Pulse counter sensor

A typical use for the Pulse counter is the measurement of the electricity consumption/production. But there are also meters available for gas/water consumption with a pulse output.

# Hardware:

The meter that generates the pulses, has to be connecter to the input of a TDS12117 (Digital Input interface).

The meter has to stay under 5 pulses per second on maximum consumption/generation. Keep this in mind when selecting the meter.

#### Meter output type

Open collector (;NECESSARY) (So output).

**Connection** So+ on the input, So on the common.

#### Cabling

individual shielded (same as sensors/dimmer).

## Software:

A pulse sensor can be created in PROSOFT Suite by selecting the option "Use as pulse counter sensor" under the selected input on the TDS12117.

ine Interface Fur	nction		
Basic			
Name:	Digital intput interface 16 x IN		
Central Unit:	A: MICROS+ Central Unit	~	
Address:	AUTOBUS 1 v 1		
terface type:		Input functions	
DS12117: Digita	il intput interface 16 x IN	Short	
		None ~	~ 〕 閏
	AUTOBUS Tens Units TELETASK rade in Belguen TDS12117 Bydiel Ingel Werten ten C	Long None V	
mines 6	C 1 3 5 7 8 11 13 15 C 2 4 6 8 19 12 14 16	Input definition	
	2 4 6 8 0 2 4 6	Description: Engraving top: Engraving bottom:	Enable Button Control     Invert input     Edge triggered     Use as a pulse counter sensor
			OK Cancel

By default the sensor will be generated for the measurement of electricity consumption (kWh). To measure other units you can change the sensor type to "Other". To change the input back to a 'normal' digital input, you can change the sensor type back to "digital".



For a kWh sensor the following parameters apply:

#### Unit

enter the number of pulses that need to be measured for 1 kWh.

#### **Decimal places**

the number of decimal units you want to display on displays and screens.

#### Timebase

Select today if you want the value displayed on your displays and screens to be the total power consumption since midnight. Select "last 24h", if you want the total value for the last 24 hours displayed.

#### **Show Real Time value**

check this option if you want to display current use instead of total use (e.g.: kW instead of kWh).

Rem.: charts in GUI+ always show total use, regardless the setting.

For a custom pulse teller you have to insert the units and the number of inputs per unit (e.g.: 250 imp/m<sup>3</sup>). If "Show Real Time value" is checked, the following parameters will be added:

#### **Real Time unit**

the unit that has to be used to display Real Time values (e.g.: L/h).

Rem.: The Timebase has to be in relation with the unit (eg.: for L/h the Timebase has to be "Hour", for L/min it has to be "Minutes").

#### Real time units/unit

the number of Real Time units per Unit (eg.: 1000L in 1m<sup>3</sup>).

efine Interface Fu	nction	
Basic		
Name:	Digital intput interface 16 x IN	
Central Unit:	A: MICROS+ Central Unit	×
Address:	AUTOBUS 1 V	
Interface type:		Sensor definition
TDS12117: Digita	al intput interface 16 x IN	Sensor Type: Other (pulse)
		Name: Sensor 3
	AUTOBUS Tana Units TELETASK made in Belgium TELETASK made in Belgium TELETASK made in Belgium TELETASK made in Belgium	Settings       High Action         Unit:       1000 imp/ m³       Decimal places:       0 🗢         Show Real Time value       Max Preview:       999L/h         Timebase:       Hour       Preview:       999L/h         Real Time unit:       L/h         Real Time units / unit:       1000
	2 4 6 8 0 2 4 6	
		OK Cancel

Regardless the type of sensor you use (kWh or others) and regardless the selected option "Show Real Time value", you can link a "High Action" on this sensor. This means that this action will be executed as soon as the measured value is higher than the preset value (the action will be reset when the measured value is below the preset value).

Possible uses are: to inform the user when too much power is used (with messages and alarms) or to keep the power consumption within limits during high peak usage by shutting down high consumers (eg.; electrical boilers).

Rem.: Be aware that this "High Action" is the opposite as with light, humidity or standard linear sensors where we speak of "Low Action".

Like with other sensors you can define two presets (day and night).

fine Interface Fur	nction		
Basic			
Name:	Digital intput interface 16 x IN		
Central Unit:	A: MICROS+ Central Unit	~	
Address:	AUTOBUS 1 🗸 1		
nterface type:		Sensor definition	
DS12117: Digita	l intput interface 16 x IN	Sensor Type: kWh (pulse)	
	AUTOBUS Testor ver AUTOBUS Testor ver TELETASK raske in Belgium TDS12117 Digital Input Hierlise Max C 1 3 4 7 3 11 13 15 15 C 1 3 4 7 3 11 13 15 15 C 1 3 4 7 3 11 13 15 15 C 1 3 4 7 3 11 13 15 15 C 1 3 4 7 3 10 12 14 15 15 C 1 3 5 7 3 10 12 14 15 15 C 1 3 5 7 3 10 12 14 15 15 C 1 3 5 7 3 10 12 14 15 15 C 1 3 5 7 5 7 5 15 12 14 15 15 C 1 3 5 7 5 7 5 15 12 14 15 15 C 1 3 5 7 5 7 5 15 12 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15	Settings     High Action       Unit:     1000 imp/ kWh     Decimal places:     0       Show Real Time value;     Max Preview:     18000       Timebase:     Hour     1000	€ OW
	2 4 6 8 0 2 4 6		
		OK Can	cel

[] [] [] [] TELETASK Technical handbook » PROSOFT » 'I' units: Inputs and others » TDS12117 Digital Input interface with Pulse counter sensor

© 2018 TELETASK byba

# TDS14061 HVAC Modbus Master interface

TDS14061 is an AUTOBUS interface for controlling HVAC systems. Depending on the brand and the specific unit(s), the interface can be configured to integrate up to 64 indoor units.

The TDS14061 requires communication over Modbus to a Modbus Slave interface: TDS20061xx, TDS20062xx or TDS20063xx in order to control the HVAC system. The interface is suited for controlling specific VRV/VRF and residential split units.

Remark: In case that local wired remote controllers are installed in the system and they are all located in one central place, make sure that the HVAC system uses the room temperature measured by the indoor units and not the room temperature measured by the local wired remote controllers.

# Adding a HVAC Modbus Master interface to the Interfaces list.

- Bring up the Interfaces List and click on 'New'.
- Select 'TDS14061' from the list as shown on the figure below.



# Modbus Slave interface selection

## Select the correct Modbus slave type:

- TDS20061DA: for **DAIKIN** HVAC systems
- TDS20061SY: for **SANYO** HVAC systems
- TDS20061TO: for **TOSHIBA** HVAC systems
- TDS20061ME: for **MITSUBISHI ELECTRIC** HVAC systems
- TDS20061HI: for **HITACHI** HVAC systems
- TDS20061PA: for **PANASONIC** HVAC systems
- TDS20062MH: for MITSUBISHI HEAVY HVAC systems
- TDS20062LG: for **LG** HVAC systems
- TDS20062SS: for **SAMSUNG** HVAC systems
- TDS20063FU: for **FUJITSU** HVAC systems

elect Modbus slave	- O X
TDS20061 TDS20061DA: Daikin TDS20061HI: Hitachi TDS20061ME: Mtaubishi Electric TDS20061SY: Sanyo TDS20061TO: Toshiba TDS20062 TDS20062LG: LG TDS20063LMH: Mtaubishi Heavy TDS20063 TDS20063FU: Fujitsu	Modbus slave types TDS20061 TDS20062 TDS20063
	0K Cancel

# Configure the AUTOBUS Address

• Select AUTOBUS number and set the interface AUTOBUS address.

efine Interface Fur	nction				×
Basic					
Name:	HVAC Modbus Master				
Central Unit:	A: NANOS Central Unit	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~			
Address:	AUTOBUS 1 v 1		HVAC Modbus slave:	TDS20061DA: Daikin	~
Daikin zones		Sensor definition			
		Sensor Type:	v.		
		Name:			
Add	Delete				
				ОК С	ancel

## Configure Modbus Slave interface

• Add the HVAC indoor units by clicking the 'Add' button.

ne Interface Fu	nction		
Basic			
Name:	HVAC Modbus Master		
Central Unit:	A: NANOS Central Unit	~	
Address:	AUTOBUS 1 V	HVAC Modbus slave: TDS20061DA: Daikin	Ŷ
Daikin zones		Sensor definition	
1-00 Sensor 3		Sensor Type: Modbus Sensor V	
		Name: Sensor 3	
		Daikin indoor unit properties Mode & Speed	
		HVAC group nr: 1	~
		HVAC zone nr: 0	~
		HVAC resolution: 0,5°C	~
		Presets	
		Day Temperature 20.0 °C 🔶 At cooling: 23°C	-
		Standby Preset         2.5 ℃         ÷         =         17.5℃         ‡         At cooling: 25.5	"C
		Night Temperature 17.0 °C	

For each indoor unit, a sensor has to be added to the list, configure the following settings:

#### Sensor Type

Modbus Sensor by default

#### Sensor Name

This can be a free chosen name. Normally this name should represent the location(zone) of the indoor unit.

### Indoor unit properties

#### HVAC group nr & HVAC zone nr

This represents the HVAC indoor unit address. This setting must be the same as the address which was configured manually on the HVAC indoor unit in that zone by the HVAC technician.

Remark: Contact the HVAC technician to find out which HVAC address is given to each indoor unit in the HVAC system.;HVAC resolution: See Chapter 'Extra parameters for External HVAC systems'.

#### Mode & Speed

See Chapter 'Extra Parameters for External HVAC Systems'

If everything is set correctly, press 'OK'.

 Image: Image:

#### © 2018 TELETASK byba

# TDS14065 : IR-COOKIE INTERFACE





# TDS14065: IR-COOKIE INTERFACE (HVAC AND A/V CONTROL)

The text below describes how you can configure the IR-COOKIE interface in PROSOFT (starting from version 3.6.12.0). If you are going to configure an IR-COOKIE for the first time, it is recommended to check TELETASK SCHOOL for the IR-COOKIE training movie (part of "Skilled" trainings).

# INTRODUCTION

The IR-COOKIE interface is an AUTOBUS connected interface which can transmit IR signals to its IR-flasher (supplied with the unit) which can be used to control a single HVAC unit or Audio/Video device. While the HVAC control has only one function with one or more modes (cool and/or heat, ventilation, dry), the controlled A/V device may be a device with one or more internal sources (amplifier with built-in tuner for example).

The IR-COOKIE can learn the necessary IR commands through its built-in IR-receiver.

Asking to transmit one or more IR-codes can be done from any TDS input like a momentary push button (on a contact input), touch panel, touch screen, clock action (see TIMESOFT), mobile device like a smart phone, etc.

# CONFIGURATION

The IR-COOKIE configuration is done in three main steps:

- 1. You need a connected IR-COOKIE. Connect the interface to a DoIP central unit and connect with the PROSOFT PC (via wired or wireless LAN connection).
- 2. Record (=learn) the IR-COOKIE its IR-codes (see details in the next chapter below). Info: All recorded IR-codes are stored in the PROSOFT IRDB library. You can later re-use these codes in your other projects. BACKUP: It may be important to make a backup of these codes by exporting the IRDB file to your personal protected backup location (may be on a cloud server). If you start a new project on another PC, you can then import the IRDB file.
- 3. Now configure the triggering devices (buttons, touch panels, ...) to activate the IR-COOKIE to send one or more IR codes to the target device (HVAC or A/V).

TT SCHOOL: It is also very useful to learn the details via the TT SCHOOL movie "IR-COOKIE" (part of the skilled trainings).

# RECORD (=LEARN) THE IR-CODES (HVAC APPLICATION)

Open PROSOFT. Make sure that you are connected with the central unit and an IR-COOKIE interface is connected to the AUTOBUS.

• Now add the IR-COOKIE to the (existing) configuration (Edit menu > Inputs etc > New > TDS14065).

Sensor or Heat/Cool interfaces	
TDS12309: Analog input interface	
TDS12310: Universal analog input interface	
TDS14061: HVAC Modbus Master	
TDS14065: IR Cookie for HVAC or AV control	
TDS15200: DAIKIN werface	
TDS15200: Mitsubishi Electric interface	

• Now add a new device (your HVAC split unit): (if not yet existing in your library)

Select Device				×
Device type				
O AV device				
HVAC device				
Device				
Samsung	]	D	New	
LF1811-0608			Edit	
test				
test				
~	v.			
		-	_	1000
			OK	

• Now define the properties of the HVAC unit which you want to control (see screen capture below):

Device identification						
Brand:	Samsung	Samsung				
Type:	DB93-11	DB93-11115N				
Comment:			~			
Properties	HVAC Properties					
O Serial RS232	HVAC operation modes:		Heat			
O IR for TDS14042			Vertilation			
IR for TDS14065			✓ Drý*			
O IP	HVAC fan speed settings: External HVAC system supports 'auto speed'  3 step (Slow, Medium, Fast)					
	HVAC system supports 's	wing'				
		-	OK Casad			

- Enter the Brand name, Type reference, optional comments (like model year etc.) and select the HVAC modes which are supported by the device. Only select the ones you really want to use because selecting all (Heat, Cool, Ventilation and Dry) will need a high number of IR-codes to be recorded. In most cases you may only need "Cool" and optional "Heat" modes.
- Now select the number of speeds of the HVAC device fan (most cases you will have 3: Low, Medium and High speed).

Remark: The new device you need to enter is more about the remote control than about the HVAC device. A remote control can be the same for different HVAC devices. So if you have the remote control information, use this as the device name. We recommend to add the HVAC device information in the comment field in such case.

#### Remark:

1. For heating you can record temperature settings between 16 and 25°C.

2. For cooling this is between 21 and 30°C.

- If your HVAC unit supports Auto speed mode, select the item (duplicates the number of IR-codes to be recorded).
- If swing control is supported, select the item (again duplicate the number of IR-codes to be recorded).
- Click 'OK' to get the recording screen.

You can record the IR-CODES one by one, but for all temperature related commands (most of them are) use the batch record which works much faster (see also the TT SCHOOL training movie on IR-COOKIE).

rand:	Samsung Type:		DB93-11115N		Device:				
Comment:				Medium: IR HVAC					
corded co	des								
-			Display name	Length					
OFF		8		NOT RECORDED					
COOL 2	1°C, SPEED LOW	B		NOT RECORDED	2				
COOL 2	2°C, SPEED LOW	₿		NOT RECORDED	3				
COOL 2	3°C, SPEED LOW	₿		NOT RECORDED					
COOL 2	4°C, SPEED LOW	₿		NOT RECORDED					
COOL 2	5°C, SPEED LOW	₿		NOT RECORDED					
COOL 2	6°C, SPEED LOW	æ		NOT RECORDED					
COOL 2	7°C, SPEED LOW	₿		NOT RECORDED					
COOL 2	28°C, SPEED LOW	₿		NOT RECORDED					
COOL 2	9°C, SPEED LOW	θ		NOT RECORDED					
COOL 3	0°C, SPEED LOW	₿		NOT RECORDED					
COOL 2	1°C, SPEED MED	₿		NOT RECORDED					
COOL 2	2°C, SPEED MED	₿		NOT RECORDED					
COOL 2	3°C, SPEED MED	B		NOT RECORDED					
COOL 2	4°C, SPEED MED	₿		NOT RECORDED					
				NOT DECORDED			-	-	
erface for i	recording and testing:	A1 I	10 ~						

Before you start recording, PROSOFT needs to have access to the IR-COOKIE which you want to use for the recording. Therefore, PROSOFT has already searched for such IR-COOKIE on his AUTOBUS. On the screen capture above you can see that in this case an IR-COOKIE was found on address 10 (AUTOBUS 1).

If you want to use another IR-COOKIE, change the address setting accordingly.

Now select the first IR-code you want to record ('OFF') and click 'Record code' or 'Batch record'. Batch record is very useful but only to be used for codes with increasing temperatures like all 'cool...' codes in the screen capture above.

IMPORTANT REMARK: If your HVAC remote control doesn't have a specific 'OFF' button but an 'ON/OFF' button, it means that you will never know in which status your HVAC unit will come when activating a command to it. So you can't use it in a mood like 'leaving the house'. If you activate this mood and you send the 'ON/OFF' command, the device will go ON if it was already OFF before. And that is not what you want.



Now you get the record screen. On top, you see the code you are to record and the green record bar starts running. Now click the appropriate (in this case "OFF"-) button on your IR-remote control of the HVAC device.

Remark: Your remote control should be faced to the IR receiver in the IR-Cookie interface (distance 20 cm to 3 meter).

Once the IR-COOKIE has detected the end of the code, the code is checked and stored in to the IRDB library.

TELETASK PROSOF	T 3.6 - NANOS.nbt	Define AV device					- 0 X	-	٥	×
PROSOFT	File Edit Cor	D								
suite		Summary								
PROSOFT		Brand: Samsung		Тур	e: DB93-11115N	Device:				
TIMESOFT		Comment:			~	Medium: IR HVAC				
- conserver					÷					
CARDSOFT		Brended and a								
GUISOFT		Hecorded codes								
Lines do Loca i			0		Lorent					
AV-SOFT		b. off	0	isplay name	Length					
Louise		COOL 21/C SPEED LOW	60		NOT RECORDED					
DALISOFT		COOL 22°C SPEED LOW	an a		NOT RECORDED					
kounted		COOL 23°C SPEED LOW	œ		NOT RECORDED					
		COOL 24°C. SPEED LOW	œ	TELE	ETASK Domotic System >	<				
		COOL 25°C. SPEED LOW	æ							
		COOL 26°C, SPEED LOW	œ							
		COOL 27°C, SPEED LOW	œ		IK code succestully recorded.					
		COOL 28°C, SPEED LOW	œ							
		COOL 29°C, SPEED LOW	œ		OK					
		COOL 30°C, SPEED LOW	æ		UK.					
		COOL 21°C, SPEED MED	œ		NOT RECORDED					
		COOL 22°C, SPEED MED	æ		NOT RECORDED					
		COOL 23°C, SPEED MED	œ		NOT RECORDED					
		COOL 24°C, SPEED MED	æ		NOT RECORDED					
			and		NOT BECOBDED		× 1			
		Interface for recording and testing:	A1 110	~	7	Record code	Test code			
			- Incompany			Balakamad	Delete and			
						Batch record	Delete code			
10.00		100ms		20	00ms 300ms	400ms	500ms			
				Л						
		<					>			
						04	Cancel			
						UK	Cancer	15		

Below on the screen you get a picture of the code construction. You don't have to do anything with that, but if the code would look erroneous, we recommend to record it again.
Remark: In exceptional cases, you may like to cut the tail of the recorded code. Therefore, you can go with you mouse pointer over the code signal picture and cut the part behind your mouse pointer by clicking the left mouse button.

# Batch recording:

For the temperature codes:

- Select the first code you want to record
- Make you IR remote control ready with the appropriate settings (in our capture this is Cooling mode, temperature set to 20°C (first T minus 1°C) and fan speed on LOW)
- Click Batch record
- Press the space bar to record the code and you click the Temperature-up button, so the remote control transmits the settings for 21°C as the first IR-code.
- Then do the remaining other T-settings one by one by clicking the space bar. PROSOFT will automatically ask for the next setting. Click space bar when you are ready, etc...



- After all codes are recorded, click 'OK' and the new device is added to the device list.
- Click 'OK' again to go into the IR-COOKIE configuration screen.
- Enter the proper AUTOBUS address as will be used in the final installation (don't forget to change also the address setting on the IR-COOKIE if necessary)
- Set the Sensor type to 'IR-COOKIE temperature zone' and give it the proper name (the room of the AC device).
- Optional: Set the day and night temperatures if you want them to be different then default. The stand-by temperatures (you can call this 'eco' setting) are automatically set based on the Stand-by preset (2°C is recommended). For Heating this is Day minus the Stand-by T° and for Cooling this is Day plus the Stand-by T°.

• Click 'OK' to finalize this configuration.

If you have more IR-COOKIE interfaces in this project, do the same last configuration part for all other IR-COOKIE interfaces. Be sure that every IR-COOKIE interface needs to have a different AUTOBUS address.

Now you are ready to use the Temperature functions on your touch panels, screens, input interfaces, smart phones, etc...

#### I Know issue with some brands

With some brands (ex. Fujitsu-General, LG, ...) not all necessary information is send trough IR from all the buttons on the remote control. Therefore, you should check the behaviour of the indoor unit. If you switch OFF the unit and then switch it back ON by pressing the ON/OFF button while you block the IR signal during the ON command. This make your indoor unit in an OFF state but the remote is thinking it's already ON. If you then press on a temperature up or down button and nothing happens, then this means that this last code has no ON command inside! In this case you should always record the signal from the ON/OFF button. Therefore you have to set the remote on the required setting (degree, mode, speed, ...), then press the ON/OFF button to switch the unit off, then start to record and then press the ON/OFF button. This will send an IR code with the ON command combined with the settings.

# USING THE IR-COOKIE ON BUTTONS, TOUCH PANELS, MOOD'S, ...

As temperature settings and control most often needs feed-back on a display, we recommend to have each temperature zone defined on at least one touch panel with display. For example, on a AURUS-OLED or AURUS-TFT. The AURUS-OLED and TFT have also the advantage that you can control all temperature zones from only one unit (if you like).

See more details and examples in the TELETASK SCHOOL training movie on IR-COOKIE (part of Skilled trainings).

Important to remember: it is not possible to see the 'measured' temperature from an IR-COOKIE zone, as the temperature is just not available from the connected AC unit. The IR signal is one directional. It can only transit to the AC unit and not receive from it.

At the other hand if you have a TELETASK temperature sensor in that room, you can visualise it on your AURUS-OLED, AURUS-TFT and other display interfaces like iSGUI and GUI+.

# A/V INTEGRATION WITH THE IR-COOKIE INTERFACE

In an A/V application, add the IR-COOKIE in AV-SOFT (part of the PROSOFT Suite) first.

TELETASK PROSOF	T 3.6 - NANOS.nbt					
PROSOFT	File Edit Communication	Extra Help				
PROSOFT	Select AV interface					
TIMESOFT			New			
CARDSOFT			Lon			
GUISOFT						
AV-SOFT						
DALISOFT		Select interface		12		×
		AV - interfaces				
		TDS14042: Universal RS232 audio interface				. 11
		TDS14065: IR Cookie for HVAC or AV Sateol TDS15240: A AV IP License				
		TEST DONE IN Y IT EDITION				
				ОК	Cancel	

- Enter 'NEW' and select the TDS14065 interface + 'OK'.
- Add an IR-flasher by clicking 'Add Device'. You can assign one or more devices to that flasher. You can Add a new device and record the IR-codes of that device (see movie TELETASK SCHOOL IR-COOKIE for more details). We can also recommend to learn to work with AV-SOFT first before you proceed.

10	Display nam	e Length
SYSTEM OFF	œ	NOT RECORDED
SYSTEM ON	æ	NOT RECORDED
SELECT SRC1	æ	NOT RECORDED
SELECT SRC2	æ	NOT RECORDED
SELECT SRC3	æ	NOT RECORDED
SELECT SRC4	æ	NOT RECORDED

- If you want to control an audio unit which is amplifier with built-in tuner source, you can now learn the IR-codes for both your amplifier and the internal tuner source.
- The IR-code learning process is the same as in the above text for a HVAC device.

IMPORTANT REMARK: If you're a/V remote control doesn't have a specific 'OFF' button but an 'ON/OFF' button, it means that you will never know in which status your HVAC unit will come when activating such command to it. So you can't use it in a mood like 'leaving the house'. If you activate this mood and you send the 'ON/OFF' command, the device will go ON if it was already OFF before. And that is not what you want.

• If you have existing IR-codes from the IR-learnable interface TDS14042, you can copy these codes to use them with the IR-COOKIE without the need to re-record them.

elect Device	□ ×
Device	
Samsung TV (General functions) SONY TEST STR-DH100 for TDS14065	New Edit
STR-DE197 for TDS14065 STR-DE197 STR-DE185	 Udde
platenspeler CDP-XE370	
tart	

- Just select the existing device and click 'Copy'
- Now select "TDS14065" instead of "TDS14042" and rename the device type (add for example 'for IR-COOKIE' instead of 'COPY').

The remaining part is the same as for using any device in AV-SOFT. See AV-SOFT training.

Remark: Before you are able to control the audio system which is connected to the IR-COOKIE, you need to tell the TDS system for which room this audio device is used for (= audio zone). Therefore, go to PROSOFT top menu 'PROSOFT', go to 'rooms' and select your room and select the specific audio zone in the 'audio zone' field.

Now you can use audio functions on any TDS buttons (contact input), touch panel, touch screen, mobile device, but also as part of a mood.

e.g. mood 'coming home', 'leaving', 'party' or 'going to bed' are typical moods where HVAC and or A/V actions may be taken together with other actions like light control or other.

We hope you will enjoy your new IR-COOKIE(s).

# VRF/VRV INSTEAD OF IR-FLASHER CONTROL

If you need more than an IR-flasher solution, you may like to have bi-directional management of high-end HVAC devices. You can select one of the many other HVAC interfaces available from TELETASK. These are specifically made for integration with VRV/VRF systems. See HVAC Master/slave interfaces for more details on the brands and types which are supported by TELETASK.

 Image: Image:

© 2018 TELETASK bvba

# TDS15200 Airco Software license

The TDS15200 is a TELETASK license for full integration with an Air-conditioning system, this license is the same for different Air-conditioning brands (Daikin, Mitsuhishi Electric). The integration is possible with the DoIP system, this means that the TELETASK central unit and the controller of the air conditioner system are connected over Ethernet. For full use the TDS15200 license needs to be activated. For test or demo purposes this license can be used in 'TEST Mode' for three days.

The TDS15200 can be used to integrate with an "Intelligent gateway" to the AC system. This means that the temperature measurement is done by the Airco system. The TELETASK DoIP central unit reads the measured temperatures from the gateway, and sends the desired temperature, mode and speed settings to the gateway, which controls the different zones.

The AC can be controlled on both the AC system and the TELETASK system.



A schematic drawing of the integration is given below:

# Daikin Integration

The Integration with the DAIKIN AC system is done with the Daikin 'intelligent Touch controller' (iTouch, DCS601C51). For the iTouch with software version 4.30.01R you need also the 'Daikin Intelligent Touch Controller Web Software License' (DCS004A51).

If you use a iTouch with version 4.41.00 or higher you need the 'Daikin Open Protocol License' (DCS007A51)

Up to 128 DAIKIN indoor units can be controlled with a Daikin iTouch. So in PROSOFT Suite an extra 128 sensor zones are available accordingly.

All Daikin systems that can be controlled from the iTouch can be integrated with the TELETASK system e.g. Daikin VRII, Daikin VRII, Daikin SKY AIR, Daikin HRV,...

Remark: some Daikin systems need optional plug in boards to connect them with the iTouch, connect your Daikin supplier for detailed information.

Remark: Daikin touch panels need to be installed to ensure normal operation of the HVAC installation.

## Configuring a Daikin Interface in PROSOFT Suite

To add a DAIKIN interface to your TELETASK system, follow these steps:

- In PROSOFT Suite, go to the menu "Edit", "Inputs"
- Choose "New", "Sensor or Heat/Cool Interface"
- Select "DAIKIN interface" from the list of interfaces
- Enter the correct IP address and IP port number of the Daikin iTouch unit
- Add all the indoor units as used in the DAIKIN iTouch unit and give each zone the correct DAIKIN zone number and name (we advise to use the same names in iTouch and PROSOFT Suite).
- Set the HVAC resolution: see Chapter 'Extra parameters for external HVAC systems.
- Mode & Speed: see Chapter 'Extra parameters for external HVAC systems.
- Enter the presets for "Day", "Night" and "Standby"
- Save your .nbt file
- Transmit the nbt file to your central unit

alc									
lame:	DAIKIN interface								
Central Unit	A: NANOS Central Unit	~							
P Address:	192.168.5.120				P	ort Nr:	80		
aikin zones		Sensor definition							
1-00 Kitchen 1-01 Office		Sensor Type:	Daikin sen	sor		~			
1-02 Bedroom		Name:	Kitchen						
		Daikin indoor unit pro	operties M	ode & Speed					
		Daikin zone Nr:							1:1-0
		HVAC resolution:						0,5*0	
		Presets							
		Day Temperature				20.0 °C	÷	At cooling: 23°	
		Standby Preset		2.5 °C	-	17,5°C	-	At cooling: 25,5	"C
Add	Delete	Night Temperature				16.0 °C	÷	30.0 °C	-

# Mitsubishi Electric Integration

Remark: There are two different Mitsubishi Air-conditioning brands on the market: 'Mitsubishi Electric' and 'Mitsubishi heavy Industries'. Only the 'Mitsubishi Electric' Air-conditioning can be integrated with the TELETASK system.

The integration with the Mitsubishi Electric air-conditioning system is done with the MITSUBISHI Electric Ethernet gateway AG150 or GB50.

With both these devices 50 zones can be controlled, so an extra 50 zones are available in PROSOFT Suite.

# Configuring a Mitsubishi Electric Interface in PROSOFT Suite

- To add a Mitsubishi Electric interface to your TELETASK system, follow these steps:
- In PROSOFT Suite, go to the menu "Edit", "Inputs"
- Choose "New", "Sensor or Heat/Cool Interface"
- Select "Mitsubishi Electric interface" from the list of interfaces
- Enter the correct IP address and IP port number of the Mitsubishi Electric Ethernet Gateway.
- Add all the indoor units as used in the Mitsubishi Electric Ethernet Gateway and give each zone the correct Mitsubishi Electric group number and name.
- Set the HVAC resolution: see Chapter 'Extra parameters for external HVAC systems.
- Mode & Speed: see Chapter 'Extra parameters for external HVAC systems.
- Enter the presets for "Day", "Night" and "Standby"
- Save your .nbt file
- Transmit the nbt file to your central unit

ne Interface Fun	nction								
Basic Advanced	d								
Name:	Mtsubishi Electric interface								
Central Unit:	A: NANOS Central Unit	<i></i>							
IP Address:	192.168.5.120				P	ort Nr:	80		
Mitsubishi electric	zones	Sensor definition							
Kitchen		Sensor Type:	Mitsubishi Electric	c sensor		$\sim$			
3 Bedroom		Name:	Office						
		Mitsubishi electric inde	oor unit properties	Mode	& Speed				
		Mitsubishi Electric (	group Nr:						2
		HVAC resolution:							0,5°C ~
		Presets							
		Day Temperature				20.0 °C	÷	At cooline	: 23°C
		Standby Preset	2	5 °C	¢ .	17.5°C	\$	At cooling	: 25.5°C
Add	Delete	Night Temperature			inidi	17.0 °C	÷	30.0 °C	÷
						-	ОК		Cancel



© 2018 TELETASK byba

# TDS20065 Universal HVAC

The TDS20065 is suited for controlling specific VRV/VRF units. Depending on the brand and the specific unit(s), the interface can be configured to integrate up to 64 indoor units (depending on the integrated HVAC type).

The TDS20065 is supplied with a TDS15200 Airco Software license.

See the list of the supported HVAC models in the datasheet. If your required models are not listed, please contact your TELETASK supplier.

Remark: An additional adapter TDS20066 is required for Fujitsu (General).

### Table of contents

#### 1. TDS20065 Configuration

- 1.1. On the TDS20065 touch screen
- 1.2. Additional steps for Daikin Non-VRV or Mitsubishi Electric Non-VRF
- 1.3. On the Quick Installation Tool
- 1.4. Install the TDS20065
- 1.5. Map the HVAC indoor unit addresses with the TDS20065
- 2. PROSOFT Configuration
  - 2.1. License activation
  - 2.2. TDS20065 configuration

# 1. TDS20065 Configuration

### 1.1. On the TDS20065 touch screen

- Remove power supply and the communication line of the HVAC system
- Set the dip switches on TDS20065 as described in the Quick installation guide (Login as professional) (brand specific) supplied with the TDS20065.
- Connect the power supply
- Configure the TDS20065 on it's touch screen:
- 1. Go to settings



2. Set 'Virtual COM port' to ON

# 1.2. Additional steps for Daikin **Non-VRV** or Mitsubishi Electric **Non-VRF**

For Daikin or Mitsubishi Electric Non—VRV/VRF equipment, DC voltage supplied by the TDS20065 might be required for proper operation. Before enabling DC output from TDS20065 make sure there is no DC voltage on HVAC communication line. If no DC voltage is detected: Daikin 14-16V DC, Mitsubishi 28-30V DC, do following:

- Disconnect TDS20065 from power and HVAC line.
- Change the dip switches S1 and S2 as shown below.

#### Daikin



PEQERES

**Mitsubishi Electric** 

- Connect the TDS20065 with USB to your computer
- Start the application TDS20065-QuickInstall (professional.teletask.be > Login as professional > Pro Downloads
   > 1. TELETASK Software > Others > TDS20065-QuickInstall-180220\_build\_x.exe)
- In the menu Connection select the correct Serial Port, the one with the icon 'CM'. In this example this is COM25:



• Press Connect and select the tab 'Console':

Quick Installation Tool v1.2.2 Connection			8 <u>-</u>		×
CoolMasterNet	CONNECTED	Disconnect	Rel	fresh	
Network Settings	HVAC Lines	Console			
>					
Autocomplete		Clear	Tana		da
		Clear	Termin	iai Mo	ue

• Type there the command: line DCOUT L1 +

Quick Installation Tool v1.2.2 Connection			- 🗆 ×
CoolMasterNe	t CONNECTED	Disconnect	Refresh
Network Settings	HVAC Lines	Console	
>line DCOUT L1 + OK, Boot Required) >			
Autocomplete		Clear	Terminal Mode
		Clear	Terminal Mode

- Turn OFF the power from the TDS20065
- Turn ON the power for TDS20065 and connect it to HVAC line.

### 1.3. On the Quick Installation Tool

- Connect the TDS20065 via the supplied USB cable to your PC
- Remove the power supply (the TDS20065 is now powered via the USB cable)
- Start the application TDS20065-QuickInstall (professional.teletask.be > Login as professional > Pro Downloads
  - > 1. TELETASK Software > Others > TDS20065-QuickInstall-180220\_build\_x.exe)

oliviasterivet	CONNECTED					R	tefr	resh
letwork Settings	HVAC Lines	Console						
Configure IPv4	Static (Manual)	MAC DNS Servers	28	3:3B:9	96:0	0:1	8:5	с
Subnet Mask	255 . 255 . 255 . 0	DNS1	8	. 8		8		8
Router/Gateway	192 . 168 . 0 . 1	DNS2	0	. 0		0		0

- Set 'Configure IPv4' to Static (Manual)
- Add the IP adress of the TDS20065 to the 'IPv4 Adress'
- Set 'Subnet Mask' to 255.255.255.0
- Add the IP address of the Router/Gateway
- Click 'Apply'
- Go to tab 'HVAC Lines'

oolMaste	erNet co	NNECTED		Refresh
Network Se	ttings	HVAC Lines	Console	
Line 1			Required DIP Swi	tches State
Line 2				
Line 3				3 4
Line 4				
Line 5				3 4
Line 6				
Line 7	Samsun	g (SM)		

• Select the HVAC brand on the correct line (L1, L7 or L8). Make sure that only one is selected. See table below for the brand specific line:

Brand	HVAC Line #	Interface	Terminals	Polarity	Max. Indoor units	Max. Outdoor units
Daikin	L1	DIII-NET	F1 F2	none	64	10
Sanyo	L1	S-NET	U1 U2	none	64	16
Panasonic	L1		U1 U2	none	64	16
Toshiba	L1	TCC LINK	U1 U2	none	64	16
Mitsubishi Electric	L1	M-NET	M1 M2	none	50	10
Hitachi (JCI)	L1	H Link, H Link 2	12	none	64	10
York	L1		PQ	none	64	
Haier	L1		PQ	none	64	
LG	L7		Inter A Inter B	+ -	64	-
Gree VRF	L7		AB	+ -	16	4
Mitsubishi Heavy Industries	L7	SuperLink / New SuperLink	AB	+ -	64	10
Samsung	L7		F1 F2 / R1 R2	+ -	64	10
Midea	L7		XYE	+ - GND	64	16
Kentatsu	L7		XYE	+ - GND	64	16
Trane	L7		XYE	+ - GND	64	16
Chigo	L7		XYE	+ - GND	64	16
Fujitsu	L8 (USB)*	LON (ANSI/CEA-709.1-B)	X1 X2	none	64	10
Gree GMV5	L8 (USB)**		G1 G2		64	
Rheem	L8 (USB)*	LON (ANSI/CEA-709.1-B)	X1 X2		64	

\*TDS20066 required \*\* Additional parts required. Contact support for more information.

- Check and set the dip switches (also to be found in the supplied quick installation guide )
- Click 'Apply'
- Remove USB cable.

### 1.4. Install the TDS20065

- Connect the power supply
- Connect the HVAC communication line



# 1.5. Map the HVAC indoor unit addresses with the TDS20065

- The HVAC indoor units must have been assigned with an address. Normally this has to be done by the HVAC installer. The steps below are for Daikin as an example.
- Press and hold Cancel button for a few seconds



Scroll down to Group No. setting function and press Menu/Enter button
 Field setting menu



- Program Group Address and then press Menu/Enter to save address
- The message 'Set' will appear.

Remember if Indoor unit can not see a CoolMasterNet you won't have the Group Address menu option. So make sure the CoolMasterNet is wired to F1 F2 HVAC line and powered.

- Go to the main menu of the TDS20065.
- All HVAC indoor units should be displayed with their addresses.



• If this is not the case, follow all steps from the beginning.

After all is set and the communication of the TDS20065 with the HVAC system is OK, you can start with the configuration it in PROSOFT.

# 2. PROSOFT Configuration

### 2.1. License activation

A TDS15200 Airco software license is supplied whit the TDS20065. Follow these steps to activate the license:

- Go to www.teletask.be
- Choose Professional from the top menu
- In the License activation section, click on License activation (TELETASK Cloud)
- Sign in to your TELETASK Cloud account if you have one already. If not, click on Create an account and follow the registration procedure.
- After logging in, you should be forwarded to the Activate License page. If not, click here
- Complete the form and click Download activation file
- Wait a few seconds for your activation file to be downloaded (it will also be emailed to you)
- Start PROSOFT and open the correct .NBT project file.
- Import the activation file: choose Extra > Licenses
- Save the .NBT file and transmit it to the central unit

### 2.2. TDS20065 configuration

To add the TDS20065 to your project file, follow these steps:

• Go to the list of 'I'-interface press the button New and select a TDS15200:

elect interface	- O X
Touch panels & screens TDS12001: LATUS TDS12015: LATUS-LCD TDS12019: AURUS-1 TDS12020: AURUS-2 TDS12020: AURUS-2 TDS12022: AURUS-0LED TDS12022: AURUS-0LED TDS12024: AURUS-4 S TDS12025: AURUS-2 SENSE TDS12026: AURUS-2 SENSE TDS12064: AURUS-1FT Digital Input interfaces TDS12116: Digital input interface 16 TDS12124: Cookie TDS12125: Cookie with feedback Sensor or Heat/Cool interfaces TDS12309: Analog input interface TDS12309: Analog input interface TDS12310: Universal analog input interface TDS12310: Universal analog input interface TDS14061: HVAC	Interface types Touch panels_screens Digital Input interfaces Sensor or Heat/Cool interfaces AV - interfaces Access_security interfaces Discontinued interfaces
TDS15200: IP License for Airco over IP AV - interfaces TDS14042: Universal RS232 audio Interface TDS14065: IR Cookie for AV control TDS15240: A/V IP Device Access & security interfaces	

#### • Select the TDS20065:

Select interface device		- 0	×
TDS20065: LAN Universal HVAC Mar DCS004A51: DAIKIN iTouch Manage DCM601A51: DAIKIN iTouch Controll EW-50: MITSUBISHI Bectric EW-50 AE-200: MITSUBISHI Bectric GA150 GA150: MITSUBISHI Bectric GA150 GB50: MITSUBISHI Bectric GB50	eter r with DCM007A51 http in er with DCS007A51 http in	iterface option	
	C/K	Cancel	

- In the 'Define Interface Function', fill in the IP address you configured on the TDS20065.
- By pressing the Add button several times you can add the correct number of indoor units as connected to the installation. If you have indoor units that work together as one zone you only have to add one.

#### Important:

Make sure that the amount of zones is the same as on the TDS20065 display and that the 'Universal HVAC zone Nr' are correct.

You can change it by just typing over it.

All zones are automaticly named 'Sensor X', jou just can rename it like you wish.

In the first Tab you also can also change the resolution from 1,0° to 0,5° only do this if the HVAC system is able to, most systems can only be controlled with steps of 1 degree. We recommend to leave it on 1 degree.

In the Tab 'Mode & Speed' you can setup some other settings that must match your HVAC system:

- Modes: check off the modes the HVAC does not support.
- Fan speeds setting: configure the step count as like available on the indoorunit, if then indoorunit support 'auto speed' you can also check that option.

Presets are to be configured like a standard TELETASK sensor.

TOU SCIEELLIOOKS LIKE LINS.	You scr	een	looks	like	this:
-----------------------------	---------	-----	-------	------	-------

asic		
Vame:	IP License for Airco over IP	Interface device: LAN Universal HVAC Master
Central Unit:	A: NANOS Central Unit	×
IP Address:	192.168.0.226	Port Nr: 10102
Iniversal HVAC a	zones	Sensor definition
1.100 Living 1.101 Kitchen		Sensor Type: Universal HVAC sensor 🗸 🗸
1.102 Bedroom 1.103 Bathroom		Name: Living
		Universal HVAC indoor unit properties Mode & Speed Universal HVAC zone Nr:  HVAC resolution:  1.0°C ~
		Presets Max temperature 30.0 °C
		Day Temperature 20.0 °C 🔄 At cooling: 20°C
		Standby Preset 3.0 °C 💠 = 17°C 🗘 At cooling: 23°C
Add	Delete	Night Temperature 16.0 °C 🔹 30.0 °C 🔹

Transmit the .nbt file to the Central Unit and you are good to go.

 Image: Image:

© 2018 TELETASK bvba

# Extra Parameters for External HVAC systems

# Indoor unit properties

#### **HVAC** resolution

Depending on the type of HVAC indoor unit, the temperature resolution can be set to 0,5°C or 1°C.

## Mode & Speed

#### **HVAC operation modes**

Select the supported Modes.

Remark: For some systems, if one zone is selected in one particular operating mode, all other zones will go to this operating mode. Contact the HVAC supplier for more information about the possible operating modes and their options.

#### External HVAC system supports 'auto mode

select this if the HVAC system supports auto mode

Remark: This option is only enabled if 'auto mode' is enabled in 'extra', 'settings', 'Sensors'

#### **HVAC fan speed settings**

Select the number of Fan speeds supported by the HVAC indoor unit.

#### Select checkbox 'External system supports 'auto fan speed

select if the HVAC system supports auto speed.

Remark: Contact the HVAC technician or HVAC supplier or HVAC manufacturer for the number of Fan speeds that are supported by the indoor unit.

# Preset Temperature settings:

See Sensor Heat/Cool interface – Specific parameters.

## Image: Image:

# Functions overview

# Table of contents:

The Relay functions The Dimmer functions Working with motors The Fans The Fan functions The Timed functions The Motion detector function The Sensor Functions The Fan (exhaust) function The Local Mood function The Timed Local Mood function The General Mood function The Transparent function The Messages and Alarms functions The TP Buzzer functions The 'If-Then-Else' function The Process functions The 'Flag' function **The Condition** Calculation function The Service functions The clock functions The audio functions Send IR, RS232 OR IP Code The Auto start function **The Display Functions Touch screen functions** The step function The RGB function The tunable white function

 Image: Image:

© 2018 TELETASK bvba

# The Relay functions

### Description

Relay functions modify the status of a relay between on and off. When somebody pushes a button, the connected relay is switched (the status is changed from OFF to ON or if already ON it is changed to OFF).

### The functioning of an interface:

Vame:	AURUS 8 buttons and OLE	D display	_		Audio zone:	None	~
Central Unit	A: NANOS Central Unit	e dopiej	0		Sensor Zone:	None	
Address:	AUTOBUS 1 v 22		_		RGB zone:	None	
						Main IF Beep on IR c	Enable
terface type:			Button functions				
DS12022 AUF	RUS-OLED		Short				
Main	Sensors Audio	Extra	Relay	~	01 Technical room » Heating/C	Cooling » Central heati 🗸	1 🗳
	1 2 3 4 Customize this screen		Long None	~	02 Technical room » Heating/C 07 Garden » Light » Path lights 05 Garden » Device » Sprinkle 06 Living » Device » TV	ooling > Heating zone 2	) (ff ~
	5 6 7 8	a la companya de la compa	Input definition				
			Description:		Couple	e Button Control e Remote Control e Vertical	

#### Relay

this parameter defines the relay which is being switched by this function.

### Option 'Switch On/Off' (standard)

#### Short

with a short push the relay is being switched. In particular this means that the light switches ON when it was OFF and vice versa.

#### Long

with a long push the relay is being switched. In particular this means that the light switches ON when it was OFF and vice versa.

### Option 'Switch On'

#### Short

with a short push the relay is being switched on. In particular this means that the light switches ON.

#### Long

with a long push the relay is being switched on.

### Option 'Switch Off'

#### Short

with a short push the relay is being switched off. In particular this means that the light switches off.

#### Long

with a long push the relay is being switched off.

### Behaviour when the function is used in another function

ine LOCAL M	OOD Function						
Name Function: Room:		lcon:		Name:	Dimmable		ОК
None	~ 🗋 🖻	Mood	~	LMD 1	Toggle		Cancel
Select Output:							
Relay	V 01 Tec	hnical room » H	eating/Cool	ng » Central heati 🗸	1 🖻	ON/Off	~
None	~			~	1 🛱	OFF/Off	
None	×			~	167	~	×
None	~			×	16	~	
None	~			~	1 🛱		×
None	~			×.	167	~	×
None	~			×	16	×	~
None	~			~	1 17	. v	~
None	~			~	) <b>17</b>	~	~
None	~				) (57	~	

### 'Relay' type

When the relay is called from another function, the functioning depends on the set target value. Following possibilities can occur:

#### On

the relay switches ON when it was OFF and remains switched ON when it was switched ON.

#### Off

the relay switches OFF when it was switched ON and remains switched OFF when it was switched OFF.

#### On/Off

the relay switches ON or remains switched ON when activating the function and switches OFF when the function is switched OFF.

#### Off/Off

The relay switches OFF and remains switched OFF when the function is switched ON. If the function is switched OFF, then the relay remains switched OFF.

Not every function can be switched off. Consult for this matter the description of the respective function.

### General Remarks

If the function is used from an interface or from another function, if the direction relay of a motor function is activated, then the respective motor function is being executed. Consult the description of the motor function for more information.

If several relays are being switched simultaneously, then the central unit will switch the different relays consecutively with an adjustable time delay between the two actions. This time delay is adjustable in the 'Extra' 'Options' 'Specials' 'Relays delay' menu and is set by default to 50 msec.

 Image: Image:

© 2018 TELETASK byba

# The Dimmer functions

### Description

The dimming functions modify the status of the dimmer output between 0% (= 0V = off) and 100% (= 10V = on) or an intermediate value

### The functioning of an interface:

Vame:	AURUS 8 buttons and OLEE	D display	Audio zone: None 🗸 🗸
Central Unit:	A: NANOS Central Unit		Sensor Zone: None V
Address:	AUTOBUS 1 v 22		RGB zone: None 🗸
			Main IR Enable 🖂 Beep on IR command 🖓
terface type:			Button functions
DS12022 AUF	RUS-OLED		Short
Main	Sensors Audio	Extra	Dimmer V 05 Bedroom » Light » Main light V 1 😭
			SET Last level / 100% 🗸 🗸
			Fade In: 1 sec V Out: 3 sec V
	_		Long
	1 2 3 4		Dimmer V 05 Bedroom » Light » Main light V 1
			Dim Up 🗸 🗸
	Customize this screen		
-	5 6 7 8	1111	Input definition
_			Description:
			Enable Button Control     Enable Remote Control
			Couple Vertical

#### Dimmer

this parameter defines the dimmer which is being controlled by the function.

### Type 'Switch between LAST level/OFF'

#### Short

after a short push on the button, the dimmer will switch between 0% and the last active status of the dimmer. When the light is burning at 40%, then with a short push the light will go out (dimming to 0%). Again short pushing switches the light to 40%.

#### Long

functioning is identical to 'Short'.

Under 'Long' this function is seldom used, only if due to lack of buttons from one and the same button 2 dimmers can be controlled

### Type 'Switch between: put level/OFF:

- Short: after a short push on the button, the dimmer will switch between 0% and a predefined state of the dimmer.
- Long: working identical to 'Short'.

### Type 'Define Level:

- Short: The dimmer will be switched to the predefined level.
- Long: working identical to 'Short'.

### Type 'Define last level:

- Short: the dimmer will be switched to the last level when the dimmer is out.
- Long: working identical to 'Short'.

### Type 'Define last level/100%.'

- Short: the dimmer will be set on the last level, when the dimmer is out. Otherwise the dimmer will be set to 100%.
- Long: Working identical to 'Short'.

This is usable when controlling a dimmer on the TDS12022 AURUS-OLED or TDS12032 AURUS-OLED PLUS. See chapter AURUS-OLED (PLUS) for more information.

### 'Continuously dimming' type

#### Short

This function type cannot be selected under 'Short'.

#### Long

when long pushing on the button, the dimmer will make a continuous linear movement between 0% and 100%. With this function the light intensity can be adjusted completely to your needs.

When you are selecting under 'Short' a 'Switch between LAST level/OFF' type for a particular dimmer, PROSOFT automatically selects under 'Long' the 'Continuously dimming' type for that dimmer. If afterwards the selected dimmer is being modified under 'Short', then the dimmer will follow under 'Long'.

If you want to operate another function under 'Long' then this automatic suggestion can always be modified. Thus the automatic following is cut off.

### 'Dimming Up' type:

#### Short

This function type cannot be selected under 'Short'.

#### Long

when pushing long on a button, the dimmer will increase from the active status till 100%.

### 'Dimming Down' type:

#### Short

this function type cannot be selected under 'Short.

#### Long

when pushing long on a button, the dimmer will decrease from the active status till 0%.

For optimal ease of use it is recommended to control only one dimmer for each button.

When the dimmer output has been set on a small value (smaller than 10%), then when being reactivated with a short push, your TELETASK domotics system, will set the status of the dimmer automatically at 10%. From this value on most light points are softly lit, so that the 'on' status is visible.

### Behaviour when the function is used in another function

Room:			Icon:		Name:		Dimmable	OK
None	~	1 🛱	Mood	~	LMD 34		🗹 Toggle	Cancel
elect Output:								
Dimmer	~	04 Kitche	en » Light » Coo	king light	~ 1	r:P	Fade In 1 sec $\vee$ Out 3 sec	✓ 100% / Off
None	~				× D	n T		99% / Off 98% / Off
None	~				× 1	15T		97% / Off 96% / Off 95% / Off
None	~				× D	rift T		94% / Off 93% / Off 92% / Off
None	~				~ D	197		91% / Off 90% / Off 89% / Off
None	~				¥ 🗅	ist.		88% / Off 87% / Off 85% / Off
None	~				× D	n P		85% / Off 84% / Off
None	~				~ D.	121		82% / Off 81% / Off
None	~				~ D	R.		80% / Off 79% / Off 78% / Off
None	~				V 1	PS-		77% / Off 76% / Off

• Target Value: this parameter defines the desired dim status. The Parameter can be set from 0% till 100%. The target value is standard set on 100%. Following settings are possible:

#### хх %

when a function is activated the dimmer will go to the set target value (0-100%).

#### xx %/Off

when a function is activated the dimmer will go to the set target value (0-100%). When the function is switched off the dimmer goes out (0%).

Not every function can be switched off. Consult for this matter the description of the respective function.

### Parameters

#### Fade in

this parameter defines the needed time to bring the dimmer output from 0% to 100%. The 'Fade in' can be set on 16 fixed predefined times: 0,5 sec; 1 sec; 2 sec; 3 sec; 4 sec; 7 sec; 10 sec; 15 sec; 30 sec; 1 min; 2 min; 5 min; 15 min; 30 min; 1 hour. Standard 'Fade in' is set on 1 sec.

#### Fade out

this parameter defines the needed time to bring the dimmer output form 100% to 0%. The 'Fade out' can be set on 16 fixed predefined times (identical to 'Fade in'. Standard 'Fade out' is set on 3 sec.

At an increase towards the desired status the dim speed is calculated in accordance with the set 'Fade in: The dim speed amounts to 20% of the 'Fade in' when the difference between the desired and the active status of the dimmer is 20%.

At a decrease towards the desired status the dim speed is calculated in accordance with the set 'Fade out: The dim speed amounts to 20% of the 'Fade out' when the difference between the desired and the active status of the dimmer is 20%.

 Image: Image:

© 2018 TELETASK byba

# Working with motors

Motors can be controlled in two different (electrical) ways:

- 1. You can use a standard motor interface TDS13525 or TDS13526 (with internal preconfigured "motor function"). See all details below in the chapter 'Motor interfaces'
- Make your own 'motor function' which will control standard output relay contacts. In this case you only use output contacts from a MICROS+, PICOS or from TDS13510 13512 interfaces. Depending on the application, there may be 1, 2 or 3 relay contacts needed. See all details below in the chapter 'motor function'.

# Motor interfaces

Only applicable for TDS13525/TDS13526 - not for use with separated relay contact outputs; in this case see next chapter.

## Description

The motors are used to control AC and DC motors as used in indoor/outdoor electrical curtains, shutters, drapes, sun blinds, screens, etc...

The function can control the motor rotating left, right and in stop position. This paragraph considers the Motors which are controlled by a Motor Interface (TDS13524, TDS 13525, TDS13526). For Motors controlled by 1 to 3 independent relays, please consult 'the motor function'.

### The different available parameters

### Within the function:

Define Output						0
Interface Data Name:	Motor Interface (1 - 4)				ОК	
Central Unit:	A: MICROS+ Central Unit				Canc	el
Address: AUTOBUS 1		v 1	]			
Type Output: TDS13526: Motor Inter	face (AC)	Name Outputs Room		lcon	Name	
		1 None ~		Not visible	~ _	
		2 None ~		Not visible	~	
		3 None ~		Not visible	~	
	STREET CENTRE COMMON	4 None ~	01	Not visible	~	
Artaka • 1		Settings Advanced Sun functi	on Wind	protection Limit switche	s to bottom. Outdoor usa	10.35
-	TDS13526 Motor transform AC (do mass. 19994)	0% = UP	~	sun blinds, indoor usage i blinds.	as sun, privacy or blacko	ц 10 аз
1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1	<u>د, يې</u> <u>د يې</u> <u>د يې</u> د	100% = DOWN	~			
		Run time 0% -> 100%:			01m 00s	4
		Bun time 100% -> 0%:			01m 00m	

#### Name Outputs:

The name giving of a 'Motor' function is separated in 3 parts:

#### Room

The room where the motor is situated.

#### lcon

Not visible or Motor icon.

#### Name

Introduce here a short and clear description of the Motor function (preferable max. 7 characters).

#### Settings

In the settings tab you can select the type of motor, e.g. roller blinds, curtains,.. controlled by the motor output. By selecting the type of motor some settings will be automatically assigned. E.g. for a roller blind 0% will be set to 'UP' for a curtain this will be 'open'. Other settings on this tab page are:

#### 0%

a text to display for the 'OPEN/UP' position of the motor and an arrow to display for running towards that position

#### 100%

a text to display for the 'CLOSED/DOWN' position of the motor and an arrow to display for running towards that position.

#### Runtime 0% -> 100%

The time the motor needs to run from its 0% position to its 100% position.

#### Runtime 100% -> 0%

The time the motor needs to run from its 100% position to its 0% position.

Set the runtimes as precise as possible. This will improve the feedback/positioning of the motor. When running to the 0% or the 100% position, the system will add an extra time to make sure that the motor reaches its end position.

For TDS13526 the runtimes can be auto-calibrated using 'Diagnostics' for a more precise feedback/positioning.

Max. runtime is 250s.

#### Total slat time

(only available for 'slatted' motor types e.g. 'Venetian blinds'). The total time for the slats to rotate from its 'up' position to its 'down' position.

#### Advanced

The following settings are available on this tab page

#### **Invert motor direction**

Check this option to revert the direction of the motor.

#### Automatically adjust run times

only available on interfaces that support 'run detection' (TDS13526). Check this option to automatically adjust the runtimes over time (e.g. when motors start running slower due to wear).

#### **Position indication**

select whether the positon must be displayed for 'all positions', 'only 0 and 100%' or that the position must not be displayed.

#### Pre run 0%

only available if the 'position indication' is set to 'all positions'. Select the time for the motor to run from 0% to 1% (or from 1% to 0%). E.g. if blinds are mounted higher than the top of the window.

#### Post run 100%

only available if the 'position indication' is set to 'all positions'. Select the time for the motor to run from 99% to 100% (or from 100% to 99%). E.g. for a roller shutter it may take some time to stack the bars.

#### Limit standard UP/DOWN between

only available if the 'position indication' is set to 'all positions'. Here you can define a limit for the UP (or OPEN) and the DOWN (or CLOSED) position. The feedback will change to 'UP' or 'Down' when this position is reached. E.g. for American stores.

Remark: These UP/DOWN limits can be overruled with a 'Motor go to position' function. This can be useful for cleaning purposes.

#### Auto Function

#### I Note

The behaviour of the Auto Function (previously called 'Sun Function' has been changed since PROSOFT version 3.6.21.47.

On the auto function tab there are settings to automate the motor in relation to the condition. Use this function to automatically steer the motor down when the condition is met. When the condition is not met the motor will automatically open.

#### Condition to activate the function

a function that must be 'TRUE' to activate the auto function.

#### Auto function motor position

the position the motor will go to when the condition is true.

#### **Action delay**

default 5 minutes. A delay between the moment the 'Condition' became true (or false) and the moment when the function will be activated (or deactivated). Use this delay to avoid that the auto function gets activated (or deactivated) if the condition is only true (or false) for a brief period.

#### Minimum hold time

default 20 minutes. A minimum delay between the activation and deactivation (or vice versa) of the sun function. Use this function to avoid that the sun function will be activated-deactivated repeatedly because the condition changes frequently.

The user can still control the motor manually when the auto function is activated. The auto function will be deactivated when the user takes an action on the motor. The user must explicitly re-enable the auto function or it needs to be configured with clocks to be automatically re-enabled. Note that when the auto function is re-enabled again that the condition will immediately be evaluated and the auto function will set the position accordingly

If the 'Auto function motor position' is set to less than 100% (e.g. 75%) the auto function will not start the motor if the motor is in a higher position (e.g. 85%).

It is always possible to enable or disable the auto function. To do this the "Auto function" action needs to be configured on a button or local mood.

#### Wind Protection

On the wind protection tab there are settings to protect the motor (of outdoor screens/blinds) against damage from wind. This can also be used for rain protection.

The wind protection function has always priority over any other action or function.

#### Condition to activate the wind protection

a function that must be 'TRUE' to activate the wind protection.

#### Wind protection motor position

the position the motor will go to when the condition is true.

#### Minimum hold time

default 30 min. The time the condition must be false to deactivate the 'Wind protection'.

The wind protection is activated immediately when the condition becomes true, to avoid damage to the blinds.

The user cannot control the motor when the wind protection is activated and the wind condition is TRUE (too much wind).

IMPORTANT: Never set a motor that is in front of a door to the 'DOWN' or 'CLOSED' position for wind protection, as this may be a safety risk to the people in the house (e.g. in case of a fire).

#### Limit switches

On this tab page, inputs can be selected as feedback from limit switches for this motor (typically for contacts used in the frame of a gate, garage door system, ...)

#### Limit switch 0%

the digital input signal for 0%

#### Limit switch 100%';

the digital input signal for 100%

### Working from a touch panel button (or digital input)

REMARK: for some options, PROSOFT will replace the '0%' and '100%' with the text entered in de 'settings tab' of the motor interface. E.g. the option 'Go towards 0%' will be called 'Go towards UP' or 'Go towards OPEN' or ....

### Option 'START/STOP'

#### Short press

If the motor is running the motor will stop. If the motor is in a stationary position, the motor will start to run in the opposite direction of its last run (if the last run of the motor was towards the '100%' position, the motor will start to run to the '0%' position).

#### Long press'

working identical to 'Short press'.

### Option 'Go towards 0%'

#### Short press'

If the motor is running towards '0%' the motor will stop. If the motor is in a stationary position, or running towards 100%, the motor will start to run towards the '0%' position.

#### Long press'

working identical to 'Short press '.

### Option 'Go towards 100%'

Similar to 'Go towards 0% but inversed direction.

### Option 'Go to position'.

• Short press'' Depending on the selected value this function will toggle the motor between 'a set position and 0%' or between 'a set position and 100%'. If the motor is at the '0% position' (or the '100% position'), the motor will go to the given position. Otherwise the motor will go to the '0% position' (or the '100% position') (regardless of whether the motor is running or not).

#### Long press'

working identical to 'Short press'.

### Option 'START/STOP continuous'.

• Short press" this type of function is not available under 'Short'.

#### Long press'

the motor will be activated reverse to the last executed direction. The motor will keep running as long as the button is pressed. When you release the button, the motor will be switched off.

If the motor output is a 'slatted type' (e.g. venetian blinds), the motor will be activated/deactivated repeatedly for short periods of time to allow the user to precisely position the slats.

### Option 'Go towards 0% continuous'

• Operation is similar to 'START/STOP continuous' but the motor will always start towards 0%

### Option 'Go towards 100% continuous'.

• Similar to 'Go towards 0% continuous.

### Option 'Sun function'.

#### Short press

Switches the sun function ON or OFF (this will not activate the motor immediately. Depending on the status of the condition the motor may be activated after the 'action delay')

#### Long press'

working identical to 'Short press'.

### Function behaviour when used in another function

Room:	Room:		lcon:		Name:				Dimmable	Dimmable		
None	~		Mood	~	LMD 1				🗹 Toggle		Cance	4
elect Output:												
Motor	~	02 Bedro	oom » Motor » Shu	itters		~	1	P	Start/Stop	×	Start/Stop	~
None	~					~		19		Ŷ		~
None	~					$\times$	1	ran Far		~		×
None	~					×	3	19				
None	~					Ŷ	1	19 <sup>1</sup>		×		2
None	~					~	1	121				
None	~					×	1	19				×
None	Ý					~	0	127				
None	~					v		19	1	×		~
None							1	PS-1				

### 'Motor START/STOP' type

The action of the motor depends on the target parameter:

#### Start/Stop

if the function is activated the motor will start in the opposite direction as its last run direction. If the function is deactivated the motor will stop.

#### хх%

The motor is active for the given percentage of its runtime. The direction will be the opposite of its last run.

The 'xx%' target value is only selectable with a non 'Toggle' function.

When the 'Local mood' controls several motors, with start/stop the direction will be set by the first motor. All following motors will be activated in the same direction.

### 'Motor Go to position' type

The action of the motor depends on the target parameter, not all target parameters are available in all functions.

#### xx%/0%

The motor will go to the given position when the function is activated. When the function is deactivated the motor will go to the 0% position.

#### xx%/100%

The motor will go to the given position when the function is activated. When the function is deactivated the motor will go to the 100% position.

### 'Set slat position' type

#### Set slat position

only for slatted types. When the function is switched on, the slats will go to the given position. When the function is deactivated the slats will go to 0%

If you create a Local mood with a 'Motor Go to position' followed by a 'Set slat position' and if this motor is controlled by a TDS13526, it will first complete the first action, followed by the second. In other cases, you need to use a timed local mood and add a long enough delay to perform the second action.

### 'Sun function' type

#### Sun function

the operation is similar to the 'Sun function' operation from a button.

Not every function can be switched off. Consult for this matter the description of the respective function.

# The Motor function

Not for TDS13525 - TDS13526. In this case see chapter above.

### Description

A motor function is used to control an AC or DC motor of e.g. electrical sun blinds, curtains, shutters, ... with standard relay output contacts (PICOS, MICROS+, TDS13510, TDS13512, ...). This paragraph considers the motors which are controlled by 1 to 3 independent relays, but there are a lot of similarities with motors controlled by a motor interface.

### Parameters.
	R function:						
Function n Room:	ame:		lcon:	Name:			
Kitchen	~	1 🖻	Motor 🗸	Motor Functie	Functie		
Outputs:				di			
Output typ	e:		2 Relays (direction and por	wer)		~	
Direction:			04 Technical room » De	vice » Device te	ch. room	~	
Power:			04 Technical room » De	vice » Device te	ch, room	~	
0% = 100% =	UP	• •	sun blinds, indoor usage blinds.	as sun, privacy	or blackout		
Run time	0% -> 100%:				00m 05s		

#### Name', 'Room', 'Icon

the same as for Motor interfaces.

#### **Output type**

this defines how the TELETASK relays are wired to the actual motor, there are four types (for details on the different types see further in this chapter):

- '2 Relays (direction and power)'
- '2 Relays (up and down)'
- '3 Relays (up, down and stop)'
- '1 Relay (start, stop)'

#### Settings

similar as for 'Motors', but slatted types are not supported for motor functions

#### Advanced

similar as for 'Motors', but 'invert direction' and 'adjust runtimes' are not supported for motor functions.

**Sun function** similar as for motors

Similar as for motors

#### Wind protection

similar as for motors

Limit switches

similar as for motors

## Different output types

#### 2 Relays (direction and power)

this output type can be used to control an AC or DC motor without internal driver electronics. The direction relay switches

an external change over (or double change over) relay. The power relay connects or disconnects the motor from the power supply (see schematics of the motor unit).

#### 2 Relays (up and down)

this output type can be used to control motors with internal driver electronics. When the motor needs to run up (or down) the UP (or down) relay is switched ON. When the motor needs to stop the relay is switched off.

#### 3 Relays (up, down and stop)

this output type can be used to control motors with internal driver electronics. When the motor needs to run up (or down) the UP (or down) relay is pulsed (for 1.5s). When the motor needs to stop the 'Stop' relay is pulsed.

#### 1 Relay (start/stop)

(not recommended because of lack of feedback information) this output type can be used to control motors with internal driver electronics. When the motor needs to start or stop, the relay is pulsed. This method is typically used for motors that are also controlled by external remote controls (garage doors and gates). This method only allows the basic 'start/stop' operation and the system does not know in which direction the motor will start.

For a motor with internal driver electronics, the preferred 'output type' to use is the '2 Relays (up and down) because it is the most reliable and precise method. The '3 Relays (up, down and stop)' is also a reliable method but it may be less precise (and it requires an extra relay). If possible, avoid the '1 Relay (start/stop) method' (but for low cost garage doors and gates it is sometimes the only supported method).

### Function behaviour

The working is identical to the working of the Motor interface, with exception of the 'set slat position' as this is not supported for the motor function.

### Diagnostics

The motors can be seen in diagnostics under the motor section.

PROSOFT	Releys	0%	A (A1 04	s/t); O1 Keuken = Motor = M1	Calibrate
THEFT	Dimmers		(41.08	1/7) 17 Kenders a Meter a M7	Carpiere
In the second	Motors	195	-	OFF	Calibrate
CARDSOFT	Digital Inputs	95	(A1 08	1/3): 03-Hauken x x M3	Conception in the
	Analog Inputs		T		Calibrate
UNDUT!	Audio zones	0%	(A1 08	1/4): 04 Keuken s > 1/4	
AV-SOFT	Other Function			<b>01</b>	Calibrate
	Interfaces		A ENROR	RelayMatorPunc	
DALISOFT					_

It is possible to steer the motor up or down with the arrow buttons.

When an auto function has been defined on the motor then the state (ON/OFF) will be shown just next to the calibrate button. It is possible to change the state of the auto function by clicking on it. This will cause a toggle between ON and OFF. When an wind protection has been defined and it is active it will be shown next to the auto protection. No action on it is possible

#### Image: Image:

# The Fans

## Description

The Fans are used to control multi speed fans like ceiling sweep fans, etc...

The function can control the fan speeds with a maximum of 4 speed (+OFF). This paragraph considers the Fans which are controlled by a Fan Interface (TDS13522). For Fans controlled by independent relays, please consult 'the fan (Ceiling sweep) function'.

# The different available parameters

### Within the function:

Define Output								×
Interface Data								
Name:	Ceiling Fan Interface (1 -	2)						ОК
Central Unit:	A: NANOS Central Unit							Cancel
Address:	AUTOBUS 1	~ 4	1					
Type Output:		Name	e Outputs					
TDS13522: Ceiling fan in	terface	4	Room			Icon	1	Name
		1	None	~		Heating/Cooling	~	
		2	None	~	0	Heating/Cooling	~	
	TELETASK made in Beglum Art T051522 Cerly Invest in Inteles BC C C Inteles Cerly Invest in Inteles Cerly Inteles C	Optio	n					
		4 50	eed + OFF (off, la	w, med, high	n, max)	~		
	2					Pow	ier.	0

#### Name Outputs

See chapter 'Assigning TELETASK Outputs'.

#### Speeds

This determines the number of speeds available for this fan. Must be compatible with the capacitor(s) of the fans supplied by the vendor of the fan. There are 1 speed (+OFF) up to 4 speeds (+OFF) available.

# Working of an interface

### Type 'Toggle between LAST level/OFF'

#### Short

after a short push on the button, the fan will switch between OFF and the last active speed of the fan. When the fan is running at medium speed, then with a short push the fan will go OFF. Again, a short push switches the fan to medium speed.

#### Long

operation is identical to 'Short'.

### Type 'Toggle between: SET level/OFF:

- Short: after a short push on the button, the fan will switch between OFF and a predefined speed.
- Long: operation identical to 'Short'.

### Type 'SET Level:

- Short: The fan will be switched to the predefined level.
- Long: operation identical to 'Short'.

### Type 'Fan speed NEXT (circular):

- Short: The fan will go to the next speed (OFF > LOW > MED > HIGH > MAX > OFF > ...).
- Long: operation identical to 'Short'.

### Type ' Fan speed UP:

- Short: The fan will go to a higher speed. (OFF > LOW > MED > HIGH > MAX)
- Long: operation identical to 'Short'.

### Type ' Fan speed DOWN:

- Short: The fan will go to a lower speed. (MAX > HIGH > MED > LOW > OFF)
- Long: operation identical to 'Short'.

## Function behaviour when used in another function

#### Define LOCAL MOOD Function

Room:		lcon:	Name:		Dimmable	ОК
None ~	1	Mood	V LMD 1		Toggle	Cancel
elect Output:						
		a - Heating/Cool	ing » living	V D PR	SETLevel	Distance (CHE
Fan (ceiling sweep 🗸	U UI LIVIN	g is meaning cool	ing a ming	and the second s		all showing
Fan (ceiling sweep, ~ None ~		g / Heating Cool		~ D 🛱		Off Low/Off Medium /Off

• SET level: this parameter defines the desired fan speed. The Parameter can be set from OFF to Max. The target speed is set to High by default. Following settings are possible:

#### speed X

when a function is activated the fan will go to the set speed (Off-Max).

#### speed X/Off

when a function is activated the fan will go to the set speed (Off-Max). When the function is switched off the fan goes off.

Not every function can be switched off. Consult for this matter the description of the respective function.

 Image: Image:

# The Fan functions

# Description

Fans that are not compatible with the TDS13522 (2 wire fans), can be controlled using individual relays (MICROS+, TDS13510, ...). There are two fan types available:

#### 4-wire single phase AC motor

relays are switched in an OR configuration. For Low speed the relay for Low is on and the others are off. Etc. At all times, maximum one relay is switched on by the fan function.

#### universal fan control

relays are switched in an AND configuration. For Low speed, only the relay for Low will be on. For Med, the Low and Medium are on, etc.

Make sure that no other functions control the relays used for the fan.

The number of available speeds can be set from 1 to 3 (+OFF).

# Function behaviour

The operation is identical to the operation of the fan.

 Image: Image:

# The Timed functions

# Description

The timed function switches another function during a predefined time to the desired status. The timed function is optimized for use on push buttons, touch panels, touchscreens and for use in other functions (e.g. Local mood, general mood,...).

## Parameters

### Within the function

Define Timed Function					×
Name Function Name:	Room:	lcon:			
Garden lights ON for 4s	Garden 🗸	Light ~			
Select Output					
Relay V 07 Garden » Light » Path lights	~ 1 🛱		<ul> <li>ON/Off</li> </ul>	~	0h 02m 🕕s 🛬
				ОК	Cancel

#### Name

Enter a short and clear name for the 'Timed function' here.

#### Room

select here the room in which the Timed Function is to be activated

#### lcon

select here whether the Timed Function has to be represented on a TELETASK touchscreen and if yes, under which icon.

#### Select Output

this parameter defines the de function which has to be activated for a certain time. Depending on the function which is being integrated, more or less parameters will be defined. Consult for this matter the description of the specific functions. The functions which can be operated in accordance with a timer function are : 'Relay', 'Dimmer', 'Local Mood', 'Fan', 'Flags', 'If-Then-Else' and 'Process'

Use in a timed function only an output that can be switched off.

#### Status

this parameter defines the status to which the output has to be set for a certain time. The status can be set at 'On', 'Off', or any applicable intermediate value (e.g. for dimmers).

#### Duration

this parameter determines how long the output will have to remain activated. When the duration has elapsed the output

## Function behaviour when used on an interface

### Option 'SET ON' (default)

#### Short

With a short push on the button the selected function is activated for the whole duration, e.g. the lamp is switched on. When the duration has elapsed, the 'Timed' function will switch off the selected function.

#### Long

Operation is the same as for short.

Option 'SET OFF'

#### Short

With a short push on the button the selected function is switched OFF. It the timer is running it is stopped.

#### Long

Operation is the same as for short.

Option 'Toggle ON/OFF'

#### Short

If the selected output is in the state described in the 'Timed function', the output is switched OFF. If the selected output is not in the state described in the 'Timed function', the output is switched to this state and the timer is started. In both case this is regardless of whether the timer was running or not.

#### Long

Operation is the same as for short.

Activating the 'Timed' function when the previous duration has not yet elapsed, will activate the 'Timed' function again without taking into account the previous duration. Consequently the duration will be run through completely.

If the 'Timed' function is 'SET ON' when the selected output is in the state described in the 'Timed function', then the selected output will switch OFF when the timer elapses.

If the selected output is set to the state described in the 'Timed funcion' by another function when the timer is running, then the selected output will NOT switch OFF when the timer elapses. See schematic below:

#### Timed Function



### Function behaviour when used in another function

• The 'Timed' function can be selected from another function. When the other function is switched on the 'Timed' function will behave as described in the 'SET ON' option for the 'function behavior when used on an interface'.

The other function can be switched off only when all functions in the other function are 'true'. For the 'Timed' function this implies that the timer has to be active.

Not every function can be switched off. Consult for this matter the description of the respective function.

 Image: Image:

# The Motion detector function

### Description

The motion detector function switches another function during a predefined time to the desired status. The motion detector function is optimized for use on digital inputs to which a 'motion detector' is connected and for the 'motion detector in the AURUS-2 SENSE

### Parameters

### Within the function

Define Motion Function			×
Name Function Name:			
Light Kitchen 10min.			
Conditions			
05 AURUS-2 SENSE: Light sensor V 840Lx	~		
Extra condition			
Relay v 01 Kitchen » Light » Main Light	<ul> <li>Image: Second sec</li></ul>	V E Off	~
Select Output			
Relay V 01 Kitchen » Light » Main Light	✓ □ m <sup>2</sup>	V ON/Off	- Oh 10m 00s 💿
			OK Cancel
			Calicer

#### Name

Enter a short and clear name for the 'motion detector function' here.

#### Smart' Light level

Set the light level at which the motion detector should start working. The motion detector will only activate the output (light) if the current light level is below this value. When the output (light) is active, the 'Smart' light level will be adjusted, to compensate for the influence of the output on the light sensor.

#### **Extra Condition**

Optional! Define a condition here that must be true before the output of the motion detector function will be activated. The typical example is a light level but more complex conditions are possible.

#### Select Output

this parameter defines the de function which has to be activated for a certain time. Depending on the function which is being integrated, more or less parameters will be defined. Consult for this matter the description of the specific functions. The functions which can be operated in accordance with a timer function are: 'Relay', 'Dimmer', 'Local Mood', 'Fan', 'Flags', 'If-Then-Else' and 'Process' Use in a motion detector function only an output that can be switched off.

#### Status

this parameter defines the status to which the output has to be set for a certain time. The status can be set at 'On', 'Off', or any applicable intermediate value (e.g. for dimmers)

#### Duration

this parameter determines how long the output will have to remain activated. When the duration has elapsed the output will be switched OFF (if possible).

Remark: A 'motion detector' function cannot be switched off. This switches off automatically when the duration has elapsed.

Remark: If the selected output is switched by another function to the state as described in the motion detector function then the state of the selected output will not change when the timer of the motion detector has elapsed. In such case it doesn't matter if the selected output was first activated by the motion detector function or by the other function. e.g. when the light is switched by the motion detector function and that light is again switched on by a local mood, then the light stays on after the timer has elapsed.

If motion detector function controls multiple outputs (e.g. by using a LMD) than the remark above is applied to each of the outputs individually. E.g. When two lights are switched by the motion detector function and one of the lights was already ON, than that light will not be switched off by the motion detector if the timer elapses. The other light will be switched OFF.

If multiple motion detectors are configured to control the same 'motion detector function' than the timer of the motion detector function will only start when no motion is detected anymore on all of the motion detectors. See schematic below:



### Function behaviour when used on an interface

When a 'Motion Detector' function is selected then the names 'Short' and 'Long' are modified into 'When closing' and 'When opening'. This happens because the option 'edge triggered' with a 'Motion Detector' function is set automatically. Consult for this function the chapter on "Digital Input Interfaces'.

#### **On closing**

When the motion detector detects a movement, the selected function will be activated in accordance with the wanted status. As soon as no movement is detected any more the respective output remains active for the set duration to switch off afterwards.

A 'Motion Detector' function can only be selected in the 'on closing' mode of a digital input.

The 'On opening' mode can still be set independently, but is used very seldom used.

A motion detector has always to be connected to a 'Motion Detector' function. Connecting another function to a motion detector, will result in an unwanted or faulty functioning of the motion detector.

### Function behaviour when used in another function

The motion detector function cannot be used from another function.

 Image: Image:

# The Sensor Functions

# Description

The sensor functions activate (sensor) threshold values which your TELETASK domotics system will use to execute certain actions. When the measurements of the TELETASK temperature, humidity or light sensor exceed (below or beyond) these values, a suitable action is taken.

## Parameters

### The function itself

7 availue				
Name:	AURUS-OL	ED LG		Audio zone: Bedroom
Central Unit	A: NANOS	Central Unit		Sensor Zone: OLED Slaapkamer
Address:	AUTOBUS	1 v 1		RGB zone: None
				Main IR Enabl
				Beep on IR comman
terface type:				Button functions
DS12032: AURI	US-OLED PLUS			Short
Main	Sensors	Audio	Edra	Sensor zone v 01 Ground Floor v 1 E
				Show measured value
	1 2	3 4		Show measured value
	1 2 Customize I	3 4 this screen		Show measured value
	1 2 Customize 1 5 6	3 4 this screen 7 8		Show measured value

#### Sensor zone

this parameter defines the sensor or sensor zone, for which the different sensor functions have to be represented. In this field you can only select the sensors for which a control method was specified.

#### **Sensor functions**

select the sensor function. Depending on the type of sensor different options can be selected here.

#### **Temperature sensor**

when a temperature sensor (TDS12250, TDS12251, AURUS sensor, AIRZONE, Daikin, Mitsubishi electric, MODBUS) is selected, the following sensor functions can be available depending on the type and configuration of the sensor. See table

24/1/2019

below.

- **On/Off:** this function toggles the temperature measurement for the corresponding zone between on/off. When off, the zone is inactive which means that no heat or cool action will take place.
- **Preset: Day:** this function selects the 'Day' preset as active threshold value.
- Preset: Night: this function selects the 'Night' preset as active threshold value.
- Preset: Standby: this function selects the 'Standby' preset as active threshold value.
- Preset: Frost protection: this function selects the 'Frost protection' as active threshold value.
- **Preset: Up:** this function raises the valid threshold value with 1 step = 0.5°C.
- **Preset: Down:** this function lowers the valid threshold value with 1 step = 0.5°C.
- Preset: Toggle Day/Night: this function switches the threshold value between 'Day' (on) and 'Night' (off).
- Preset: Toggle Day/Standby: this function switches the threshold value between 'Day' (on) and 'Standby' (off).
- Preset: Toggle Standby/Night: this function switches the threshold value 'Standby' (on) and 'Night' (off).
- Set specific temperature: regardless of preset temperatures, you can specify a specific temperature. This is not recommended. Please use the preset temperature as much as possible. TELETASK advices to use Preset Day, Night and standby for normal operation and to only use this function in exceptional cases where the desired temperature is different from all preset temperatures.
- Window open: Set frost protection: this function activates the 'Frost protection' as active threshold value, when a window is opened. When the window is closed then this function will activate the latest active preset 'Day', 'Night' or 'Standby'.

This function is developed specifically to be used with a window contact.

• Mode: Heat/Cool (auto): This function activates the mode in which the integrated cool/heat system will cool or heat when needed. This is done automatically. It will set to cool when the room temperature becomes too high and heat when it gets too cold in the room. Take the Delta Heat / Cool setting into consideration specified in Extra Options Sensor tab in the PROSOFT main menu. This will prevent that the system will continuously switch between Heat and Cool.

For energy saving reasons the 'Mode: Auto' is disabled by default, you can enable this mode in the menu 'Extra>Options'. In de sensor tab you can check the 'Enable Auto modus' setting.

- Mode: Heat: This function activates the mode in which the integrated cool/heat system will only heat when needed.
- Mode: Cool: This function activates the mode in which the integrated cool/heat system will only cool when needed.
- Mode: Heat+: This function activates 'Heat+' mode as described by the Airzone heat/cool system.
- Mode: Ventilation: This function activates the concerned temperature zone in the ventilation function.
- Mode: Dry: This function activates the concerned temperature zone in the dry function if available.

#### Mode

Stop system: This function switches the complete Airzone system off. No action will be taken caused by a measurement of any sensor in a sensor zone.

- **Speed: Auto:** when this speed is selected, the speed of the Heat/Cool system is automatically adjusted depending on the difference between the measured temperature and the target temperature.;
- 'Speed: Slow: puts the speed of the Heat/Cool system at 'SLOW'.;
- 'Speed: Medium: puts the speed of the Heat/Cool system at 'MEDIUM'.;
- 'Speed: Fast: puts the speed of the Heat/Cool system at 'FAST';

• 'Direction X: puts the air valve of the airco system towards a certain direction or 'SWING'.;

### Availability of sensor functions:

Sensor type	TELETASK sensor	AIRZONE sensor	DAIKIN, MITSUBISHI ELECTRIC, MODBUS sensor
TDS reference number	TDS12250 TDS12251 TDS12020 TDS12021 TDS12022 TDS12024 TDS12026	TDS14060	TDS15200 TDS14061
Heat/Cool (auto)*	If relay Heat and Cool are defined	NO	If Heat and Cool are enabled in the sensor configuration menu
Mode: Heat	If relay Heat is defined	YES	If Heat is enabled in the sensor configuration menu
Mode: Cool	If relay Cool is defined	YES	If Cool is enabled in the sensor configuration menu
Mode: Heat+	NO	YES	NO
Mode: Stop System	NO	YES	NO
Mode: Ventilation	NO	YES	If Ventilation is enabled in the sensor configuration menu
Mode: Dry	NO	NO	If Dry is enabled in the sensor configuration menu
Speed: Auto	If "control method" for Heat and/or Cool is selected as "4 Steps (OR)" or "4 Steps (AND)"	NO	If Speed mode is selected as "2 Step" or "3 Step"
Speed: Slow	If "control method" for Heat and/or Cool is selected as "4 Steps (OR)" or "4 Steps (AND)"	NO	If Speed mode is selected as "2 Step" or "3 Step"
Speed: Medium	If "control method" for Heat and/or Cool is selected as "4 Steps (OR)" or "4 Steps (AND)"	NO	If Speed mode is selected as "3 Step"
Speed: Fast	If "control method" for Heat and/or Cool is selected as "4 Steps (OR)" or "4 Steps (AND)"	NO	If Speed mode is selected as "2 Step" or "3 Step"
Direction X	NO	NO	TDS15200 only

• Auto mode has to be enabled in PROSOFT

Extra > Options > Sensor tab > Enable Auto modus.

#### **Other sensor**

when a humidity, light, pulse or general analogue sensor is selected, the following sensor functions are available:

- **Preset: Off:** the sensor value is switched off. The connected function is not switched; manual operation of this function is possible.
- **Preset: Day:** this function selects the 'Day' preset as active threshold value.
- **Preset: Night:** this function selects the 'Night' preset as active threshold value.
- **Preset: Up:** this function raises the valid threshold value with 1 step = 1% (humidity), nonlinear Lux value (light), dependant on the sensor specific settings for pulse and general analogue sensors.
- **Preset: Down:** this function lower the valid threshold value with 1 step = see 'preset up'.
- **Preset: Toggle Day/Night:** this function switches the threshold value between the 'Day' value (on) and the 'Night' value (off).
- **Preset: Toggle Day/Off:** This function switches the threshold value between the 'Day' value (on) and no threshold value (off).

The sensor functions for the selected sensors are only available when all parameters with the analogue interface have been defined correctly.

### When called from another function

#### All functions (i.e. Local Mood)

The sensor functions are selectable in other functions as i.e. a local mood. The function of the sensor functions stays as described above.

The 'Condition' function

Not all the sensor functions described above are available in the 'condition' function, the available functions are:

- On/Off' (as above)
- Preset: Day', 'Preset: Standby', 'Preset: Night', 'Preset: Frost protection' (as above);
- **'Sensor levels**: this function is only available in the Condition, it allows to compare the measured value of the sensor with a predefined value e.g 'check if the value of a light sensor is greater than 10000 lux' (see the 'condition function for more information.)

A condition that uses the 'Sensor Level' function will always be false if the level of the sensors is unkown (e.g. when the sensor is defect, the interface is not found on AUTOBUS, just after startup of the central unit,...)

		ОК	Cancel	
Slaapkamer	✓ ] E Me	asured temperature $\vee$	= 40.0 °C	~
			-3.0 °C -2.5 °C	
	<ul><li>&lt; 日間</li></ul>	~	-2.0 °C -1.5 °C	
	1.1.1.1		-0.5 °C 0.0 °C	
_		~	0.5 °C 1.0 °C	ł
	<ul> <li>) m</li> </ul>		2.0 °C 2.5 °C	
			3.0 °C 3.5 °C	
	<ul> <li>) 22</li> </ul>		4.0°C 4.5°C 50°C	
	D Slaapkamer		OK D Slaapkamer V Measured temperature V V	OK Cancel

 Image: Image:

# The Fan (exhaust) function

## Description

The Fan (exhaust) function switches a function and leaves a relay, dimmer, flag or local mood, in active mode for a preset time after the first function has been switched off.

efine Fan Function					×
Name Function Name:					
FAN 1					
Select Light					
Relay ~	01 Bathroom » Light » Light	~ ] 🛱	<ul> <li>ON/Off</li> </ul>	~	
Select Motor					
Relay ~	02 Bathroom » Device » Fan	<ul> <li>Image: Second sec</li></ul>	√ On	×	0h 05m 00s 🔶
Options					
Fan Setting:		Ventilator ON when switching lig	ht OFF		~
				ОК	Cancel

### Parameters

#### Name

Put in here a short and clear name for the 'Fan (exhaust)' function.

#### Select Light

this parameter defines the first function which is called when the 'Fan (exhaust)' function is activated. 4 functions can be selected: 'Relay', 'Dimmer', 'Local Mood' and 'Flags'. Depending on the selected function several specific function parameters have to be put in. Consult for this matter the description of the specific function.

#### Select Motor

this parameter defines the 2nd function which becomes or remains active for a set duration when the first function is switched off 4 functions can be selected: 'Relay', 'Dimmer', 'Local Mood' and 'Flags'. Depending on the selected function several specific function parameters have to be put in. Consult for this matter the description of the specific function.

#### Duration

this parameter is defined on the right hand side in the 'Select Motor' field. The 'Duration' determines how long the 2nd function (motor) remains active after the 1st function (light) has been switched off. This parameter can be set from 0 sec. till 7200 sec. in steps of 1 sec. Standard the duration is set at 120 sec.

#### **Options - Setting**

This parameter determines when the 2nd function (motor) has to be activated. In this case 2 settings are possible:

#### Ventilator ON when lights are switched off

with this setting the 2nd function (motor) is activated when the light is switched off. The 2nd function is active only for the set duration.

#### Ventilator ON when light is switched

with this setting the 2nd function (motor) is activated simultaneously with the 1st function, when the 'Fan (exhaust)' function is switched on. When the 1st function (light) has been switched off the 2nd function (motor) remains active for the set duration.

## Standard function behaviour on an interface

#### 'Short

With a short push on the button the 1st function (light) is switched as defined in the 'Fan (exhaust)' function. If set like that the 2nd function (motor) will be switched as well.

When the function is switched off the 1st function (light) will be switched off and the 2nd function will remain active for the set duration.

#### Long

The functioning is the same as described under 'Short'.

## Function behaviour when operating in another function

### 'Fan (exhaust)' type

The 'Fan (exhaust)' function can be selected from another function. When the other function is switched on, then the 'Fan (exhaust)' function will work as described in the selected target value.

#### On

The 'Fan (exhaust)' function is activated. The 1st function is switched in accordance with the settings and if set, the 2nd function will be activated as well.

#### Off

The 'Fan (exhaust)' function is switched off. This means that the 2nd function (relay) will be activated during the set duration. If the 1st function (light) is switched on, then this function is switched off. If the function was switched off, it will remain switched off.

#### On/Off

The 'Fan (exhaust)' function is activated: the 1st function and (if set like that) the 2nd function is switched. When the function is switched off, the 'Fan (exhaust)' function will switch off as well: the 1st function is switched off and the 2nd function remains active for the set duration.

#### Off/Off

The 'Fan (exhaust)' function is switched off. The 2nd function is activated for the set duration. The 1st function is switched off or remains switched off.

When the function is switched off, the 'Fan (exhaust)' function will be switched off again. The 2nd function will be activated again for the set duration. The 1st function remains switched off.

Not every function can be switched off. Consult for that matter the description of the respective function.

# Application Example

- In a bath room, shower or toilet, a fan is activated when the light is switched on and stays on for a number of minutes after the light is switched off again.
- In the lavatory of a company every toilet has his own light but the fan is for all the toilets (there are several Fan (exhaust) functions made with another light but with the same motor). The Fan (exhaust) function is so 'intelligent' to switch off the fan only when the 'run time' of all Fan (exhaust) functions are finished.

 Image: Image:

# The Local Mood function

## Description

A 'Local Mood' describes the desired status of maximum 10 functions. When the 'Local Mood' is activated the integrated functions in the local mood list will be executed in the selected sequence in accordance with the set target status.

## Parameters

ine LOCAL MOOI	Fund	tion								
lame Function: Room:			lcon:	Name:		Dimmable		ОК		]
Living	~	1	Mood ~	Romantic		I Toggle		Cancel		
elect Output:										
Dimmer	~	01 Living	s Light » Central	×	ो 🖻	Fade In 1 sec $\vee$ Out 3 s	iec ~	50% / Off	×	
Dimmer	~	02 Living	) » Light » Uplighters	~	) 🛱	Fade In 1 sec $\checkmark$ Out 3 s	iec v	50% / Off	~	
Audio zone	×	02 Living	a (L)	~	<u>)</u> 🛱	DVD_(PLAY/PRESET+)	~	ON/Off	2	
Motor	~	01 Living	» Motor » Blinds Side	~	0 😭	Go to position	¥	DOWN / UP	Ŷ	
Motor	~	02 Living	» Motor » Blinds Left	~	D 🛱	Go to position	~	DOWN / UP	×	
Motor	~	03 Living	» Motor » Blinds Right	~	) <b>P</b>	Go to position	~	DOWN / UP	×	ĺ.
RGB function	~	01 » » F	RGB Living	~	1 🖻	Fade In 1 sec $ \lor $ Out 3 s	iec Y			ef.
None	¥			~	) P				~	
None	~				1 19				v	
None	~			~	ាន				v	

#### Name

The definition of a 'Local Mood' name is divided in 3 parts:

#### Room

select here the room in which the Local Mood is to be activated

#### lcon

select here whether the Local Mood has to be represented on a TELETASK touchscreen and if yes, under what icon.

#### Name

a short and clear description of the Local Mood.

#### Dimmable

this parameter determines whether the 'Local Mood' function can be dimmed.

#### Toggle

this parameter determines whether the 'Local Mood' function can be switched off (reversible), when it is switched on. When this parameter is ticked, the 'Local Mood' will 'toggle'. This means that the 'Local Mood' can be reversed.

#### Select Output

in this field up to 10 functions can be defined which will be executed when the 'Local Mood' is switched on. Depending on the selected function for each function some function specific parameters have to be put in. Consult for this matter the individual function descriptions above in this document.

Remark: A 'dimmable' mood has two states an ON/OFF state and a DIM state (0-100%). The DIM state of a dimmable mood is calculated as the average of all the Dimmers in the local mood.

Remark: If a 'dimmable' mood has a Room and Icon assigned to it, two items will appear on the TELETASK touchscreens: one to control the ON/OFF state of the Mood and one to control the DIM state of the Mood.

Remark: When 'dimming' a 'dimmable mood' UP or DOWN all dimmers will dim with the same ramp speed. But it is not guaranteed that two dimmers that start at the same percentage will stop at the same percentage, small variations (1 or 2 %) are possible

Remark: a dimmable mood can contain 'non dimmable' items e.g. Relays, Motors,... These items are NOT switched ON or OFF while 'Dimming' the 'dimmable mood'.

Remark: The ON/OFF state for the local mood is 'ON' when all items are in the defined status. This is the same for a 'dimmable local mood', so when a 'dimmable local mood' is 'dimmed' UP or DOWN its ON/OFF state will change to false.

## Function behaviour when used on an interface

#### 'Short

With a short push on the button the 'Local Mood' is activated. This ensures that all selected functions are switched to the wanted status. When the 'Local Mood' is switched off, the selected functions will be switched off as described in the respective function.

#### Long

For a non-dimmable mood the functioning is the same as described under 'Short'. For a dimmable mood a 'long press' will Dim the mood UP or DOWN.

Remark: A 'Local Mood' can only be switched off when the parameter 'Toggle' is on.

## Function behaviour when operating in another function

A 'Local Mood' can be selected in another function. When the other function is switched on, the Local Mood will switch in accordance with the set target value.

#### On

The 'Local Mood' is activated: all functions within the 'Local Mood' switch to the set status.

#### Off

The 'Local Mood' is switched off: all functions within the 'Local Mood' switch off.

#### On/Off

When activating the other function the 'Local Mood' will be activated. When switching off the other function the 'Local Mood' will be switched off.

#### Off/Off

When activating the other function the 'Local Mood' is switched off. When the other function is switched off, the 'Local Mood' will remain switched off.

Not every function can be switched off. Whether or not a function can be switched off, is described with the different functions.

A 'Local Mood' can only switched off when the parameter 'Toggle' is checked.

 Image: Image:

# The Timed Local Mood function

# Description

A 'Timed Local Mood' describes the wanted status of maximum 10 functions. When activating a 'Timed Local Mood' the described functions will be switched to the set target status in accordance with a set time pattern.

## Parameters

### Within the function

Room:			loon:	Name:			ОК			
None	~	1	Mood v	RED +/- Random		Repeat	Cancel			
lect Output:										
Dimmer	~	01 Living	) » ≫ RED Left	~	े 🖻	Fade In 10 sec V Out 10 sec V	100% / Off 🗸 🗸	Oh 00m 10s	¢ Oh (	Om 10s
Dimmer	~	04 Dinin	g Room » » RED Right	~	D 🛱	Fade In 10 sec V Out 10 sec V	0% / Off 🗸	0h 00m 00s	¢ 0h 0	Om 10s
Dimmer	×	01 Living	g » » RED Left	~		Fade In 10 sec V Out 10 sec V	0% / Off 🗸 🗸	0h 00m 10s	<b>≑</b> 0h 0	0m 20s
Dimmer	v	04 Dinin	g Room » » RED Right	~	16	Fade In 10 sec V Out 10 sec V	100% / Off 🗸 🗸	0h 00m 00s	¢-  0h (	0m 20s
lone	~			~	1 19		×	Oh 00m 00s	•]	
lone	~			~	15	~		0h 00m 00s	¢]	
lone	v				16	~	×	0h 00m 00s	¢]	
lone	Ŷ			~	0 19	14	×	0h 00m 00s	¢]	
lone	×				18	×	×	0h 00m 00s	¢	
None	~				1 19	~		Oh 00m 00s	0	

#### Name

The name of a 'Timed Local Mood' is divided into 3 parts:

#### Room

select here the room from which the Timed Local Mood will be activated

#### lcon

select here whether the Timed Local Mood has to be represented on a TELETASK touchscreen and if so, under which icon.

#### Description

type here a short and clear description of the Timed Local Mood.

#### Select Output

in this field up to maximum 10 functions can be defined which will be operated when the 'Timed Local Mood' is switched on. Depending on the selected function some 'function specific parameters' have to be defined.

#### Waiting time

24/1/2019

this parameter determines the delay between this and the previous function. This parameter is put in at the right hand side in the function window. The delay can be set from 0 sec till 7200 sec. in steps of 1 sec. By default the waiting time for each function is set at 0 sec.

Next to settable waiting time, the cumulative waiting time is indicated. This is the waiting time for the respective function as from the moment the 'Timed Local Mood' is switched on.

#### Repeat

This parameter determines whether or not the 'Timed Local Mood' will have to be executed repeatedly. If this parameter is ticked, then the 'Timed Local Mood' will start again and run through the described trajectory.

### Function behaviour when used on an interface

### Option 'On/Off' (standard)

#### Short

With a short push (switch on) the timer of the 'Timed Local Mood' is started. The selected function in the 'Timed Local Mood' will be switched consecutively in accordance with the set waiting time to the wanted status. When the 'Timed Local Mood' is switched off the active functions will be switched off as described in the respective function.

#### Long

The functioning is the same as under 'Short'.

A 'Timed Local Mood' can only be switched off when its timer has not expired. This means before the function which was last selected was activated. If the 'repeat' parameter is ticked, then the 'Timed Local Mood' can always be switched off.

When the 'Timed Local Mood' is no longer active, and you want to switch off the different functions quickly, then activate the 'Timed Local Mood' in order to switch it off immediately afterwards (only when the 'On/Off' option is selected).

### Option 'On'

#### Short

With a short push the timer of the 'Timed Local Mood' is started. The selected function in the 'Timed Local Mood' will be switched consecutively in accordance with the set waiting time to the wanted status.

When it was already switched on

#### Long

The functioning is the same as under 'Short'.

In this option it is not possible to switch off the 'Timed Local Mood' during the time it is active.

### Option 'Off'

#### Short

With a short push the 'Timed Local Mood' is switched off. All the active functions will be switched off as described in the respective function. If it was already switched off, no action will happen.

#### Long

The functioning is the same as under 'Short'.

### Function behaviour when operating in another function

A 'Timed Local Mood' can be selected from another function. When the other function is switched on the 'Timed Local Mood' will function as determined in the target value.

#### On

The 'Timed Local Mood' is activated: the timer is started and the functions are selected consecutively in accordance with the set time path.

#### Off

The 'Timed Local Mood' is switched off: each active function is switched off as described under the respective function description.

#### On/Off

The 'Timed Local Mood' is activated when the other function is switched on. When the other function is switched off, the 'Timed Local Mood' will switch off.

#### Off/Off

When the other function is switched on, the Timed Local Mood will switch off. When he other function is switched off the 'Timed Local Mood' will remain switched off. Nothing happens.

When the 'Timed Local Mood' is switched on while it is active, the 'Timed Local Mood' will be restarted from the beginning.

When the 'Timed Local Mood' has run through the set time path, then the active status of the function in which the 'Timed Local Mood' is located, will be automatically 'Not True' or 'Off'.

Not every function can be switched off. Consult for this matter the description of the respective function.

# Application example:

Controlling garden sprinklers is done in timed phases (not all sprinklers can be on at the same time). The first group(s) is/are activated immediately, the second group after 30 minutes (and the first is switched off first), the next group thirty minutes later, etc...

 Image: Image:

# The General Mood function

## Description

A 'General Mood' describes the wanted status of all relay and dimmer outputs in a certain wanted situation. Next to that up to maximum 5 additional functions can be called. A 'General Mood' function can only be activated and remains active as long as no modification occurs to the status of an included output.

### Parameters

ine General Mo	bod				
Name General M	lood	2		ОК	
Name:		Room:	icon		
Leaving		None ~	R2T Not visible ✓	Cancel	
Relays	Dimmers	Extra Functions			
01 Bathroom »	Light » Light	OFF	Uncoupled		
OFF	01 Bathroom »	Light » Light		4	
OFF	02 Bathroom »	Device » Fan			
OFF	03 Kitchen » D	evice » Cooker			
OFF	04 Kitchen » D	evice » Coffee maker			
OFF	05 Kitchen » D	evice » Microwave			
OFF	06 Living » De	vice » Television			
Uncoupled	07 Living » Device » Outlets Hall				
OFF	08 Living » Device » Outlets Living				
Uncoupled	09 Home Office » Device » Computer				
OFF	10 Home Office » Device » Outlets				
OFF	11 Dining Room	m » Device » Outlets			
OFF	12 Dining Room	m » Device » Cupboard			
OFF	13 Dining Room	m » Device » Fan			
OFF	14 Master bedr	room » Device » Outlets			
OFF	15 Dedream M	labad - Davisa - Dask			

#### Name

The name giving of a 'General Mood' is divided in 3 parts:

#### Room

select here the room in which the General Mood will be activated

#### lcon

select here whether the General Mood has to be represented on a TELETASK touchscreen and if so, under what icon.

#### Description

Introduce here a short and clear description of the General Mood.

#### Relay

In the relay tab page every relay can be selected and the wanted status can be put in, to which the relay, when the 'General Mood' is activated, has to switch.

#### **Not Controlled**

24/1/2019

if this parameter is selected, then the relay will not be included in the 'General Mood'. This means that the status of the relay remains unchanged when the 'General Mood' is activated. On top of that the relay can be switched on and off, thus not influencing on the active status of the 'General Mood'.

#### On

if this parameter is selected, then the relay will be switched on when the 'General Mood' is activated.

#### Off

if this parameter is selected, then the relay will be switched off when the 'General Mood' is activated.

#### Dimmers

in the dimmers tab page each dimmer can be selected and the wanted status to which the dimmer has to move, can be set when the 'General Mood' is activated.

#### **Not Controlled**

if this parameter is selected, then the dimmer is not included in the 'General Mood'. This means that the status of the dimmer remains unchanged when the 'General Mood' is activated. On top of that the dimmer can be controlled autonomously, thus not influencing the active status of the 'General Mood'.

#### 1% till 100% (on)

if this parameter is selected, then the dimmer will be brought to the set target value when the 'General Mood' is activated.

#### 0% (off)

if this parameter is selected, then the dimmer will be switched off when the 'General Mood' is activated.

#### **Additional Functions**

In a 'General Mood' up to maximum 5 additional functions can be selected which will be switched to the set target value when the 'General Mood' is activated.

#### Select the function

Select here up to maximum 5 functions which will be controlled when the 'General Mood' is activated. Following functions can be selected: 'Timed', 'Motor UP/DOWN', 'Local Mood', 'Timed Local Mood', 'Messages and Alarms', 'TP buzzer', 'Audio', 'Sensor functions', 'Flags', 'Clock functions', 'If-Then-Else functions', 'Process functions' and 'Service functions'. Depending on the selected function for each function some function specific parameters have to be put in. Consult for this matter the description of the respective function.

### Function behaviour when used on an interface

#### 'Short

With a short push, the 'General Mood' is activated. This means that all relays and dimmers are brought to the status as defined in the 'General Mood'. Next to that possible additional functions will be switched in accordance with the set target value. When the function is switched off (push short again) nothing happens, since a'General Mood' cannot be switched off.

#### Long

The operation is the same as described under 'Short'.

# Function behaviour when called from another function

A 'General Mood' can be selected in another function. When the other function is switched ON the 'General Mood' will be switched as determined in the target value.

When the other function is switched OFF, this will not occur to the 'General Mood' because this function cannot be switched off.

### Remark

A 'General Mood cannot be switched off because this function brings the house into a certain status for a longer period , which is often due to a human activity typified by a significantly modified living pattern for several hours. Examples are: going to bed, leaving the house, coming home, party, alarm, etc.

For that reason, in most of the cases, a 'General Mood' will have a counterpart bringing the house in a status of opposite activity. (Going to bed – Getting up; Coming home – Leaving the house; etc.)

When using several Central Units, the General Mood also will be extended with a 'Global Mood' part. For more info, see 'Several Central Units'.

 Image: Image:

# The Transparent function

## Description

The 'Transparent' function connects the status of the input directly to the status of the selected function. When the input closes, the selected function is switched ON; when the input opens the selected functions is switched OFF (in case the input is 'inverted' the selected function is switched ON when the input opens and OFF when the input closes). The selected output can be controlled by another function, as long as the input state does not change, the Transparent function will not control the output.

Remark: At startup (or after download) the Transparent function will switch ON the selected function if the input is 'closed', but it will not switch OFF the selected function if the input is 'open'.

### Parameters

efine Transparent Function		×
Name Function Name:		
TRA 1		
Select Output		
Relay V 01 Storage » Light » Light	ht 🗸 🗋 🛱	On 🗸
		OK Cancel

#### Name

Introduce here a short and clear name for the 'Transparent' function.

#### Select Output

this parameter defines the function which has to be connected with an input in a transparent way. Depending on the function which is being integrated, some function specific parameters have to be set. Consult for this matter the description of the individual function which you use.

## Function behaviour when used on an interface

When a 'Transparent' function is selected, then the names 'Short' and 'Long' modify into 'When closing' and 'When Opening'. This is because the option 'Edge Triggered' is set automatically with a 'Transparent' function. Consult for this function part 'Digital Input Interfaces'.

#### On closing

When a connected button is pushed or a contact is closed, the selected function is immediately activated. When the button is released or the contact is opened the function is immediately switched off. Consequently the function is activated immediately and lasts as long as the button is pushed (if the selected function is not controlled by another function).

#### On opening

(= in case of a push button contact 'on releasing') Not applicable. The transparent function cannot be selected in 'on opening'.

Also due to the specific function characteristics a 'Transparent' function is not available under the 'Long' push mode.

The 'On opening' mode can still be set autonomously, but is very seldom used.

# Function behaviour when called from another function

Not applicable: a 'Transparent' function cannot be called from another function due to specific function characteristics.

### Remark

The 'Transparent' function can be selected only under the 'On closing' mode of an input.

 Image: Image:

# The Messages and Alarms functions

### Description

The functions 'Messages and Alarms' contain text messages and/or beep tones which inform that a certain situation has occurred. The 'Messages and Alarms' function is only to be used on TELETASK interfaces with a display, on the GUI+ (TDS15105) and via e-mail or sms-service.

### Parameters

unction Nam	e'			
unction Nam	e.			OK
Message Pro	ntdoor			Cancel
lessage Typ	e:			
Alarm				
Message				
E-mail				
roperties				
Line 1: Th	ere is someon	e		
Line 2 at 1	the door			
Number of	beeps:	3	1±1	
2 1 105 ALL		A (bodenes)	hand	
] 1 107 AU ] 1 108 AU	RUS-TFT BL RUS-TFT Gr	(kitchen) ey (home office)		
1 107 AU	RUS-TFT BL RUS-TFT Gr	(kitchen) ey (home office)		
1 107 AU	RUS-TFT BL RUS-TFT Gro	(kinchen) ey (home office)		
fine Messag	RUS-TFT BL RUS-TFT Gro ge e:	(kitchen) ey (home office)		OK
fine Messag	RUS-TFT BL RUS-TFT Gri ge e: oor	(kitchen) ey (home office)		OK Cancel
fine Messag unction Nam E-mail Frontd	RUS-TFT BL RUS-TFT Gro ge je e: oor	(kitchen) ey (home office)		OK Cancel
fine Messag unction Nam E-mail Frontd Jessage Typ	RUS-TFT BL RUS-TFT Gro ge e: oor e:	(kitchen) ey (home office)		OK Cancel
fine Messag unction Nam Email Frontd Message Typ ) Alarm ) Message	ge e: e:	(kitchen) ey (home office)		OK Cancel
fine Messag unction Nam E-mail Frontd Message Typ ) Alarm ) Message	ge e: e:	(kitchen) ey (home office)		OK Cancel
fine Messag unction Nam E-mail Frontd Message Typ ) Alarm ) Message ) E-mail :mail propert	ge e: e: es	(kitchen) ey (home office)		OK Cancel
fine Messag unction Nam Email Frontd Message Typ ) Alarm ) Message E-mail Email properti o:	ge e: e: mail@mail	(kitchen) ey (home office)		OK Cancel
fine Message fine Message function Nam E-mail Frontd Message Typ ) Alarm ) Message ) E-mail :mail propert o: ubject	ge e: es mail@mail Viste	(kitchen) ey (home office)		OK Cancel

#### Name

Introduce here a suitable short reference name for the real display text which is to be entered below in the 'Data' field. Due to the short 'name' when working in PROSOFT, you should be able to quickly find back the text message you are looking for.

#### Data

Here the text message is put in which will be announced when a certain situation will have occurred or at a certain moment. The text message can contain no more than 2 text lines ('Line 1' and 'Line 2') of 16 characters each. It is recommended to keep the text messages short and concise.

#### Alarm

Choose this parameter when dealing with an alarm. When an alarm occurs, then the introduced text message will appear on the selected interfaces with display/GUI+ and all interfaces will beep with the preset number of beep tones.

An alarm always has to be switched off manually. Take care first that the cause of the alarm is taken away.

For the working of an alarm on the AURUS-OLED (TDS12022) or AURUS-OLED PLUS (TDS12032), see chapter 'AURUS-OLED'.

#### Message on interface

Choose this parameter when the introduced text message has an informative value. With this parameter you indicate as well on which interfaces with display/GUI+the message has to be shown when the situation occurs.

A message disappears automatically as soon as a new action occurs on the respective interface. A new action can be activating a function, receiving another message or alarm.

#### E-Mail

by activating this function, there will be sent an automatically e-mail to the predefined e-mail addresses.

This functionality requires a continue connection of the Central Unit with the internet and that the e-mail settings were correctly imported (see also 'Extra'-'Options'-'E-mail').

#### Data' (Messages/alarm)

here you enter the text message which will communicated when a certain situation will appear or on a certain moment.

#### **Text lines**

the text message can contain 2 text lines at the most ('Line 1' and 'Line 2'). Line 1 can contain 16 characters at the most, Line 2 can contain 50 characters at the most (only the first 16 of the 50 characters will be shown on the older touch panels (see the data sheet for the concerned application). We suggest keeping the messages short and to the point.

#### Number of beep tones

Select here the number of beep tones which have to accompany the text message.

#### Interfaces

Select here the Interfaces/GUI+ on which the messages have to be displayed.

24/1/2019

#### Data e-mail

here you enter the e-mail that will be sent when occurring of a specific situation or on a specific moment.

#### То

enter here the e-mail addresses to which the message has to be sent. Several mail addresses have to be separated by ';.

#### Subject

contains the subject of the e-mail.

#### Message

the length of the message is restricted to 140 characters.

### Function behaviour when used on an interface

### 'Message' type

#### Short

With a short push the text message appears on the selected interfaces accompanied with the preset number of beep tones. When you push short again on the button, the message is sent again to the interfaces. The previous message is over written.

#### Long

The operation is the same as described under 'Short'.

A message cannot be switched off, it disappears automatically in the following circumstances: after a predefined time or by executing an action on the touch panel or by a new message/alarm.

### 'Alarm' type

#### Short

With a short push on the button the introduced text message appears on all selected interfaces with a display/GUI+ accompanied with the pre set number of beep tones. With a new short push on the button, the alarm is switched off.

#### Long

The operation is the same as described under 'Short'.

An alarm is never over written. The latest alarm is always shown on the interfaces. All preceding alarms can be checked by means of the 'following' button. For more information consult the manual of the respective interfaces.

An alarm is deleted either by switching off the alarm with the button or by means of the 'delete' button on the respective interfaces. For more information consult the manual of the respective interfaces.
### 'e-mail' type

#### Short

' when pushing short on the button the e-mail will be sent to all the predefined e-mail addresses. When pushing again the e-mail will be re-sent.

#### Long

the working is the same as described under 'Short'.

# Function behaviour when operating in another function

### 'Message' type

A 'Message' can be selected in another function. When another function is activated the message functions as follows:

#### On

The message appears on the selected interface with the accompanying number of beep tones.

#### On/-

The message is sent with the accompanying beep tones to the respective interface. When the function is switched nothing happens with the message.

Since a message cannot be switched off, a target value cannot be put in. The target value is indicated in pale grey to indicate the behaviour of the message in the other function.

The status of a message is always 'true (on)'. Therefore every function which only contains a message(s) will also always be 'true (on)'.

### 'Alarm' type

An 'Alarm' can be selected in another function. When that other function is called the alarm functions in accordance with the target value:

#### On

The alarm is shown on all selected interfaces with a display/GUI+. All concerned interfaces beep the preset number of times.

#### Off

The alarm is switched off.

#### On/Off

When the function is switched on the alarm is shown on all respective interfaces with a display/GUI+ (preset number of beep tones included). When the function is switched off the alarm will switch off.

#### Off/Off

When the function is switched on the alarm is switched off. When the function is switched off nothing happens or if the alarm became active again in the meantime, the alarm will be switched off again.

### 'E-mail' type

#### ON

the e-mail will be sent to all predefined e-mail addresses.

#### ON/-

the e-mail will be sent to all predefined e-mail addresses.

When switching off this function there will be no e-mail sent.

Since an e-mail cannot be switched off, a target value cannot be put in. The target value is indicated in pale grey to indicate the behaviour of the e-mail in the other function.

The status of an e-mail is always 'true (on)'. Therefore every function which only contains an e-mail will always be 'true (on)'.

# Application examples

- A 'message' (disappears after a short time): when at home and late in the evening there is somebody detected in the garden (motion sensor), not only the garden light is automatically switched ON, but also a message appears on the display in the living room 'somebody in the garden'.
- An 'alarm' (stays on the display until you clear the message): When the heating system fails, the central heating unit goes into alarm status. Normally it will take a long time (when it's getting cold in the house) before the occupants detect that the heating system has failed. When using a sort message like 'heating system alarm call technician', it is easy for everybody to see immediately what is happening, long before it gets cold in the rooms.
- In this last case you can also send a direct e-mail to your electrical contractor.

[] [] [] TELETASK Technical handbook » PROSOFT » Functions overview » The Messages and Alarms functions

# The TP Buzzer functions

# Description

The 'TP buzzer' function sends from another function an adjustable number of beep tones to an adjustable interface.

## Parameters

### Within the function

The function is only available in another function.

### When called from another function

Room:			loon:		Name:	Dimmable		OK
None	~	] 🛱	Mood	~	LMD 25	Toggle		Cancel
elect Output:								
Touch panel b	wzze ~	AURUS-C	LED BL (living)		~ D	19 C	👻 🕄 tim	es/- 🗸
None	~				× D	lff	4	~
None	~				× 1	19 <sup>1</sup>	~	~
None	~				× D	ET.	~	~
None	~				× 🗋	17	~	×
None	~				~ 1		~~	~
None	~				× []	n P	~	
None	~				~ D	17		•
None	~				× D	r:P	~	~
None	~				× 1	r5 <sup>1</sup>	~	

#### Interface

This parameter defines the interface which has to beep. This setting is only necessary with the 'TP Buzzer' type.

#### **Target value**

Put in the number of beep tones which is sent to the selected interface.

# Function behaviour when used on an interface

#### Not applicable

# Operation in another function

### 'TP Buzzer' type

A 'TP Buzzer' can only be selected in another function. This function sends a pre set number of beep tones to a selected interface, when the other function is selected. The number of beep tones is adjustable in the target value. Following target values are available:

#### XX times

Select here the number of beep tones that the selected interface has to produce, when the function is activated. XX can swing for each unit between 1 till 255. By default the number of beep tones is set at 1.

#### XX times/-

Select here the number of beep tones that the selected interface has to introduce, when the function is activated. XX can swing for each unit between 1 till 255. By default the number of beep tones is set at 1. When the function is switched off nothing happens.

Not every function can be switched off. Consult for that matter the description of the respective function.

# Application examples:

- Every time that somebody rings at the entrance, one or more touch panels in the house are beeping a predefined number of times.
- Every time when the front-door is opened the touch panels in the house are beeping once. Every time when the back door is opened the beepers are beeping twice... just to let you know.
- Every time when a message appears on a display (touch panel), the beeper of the touch panel is activated. When it concerns an alarm, you can use a timed local mood function, which is calling the beeper function to (for example) beep 5 times every 30 seconds, until the alarm is cleared by the user.

 Image: Image:

# The 'If-Then-Else' function

# Description

Depending of the status of a 'If -Then-Else' condition, the 'If-Then-Else' function or the 'Then' function will be activated.

The 'If-Then-Else' function controls the status of the 'If' only when activating the 'If-Else-Then' function. To have a continue control on the status of a condition; use a 'Process' function.

## Parameters

efine If-Then-Else Function			×
Name Function Name:			
IFE 1			
IF Condition (True)			
Flag V 01 > > Flag 1	~ ) 🛱	V E	On v
Select 'THEN'			
Local Mood v 01 » Mood » LMD 1	<ul> <li>→ □ ■</li> </ul>	~	ON/Off 🗸
Select 'ELSE'			
Local Mood v 02 » Mood » LMD 2	<ul> <li>Image: Second sec</li></ul>	~	ON/Off v
		ОК	Cancel

#### Name

Introduce here a short and clear name for the 'If-Then-Else' function.

#### If Condition (TRUE)

see the 'Condition' function .

#### Status value of the conditional function

Select here the status on which the 'If-Then-Else' function has to control the conditional function. 2 statuses are possible:

#### On

If the status of the conditional function is 'on', then the 'Then' function will be switched.

#### Off

If the status of the conditional function is 'off' is, then the 'Then' function will be switched.

#### Select 'THEN'

Select here the function which is switched when the conditional function is true (on). Depending on the selected

function some function specific parameters are put in. Consult the description of the specific function.

#### 'Select 'ELSE'

Select here the function which is switched when the conditional function is not true (off). Depending on the selected function some function specific parameters are put in. Consult for this matter the description of the specific function.

For the calculation of the status of the 'If-Then-Else' function, there are following possibilities:

- There is a 'Then' and an 'If' configured. When the 'If' is true, the status will be set through the status of the 'Then'. When de 'If' is NOT true, the status will be set through the status of the 'Else'.
- There is only a 'Then' or an 'Else' configured. The status of the 'If-Then-Else' function will always be set through the status of the one available 'Then' or 'Else'.

## Function behaviour when used on an interface

### Option 'On/Off'

#### Short

With a short push on the button the 'If-Then-Else' function checks what is the actual status of the conditional function. If this is true (on), then the 'Than' function will be activated in accordance with the preset status. If the conditional function is not true (off), than the 'Else' function will be switched in accordance the preset status.

#### Long

The operation is the same as described under 'Short'.

### Option 'On'

#### Short

With a short push on the button the 'If-Then-Else' function checks what is the actual status of the conditional function. If this is true (on), then the 'Than' function will be activated in accordance with the preset status. If the conditional function is not true (off), than no action will be activated.

#### Long

The operation is the same as described under 'Short'.

### Option 'Off'

#### Short

the 'If-Then-Else' function will be switched off; the status of the conditional function will be controlled. Depending on this status the 'Then' or 'Else' function will be activated according to the 'out' status of the set target value. When the function which will be switched is already 'out', nothing will happen with this function.

#### 'Long

The operation is the same as described under 'Short'.

The functioning of the 'Then' and 'Else' function depends on the selected function. Consult the description of

# Function behaviour when operating in another function

An 'If-Then-Else' function can be selected in another function. Depending on the preset target value the functioning will be as follows:

#### On

The 'If-Then-Else' function is activated: the status of the conditional function is checked. Depending on this status the 'Than' or 'Else' function will be activated in accordance with the 'on' status of the preset target value. If the function which will be switched is already 'on', nothing will happen with the function.

#### Off

The 'If-Then-Else' function is switched off: the status of this conditional function is checked. Depending on this status the 'Than' or 'Else' function will be activated in accordance with the 'off' status of the preset target value. If the function which will be switched is already 'off', nothing will happen with the function.

#### On/Off

When the other function is activated, then the 'If-Then-Else' function is activated. When the other function is switched off, then the 'If-Then-Else' function is switched off.

#### Off/Off

When the other function is activated then the 'If-Then-Else' function is switched off. The status of the conditional function is checked. Depending on the status the 'Than' or 'Else' function is switched in accordance with the 'off' status of the pr set target value. If the respective function at that moment is already 'off', than nothing will happen. When being switched off, this operation is repeated.

Not every function can be switched off. Consult for this matter the description of the specific function.

I I I TELETASK Technical handbook » PROSOFT » Functions overview » The 'If-Then-Else' function

# The Process functions

# Description

The 'Process' function monitors during the active status the status of an adjustable function. This is the conditional function. Depending on the status of the conditional function an adjustable function is switched. This is the active function.

Since the 'Process' function continuously monitors the status of the conditional function, the 'process' function can be called an automating function.

# Parameters

efine Process Function					×
Name Function Name:					
PRS 1					
Select Function to be monitored					
Flag V 01 > > Flag	1		9 (E)	On	~
Select Function to be executed					
Local Mood v 01 » Mood :	LMD 1	<ul> <li>III #</li> </ul>	~	ON/Off	~
Options					
Operation if Activated	Continuous monitoring	(ON and OFF)			~
Deactivate handling	When Process Function	n is de-activated: don't change output			~
			ОК	Cance	el

#### Name

Introduce here a short and clear name for the 'process' function which is being generated.

#### Select function to be monitored

Select the function here that has to be monitored during the active status of the 'process' function. This is the conditional function. Depending on the selected functions some function specific parameters have to be specified. Consult for this matter the description of the selected function..

#### Status value of the conditional function

See the 'Condition' function

#### Select the function to be executed

Select here the function which has to be switched depending on the status of the conditional function. Depending on the selected function some function specific parameters have to be put in. Consult for this matter the description of the selected function.

#### Operation when the function is switched on

This parameter determines in which way manual control stays possible, next to the process function. Here 3 possibilities can be selected:

#### **Continuous monitoring (ON and OFF)**

the 'Process' function switches the status of the active function always equal to the wanted status of the conditional function. Manual control to execute the function is here NOT possible.

#### **Continuously on if TRUE**

the 'Process' function switches the status of the active function only when the status of the function to guard is equal to the set status. Manual control is possible when the guarding function is NOT true.

#### ON if TRUE & OFF if NOTTRUE (all flanks)

In this case the active function can be switched at any moment independent of the status of the conditional function. The 'Process' function however will switch 'ON' the status of the active function automatically if the conditional function becomes 'TRUE' or switch 'off' if the conditional function becomes 'NOT TRUE'.

#### **PROCESS FUNCTION:**

Different results dependent on chosen option.



See the examples for more information about the process functions!

#### Action when switching off function

this parameter determines what has to happen with the function which has to be executed, when the 'Process' function is switched off. Here 2 settings are possible:

#### When the process function is switched off

switch off output: this setting switches off the connected function.

#### When the process function is switched off

not change output: this setting conserves the status of the connected function when the 'Process' function is switched off.

# Function behaviour when used on an interface

#### 'Short

With a short push on the button the 'Process' function is switched on. From that moment on the conditional function will be monitored. Depending on the status the active function will be switched in accordance with preset parameters.

When switched off (again a short push) the process function will be switched off. The conditional function will not be monitored any more. The status of the active function will be switched off depending on the setting and is no longer monitored by the 'process' function.

#### Long

The operation is the same as described under 'Short'.

## Operation in another function

The 'Process' function is selected in another function. Depending on the pr set target value the operation will be as follows:

#### On

The 'Process' function is switched on. The conditional function is being monitored continuously and the active function is switched in accordance with selected settings.

#### Off

The 'Process' function is switched off. The conditional function is no longer monitored. The active function is switched off, if it was preset, and is no longer controlled by the 'Process' function.

#### On/Off

When the other function is activated the 'Process' function is switched on. When the other function is switched off the 'Process' function is switched off.

#### Off/Off

When the other function is activated the 'Process' function is switched off. When the other function is switched off the 'Process' function remains switched off.

Not every function can be switched off. Consult for that matter the description of the function.

# Example: protect sun blinds against wind damage when manual control stays possible.

To protect sun blinds against wind damage, a process function can be set. As 'guarding function' you can set a 'condition (e.g. named 'lot of wind') where the measured results of an anemometer are checked.

When there is too much wind, the process function will raise all the sun blinds. When using the option 'continue control (on&off)', the process function will drop the sun blinds when there is less wind. This is not wanted. We want to have the choice ourselves to decide when the sun blinds will drop.

Therefore we use the option 'continue on when 'TRUE'! When there isn't a lot of wind, the process function won't execute any action and the sun blinds can be controlled manually.

 Image: Image:

# The 'Flag' function

# Description

The 'Flags' function signals the status of a situation by his 'on' or 'off' status. It is only used as a condition whether or not to execute certain actions.

## Parameters

### Within the function

Define Flag			
Name:	Room:	lcon:	OK
Flags 9	None ~	Not visible ~	Cancel

# Function behaviour when used on an interface

Not applicable

# Function behaviour when operating in another function

Room:		lcon:	Name:	Dimmable		OK
None	~ 🗋 🖻	Mood	✓ LMD 27	Toggle	(	Cancel
elect Output:						
Flag	✓ 02 × × 1	LG HEAT	~ D	f	<ul> <li>ON/Off</li> </ul>	~
None	~		<ul> <li>D</li> </ul>	9 1	4	~
None	~		~ 1	<b>a</b>	~	×
None	~		~ D	8	~	
None	~		~ D	<b>A</b>	~	×
None	~		~ 1	<u>a</u>	~	~
None	~		~ 11	7	~	×
None	v		~ D1	9	. v.	~
None	~		~ []	2	~	
None	~		× 11	9	~	

A 'Flag' can be selected in another function. Depending on the preset target value the operation will be as follows:

#### On

The 'Flag' is on. The situation as described by the flag is 'On' or 'True'. If the 'Flag' was already 'On', then it remains

'On'.

#### Off

The 'Flag' is out. The situation as described by the flag is 'Off' or 'Not True'. If the 'Flag' were already 'Off', then it remains 'Off'.

#### On/Off

When activating another function the 'Flag' will be set 'on'. When the other function is switched off, the 'Flag' will be set 'off'.

#### Off/Off

When the other function is activated the 'Flag' will be set 'off'. When the other function is switched off the 'Flag' remains switched off.

Not every function can be switched off. Consult for that matter the description of the respective function.

 Image: Image:

# The Condition

# Description

The 'Condition' function describes the status of up to 5 functions and a relationship between them. When the status and the relationship of the function(s) correspond with what has been described in the 'Condition', then the condition is 'ON'.

A 'Condition' never results in an action, it can only be used as a condition for other function types e.g. If-Then-Else function, Process function, ...

The status of the condition is updated every time the status of one of the functions in the condition changes.

For functions with a status from 0-100% (dimmer and motor), the condition uses the 'target value' of that function to calculate its state. Example: a condition that defines a 'dimmer state = 100%', will be TRUE when the dimmer starts to dim to 100%. If the dimming stops before the dimmer reaches 100%, the condition will return to false.

## Parameters

efine Cond	lition					×
Name:	Valve open			ОК	Cano	cel
Formula:						
Relay	~	01 Kitchen » Heating/Cooling » Valve	~ D 🖻	۲.	On	~
Relay	~	OR 02 Living » Heating/Cooling » Valve	<ul><li>□ #</li></ul>	v	On	~
Relay	~	OR 03 Dining Room » Heating/Cooling » Valve	<ul> <li>Image: Image: Ima</li></ul>	v	On	~
None	~		<u>~ [] A</u>	×		~
None	~		~ 口 留	v		

#### Name

put in here a clear name for the condition. Take care that the name clearly describes the situation which occurs when the condition is active.

#### **Conditional functions**

Select here up to 5 functions which have to be monitored. Depending on the selected functions some function specific parameters have to be put in. Consult for that matter the description of the selected function.

#### Comparison

This parameter determines how the conditional function has to relate to the adjustable comparison value. This parameter can take different levels.

#### =

the conditional function has to be equal to the preset comparison value.

#### >

the conditional function has to be greater than the preset comparison value. This level is meaningful only with numerical comparison values.

#### <

the conditional function has to be smaller than the preset comparison value. This level is meaningful only with numerical comparison values.

#### >=

the conditional function has to be greater than or equal to the preset comparison value. This level is meaningful only with numerical comparison values.

#### <=

the conditional function has to be smaller than or equal to the preset comparison value. This level is meaningful only with numerical comparison values.

#### **Comparison value**

This parameter determines the status or value with which the conditional function is compared. The comparison value can take following shapes:

#### Status

This shape determines a 'on or 'off' status with which the conditional function is compared.

#### Numerical

This shape determines a number or percentage with which the conditional function is compared. This shape occurs only with the functions 'Dimmers' and 'Sensor Levels'.

#### Relationship

This parameter determines the mutual relation between the functions. Following levels can be adjusted:

#### AND

Both functions between which an 'AND' relation is defined, have to be 'true' in order to transmit the 'Condition OK' signal.

#### OR

One of both functions between which an 'OR' relation is defined, have to be 'true' in order to transmit the 'Condition OK' signal.

At least 2 functions have to be selected before the 'Relation' parameter can be set.

When more than 2 functions are present in the 'Condition', than first the relation between the first and the second function is reasoned. The result of this is reasoned with a third function etc. This logic is very important when the different 'Conditions' are defined. In particular when the 'AND' and 'OR' relations are applied.

## Function behaviour when used on an interface

Since a 'Condition' monitors the status and the mutual relations of one or more functions, this function cannot be called from an interface.

# Operation in another function

A condition is integrated in another function only as conditional function. This means that the other function uses the 'Condition' as a condition in order to execute an action or otherwise.

A condition can only be integrated in following functions: 'Condition', 'Process' and 'If-Then-Else'. Consult the description of the different functions about the operation and the specific parameters within the function.

 Image: Image:

# Calculation function

# Description

The calculation function can be used to calculate the difference between two temperature sensor values. Its result can be used in a 'condition function'.

Function name		
Name:	Temp difference indoor - outdoor	
Formula		
Sensor zone	√ 01 Indoor	~
MINUS		
Sensor zone	V 02 Outdoor	~

### Parameters

#### Name

the name of the function

#### Formula

select two temperature sensors here. The second value will be subtracted from the first value.

# Operation from another interface

Not applicable

Define Conditi	ion							×
Name:	Night coolin	g advised yes/no			ОК		Cancel	
Formula: Calculation	n ~	01 Temp difference indoor - outdoor	~ ] 🗗	Calculation result	, v	>	5.0 °C	~
None	~		<ul> <li>□ ፼</li> </ul>					
Marca								
None	~				Y	5		×
None	~		~ <u>]</u> 留		~	6		~
None	Ý		~ ) 留		v	5		×

The 'Calculation' function can only be used in a 'Condition' function (or other functions that have a 'condition' like parameter: e.g. the 'If' of an 'If-then-else' function).

#### "Calculation result"

The result of the calculation can be compared with a temperature value.

 Image: Image:

# The Service functions

# Description

The 'Service' function control a timer ('No-Action Timer') which starts as soon as no action in the house is detected. When the timer has expired, an alarm ('No-Action Alarm) is activated.

### Parameters

### Within the function

The parameters for the Service functions are set in the PROSOFT 'option' menu. Under the tab page 'Option', you will find in the 'Service field' following parameters:

ons									
stem setup Option s	iensor	Motors	RGB Setting	s Time settings	E-mail	Access contro	k		
Language:									
English			~						
Specials:									
Relay Delay:				50 mSec 🌻					
Interfaces (Bus), LC	NG pre	65		1.5 Sec 🖨					
Feedback LED's	blink o	n error							
Feedback LED's	blink o	n error eeds to b	be enabled for	GUI+ Charts)					
Feedback LED's	blink o stem (N	n error eeds to b	be enabled for	GUI+ Charts)					
Feedback LED:	blink o stem (N	n error eeds to b	be enabled for	GUI+ Charts)					
Feedback LED's Enable LOG system Service Options: Auto Start Function:	blink o stem (N	n error eeds to b	e enabled for	GUI+ Charts)	ocal Moo	d		~ <u>)</u>	1
Feedback LED's Enable LOG syn Service Options: Auto Start Function:	i blink o	n error eeds to b	be enabled for	GUI+ Charts)	ocal Moo 16 × × A	d utostart		× 🗋 × 🗗	
Feedback LED's Enable LOG systematics Service Options: Auto Start Function: No-Action timer:	i blink o	n error eeds to b	e enabled for	GUI+ Charts)	ocal Moo 18 » » A 10h 0	d utostart Om 🕏		<ul><li></li><li></li><li></li><li></li><li></li><li></li><li></li><li></li><li></li><li></li><li></li><li></li><li></li><li></li><li></li><li></li><li></li><li></li><li></li><li></li><li></li><li></li><li></li><li></li><li></li><li></li><li></li><li></li><li></li><li></li><li></li><li></li><li></li><li></li><li></li><li></li><li></li><li></li><li></li><li></li><li></li><li></li><li></li><li></li><li></li></ul>	
Feedback LED's Enable LOG syst Service Options: Auto Start Function: No-Action timer:	: blink o	in error eeds to b	e enabled for	GUI+ Charts)	ocal Moo 18 × × A Id 10h 0 Ione	d utostart Om 文			
Feedback LED's Enable LOG syn Service Options: Auto Start Function: No-Action timer: No-Action alarm:	i blink o	n error eeds to b	e enabled for	GUI+ Charts)	ocal Moo 18 » » A Id 10h 0 Ione	d utostart Om 文		<ul> <li>)</li> <li>)</li></ul>	

#### **No-Action Timer**

This parameter sets the duration before the 'No-Action Alarm' is activated. The 'No action Timer' is adjustable per 15 min from 00h 00min till 48h 00min. By default the time is set at 10h00min.

#### **No Action Alarm**

Select here the function which has to be activated when during the 'No-Action Timer' no movement was recorded. Following functions can be selected: 'Switch', 'Local Mood', 'Timed Local Mood', 'General Mood' and 'Process Functions'. Depending on the selected function some function specific parameters are necessary. Consult for this matter the description of the selected function.

# Operation from another interface

## 'No-Action Control ON/OFF' type

#### Short

With a short push on the button the 'No-Action Control' is switched on when the function was 'OFF'. When the function is 'ON', the function is switched off. The 'No-Action Control' activates the 'No-Action Timer'.

#### Long

The operation is the same as described under 'Short'.

### 'No-Action Reset Timer' type

#### Short

With a short push on the button the 'No-Action Timer' is set back to the preset time. The timer starts running again from the beginning.

#### Long

The operation is the same as described under 'Short'.

When the 'No-Action Timer' was not started by the 'No-Action Control ON/OFF', then the 'No-Action Reset Timer' will have no implications.

# Operation in another function

### 'No-Action Control ON/OFF' type

Depending on the preset target value the 'No-Action Control ON/OFF' will be controlled as follows:

#### On

When the other function is switched on the 'No-Action Control ON/OFF' will be switched on: the 'No-Action Timer' starts.

#### Off

When the other function is switched on the 'No-Action Control ON/OFF' will be switched off: the 'No Action Timer' stops.

#### On/Off

When the other function is switched on the 'No-Action Control ON/OFF' will be switched on. When the other function is switched off the 'No-Action Control ON/OFF' will be switched off.

#### Off/Off

When the other function is switched on the 'No-Action Control ON/OFF' will be switched off. When the other function is switched off the 'No-Action Control ON/OFF' will be switched off.

### 'No-Action Reset Timer' type

With the 'No-Action Reset Timer' the target value is not adjustable. For information purposes the target value is indicated in pale grey. Following target values are visible:

#### Reset

When the other function is activated the 'No Action Timer' is set again at the initially introduced starting time. Said

differently the actively running timer is deleted.

#### **Reset/Reset**

When the other function is activated and as well when it is switched off the 'No Action Timer' is set again at the initially introduced starting time. Said differently the actively running timer is deleted.

Not every function can be switched off. Consult the description of the respective function.

 Image: Image:

# The clock functions

# Description

'Clock' functions activate the appropriate clock programs which are set in TIMESOFT.

## Parameters

### Within the function

#### **Clock Functions**

Select here the wanted clock function to activate the appropriate clock program. Following clock functions are standard available in PROSOFT :

#### Regime

Automatic Workday/Weekend day: This clock function automatically activates the clock workday or weekend day.

This regime or clock program is the standard active setting.

Name:	AURUS-OLED WH (bedroom)	Audio zone: Bedroom 🗸
Central Unit	A: NANOS Central Unit	Sensor Zone: Bedroom
Address:	AUTOBUS 1 🗸 5	RGB zone: None ~
		Main IR Enable
terface type:		Button functions
DS12032 AURI	US-OLED PLUS	Short
	1 2 3 4 Customize this screen	Long None Vervious regime
	5 6 7 8	Input definition Description: D

#### Regime

Workday: This 'Clock' function activates the clock 'Workday' even if the active moment in PROSOFT (options) is defined as weekend day. When the clock 'Work day' is active, the clock 'Weekend day' or 'Simulation' cannot possibly be active.

#### Regime

Weekend day: This 'Clock' function activates the clock 'Weekend' even if the active moment in PROSOFT (options) has been defined as week day defined. When the clock 'Weekend day' is active, the clock 'Workday' or 'Simulation' cannot be possibly active.

#### Regime

Presence simulation: This 'Clock' function activates the simulation program of your house. This clock is used in case of lengthy absence, to create an impression of presence. When the clock 'Simulation' is active, the clock 'Weekend day' or 'Workday' cannot be possibly active.

#### Regime

None: This 'Clock' function switches off the clocks 'Weekend day', 'Workday' and 'Simulation'. The clock 'Custom' however remains unchanged.

#### Custom clock table on/off

This 'Clock' function will switch on or off the clock 'Custom'. This clock can be activated independently of the other clocks. Consequently the 'Custom' clock can run simultaneously with the clock 'Weekday' or the clock 'Weekend' or the clock 'Simulation'.

#### Next regime

switches to the next regime. The order of the regimes is: Auto  $\rightarrow$  workday  $\rightarrow$ weekend $\rightarrow$ simulation $\rightarrow$ none $\rightarrow$ auto $\rightarrow$ ...

#### Last regime

switches to the last regime.

Next to these clock functions which are standard available no other clock functions are available or need to be generated.

The clock functions are directly connected to the different clock programs in TIMESOFT. When no actions in the different clock programs are defined, then it makes no sense to use the clock functions. Consult the TIMESOFT description for more information about the clock programs.

## Function behaviour when used on an interface

### 'Clock functions: Regime'

#### Short

With a short push on the button the selected clock program is activated. When switched off (again a short push), the standard active setting 'Regime: automatic Weekday/Weekend day' is activated.

#### Long

The operation is the same as described under 'Short'.

### 'Clock functions: Custom' type

#### Short

With a short push on the button the 'Custom' clock program is activated when it was 'off'. It will be switched off when it was 'on'.

#### Long

With a long push on the button the 'Custom' clock program is activated when it was 'off'. It will be switched off when it was 'on'.

### Type 'Clock functions: Next/Previous'.

#### Short

with a short push on the button the next/previous clock program is activated. At the next push on the button the next/previous regime will be activated.

#### Long

the operation is the same as described under 'Short'.

# Function behaviour when operating in another function

### 'Clock functions: Regime' type

The target value is not adjustable for the 'Regime' clock functions. When the other function is switched on the selected clock program will be activated. When the other function is switched off, the standard active setting 'Regime: automatic Weekday/Weekend day' will be activated.

### 'Clock functions: Custom'

The target value can be set for the 'Custom' clock function. Depending on the selected target value the operation is as follows:

#### On

The 'Custom' clock program is activated.

#### Off

The 'Custom' clock program is switched off.

#### On/Off

When the other function is activated the 'Custom' clock program is activated. When the other function is switched off the 'Custom' clock program is switched off.

#### Off/Off

When the other function is activated and when it is switched off the 'Custom' clock program is switched off.

Not every function can be switched off. Consult the description of the respective function.

 Image: Image:

# The audio functions

# Description

The 'audio' functions describe the actions which your audio installation has to execute. 'Audio' functions are standard available in PROSOFT, but are released only when the TELETASK audio interface has been defined.

### Parameters

### Within the function

#### Audio zone

this parameter defines the audio zone for which the different available audio functions have to be represented. In this field you can select a value when an audio zone has been defined with a TELETASK audio interface.



#### **Audio function**

Select here the wanted audio function which has to be activated. Following audio functions are available for each audio zone:

- Zone Out
- Out extra (all zones out)
- ON/OFF

- Volume up
- Volume down
- Mute
- Source 1 to 8 (Play/Preset)
- Source 1 to 8 (Preset)
- Preset 1 to 9
- Preset 0
- Extra code 1 to 10

In the most situations not all codes will be available. Only the codes which are learned or put in in AV-Soft are here available.

# Function behaviour when used on an interface

#### Short

With a short push on the button the selected function is activated. If you push again short on the button, then the function will be activated again.

#### Long

The operation is the same as described under 'Short'.

'Volume Up: when pushed 'Long' the volume of the current status will increase until the maximum value.

'Volume Down: when pushed 'Long' the volume of the current status will decrease until the minimum value.

# Function behaviour when operating in another function

When the other function is activated the audio function will be switched as indicated for information purposes in the non-adjustable target value. Following target value can occur:

#### On

The selected audio function is activated.

#### Off

The 'OFF' audio function is activated.

#### On/Off

When the other function is activated then the selected audio function will be activated. When the other function is switched off then the 'OFF' audio function will be activated.

#### On/-

When the other function is activated the selected audio function will be activated. When the other function is switched off, no action is taken.

#### Off/Off

When the other function is activated the 'OFF' audio function is activated. When the other function is switched off the 'OFF' audio function is activated.

For more information about controlling audio systems, please see chapter AV-Soft.

Not every function can be switched off. Whether a function can be switched off, is described in the different functions.

 Image: Image:

# Send IR, RS232 OR IP Code

# Description

This function permits to control a non-audio appliance with infrared, RS232 OR IP.

Examples of such appliances are: Jacuzzi's, gas fires. With this function you can also control the extra codes on our audio source, independent of zones!

# Parameters

'Send IR/RS232 or IP code: selects the appliance that has to be controlled by IR, RS232 or IP. 'Function'; selects the specific code which has to be sent to the appliance.

Name:     AURUS LG     Audio Zone:     None       Central Unit:     A: NANOS Central Unit     Sensor Zone:     None       Address:     AUTOBUS 1     21     RGB zone:     None	
Central Unit     A: NANOS Central Unit     Sensor Zone:     None       Address:     AUTOBUS 1     21     RGB zone:     None	
Address: AUTOBUS 1 ~ 21 RGB zone: None Be	
Be	
Be	Main IR Enable
	ep on IR command
terface type: Button functions	
DS12021: AURUS-4 XL Short	
Send IR / RS232 cc V 01 Fireplace	<ul><li>&lt; ) 四</li></ul>
V	~
5	
6 Long	
None	PPq (
	Cold Deel
	$\sim$
8	
3 4 4	
input cerimition	
Description:	
Enable Button Control	
	E. C.
Enable Remote Control	
Enable Remote Control	
Enable Remote Control	

# Function behaviour when used on an interface

'Short: with a short push on the button the selected function will be activated. When pushing shortly again, the function will be re-activated.

'Long: The operation is the same as described under 'Short'.

# Function behaviour when operating in another function

When activating the other function the IR/RS232/IP code will be sent. When switching off the function, nothing will

For more information about controlling IR/RS232/IP systems, please see chapter AV-Soft.

Not every function can be switched off. Whether a function can be switched off, is described in the different functions.

 Image: Image:

# The Auto start function

# Description

The auto start function is a particular function which activates a selectable function which is automatically executed when the power supply is switched ON or after a send from PC to central unit.

## Parameters

System setup Option Sensor Motors RGE	B Settings Time settings E-mail Access control
Language:	
English	
Specials:	
Relay Delay:	50 m Sec 🌩
Interfaces (Bus), LONG press:	1.5 Sec 🚔
Feedback LED's blink on error	
Feedback LED's blink on error Feable LOG system (Needs to be end	abled for GUI+ Charts)
Feedback LED's blink on error Enable LOG system (Needs to be enable)	abled for GUI+ Charts)
Feedback LED's blink on error Enable LOG system (Needs to be enable Service Options:	abled for GUI+ Charts)
Feedback LED's blink on error Enable LOG system (Needs to be ena Service Options: Auto Start Function:	Local Mood
Feedback LED's blink on error Enable LOG system (Needs to be ena Service Options: Auto Start Function:	Local Mood
Feedback LED's blink on error Enable LOG system (Needs to be ena Service Options: Auto Start Function:	Local Mood
Feedback LED's blink on error Enable LOG system (Needs to be end Service Options: Auto Start Function: No-Action timer:	Local Mood 08 > Autostart 04 10h 00m
Feedback LED's blink on error Enable LOG system (Needs to be ena Service Options: Auto Start Function: No-Action timer:	Local Mood 08 > Autostart 04 10h 00m
Feedback LED's blink on error Enable LOG system (Needs to be enable Service Options: Auto Start Function: No-Action timer: No-Action alarm:	Local Mood 08 × Autostart 0d 10h 00m None
Feedback LED's blink on error Enable LOG system (Needs to be enable Service Options: Auto Start Function: No-Action timer: No-Action alarm:	Local Mood 08 × Autostart 0d 10h 00m None Contemportation None Contemportation Contempor

The parameters for the Auto start function are set in the PROSOFT 'option' menu. Under the tab page 'Option', you will find following parameters in the 'Service field:

#### **Auto start Function**

Select here the function which has to be started up automatically when the tension is again put on your TELETASK central unit. Following functions can be selected: 'None', 'Switch', 'Local Mood', 'Timed Local Mood', 'General Mood' and 'Process Function'. Depending on the selected function some function specific parameters have to be put in. Consult for this matter the description of the specific function.

There is only one auto start function present in PROSOFT. Several functions can be started up automatically through a 'Local Mood', a 'Timed Local Mood or a 'General Mood'.

### Operation

When the power of the central unit is restored after a power failure, the function which was defined in the auto start function will automatically be executed. Also after sending an .nbt file to the central unit, the 'auto-start-function' will

[] [] [] [] TELETASK Technical handbook » PROSOFT » Functions overview » The Auto start function

# The Display Functions

# Description

The display functions are predefined special functions (e.g. menu selection etc.) on TELETASK touch panels equipped with a display. The displays can be different, depending of the type of touch panel with display.

## Overview

### Type 'Sensor: Target Up/Down:

With a push on the button the target value of the selected sensor zone will be increased or reduced.

### Type 'Sensor Next/Previous Preset:

With a push on the button the next/previous preset (day/night/standby) of the selected sensor zone is activated.

### Type 'Sensor: Next/Previous Mode:

With a push on the button the next/previous mode (Heating/Cooling/Automatic/...) of the selected sensor zone is activated (only for temperature sensors).

### Type 'Sensor: Speed Up/Down:

With a push on the button the speed of the selected sensor zone increases or reduces (only for temperature sensors with multi step control).

### Type 'Sensor: Next/Previous Zone:

With a push on the button the next/previous zone is selected.

### Type ' Sensor: On/Off'

With a push on the button the sensor function 'On/Off' for the linked sensor zone is activated.

This function is only useful when a temperature sensor zone is linked to the touch panel.

### Type ' Sensor: Menu'

With a push on the button the extra menu of the corresponding touch panel with display is selected. In this menu you can set the several settings such as preset values, time, etc. See the user manual of the different touch panels.

## Type ' Sensor: Preset Day'

With a push on the button the sensor function 'Preset: Day' for the linked sensor zone is activated. The active preset

setting is visible on the display. Check out the user manual of the touch panels for more information.

### Type ' Sensor: Preset Night'

With a push on the button the sensor function 'Preset: Night' for the linked sensor zone is activated. The active preset setting is visible on the display. Check out the user manual of the touch panels for more information.

### Type ' Sensor: Preset Standby'

With a push on the button the sensor function 'Preset: Standby' for the linked sensor zone is activated. The active preset setting is visible on the display. Check out the user manual of the touch panels for more information.

This function is only useful when a temperature sensor zone is linked to the touch panel.

### Type ' Sensor: Toggle Mode'

With every push on the button the mode of the integrated cool/heat system will toggle between the available modes. The mode can toggle between: 'Mode: Auto', 'Mode: Cool Only', 'Mode: Heat Only', 'Mode: Heat+', 'Mode: Ventilation', 'Mode: Stop system'.

### Type ' Sensor: Toggle Speed'

With every push on the button the speed of the integrated multi step cool/heat system will toggle between the available speeds. The speed can toggle between: 'Speed: Auto', 'Speed: Slow', 'Speed: Medium', 'Speed: Fast'.

With older touch panels (OCTO, LATUS-LCD, ...) the sensor display functions can be slightly different. Please consult the user manuals of these interfaces.

### Type 'Audio: Next/Previous source:

With a push on the button the next/previous source (FM/CD/MP3/...) of the selected audio zone is activated.

### Type 'Audio: Volume Up/Down:

With a push on the button the volume of the selected audio zone increases or reduces.

### Type 'Audio: Next/Previous track:

With a push on the button the next/previous preset (channel/track/..) of the active source of the selected audio zone is activated.

### Type 'Audio: Next/Previous Zone:

With a push on the button the next/previous zone is selected.

### Type 'Audio: Mute:

The 'mute' code for the selected zone will be sent. If the zone was already in 'mute', the 'mute' will be removed

Only when the codes 'mute on' and 'mute out' are the same for the selected audio appliance!

### Type 'Audio: On/Off:

The selected audio zone will be switched on or off.

 Image: Image:

# Touch screen functions

# Description

The touch screen functions are some predefined special functions for i.e. display on/off, Go to page etc. on the touch panels equipped with a display.

## Overview

### Type 'Display:

The 'display' function can force a display to go OFF while bypassing the display sleep timer. Or it can switch the display ON.

### Type 'Go to page:

The 'go to page' function will switch the page to the desired one. This function is only available on the AURUS-OLED (PLUS).

 Image: Image:
# The step function

### Description

A 'Step' function contains up to 10 different functions. Each time the 'step' function is called, the next step will be executed.

For example: switching between the 10 different RGB colours by using just one button.

### Parameters

		12		15				0	K
Room		Icon:		Name:					
Dining Room	) 🛱	Mood	Ŷ	STEP Audio zones		Include "OFF" step		Can	cel
Select Output:									
Audio zone 🗸 🗸	03 Dinin	g Room		~	1 🖻	Preset 1	×	On/-	8
Audio zone 🗸 🗸	03 Dinin	g Room		~	口間	Preset 2	~	On/-	~
Audio zone 🗸 🗸	03 Dinin	g Room		~	) 67	Preset 3	~	On/-	2
Audio zone 🗸 🗸	03 Dinin	g Room		~	) 🗗	Preset 4	~	On/-	
Audio zone 🗸 🗸	03 Dinin	g Room		~	) (17	Preset 5	~	On/ -	~
Audio zone 🗸 🗸	03 Dinin	g Room		~	] 『	Preset 6	~	On/ -	2
Audio zone 🗸 🗸	03 Dinin	g Room		~	1 🗗	Preset 7	~	On/-	
Audio zone 🗸 🗸	03 Dinin	g Room		~	) (27	Preset 8	~	On/-	~
Audio zone 🗸 🗸	03 Dinin	g Room		~	) 12	Preset 9	~	On/ -	~
Audio zone v	03 Dinin	Room			1 59	Preset 0	~	On/-	

#### Name

the naming of a 'Step' function is divided in 3 parts:

- Room: select here the room where the 'step' function will be activated.
- Icon: select here if the 'step' function has to be reproduced on a TELETASK touchscreen and if so, with the use of which icon?
- Name: Fill in a short but clear description of the 'step' function.

#### Select output

in this field you can define up to 10 functions which will be controlled step by step when activating the 'step' function. Depending of the selected function, per function you have to put in some function specific parameters. See the description of the chosen function.

• ;Add 'OFF' step: this parameter determines if after the last step the first step will be repeated or if an 'OFF' step follows. If the 'OFF' step is used, all functions within the 'step' function will be switched off.

### Function behaviour when used on an interface

### Type 'Step'

- 'Short: with a short push on the button the 'Step' function is activated. This means that the first function of the desired status will be switched. A next push will activate the next step. The previous step won't be switched off explicit.
- 'Long: The operation is the same as described under 'Short'.

### Type 'Out'

- 'Short: with a short push on the button the 'Step' function will be switched off. All steps have to be switched of explicitly.
- 'Long: The operation is the same as described under 'Short'.

### Function behaviour when operating in another function

A 'Step' function can be selected in another function. When activating the other function, the 'Step' function will connect according the predefined target value.

### STEP

when activating the function the next step will be executed.

#### OFF

when activating the function the 'step' function will be switched off. All steps will be switched off explicitly.

#### STEP/OFF

when activating the function, the next step will be executed, when switching off the function, the 'step' function will be switched off. All steps will be switched off explicitly.

### OFF/OFF

when activating or switching off a function the 'step' function will be switched off. All steps will be switched off explicitly.

Not every function can be switched off. If a function can be switched off is marked at the different functions.

When another function switches off the current step of the 'step' function, the 'step' function will be considered as switched off. This means that the 'step' function later on will re-start at step 1 (the other steps are not switched off explicitly).

When a 'step' of a 'step function' is activated by another function the 'current step' of the 'step function' will not be set to this 'step'. (This is because it's possible that different 'steps' of a 'step function' are "ON" at the same time, e.g. it's is possible that both 'a LMD in step 2' and 'a different LMD in step 5' of a 'step function' are switched on by another function. Hence it is not possible to define which 'step' of the 'step function' should be 
 Image: Image:

© 2018 TELETASK bvba

# The RGB function

### Description

The 'RGB' function combines 3 dimmers for controlling multi colour lighting.

### Parameters

Name Function Name:			ОК
RGB 1			Cancel
Room:		Icon:	
Living	~ 🗋 📾	Not visible V	
Select Dimmers	¢		
RED:	01 Living	» Red	~
GREEN:	02 Living	» Green	~

- ;Name: the naming of a 'RGB' function is divided in 3 parts:
- Name: insert here a short and clear description of the 'RGB' function.
- Room: select here the room in which the 'RBG' function is activated.
- Icon: select here whether the Local Mood has to be represented on a TELETASK touchscreen and if yes, under what icon.

#### Select dimmers

in this field you can select the three dimmers which will control the multicolour lighting. We foresee always 1 dimmer for the colour red, 1 for the colour green and 1 for the colour blue.

### Function behaviour when used on an interface

asic Advanced						
AURUS-0	LED WH (bedroom)		Audio zone:	Bedroom	~	
Central Unit: A: NANOS	S Central Unit	~	Sensor Zone:	Bedroom	~	
ddress: AUTOBUS	51 🗸 5		RGB zone:	None	~	
				Main Beep on IR	IR Enable	
erface type:		Button functions				
US 12032: AURUS-OLED PLUS		Short			1 (1997) (1997)	
- 1 2 Customize	3 4 this screen	Fade In: 1	sec V Out 3 Colour Basic colours:	sec v		
5 6	7 8	Input definition	Custom colours:			
				ColouriSe	Hue: 160 Re Sat: 0 Gree	d: 12
			Define Custom Color	ColouriSe	Sat: 0	Gree

#### Short

with a short push on the button the 'RGB' function will be set on the defined colour. If the 'RGB' function was already set on this colour, it will be switched off (all dimmers will be switched off).

• ;Long: The operation is the same as described under 'Short'.

### Function behaviour when operating in another function

When activating the other function the 'RGB' function will be controlled to the defined colour. When switching off the other function, the 'RGB' function will be switched off.

Not every function can be switched off. If a function can be switched off is marked at the different functions.

We suggest working with bright colours for the 'RGB' function (you find them in the upper side of the colour chart)

I I TELETASK Technical handbook » PROSOFT » Functions overview » The RGB function

# The tunable white function

### Description

The 'Tunable white' function combines 2 dimmers for controlling kelvin (colour temperature) of the light source as well as the brightness.

Kelvin is the unit to express how warm or cold the lighting is. The higher the kelvin value the 'colder' the lighting will look (going to blue). The lower the kelvin value the 'warmer' the lighting will look (going to orange).

### Parameters

Name Function Name:	n;				ОК
Kitchen light					Cancel
Room:		loon:			
Keuken	~ 🗋 🖻	Light		~	
Configure Dim	mers:				
Warm white:	01 Keuken » Light » WW		~	Kelvin:	2700
			-		7000
Cold white:	02 Keuken » Light » KW		~	Kelvin:	

### Name Function

The naming of a 'Tunable white' function is divided in 3 parts:

- Name: insert here a short and clear description of the 'Tunable white' function.
- Room: select here the room in which the 'Tunable white' function is activated.
- **Icon:** select here whether the Tunable white function has to be represented on a TELETASK touchscreen and if yes, under what icon.

#### **Configure Dimmers**

In this field you can select the two dimmers which will control the kelvin of the lighting.

- Warm white: The dimmer for controlling the warm white component.
- Warm white kelvin: the lowest possible kelvin value supported by the lighting.
- Cold white: The dimmer for controlling the cold white component.
- Cold white kelvin: the highest possible kelvin value supported by the lighting.

#### Options

Additional options for the tunable white function

• Set default to human centric lighting: Indicates that the colour temperature is default controlled by the human centric lighting (see Options > Light color settings). This also means that the human centric lighting will take back control of the colour temperature each time the lamp is turned off (when the colour temperature was manually overridden).

### Function behaviour when used on an interface

The tunable white function behaves like regular dimmer but with the additional feature that you can specify the kelvin value.

Temperature color selector				×
Color temperature	curve (ctc)			
2700	4000	5000	6500	7000
warm tones				cool tones
Color temperature (K)	3700	]		
Brightness				
enable				
Level	50% ~			
			Ok	Cancel

#### **Color temperature**

Specifies the kelvin value behaviour.

- **Enable:** Check enable if you want to control the kelvin value. You have 2 choices when selected. Option 1 is to chose a specific kelvin value in the slider (or fill in the kelvin value in the textbox). Option 2 is to let the "daylight curve" control the kelvin value.
  - **Use daylight curve (ctc):** The kelvin value will be set and constantly changed to the kelvin value plotted by the daylight curve (see Options > Light color settings).
  - Color temperature (K): The kelvin value will be set to to this value.

#### Brightness

Specify the brightness(dimming) level.

- Enable: Check enable if you want to control the brightness (dimming).
- Level: The brightness level .

### Actions

#### Short

Actions available when tapping the button:

- **Toggle between:Last level / OFF:** Toggle between the last level (brightness) and off. You have the additional option to configure the kelvin value.
- **Toggle between: Set level / OFF:** Toggle between the configured level (brightness) and off. You have the additional option to configure the kelvin value.
- Tune white: Set the level (brightness) and kelvin value.

Remark: With this action it is not mandatory to set the level (brightness) or kelvin value. In case you are not setting a specific value (brightness/colour(kelvin)), it will remain what is currently active.

• Set last level: Set the brightness to the last level. You have the additional option to configure the kelvin value.

Remark: The level (brightness) will be set to 10% in case the last level was below 10%.

• Set last level / 100%: Set the level (brightness) to the last level. When activated again it will set the level (brightness) to 100%. You have the additional option to configure the kelvin value.

#### Long

Actions available when holding the button longer than 1,2s. All off the actions of the short press are available with a few additional once:

- **Continuous Dimming:** The dimmer will make a continuous linear movement between 0% and 100%. With this function the light intensity can be adjusted completely to your needs. No kelvin value can be configured, the current kelvin value will be used.
- **Dim up:** The dimmer will increase from the active status till 100%. No kelvin value can be configured, the current kelvin value will be used.
- **Dim down:** The dimmer will decrease from the active status till 0%. No kelvin value can be configured, the current kelvin value will be used.

 Image: Image:

© 2018 TELETASK bvba

# Communication

## Table of contents:

Connecting your PC with the central unit Connection trouble shooting Communication with the DOIP central unit

 Image: Image:

© 2018 TELETASK bvba

# Connecting your PC with the central unit

For sending/receiving from PROSOFT to the DOIP central unit, there are two possible ways:

- USB Connection (Short cable; temporary use). With a USB cable (standard USB-B to USB-A, not included with the central unit) you can connect the DOIP directly to the PC with USB 2.0 and USB1.1 compatible ports. This is typically used for temporary connections (communication with PROSOFT and testing I/O's). Remember that USB is not able to use long cables (about 5 meters).
- 2. Ethernet Connection (Long cables possible up to 100 meter; temporary or permanent connection). Through the RJ45-Ethernet connector on the DOIP central unit you can connect to your LAN (Local Area Network). This is typically used for a permanent connection with a PC, GUI-Device (touchscreen PC) or any LAN application.

### Before you start:

### Windows 7, XP and Vista:

This guide to communicate with the DOIP central unit is written for Windows 7. For Windows XP/Vista the procedures are largely the same. Where needed, there will be extra screen shots/Information for Windows Vista/XP.

### Control Panel:

For some parts in the guide you will be asked to go to the control panel. We assume that the control panel is set to the 'Classic view'. In Windows 7 you find this in the right upper corner of the control panel. In both Vista and XP you can find button 'Classic view on the left part of the control panel'. If the button is labelled 'Switch to category view' you are already working in the classic view.



# USB Communication

To avoid possible problems it is recommended always to use the same USB-port on your PC. Some PC's tend not to recognize the DOIP central unit if connected to another port!

USB is the easiest way to connect your PC to the DOIP central unit. To be able to use this way of communication, a specific USB driver should be installed first. Follow the steps below to prepare your PC:

### Installing the necessary USB driver (Windows 7)

- Make sure that the correct PROSOFT Suite version is installed on your PC.
- Connect your PC to the DOIP central unit using a standard (A to B type) USB cable
- Windows will give a short message that the hardware couldn't be installed.



- Go to the Control panel
- Click on Device Manager
- Look for the RNDIS/Ethernet Gadget (has a yellow triangle)
- Click with the right mouse button on this item and choose update driver software.



• Select in the next screen:' Browse my computer for driver software'

•	Search automatically for updated driver software Windows will search your computer and the Internet for the latest driver software for your device, unless you've disabled this feature in your device installation settings.	
•	B <u>r</u> owse my computer for driver software Locate and install driver software manually.	

• Select in the next screen: 'Let me pick from a list of device drivers on my computer'.

Browse for drive	r software on you	ur computer			
Search for driver softv	vare in this location:				
C:\PROGRAM FILES	(X86)\TELETASK\PROS	OFT 3.2	•	Browse	
Include subfolders					
Let me pick	from a list of dev	ice drivers on i	my comput	er	
This list will she	w installed driver softw	ware compatible wit	th the device, a	nd all driver	
soltware in the	same category as the c	JEVICE.			

• Select in the next screen: Have disk'.

.

Select the device driver you want to install for the	his hardware.
Select the manufacturer and model of your hardwar disk that contains the driver you want to install, click	re device and then click Next. If you have a k Have Disk.
Show compatible hardware	
Indoei	
This driver is digitally signed.	Have Disk

• Now browse to the installation folder of PROSOFT. Normally this should be c:\Program Files (x86)\TELETASK\PROSOFT 3.2 and click 'OK'.



- Windows will give a warning about the installation of the driver, click 'Continue anyway'
- Windows will now install the correct driver for the DOIP central unit (this may take some time)
- Click Finish in the last screen of the 'Find New Hardware Wizard'.
- Your computer is now ready for communication with the DOIP.



Drivers are installed for each USB port separately, so if you use another USB port of your PC (notebook) the

### Installing the necessary USB driver (Windows XP)

- Make sure that the correct PROSOFT Suite Version is installed on your PC.
- Connect your PC with the DOIP Central Unit by a standard (A to B type) cable.
- Windows will automatically start the 'New Hardware Wizard'.
- Choose 'Not this time' and click on next.

#### Found New Hardware Wizard



• Choose 'Install from a list or specific location (Advanced)' and click next

Found New Hardware Wizar	d
	This wizard helps you install software for: Teletask Central Unit (RNDIS) If your hardware came with an installation CD or floppy disk, insert it now. What do you want the wizard to do? Install the software automatically (Recommended) Install from a list or specific location (Advanced) Click Next to continue.
	< <u>B</u> ack <u>N</u> ext> Cancel

• In the next screen, select 'Search for the best driver in these locations'

check 'Include this location in the search', click the browse button and select the location of the PROSOFT Installation folder.

• Windows will give a warning about the installation of the driver, click 'Continue anyway'



- Windows will now install the correct driver for the DOIP central unit (this may take some time)
- Click Finish in the last screen of the 'Find New Hardware Wizard'.

Found New Hardware Wi	zard
	Completing the Found New Hardware Wizard
55	The wizard has trivished installing the software for:
0	Dick Finish to close the wizard.
	Cancel

• Your computer is now ready for communication with the DOIP.

Drivers are installed for each USB port separately, so if you use another USB port of your PC (notebook) the next time you want to communicate with the DOIP you will need to repeat this procedure.

### Checking the connection

You can check if the USB cable is correctly connected to the TELETASK Central unit:

- Go to Start, Control Panel, Network and sharing centre, Manage network connections (in the bar on the left, 'Change Adapter Settings). For XP is this Control Panel, Network connections.
- There must be a connection with Device Name; TELETASK Central Unit (RNDIS)...



Troubleshooting: If you have problem communicating with the DOIP via USB you can check the following

Check if the USB port is working properly with another device (e.g. mouse, keyboard,)

Check if you can communicate via USB to another DOIP central unit (if available), if this works, there might be a problem with the central unit, contact your TELETASK supplier.

Make sure your Windows is updated (Service Pack 2 is necessary on XP)

Check if it is possible to communicate to the DOIP using another USB port/Computer. If this works there might be a problem with your USB port / computer, contact you PC distributor.

### Reinstall the driver

Following section describes how you can install the driver when you cancelled the normal procedure.

- Make sure your PC is (still) connected to the DOIP with USB
- Go to Device Manager (Start/Control Panel)
- Probably you will find a device there with an exclamation mark

(this means: not correctly installed)

- Right click on that item en choose 'uninstall'
- Press OK to confirm the removal of the driver.
- Remove the USB cable from the PC
- Now you can go back to section A. Installing the driver

# Ethernet Communication

Ethernet communication looks is a bit more complex than USB communication. In most cases however setting up the Ethernet communication is as easy (or even easier) as setting up a USB connection. This is the case when you have a simple LAN network to which your computer is already connected.

You can connect the DOIP to your Network (switch/router) with a standard Ethernet patch cable.

From the moment this cable is connected correctly, the Communication LED (LEDLINK) on the DOIP printed circuit board will be on. If this LED is blinking continuously there is possibly something wrong whit the cable (The LED will blink only when there is data-communication)

If your network is a 100Mbit network or more the 100Mb detection LED (LED100MB) will be lit as well.

### Ethernet communicatie through LAN

The best way to connect a PC to the Central Unit through Ethernet is by using a hub, switch or router. Most likely you already have a local network conencted to your PC. Connect the DoIP, and if necessary your computer to the LAN. In order to establish a communication between your computer and the Central Unit, follow these steps:

- Restart the Central Unit once it is connected to the LAN (press the 'Restart' button or remove the power for ten seconds).
- Start Prosoft SUITE V3.1 (or higher); open the .NBT file you want to use (or create a new one if required.)
- Go to the menu 'Communication' and select 'Send'.
- Within the communication window select 'Ethernet'

onnections	
USB communication	
Ethernet TCP/IP communication	
A NANOS Central Unit:	
NotConnected	
IP Address: 192.168.5.83 IP Port Nr: 55955	
Tables Clocks and Cards (if applicable)	-
I rapies, crocks and cards (ir applicable)	Search
Faules, Clocks and Cards (it applicable)	Search Configure
Faules, Clocks and Cards (in applicable).	Search Configure

- Click the 'Search button' and a Message box will appear asking you to press 'SW2' on the central unit. (The 'SW2' button on the DOIP is located at the right side of the printed circuit board, above the battery. Press and release, this button.)
- To make sure that this functionality works your FIREWALL must allow that PROSOFT can accept connections from the network, if you use 'Windows Firewall' you will automatically get a 'Security Alert', you have to choose 'Unblock' there. If you use another Firewall on your PC (ex. Norton Internet Security) please look at the documentation of that software what to do (you can also temporary disable the Firewall)



• A new window will appear in PROSOFT in which you can set the communication parameters. In most cases, the new window will look like this:

The current IP configuration You can change it below and new settings.	is static d click "SAVE" to apply the
<ul> <li>Obtain an IP address au</li> <li>Use the following IP add</li> </ul>	itomatically (Dynamic) fress (Static)
IP address:	192.168.0.80
Subnet Mask:	255.255.255.0
Default gateway:	192.168.0.2

• The text on the top describes the IP settings as they are at the moment, at the bottom you can change the settings. For a new DOIP (or a DOIP on which the IP-address is dynamically assigned) PROSOFT will make a proposal for new settings. It is advised to accept the settings PROSOFT suggests.

There are two types of assigning an IP address: Dynamic or Static. With Dynamic the TELETASK central unit will ask for an IP address on the network, the switch or router will provide the IP address automatically. With a Static IP address the central unit will always have the same IP address.

New DOIP central units always use 'Dynamic' so that they receive all necessary information (IP address, Subnet Mask, Gateway and Name Server) from the network. The disadvantage of this system is that the IP-address can change. Therefore it is advisable to change it to a 'Static' IP-address, like PROSOFT suggest. In this way the IP-address of the central unit will not change, which is easier for sending, necessary for connecting GUI's, ..

- If needed make changes to the settings, and click save to apply. (You can always return to this screen to change the settings again).
- The IP information is now inserted in your .nbt file (save the file to keep the settings for further usage).
- Your PC is now ready for communication with the DOIP (using the saved .nbt file)
- In the communication screen of PROSOFT you can now connect to your central unit.

Remark: when you are connected to the central unit, the 'Search' button, changes to a 'Configure' button.

When you click this button you immediately get the IP configuration screen, and you can change your settings (if this is needed).

Trouble shooting: It is possible that procedure above will not work, this is the case if:

The central unit is 'Static' set to an IP address in another network range than the range of the LAN network. For most small networks IP addresses are in a different range when the first three numbers are not the same (e.g. 192.168.0.10 and 192.168.0.11 are in the same range, 192.168.0.10 and 192.168.1.11 are not).

There is no DHCP server on the LAN (the DHCP server is responsible for giving IP addresses to devices that ask for it, in most cases the Switch or router is also the DHCP server.). In this case the DOIP will use the default IP address (192.168.0.200) and it is possible that this IP address is in wrong network range for your LAN

It is not possible to connect devices in a different IP range, so in both these cases you cannot configure your central unit using Ethernet, use USB to set the IP settings of the central unit to 'Dynamic', reset the central unit and restart this procedure.

Alternatively you can push in SW1 and SW2 during 10 second. Herewith the Ethernet settings of the DOIP central unit are brought back to factory settings (DHCP).

PAY ATTENTION: it will also delete possible NBT information from the DOIP Central Unit.

# Ethernet communication using a Crossed cable (not recommended)

WARNING: In this procedure we will change the IP configuration of your computer. So it is possible that your computer will no longer be able to connect to your network or Internet (you will need to set your PC settings back to what they were before you started this procedure in order to be able to connect again).

TELETASK does not advise this procedure, we recommend using USB or Ethernet using a LAN connection. However there can be situations where this procedure is needed to communicate with the central unit (e.g. if there is no LAN, and you do not have a USB cable with you).

The connection between the PC and the DOIP is normally done with a 'crossed CAT5' cable. (Most recent networkcards of the PC's have an 'auto-cross/straight' detection, then you can also use a straight patch cable) The steps to set up a connection are:

• Find the IP-Address of your central unit

### Find the IP Address of your central unit

The default IP-Address of a new DOIP is 192.168.0.200. If you just unpacked your DOIP you can skip this section

- Connect the central unit and your PC
- Open TELETASK PROSOFT Suite software, go to the communication screen, click on the search button and press 'SW2' on the TELETASK central unit

(see Ethernet communication using LAN for a more detailed description of this step).

• There are two different possibilities of the result by pressing the SW2 switch

#### 1. You get the IP configuration box:



- Press 'Cancel'
- The IP Address is automatically filled in
- You can now press 'Connect' and then press 'Transmit' to send your PROSOFT file
- You can skip the rest of this document

#### 2. You are in the wrong IP subnet:

- PROSOFT Suite gives a message that it can't be connected with the Central Unit.
- Press 'OK'
- The IP Address is automatically filled in
- Note this IP address of the central unit
- Close the PROSOFT Suite

### Give the PC an appropriate IP address (Windows 7).

• Go to Start, Control panel, Network and sharing- change adapter settings). You will have a window looking like this:



- There might be more than one connection (Wireless connection, 1394 Connection,); you need to find the normal wired connection (not the wireless, nor the 1394 connection).
- 'Right click' on the Local area connection and choose properties
- In the new window, select 'Internet Protocol (TCP/IP)' Version 4 connection in the list and click 'Properties'.

- Luciaci		
Provide om Net Vit	mma 57av Glashit C	otellar
	reme shot orgabit or	
		Configure
is connection uses th	ne following items:	
Client for Micro	soft Networks	
🗹 📕 QoS Packet S	cheduler	
File and Printe	r Sharing for Microso	ft Networks
🗹 🔺 Broadcom Adv	vanced Server Progr	am Driver
<ul> <li>Internet Protoc</li> </ul>	col Version 6 (TCP/II	Pv6)
- Internet Protoc	col Version 4 (TCP/II	Pv4)
🗹 🔺 Link-Layer Top	pology Discovery Ma	pper I/O Driver
<ul> <li>Link-Layer Top</li> </ul>	pology Discovery Re	sponder
Instal	Uninstall	Properties
Description		
Transmission Control wide area network p	Protocol/Internet Protocol that provides	otocol. The default communication
across diverse intern	onnected networks.	

• Now you will get a window where you can set the IP configuration for your computer. Change the settings so it looks like this (Assuming that the IP address of the Micros is 192.168.0.200. If not, make sure that the 3 first numbers are the same as from the IP address of the DOIP and that the last number is different).

Warning: Note the settings. Before changing them you might need them in order to reconnect your computer to a network or Internet afterwards.

You can get IP settings assigner this capability. Otherwise, you r for the appropriate IP settings.	d automatically if your network supports need to ask your network administrator
Obtain an IP address auto	matically
Uge the following IP addre	95:
IP address:	192.168.0.10
Subnet mask:	255.255.255.0
Default gateway:	
Obtain DNS server address	s automatically
Use the following DNS served	ver addresses:
Preferred DNS server:	
Alternate DNS server:	
Validate settings upon exi	Advanced

- Click OK to save the new settings. Wait until MSWindows has applied the new settings (this may take some time).
- Open PROSOFT Suite, go to the communication screen, enter the IP address of the DOIP and click 'Connect'.
- Now you can press 'Transmit' to send your PROSOFT file to the DOIP central unit.

### Give the PC an appropriate IP address (Windows XP)

• Go to Start, Control panel, Network connections. You will have a window looking like this:

S Network Connections		
Ele Edit View Favorites Io	ols Advagced Help	27
Address 🔕 Network Connections		💌 🄁 Go
Network Tasks     Image: Create a new connection       Image: Change Windows Firewal settings	LAN or High-Speed Internet	
1 objects	×	

- There might be more than one connection (Wireless connection, 1394 Connection,); you need to find the normal wired connection (not the wireless, nor the 1394 connection).
- 'Right click' on the Local area connection and choose properties
- In the new window, select 'Internet Protocol (TCP/IP)' connection in the list and click 'Properties'.



• Now you will get a window where you can set the IP configuration for your computer. Change the settings so it looks like this (Assuming that the IP address of the Micros is 192.168.0.200. If not, make sure that the 3 first numbers are the same as from the IP address of the DOIP and that the last number is different).

Warning: Note the settings. Before changing them you might need them in order to reconnect your computer to a network or Internet afterwards.

ernet Protocol (TCP/IP) P	roperties 🛛 😰		
ieneral			
You can get IP settings assigned this capability. Otherwise, you ne- the appropriate IP settings.	automatically if your network supports ed to ask your network administrator for		
O Obtain an IP address autom	atically		
• Use the following IP address	5.		
IP address:	192.168.0.10		
Sybriet mask:	255 . 255 . 255 . 0		
Default gateway:	· · · · ·		
O Obtain DNS server address	automatically		
OUse the following DNS serv	er addresses:		
Preferred DNS server:			
Alternate DNS server:			
	Advanced		
	OK Cancel		

- Click OK to save the new settings. Wait until MS Windows has applied the new settings (this may take some time).
- Open PROSOFT Suite, go to the communication screen, enter the IP address of the DOIP and click 'Connect'.
- Now you can press 'Transmit' to send your PROSOFT file to the DOIP central unit.

[] [] [] [] TELETASK Technical handbook » PROSOFT » Communication » Connecting your PC with the central unit

© 2018 TELETASK bvba

# Connection trouble shooting

Follow this procedure when you lost your connection with the DOIP central unit. Don't worry if the heartbeat LED on your central unit stopped blinking. This means a problem has been detected, not that your central unit is down.

# In practice

- When using a LAN connection, trouble could not be related to the Central unit. Try to connect with the Central unit using an USB connection.
- Reset the central unit by pushing the RESTART button or by disconnecting the central unit from the main voltage. Wait up to 1' before the central unit has started up completely.
- Start the PROSOFT Suite and open new file by selecting 'file' 'new' in the menu.
- Connect the PC with the central unit using a proper USB cable.
- In PROSOFT, go to communication and select USB. If this fails, one of the following error might occur:
- USB on your PC is not working properly.
- USB is not properly connected (and installed).
- The Central Unit is defect.
- If the connection succeeded, it should show 'connected' at the bottom of the window.
- Send the empty file you just created, towards the central unit.
- It might happen that an error is show: 'Central unit did not start up correctly'. This means there was a problem with the previous file sent tot the central unit.
- RESTART the central unit a second time. This time the central unit will be completely cleared and will be ready to be configurated. Check if the heartbeat LED on the central unit blinks.
- Now you can open and send a new file towards the central unit.
- If the error occurs again, it means there is a problem with the file you try to send.
- If your central unit is not responding, even when you send an empty file, it might be defect.

Problems in the nbt-file could make the central unit to stop, even after some time. This means the central unit is working properly but you will have to make a new nbt-file.

] 🛛 🔹 🔹 TELETASK Technical handbook » PROSOFT » Communication » Connection trouble shooting

© 2018 TELETASK byba

# Communication with the DOIP central unit

# Send

This section explains how to send your .nbt file to the DOIP, if the connection to the central unit is already working (USB or Ethernet).

Connections O USB communication	×
Ethernet TCP/IP communication   A MICROS+ Central Unit:   Not Connected   IP Address:   192.168.0.80   IP Port Nr:   55955   Tables, Clocks and Cards (if applicable)	Search
	Configure
Connect	Fransmit

#### **Tables to send**

Select in this field, the different tables which are to be sent to the central unit.

#### **Central unit**

upgrading to the newest version: This option is automatically marked if the central unit needs to be upgraded to a newer software version. The new software is send together with the .nbt file.

#### Basic

this option is marked 'V' by default and makes you send every change to the TELETASK central unit. This table contains all relations between the different inputs and outputs.

#### Tables, Clocks and Cards

this option is standard V-marked and sends all data to the central unit.

#### Displays

Mark the displays whereto you want to re-send the data. The NOT sending of these data can shorten the duration time of the sending.

If the central unit needs to be upgraded, you cannot send the displays along. You can do this, if needed, after the upgrade of the central unit.

### In practice:

Click 'Communication' in the PROSOFT menu bar

- Click 'transmit...' and the 'Communication' window appears on the screen
- Set the communication settings.
- Select the desired information which has to be sent to the central unit.
- Click 'OK'. Immediately the data file(s) is (are) sent to the central unit.
- The progression bar/label identifies the status of the communication.

# Receive

O USB com	nunication		
Ethernet 1	CP/IP communication	n ]	
A MICRO	S+ Central Unit:		
Not Con	nected		
	presentation in the state of th	and the second se	
IP Address:	192.168.0.80	IP Port Nr: 55955	
IP Address:	192.168.0.80 Get Log Info	IP Port Nr: 55955 Check SD	Search
IP Address:	192.168.0.80 Get Log Info	IP Port Nr: 55955 Check SD	Search

A special function in the communication menu is 'Receive'. When pushing this button, you can read all the different relations in the TELETASK central unit. This may be a useful tool when you lost the original PROSOFT file with the project data.

Beware: Uploading of an .nbt file out of the central unit can only be used as an emergency tool when you have lost the .nbt file! If the central unit is defect this file also will be lost. Make sure you have ALWAYS an external back-up of your files.

- 'Get Log Info: here you can see the history of the use of the central unit. This info can be very useful for rare software problems. Depending on the size of the history, the getting of the log info can take a long time.
- 'Restart: the software restarts the Central Unit. This can proceeds eventually when you are not near the Central Unit.
- 'Check SD: Check of the SD Card. For more info, please see the 'support & release notes' document.
- 'Format SD: Formatting of the SD Card. For more info, please see the 'support & release notes' document.
- 'Receive: receiving the .NBT file.

[] [] [] [] [] TELETASK Technical handbook » PROSOFT » Communication » Communication with the DOIP central unit

#### © 2018 TELETASK bvba

# Overview of your domotic project

# Print your project

When you want to have a quick look at a certain function or setting in your home automation project, it is easy to have a paper version of your project in the electrical board, stored together with the other electrical drawings. In PROSOFT there is a print feature to create a paper version of your home automation project. Beside the general project settings as the filename, the settings from the installer and the house itself... You are able to print an extended resume from your project. The subjects you can print are settable and are divided in six groups:

#### **Print all information**

all available information will be printed.

### **Print basic information**

All information concerning the Central Unit, the rooms, the Audio Zones, the Sensor zones, the O-interfaces list, the I-interfaces; the Relays outputs, the Dimmer outputs and the Motor outputs.

### Print functions

Print all available functions.

### **Print I-interfaces**

print the list of the I-interfaces + a detailed overview per I-interface.

#### **Print specific I-interface**

print the details of one or some of the chosen I-interfaces. (handy to update your file).

#### Print adapted information

choose which info you want to print.

### Practical

- Click 'File' in the PROSOFT menu.
- Click 'Print'
- The 'Print .NBT File' window appears

- Select the data to be printed.
- Click 'OK'. Here you can change the printer on which you want to print the file.

# Hierarchic List

The list you can print with the data of your domotic project, offers a good overview of the used and available outputs. The hierarchic list shows an overview of every relay, dimmer, motor, sensor, audio zone, flag, clocks, service functions and messages/alarm functions combined with the coupled relations.

Only when an output or a function of this kind is defined in PROSOFT will this function appear in the hierarchic list.

Functions who have no relations with an output (relay, dimmer, flag, ...) are displayed in the list under "Functions without output". Examples: an empty local mood, a mood who is only used to call up another mood who on his turn calls up another mood, ...

If there are functions that have a relation with on output but are nowhere controlled, these will be displayed in the list under "Not used functions". Example: a local mood that controls a relay and a dimmer that are not displayed.

Using the hierarchic list you can read that relay 1 is used in the local mood 'cooking' and that this relay is also switched by touching button 1 on the touch panel located in the kitchen.

Thanks to hierarchic list you can search what happens when an output is acting strange or not as you thought it would work. When you have found the problem in the hierarchic list you can easily solve it in PROSOFT Suite by changing the function.

### In Practice

- The hierarchic list is made by clicking the short key
- Click this short key again to switch of the hierarchic list.
- Image: Image:

© 2018 TELETASK byba

# Diagnostics

Diagnostics is a tool within PROSOFT that allows the user to check the status of outputs, inputs and interfaces of the central unit you are connected to. It also gives the possibility to change the status of some of the outputs and functions. Real-time monitoring of events is also one of the possibilities.

It's the ideal tool during the start-up of a project or it can be used for error detection.

Diagnostics is only enabled when PROSOFT is connected with a running Central Unit.

PROSOFT will automatically connect with the Central Unit when you open the .nbt file of that project if the PC is on the same network.

Eile	Edit	Comm	unication	Egtra	Help	
	6	3 H	5 O	-) []	1 in	4

When connection is established, the Diagnostics icon becomes green

2	46	
->	->	
4	4	

REMARK: You can use diagnostics without a .nbt file. In that case, start PROSOFT and create a new .nbt file with the corresponding type of Central unit (MICROS+, NANOS or). Complete the communication procedure to connect with the Central unit but do not transmit. Diagnostics will become enabled when the connection is established.

When you select Diagnostics from the Extra menu or click on the icon, PROSOFT will show a new Window like below:

Relays
Dimmers
Motors
Digital Inputs
Analog Inputs
Audio zones
Other Function
Interfaces
Monitor

These buttons let you select the type of output, input or other function. The relays windows will open automatically when Diagnostics is started.

# Table of contents:

Relays Dimmers Motors Digital Inputs Analogue Inputs Audio Zones

0 <sup>.</sup> In	ther terf	Fur	ncti	ons	
М	onit	or	2		
				TELETASK Technical handbook » PROSOFT » Diagnostics	

© 2018 TELETASK bvba

. . . . .

# Relays

Relays	(A0 O00/1): 01 Living » Motor - power » Living Blinds P (A0 O01/5): 13 » Heating/Cooling » COOL SP2
Dimmers	(A0 O00/2): 02 Living » Motor - direction » Living Blinds D (A0 O01/6): 14 » Heating/Cooling » COOL SP3
Aotors	(A0 000/3): 03 Living » Motor - power » Living Shutters P (A0 001/7): 15 Garden » Light » Path lights
Digital Inputs	(A0 000/4): 04 Living » Motor - direction » Living Shutters D (A0 001/8): 16 Garden » Light » Lights in the trees
nalog Inputs	(A0_000/5): 05_Kitchen » Motor - power » Kitchen Curtains F
udio zones	
ther Function	(A0 O00/6): 06 Kitchen » Motor - direction » Kitchen Curtain: (A0 O02/2): 18 Kitchen » Device » Cooker
nterfaces	(A0 O00/7): 07 Master bedroom » Motor - power » Bedroom (A0 O02/3): 19 Living » Device » TV corner
Ionitor	(A0 O00/8): 08 Master bedroom » Motor - direction » Bedroc (A0 O02/4): 20 Garden » Device » Jacuzzi
	(AD_O01/1): 09 » Heating/Cooling » Heat SP1 (AD_O02/5): 21 Living » » Ceiling Fan
	(A0 O01/2): 10 » Heating/Cooling » Heat SP2 (A0 O02/6): 22 Living » » Ceiling Fan
	(A0 O01/3): 11 » Heating/Cooling » Heat SP3 (A0 O02/7): 23 Living » » Ceiling Fan
	(A0 001/4): 12 » Heating/Cooling » COOL SP1 (A0 002/8): 24 » »

This is the list of relays defined in the central unit: Each relays is identified as (e.g.): (A0 000/1): 01 Room >> Icon >> Name

### A

Central unit. If multiple Central units are connected over Ethernet, this can be another character. But in case of one Central unit it's A.

### 0

AUTOBUS Number: (0-4) 0 is internally in the Central unit (only possible with a MICROS+/PICOS)

### 0

Input (I) or Output(O): in the list of Relays this is "O"

### 00

AUTOBUS Address of the interface.

### /1

number of the relays on the interface (1-8)

### 01

internal relay number (only used in PROSOFT)

### Room

room in which this relay is defined

24/1/2019

#### lcon

Type of output

#### Name

name of the relay

The Blue or Yellow Box on the left side of the relay description indicates the status of the Relay:

Blue is OFF,

Yellow is ON.

Clicking on the square will toggle the state of the relay between ON and OFF.

For all boxes which are marked with at red cross, it means that the Central unit is not sure about the correct state. The blue or yellow colour indicated how the state should be. Additional information about the error is indicated below the description of the relay in a red font if available.

 Image: Image:

© 2018 TELETASK bvba
### Dimmers

-		0	(A0	007/1): 01 > > R
0%	100%	100%		
0			(AD	007/2): 02 > > G
0%	0%	100%		
		-0	(A0	007/3): 03 > > B
0%	100%	100%		
-		-0	(AD	007/4): 04 Kitchen » Light » Cooking island
0%	100%	100%		
-	0		(A0	O07/5): 05 Living > Light > Main lights
0%	55%	100%		
+	0		(A0	O07/6): 06 Living » Light » Mood lights
0%	54%	100%		
	0		(A0	O07/7): 07 Master bedroom » Light » Main lights
0%	64%	100%		
0			(A0	O07/8): 08 Dining room » Light » Downlights
0%	0%	100%		

This shows the state for each Analogue Output. A fader shows the state in percentages.

Clicking left or right from the fader position will set the fader 10% lower or higher than the current percentage. Slide the fader into a new position is also possible.

A red cross on top of the fader indicates that the Central unit is not sure about the state of the Analogue output, the fader position will indicate how the output is expected to be. Additional error messages indicated in red will tell you more about the error.

 Image: Image:

### Motors

	01 Kitchen » Motor » Curtains
4	02 Living » Motor » Blinds
<b>↓</b>	03 Living » Motor » Shutters
<b>↓</b>	04 Master bedroom » Motor » Venetians

The Motor window will show the state of the Motors and Motor functions. Only the internal motor number is shown together with its room, icon and name.

The state of a motor is shown in three blocks:

- 2 blocks left and right indicate the direction (up and down arrows )
- 1 block in the middle indicates the status of the motor (motor running to 0% or 100%, stationary at a position, calibrating or empty if position indication is not enabled for the motor)

When the central block is blue, that means that the motor is not powered. The state of the direction blocks indicates in which direction the motor has run the last time.

If the central block is Yellow, the motor is powered, the direction is indicated in text and with the direction arrows.

REMARK: for the motor function with output type '1 relay (start/stop)' the arrow blocks are not available because the motor only supports basic start/stop operation.

Clicking on the arrow will start the motor in that direction. Clicking on the central block will start the motor in the opposite direction of the last time or stop it when it was running. After a predefined runtime, the motor will automatically stop.

Clicking the calibrate button will start a calibration of the run times for that motor.(only on motor interfaces that support calibration (TDS13526)).

# A red cross on top of the motor indicates that the Central unit is not sure about the state of the motor, it only indicates how the motor state is expected to be. Additional error messages indicated in red will tell more about the error.

I I TELETASK Technical handbook » PROSOFT » Diagnostics » Motors

# Digital Inputs

1 (A0 I01/1): Digital input number 1	17 (A0 I03/1): Digital input number 17
2 (AD I01/2): Digital input number 2	18 (A0 103/2): Digital input number 18
3 (A0 I01/3): Digital input number 3	19 (A0 I03/3): Digital input number 19
4 (A0 I01/4): Digital input number 4	20 (A0 103/4): Digital input number 20
5 (A0 I01/5): Digital input number 5	21 (A0 I03/5): Digital input number 21
6 (AD 101/6): Digital input number 6	22 (A0 103/6): Digital input number 22
7 (A0 I01/7): Digital input number 7	23 (A0 103/7): Digital input number 23
8 (A0 I01/8): Digital input number 8	24 (A0 103/8): Digital input number 24
9 (A0 102/1): Digital input number 9	25 (A0 104/1): Digital input number 25
10 (AD 102/2): Digital input number 10	26 (A0 I04/2): Digital input number 26
11 (A0 102/3): Digital input number 11	27 (A0 I04/3): Digital input number 27
12 (A0 102/4): Digital input number 12	28 (A0 104/4): Digital input number 28
13 (A0 102/6): Digital input number 13	29 (A0 104/5): Digital input number 29
14 (AD 102/6): Digital input number 14	30 (A0 104/6): Digital input number 30
15 (A0 102/7): Digital input number 15	31 (A0 I04/7): Digital input number 31
16 (A0 I02/8): Digital input number 16	32 (A0 104/8): Digital input number 32

The digital inputs show the state of the digital inputs of the Central Unit, TDS12117, TDS12124 and TDS12125. The first part of the 'Input' description is identical as a 'Relay'. See chapter Relays. The only difference is the 'name' which is defined in the 'info' field from the 'Define interface function' window. If the 'info' field is blank, it will get an internal input number.

Input is OPEN (or CLOSED for inverted input)

Input is CLOSED (or OPEN for inverted input)

Input is OPEN but has been closed (short Pulse) during the last 30 seconds (not possible for edge triggered)

Clicking on the Inputs will not change the state of the input, they are "read only".

 Image: Image:

## Analogue Inputs

-	0	11 M	01 Downstairs
-40°C	27,5°C	+80°C	
-	0		02 Upstairs
-40°C	28°C	+80°C	

The Analogue Inputs window shows the state of the analogue inputs of the central unit, inputs of TDS12309, TDS12310, temperature sensors of the AURUS touch panels and connected HVAC systems (IP and/or Modbus). The state shows an analogue value between the minimum and maximum predefined values.

The state is read-only and cannot be altered.

A red cross on top of the fader indicates that the Central unit doesn't know the state of the input, it only indicates "???". Additional error messages indicated in red will tell more about the error.

 Image: Image:

### Audio Zones

OFF	(DOIP /1): B 01 NUVO bar 1e
OFF	(DOIP /1): B 25 NUVO wc 1e
×	(DOIP /1): B 49 NUVO wc 2e ERROR: Error: 253
TUNER	(C1 104/1): C 01 Productie

The Audio Zones Window shows the state of the different audio zones:

It shows "OFF" or the active source in that Audio zone.

The State is read-only and can't be altered.

A red cross on top of state indicates that the Central unit doesn't know the state of the zone, it only indicates how the expected state should be. Additional error messages indicated in red will tell more about the error.

 Image: Image:

## Other Functions

	Local Mood
Interfaces	Timed Local Mood
Monitor	General Mood
	Flags
	Timer functions
	Condition
	If-Then-Else functions
	Process functions
	Fan (exhaust) functions
	Fan (ceiling sweep) functions
	Messages and Alarms

01 Master bedroom » Mood » All shutters down	10 » Motor » Living 'dark', all blinds closed
02 Living » Mood » Watch TV ERROR: Interface not found	11 » Mood » Deactivate Cinema mood ERROR: Interface not found
03 Living » Device » Open the front door (12345)	12 Kitchen » Mood » Cooking lights
04 » » Leaving	13 Kitchen » Mood » Stop cooking
05 » Mood » Sim heating problem	14 Dining room > Mood > Diner time
06 » Mood » Sim Fire alert	15 Office » Mood » Activate sockets desk 1
07 » Mood » Sim burglary alert	16 Office » Mood » Activate sockets desk 2
08 Living » Mood » Go to bed	17 Office » Mood » Deactivate desks (passcode 12345)
09 » Mood » Soft lights	

When selecting "Other Functions" you need to make a choice which function type you want to select.

In this case we selected Local Mood and this gives you the list of function of that type.

The view is identical to the relay, showing the function number, Room, icon and name. the state can be changed by clicking the square.

The view is identical for all types of "other functions", only the condition type is read only, the others can be changed state.

Remark: a function can only be in error if one of the devices (or other functions) used in this function are in error.

 Image: Image:

## Interfaces

A1 126 TDS12142 Proximity reader vooraan buiten

TDS12015 LATUS LCD Boardroom (key 1 - 8)

A1 171

Search o AUTOBL	nteria IS:	AUTOBUS: 1.4	2					
Inputs / Outputs		(5.4	-					
inputs / G	Jutputs	Both						
	Search Interfaces	Stop Search						
Searchin	interface 13 on AUTOB	9US 1						
Address	Name		Status	Info	Version	Voltage	Details	
A1 101	TDS12015 LATUS LCD tr	aining room (key 1 - 8)	ок		V10			
A1 102	TDS12015 LATUS LCD tr	aining room (key 9 - 16)	ок		V10	1		
A1 103	TDS12025 AURUS-SENS	E	ок		Upgrade	11.2 V	Details	
A1 104	TDS12142 Proximity reade	er poort	ок		V104			
A1 107	TDS12118 Digital input int	erface aan teller	ок					
A1 108	TDS12001 LATUS kitcher	n dawn (key 1-8)	ок		V5			
A1 109	TDS12001 LATUS ktcher	n down (key 9-16)	ок		V5			
A1 110	TDS12001 LATUS cloaker	oom (key 1-8)	OK		V8			
A1 111	TDS12001 LATUS cloaker	oom (key 9-16)	ок		V8			
A1 113	TDS12001 LATUS bar (ke	ey 1-8)	ОК		V7			
A1 114	TDS12001 LATUS bar (ke	sy 9-16)	OK		V7			
A1 115	TDS12001 LATUS meetin	ig mi (key 1-8)	OK		V5			
A1 116	TDS12001 LATUS meetin	g mn (key 9-16)	OK		V5			
A1 121	TDS12142 Proximity reade	er meeting room	OK		V102			
41 122	TDS12142 Proximity reade	er board room	OK		V102			
A1 123	TDS12308 Analoge input	interface	OK		V206			
A1 124	TDS12142 Proximity reade	er deur vestiare	OK		V102			
A1 125	TDS12142 Proximity reade	er zijdeur buiten	OK		V102			

The interface window shows the list of interfaces known by the Central unit. This means all interfaces that are defined by the .nbt file that was transmitted, but also interfaces that are not defined but found by the central unit. (when all is well configured, the last part should result in no errors).

OK

OK

V102

V7

When opening the window the PROSOFT starts an active search on the different busses starting with AUTOBUS 1. It first start searching for input interfaces, followed by output interfaces. When Items are defined on AUTOBUS 1, PROSOFT will continue the search on AUTOBUS 2, 3,... The bold line just above the table indicates where the Central unit is searching. The search can be stopped and refined by selecting busses and selecting Outputs and/or Inputs. During the search the list will change from grey lines into white lines. The grey lines show the previous state of the known interfaces (Preview). The white lines are the actual found results.

When the search is complete (all white) the table shows the state of the interfaces connected to the Central unit. The state indicates OK or not OK with an error description. In some cases more info can be found by pressing the details button. When the interface supports it the firmware version number and AUTOBUS voltage are shown. When a new version of the firmware is available an upgrade button appears. You can click on it to start the firmware update. When started you can close the diagnostics or even PROSOFT. The Central Unit handles these updates autonomously. Additional information can be shown by clicking the "Details" button.

 Image: Image:

### Monitor

14:12:12 14:12:12 14:12:12 14:12:19 14:12:19 14:12:19 14:12:26 14:12:26 14:12:23 14:12:23 14:12:23 14:12:33 14:12:33 14:12:33 14:12:33 14:12:33 14:12:33 14:13:39 14:13:39 14:13:39 14:13:39 14:13:46 14:13:54 14:13:54 14:15:13 14:15:13 14:15:21 14:15:21	L:A:1,20,3;1,1,1 L:V:1,20,3;2953 L:A:1,20,3;1,1,2 L:A:1,20,3;1,1,2 L:A:1,20,3;1,1,2 L:A:1,20,3;1,1,2 L:A:1,20,3;1,1,1 L:V:1,20,3;2952 L:A:1,20,3;1,1,1 L:V:1,20,3;2952 L:A:1,20,3;1,1,1 L:V:1,20,3;2953 L:A:1,20,3;1,1,1 L:V:1,20,3;2952 L:A:1,20,3;1,1,1 L:V:1,20,3;2953 L:A:1,20,3;1,1,1 L:V:1,20,3;2953 L:A:1,20,3;1,1,1 L:V:1,20,3;2953 L:A:1,20,3;1,1,1 L:V:1,20,3;2953 L:A:1,20,3;1,1,1 L:V:1,20,3;2953 L:A:1,20,3;1,1,2 L:A:1,20,3;1,1,1 L:V:1,20,3;2953 L:A:1,20,3;1,1,2 L:A:1,20,3;1,2 L:A:1,20,3;1,1,2 L:A:1,20,3;1,2 L:A	romr 111 to 2 co	mmand=4	
	Clear window		Copy to clipboard	

The Monitor window shows the activity of the Central unit. These are the same logs you can find in the today.log when you choose "Get Log Info" from the communication/receive Menu. Or from all logs that are stored onto the PC when downloading the logs. The directory is located on:

"C:\ProgramData\TELETASK\LOGS\Serial number CENTRAL UNIT\2014\04" you find log files for each day for that month.

Figuring out what is shown in these logs needs some practice. Each action starts with the time when it occurred. In the monitor this is the Calculated Clock time of the Central Unit. In the stored log files this is the UCT time (in milliseconds from 01/01/1970 0:00). So you need to distract a number of time zones to get the real time. The rest of the log line contains log data, information, warnings or errors.

A log data line starts with L followed by a Log Type (S,A,V,T,H,P,L,B,D), additional subtypes and parameters.

# S (State changed)

Tells you that the state of a function has changed.

L;	S;	0,	9,	2,	-1
Log	State	Central Unit nr (0= not linked to a	Function Type (see	Function	State: (-1=ON, 0=OFF,
	Changed	CPU)	list)	Nr.	%)

The State of Timed Local Mood nr 2 is ON.

# D (Digital Input Pressed)

Tells that a digital input or pushbutton has been pressed.

L;	D;	1,	52,	64,	1,	0
Log	Digital Input Press	Central Unit nr	Function Type (=52)	Digital input Nr.	Function (Short =1, Long or rising edge=2, released or falling edge=3)	Additional info (e.g. 8 = IR command)

Digital input 64 has been pressed shortly.

### A (Activate Function)

Activates a certain function/device from a function/input.

L;	Α;	1,	20,	2;	1,	1,	92
Log	Activate Device	Central Unit nr (0= not linked to a Central Unit)	Function Type (see list)	Function Nr	Central Unit nr (0= not linked to a Central Unit)	Function Type (see list)	Function Nr

### 1, 20, 2

Device/function that is activating another device/function Device/function that is activating another device/function

### 1, 1, 92

Device/function that is activated by another device/function

Sensor zone nr 2 will act on relay 92.

L;	Α;	0,	-40,	2;	1,	1,	2
Log	Activate Function	Central Unit nr (0= not linked to a Central Unit)	Function Type (-40= GUI or diagnostics, 0 = from other Central Unit)	Function Nr (2 in case of -40 = active GUI nr)	Central Unit nr (0= not linked to a Central Unit)	Function Type (see list)	Function Nr

The second activated GUI (or Diagnostics) will switch relay 2.

Remark: A log line with log type A does not contain info on what will happen to the actual device (can be switched on or off or nothing may happen).

# V (Analogue Value)

A sensor measured a new value.

L;	V;	1,	20,	2;	2905

Log	Value	Central Unit	Function Type (see	Sensor	Value (Calculation see manual
	(sensor)	nr	list)	Nr	TDS15132)

Sensor 2 measured value 2905 = 17.5°C (2905/10 - 273).

# L (Led Feedback)

Tells you that the feedback of a touch panel button changes state.

L;	L;	1,	52,	192;	-1
Log	Led	Central Unit	Function Type (52 = Touch panel	Touch panel Key	State (-1=ON,
	Feedback	nr	Key)	Nr	0=OFF)

The feedback of touch panel button nr 192 is ON.

## I (Interface Started)

Tells you that an interface is started up.

L;	l;	1,	1,	30
Log	Interface started	Central Unit nr (0= not linked to a Central Unit)	AUTOBUS Nr	AUTOBUS Address

An interface has started up with address 30 on AUTOBUS nr 1.

### F (Function Set)

A function has been activated from an TELETASK touch panel.

L;	F;	1,	2,	87;	1,	1,	30
Log	Function Set (from TELETASK Touchscreen)	Central Unit Nr	AUTOBUS Nr	AUTOBUS Address	Central Unit nr (0= not linked to a Central Unit)	Function Type (see list)	Function Nr

Touch panel with Address 87 on AUTOBUS 2 will switch Relay 30.

# T (Tag)

Tells you that an tag or card has been presented to a tag reader.

L;	Т;	1203620;	-1	1,	1,	2
Log	Tag	Tag number	Access (-1=allowed, 0=not allowed)	Central Unit Nr	AUTOBUS Nr	AUTOBUS address
24/1/2	019		TELETASK can't be responsible for potential errors in the	lata sheets and technical docu	mentation	Page 301

TELETASK can't be responsible for potential errors in the data sheets and technical documentation Changes in the product features can be made at any time, without prior notice. ©, TELETASK, GENT Tag number 1203620 has been presented to reader with Address 2 on AUTOBUS 1 and access is allowed.

# Q (Quarter Total)

Tells you the number of pulses a certain pulse sensor has detected for the last 15 minutes.

L;	Q;	1,	20,	3;	1
Log	Quarter Total	Central Unit nr	Function Type (20 = Sensor)	Zone Nr	Nr of pulses

Pulse sensor 3 detected 1 pulse in the last 15 minutes.

## P (Preset Changed)

Tells you that a Preset of a certain zone has been changed.

L;	Ρ;	3,	20,	22,	29;	2955
Log	Preset	Central	Function	Zone	Preset (29= Day,	New Value (calculation see
	change	Unit nr	Type (=20)	Nr	27=Night, 88=ECO)	Manual TDS15132)

The Day preset of sensor 22 on central unit 3 has been set to 26,5°C.

### B (Unknown Button Pressed)

A button has been pressed but the CENTRAL UNIT doesn't have any information regarding this touch panel. This indicates an error (probably an interface that is not configured in the .nbt file).

L;	В;	1,	1,	11;	5,	1,	0
Log	Unknown Button Pressed	Central Unit nr	AUTOBUS Nr	AUTOBUS Address	Button Nr on interface	Function (see "D")	Additional info

Button 5 of Interface with address 11 on AUTOBUS 1 has been pressed shortly.

### C (Central Unit Command)

Tells you that a function on another CENTRAL UNIT will be executed. (only available when multiple CENTRAL UNIT are in one project).

L;	С;	3,	1,	16;	3
Log	Central Unit Command	Central Unit nr	Function Type	Function Nr	Target Central Unit Nr

Relay 16 on CENTRAL UNIT 3 will be switched. (the log line on CENTRAL UNIT 3 would look like: L;A;0,0;3;1,16).

# H (Hour)

Indicates The CENTRAL UNIT has sent the current Date/Time to all interfaces. (after Start up and every hour) synchronizes all clocks on touch panels.

||L; |H; |8 Log|Hour|Hour (0-11)

C
 TELETASK Technical handbook » PROSOFT » Diagnostics » Monitor

### TIMESOFT

### Table of contents:

Actions based	on time programs
Defining a cloo	ck action

I I TELETASK Technical handbook » TIMESOFT

## Actions based on time programs

Timed actions need to be very flexible. TIMESOFT is the perfect tool if you want to have a fast overview and if you need a powerful editing tool for the flexible clock system in your home automation project. TIMESOFT is also ideal to manage the thermostat clock actions of the temperature sensor zones.

# The different clock tables.

To adapt reoccurring actions to your life pattern there are five time tables which we call 'clock tables' available. Every clock table has its own typical use and can contain several TELETASK outputs or executable PROSOFT functions. In the remaining part of this chapter, these outputs and functions are called 'clock actions'.

- Cont. The 'Continuous' clock table: This table is always active. All clock actions entered in this table will be executed at the defined time of the day without any exception. This 'continuous' clock table is particularly suitable for clock actions which are not depending of your possible presence in the house or day of the week. Typical application: every day 11pm, close all the curtains.
- Work. The 'Working day' clock table: This clock table is only active (actions in it are processed) on the days which you have defined as working days. The working day clock table has an OR relation with the 'weekend clock table and the 'presence simulation' clock table. If one is activated, the other two are always deactivated automatically.
- The 'Weekend' clock table: This clock table is only active (actions in it are processed) on the days which you have defined as weekend days (not working days). The weekend-day clock table has an OR relation with the 'working day' clock table and the 'presence simulation' clock table. If one is activated, the other two are always deactivated automatically.
- The 'Presence simulation' clock table: This clock table is only active (actions in it are processed) when the system is in presence simulation status. The presence simulation clock table has an OR relation with the 'weekend clock table and the 'working day' clock tables. If one is activated, the other two are always deactivated automatically.

# The 'Special' clock table: This clock table can be activated and deactivated when you want with any button or even with a clock action. When active, the clock actions in this table are executed and when not active, no actions are taken.

## Start TIMESOFT.

Simply click the TIMESOFT icon in the PROSOFT Suite menu bar.



## Visualisation

Every action which is added in one of the clock tables appears with a symbol on the weekly display of your PC (main TIMESOFT window) and it is also displayed in the table overview at the right of the TIMESOFT window. In some cases the clock actions can be numerous and therefore there are extra table selection buttons at the top of the main window. Use the selection buttons to get a good overview of the actions in the tables. A clock table is shown in the overview when the corresponding selection button is highlighted in orange.

When a selection button is not highlighted, the corresponding clock actions will not be displayed in the week display and the overview table. Although these actions are not displayed, they are still present in the clock table In the clock action overview table it is very easy to see to which clock table to a certain clock action belongs due to the coloured square in front of the clock action. Clock types:

 Click to visualize all clocks. Default selected when TIMESOFT is opened.

 Click to only visualize all the clocks of a specified thermostat.

 Click to only visualize all the clocks of a specified thermostat.

 Click to only visualize all the 'none thermostat' clocks.

### Clock tables:



Click to visualize the actions (for the shown week) in the 'continuous' clock table. Colour: Black

욭 Work.

Visualization of the Work day clock table. Colour: Red





Visualization of the Presence Simulation. clock table Colour: Green



Visualization of the Special clock table. Colour: Yellow

When you add a clock action which is repeated every x minute or x hour(s), than the actions will only be displayed once a day at the moment the action takes place for the first time that day. At the other hand it is not recommended to add such fast repetitions, because they may block the system or the actions may be executed with a delay.

A maximum of 300 actions will be displayed on the main window. Hide clock tables to have a better overview on the screen.

When a clock action is selected (by clicking on it in the calendar overview or in the table overview) you will see that the clock action symbol on the calendar overview is filled (little triangle near the timeline). The calendar view will always switch to the first appearance of the action starting from the current active week.

Hidden actions are still normally executed by the system.

 Image: Image:

# Defining a clock action

## Adding a new clock action

### Add a clock action

### Using the 'Edit'-menu

You make a new continuous clock action by clicking the option 'New Continuous Clock' in the 'Edit' menu. Make every new clock action for the other clock tables in the similar way.

### Using the short keys

You also can add a new clock action by clicking the 'new clock action' short keys in the TIMESOFT menu bar. For every clock table (Continuous, workday, weekend day, simulation and special) is a 'new action clock' available.

### Using the 'Right' mouse button.

'Right click' anywhere in the 'week overview' and select the clock table to which you want to add a clock action. The time for this clock action will be set to the time on the timeline where you 'right clicked' (rounded to the nearest quarter of an hour).

Setungs:		
Clock Table:	Continuous table	~
None ~	2	06
Pelanana data 8 tima	21/03/2017	10min iti
Repeat every:	1 🔄 Day(s)	v
Allow user to change this clock on touch screen	(e.g. AURUS-TFT)	
Clock display name on touch screen:		

#### **Clock table**

In this drop down you can change the clock table for the clock action. The action will only be executed when this clock table is active. Only the 'continues' clock table is always active. Refer for more information to the 'clock functions' in the 'Functions' chapter in this handbook.

Depending on the selected clock table, the following parameters are available:

#### Function

Select here the function which is to be executed at the set time of the day. For more information about the different functions which can be selected and how they work, refer to the 'Functions' chapter in this handbook.

#### **Reference date & time**

enter the reference (starting) date and time for the first action of this repetition.

#### **Repeat every**

define here with which repetition the action has to be executed.

Define clock function							>
Settings: Clock Table:		Workd	lay tabl	le			~
Sensor zone v			×	[]			67 ~
Time:					17h	00min	٠
Execute this clock on:	MON	TUE	WED	тни	FRI	SAT	SUN
Allow user to change this clock on touch scree Clock display name on touch screen:	en (e.g. A	URUS	-TFT)				
	C		ОК			Cano	el

#### Time

enter the time at which this action needs to be executed.

#### Execute this clock on

check the days on which this has to be executed.

#### Allow user to change this clock on Touchscreen

Enable this if the user is allowed to make changes to the clock function.

Make sure to add a clock name. This name will be used to display the clock on the compatible touchscreens.

### Editing a clock action



- Select the clock action you want to change by clicking on it in the right overview table.
- Click the 'Edit action' short key in the TIMESOFT menu bar. The window with the parameters of the selected action appears on the screen.

Shortcut: double click the action you want to change in the right overview table.

- Edit the desired parameters
- Click 'OK', and the clock action is changed in the PC.

### Remove a clock action

- Click the clock action you want to be deleted in the overview table.
- Click the 'Delete action' short key in TIMESOFT menu bar or use the 'Delete' key on your keyboard.

On the screen appears a window asking for your confirmation to delete the selected clock action.



After clicking 'OK' the action is deleted from the clock table.

# The 'Communication' menu in TIMESOFT

To send the adjusted Clock information to the Central Unit, you have to send the .NBT file to the Central Unit. Refer to the PROSOFT communication chapter for more information.

Before you send the data to the central unit it is recommended to save the project first.

 Image: Image:

## CARDSOFT – PORTA

If access control is more than just opening a door to you, TELETASK has the right solution to fulfil your needs and much more...

TELETASK is not only offering an access control system, but a fully integrated solution which is reliable, safe, powerful and easy to use. Yes, you can open the door and switching on the lights, the heating/cooling, switch on the water supply, the gas supply, lower the curtains and set the audio system in the bath room and the kitchen to your favorite radio station... without even touching a button. Only a small tag hanging at your car keys or a proximity chip card in your handbag is needed. As soon as the TELETASK system recognizes you or your beloved ones being at the front door, the house is at your service. When it's dark, the lights are dimmed to 'welcome' you, etc...

Not only comfortably opening a gate, a door or a garage door is the result, but the TELETASK solutions avoid that people can copy your door keys or some access tag/card can have limited or full access. The gardener can only open the main gate at the street level, open the garage door and activate the water supply (for a limited time). The cleaning wife is only allowed to enter the house on Wednesday and Friday mornings between 7am and 11 am, etc... To be able to set the appropriate settings for these possibilities, TELETASK developed the CARDSOFT package to be used on any standard PC. The settings for access control items like chip cards, tags and proximity cards are easily

# Terminology

### CARDSOFT

done in CARDSOFT.

the part of PROSOFT Suite where access control is configured

### PORTA

The App to monitor the access control actions.

### **Proximity card**

For this manual 'proximity card' can refer to a TELETASK card as well as to a TELETASK tag.

### User

This refers to a person using (owning) the proximity card and/or tag

### Access attempt

refers to an attempt to gain access on a reader with a proximity card or tag. An access attempt can either succeed (user has access) or fail (user has no access).

### Access control

The set of rules that define where a user has access.

# Table of contents:

Steps to set up CARDSOFT-PORTA Access control options in PROSOFT Add Proximity readers I I TELETASK Technical handbook » CARDSOFT – PORTA

### Steps to set up CARDSOFT-PORTA

- 1. Set 'Access control' options (optional)
- 2. Add proximity readers
- 3. Create Users and Groups
- 4. Configure the 'Access control'
- 5. Schedule automatic E-mail reports (optional)

 Image: Image:

### Access control options in PROSOFT

The access control options can be accessed in PROSOFT through extra > option > Access control.

ptions								×
System setup	Option	Sensor	Motors	RGB Settings	Time settings	E-mail	Access control	
Manage a	ccess cor	ntrol in CA	RDSOFT	by				
Group	os (defau	lt)						
OUsers	0							
O Users	& Group	os (Advan	ced)					
CARDSOF	T logging							
CARDSO	FT logg	ing e-mai	recipien	its:				
Enter re	cipients, s	eperate n	nutiple ad	idresses by a 🖓	0			
							OK	Connel
							UK	Cancel

Manage access control in CARDSOFT by:

#### Groups

This is the default mode. In this case access is granted/denied on a group base. All members of a group will have the same access rights. This option is suited for most applications (both residential and industrial). By default, two groups are already created: 'family' and 'others'.

Examples:

- All users have the same rights
- User can be clearly divided in groups: e.g. 'owners, family, house staff', or 'directors, executives, employees'
- Most users can be divided in groups, but a single user is different from all other, e.g. add a gardener, grandma, concierge, or home assistant, etc... to the examples above. In this case create a group for that single person.

#### Users

In this case access is granted/denied on a single user base. Using this option probably means a lot more configuration work (especially if there are a lot of users), but also allows for extra functionalities.

#### Examples:

• An office building, where each user has its own office desk, but with a general entrance. You can activate a personal office desk only when its user arrives (= energy management)

#### **Users & Groups**

This is an advanced mode where access management is done both on users and on groups. See the 'Access management on users and groups' chapter for more info about this mode.

#### Examples:

24/1/2019

• If there are users whose access rights are almost identical to those of a group, you can use this mode to grant the user extra rights, on top of those of the group (or deny some of the group rights).

REMARK: Changing the 'Manage access control' mode can be useful, but may result in the loss of data. Changes that will occur without loss of data:

From 'Groups' to 'User: In this case the 'Groups' settings will be copied to the individual users, this may be useful if you want to manage access control on a 'single user' base, but there are some common settings. Start with the 'Groups' mode, configure the common settings on the groups. After this switch to 'User' mode to copy the settings to all users.

From rom 'Groups' OR 'Users' to 'Users & Groups: In this case no changes will be made to the data.

All other changes to the 'Manage access control' mode will result in the loss of access settings defined on users or groups. E.g. When switching from 'Users & Groups' to 'Users' all group specific settings will be lost (in this case user specific settings will be retained).

#### **CARDSOFT** logging e-mail recipients

add one or more E-mail addresses here if you want, to receive E-mails containing an overview of the access attempts. These E-mails can be sent on a regular base (defined in TIMESOFT), from a function e.g. Local mood or automatically: the system will send an E-mail if there are 1250 access attempts in its memory that have not yet been E-mailed. The number of E-mail addresses is practically unlimited.

REMARK: the automatic E-mails will always be sent if there are 1250 attempts that have not yet been E-mailed. E.g. on average the number of access attempts in a given installation is about 900/month, so an E-mail is sent at 0:00 at the first of each month (configured in TIMESOFT). If in a certain month, for example by the 28th there have already been 1250 attempts, an E-mail will already be sent at that moment. On the first of the next month a new E-mail will be sent containing an overview of the remainder of attempts for the past month.

🛛 🔋 🔹 TELETASK Technical handbook » CARDSOFT – PORTA » Access control options in PROSOFT

## Add Proximity readers

Proximity readers can be added in PROSOFT like any other 'input interface: 'Edit', 'Inputs', 'New', select 'TDS12142: Proximity reader'.

efine Interface Function			×
Basic Advanced			
PORTA			
Interface type:	Function		
TDS12142: Proximity reader	- Deer exercise function		
	Timed function V 01 * * Door opener 2s		× ) PQ
	SELON	V UN	~
Presenting function			
Door opening function			
TELETASE	Input definition		
	Description:		
		-	
		OK	Cancel

Beside of the standard items like 'Name' and 'Address' the proximity reader only has a limited number of parameters:

### **Enable PORTA for this reader**

This option is enabled by default. Use this option to disable PORTA for this reader. If PORTA is disabled for a reader, no access attempts on that reader will be stored in the memory, nor they will be shown in PORTA, nor will they appear in the E-mail reports.

REMARK: Access attempts, and their results on a reader, will always (independent of this setting) be logged in the normal 'log' system (if it is enabled) and diagnostics/monitor.

#### Function

this is intended for the door lock opening function, usually a timed function or timed local mood.

Remark: It is not advised to add a conditional function (like if-then-else) to grant/deny access here, conditions will be added later on.

Remark: In some exceptional cases the function field needs to remain empty. E.g. if two doors are operated by the same reader, and the door that needs to be opened is defined by the user.

 Image: Image:

### Create Users and Groups

To define Users and Groups go to the menu Extra > Users & settings.

1
Tuesday

You get a new screen and there you can click on the 'users' or 'group' tab. If you want to add a user or group, type the name in the empty field below the list of existing users or groups.

#### User code

On certain graphical interfaces (like on the iSGUI and AURUS-TFT) it is possible to protect specific items with a code. This is the 'user code'. For more info on the 'user code', see the chapter 'Use of passwords and codes'.

### Users

A user has the following properties:

### Name

The name of the user. In most cases this will be the name of an actual person, but this can also be something like: 'spare card', 'visitor', 'cleaning lady',...

### Proximity tag/card

The ID nr for this card or tag (printed on the card/tag). Each user can have a tag and a card. A card and a tag assigned to the same user will always have exactly the same behavior on every reader.

REMARK: A card/tag can only be assigned to a single user (as every card has a unique ID)

REMARK: If a user has two cards, but no tag, you can assign one of the cards to the tag field. (and vice versa)

REMARK: If a user needs more than two personal cards/tags, you need to add multiple 'users' (e.g. james 1, james 2, james 3) for this person and then add them to one group (e.g james or family members or ...).

#### PORTA

Check this field to enable PORTA for this user. For privacy reasons this field is disabled by default.

REMARK: By enabling this option, you are responsible to inform the user that their access attempts are monitored, and to inform them about what will be done with this information.

REMARK: Access attempts, and their results, for a user will always (independent of this setting) be logged in the normal 'log system' (if it is enabled) and diagnostics/monitor.

### Group

Defines to which group a user belongs. A user can be part of one group only.

### Groups

Groups are a means to manage access control for multiple users at the same time. In residential applications one group, that has access everywhere/ any time can suffice, but in industrial applications you may have different groups, with different access rights on different parts of the building, plant, clubhouse, etc... A group only has a name to identify it.

REMARK: Groups are only used to facilitate the access control management, PORTA always logs information about a specific user, not about a group.

 Image: Image:

# Define 'Access rights'

Now that the readers, the users and the groups have been created, a set of rules needs to be configured to define the access rights. This is done in CARDSOFT (part of the PROSOFT suite).

When clicking on the CARDSOFT button in PROSOFT Suite (in the bar on the left). Depending on the 'Access control mode' you will see an overview of the 'Groups', the 'Users' or the 'Users and Groups'

TELETASK PROS	OFT 3.6 - MICROS.nbt		– 🗆 X
PROSOFT	Eile Communication Extra	a <u>H</u> elp	
PROSOFT	Group Name		
TIMESOFT	Owners Children		
CARDSOFT	Cleaning Gardener		
GUISOFT			
AV-SOFT			
DALISOFT			
	MICROS+ Central Unit	USB	Not Connected

For the 'Groups' or 'Users' mode the configuration is the same, the only difference is whether it applies on a single user or on a group. In the remainder of this chapter the term 'user' will be used to denote 'user/group'. For the 'Users and Groups' mode see the 'Access management on users and groups' chapter for more info.

• 'Double click' a user or group to edit its 'Access settings'.

lame:	Owners		
ccess rights: All readers Access	All readers No access All readers Advanced configuration (multiple readers)		
User has access o	Reader: A1 101 Gate Reader: A1 102 Front door Reader: A1 103 Swimming pool		
- Condition			
		in the second	
User specific function			
None	×]		v

The properties that can be set are:

### Access rights

Defines on which reader(s) you want to configure the access rights for the user. The possibilities are:

#### No access

the user has no access (this is the default setting), and can also be used to temporarily deny access without deleting the card/user

#### All readers

the user has access on all readers, a single condition and user specific function can be defined

#### Advanced configuration

The user can have different access rights on different readers, for each reader a condition and user specific function can be defined

#### **Reader X**

the user has access on a specific reader, for this specific reader a condition and user specific function can be defined.

REMARK: If the 'Access rights' field is set to 'Advanced configuration (multiple readers), a list of all readers will be shown with an indication on whether the user has access on that reader and on whether a 'condition' and/or 'User specific function' is defined. To edit the settings for a reader, select it from the list and its details are shown.

Example: In the example below the user has access on all readers and a user specific function' is defined on one of the readers.

Access settings			- 🗆 X
Name:	Owners		
Access rights:	Advanced configuration (mult	iple readers)	~
ReaderName			Access Condition Function
A1 I01 Gate			
A1 102 Front door			
A1 103 Swimming p	loool		
A1 I01 Gate Access User has acc	ess on reader: Gate		
Condition			
None	~		
User specific fund	tion		
None	~		~ · · ·
			OK Cancel

#### Access

Defines if a user has (conditional) access on a reader, this field is only enabled if the 'Access rights' is set to 'Advanced configuration (multiple readers)'.

#### Condition

A condition that needs to be logical TRUE, in order for the user to gain access. This field is only enabled if the 'Access' field is 'marked'
#### **User specific function**

An extra function that will be executed if the user gains access (e.g. activate a light and/or heating/cooling when person arrives). This field is only enabled if the 'Access' field is marked.

 Image: Image:

### Access management on users and groups

In some cases, where there are a lot of users and readers, it might be more convenient to manage access control on both users and groups. While this mode allows for more advanced configurations, it also adds some complexity. It is for example possible to grant a user access on a reader while its group has no access on that reader. In such a case of conflicting access rights there is one rule that defines what the result will be:

If a user presents his/her card to a reader, the system will first check if an access rule is defined for that user reader combination. If so that rule will be executed. If not, the system will check if an access rule for the users group exists. If so, it will execute this.

REMARK: An access rule for the user can be 'User has no access' as well as 'User has access'. So it is possible to grant a group access on a set of readers, but to deny one or more users from the group access on a subset of those readers.

REMARK: The default 'access setting' (No Access) is not seen as a valid access rule on the user in this case. In that case the group action will be executed (if it exists).

REMARK: It is impossible to execute both the 'user specific' and the 'group specific' function as the group action will never be executed if an access rule for the user exists (independent on whether this rule grants the user access or not).

When working in this mode, CARDSOFT will give an overview of both the users and the groups. When a user is selected (from the list on the left), the users group will be highlighted in yellow in the list of groups. Similarly, when a group is selected the users belonging to that group will be highlighted.

CARDSOFT will also indicate if 'Group', 'User' or 'User and Group' rights are defined for each user.

ROSOFT	Eile Communication Extra Help			
PROSOFT	User name	Defined	Group Name	_
	Mom	2	Owners	
TIMESOFT	Dad	*	Children	
	Nanis	*	Family	
CARDSOFT	James	2		
1	Cleaning lady	2		
GUISOFT	Gardener	2		
ALL COLT	Gramps	*		
AV-SUFT	Granny	2		
	Aunt Lucy	2.2		
	MICROS+ Central Unit	USB	Not Connected	

CARDSOFT – PORTA » Access management on users and groups

# Schedule E-mail reports with TIMESOFT (or a function)

E-mail reports can be scheduled using TIMESOFT, or can be requested by the user (e.g. by activating a local mood). The configuration is the same from TIMESOFT or a function: using the 'Service function' (only available when there are one or more e-mail addresses defined in the access control options in the CARDSOFT logging field of the Extra > options > Access control menu).

fine clock function		
Settings:		
Clock Table:	Continuous table	~
Service function	~ D	1
	<ul><li>⊘ On</li></ul>	×
Reference date & time	22/03/2017 🔍 OOh 00min	10
Repeat every:	1 🖨 Month(s)	~
Allow user to change this clock on touch screen	(e.g. AURUS-TFT)	

ne LOCAL MOOD	) Function					
lame Function: Room:		lcon:	Name:	Dimmable		ОК
None	~ 🗋 🛱	Mood	Send CARDSOFT mail	Toggle		Cancel
elect Output:						
Service function	~ CARDSC	)FT log e-mail	<ul> <li>) #</li> </ul>	9	v On	×
None	~		- D #	9	~	~
None	v		× D r	5	~	<u>v</u>
None	~		~ C) r	9	~	
None	~		~ 🗋 P	9	~	×
None	~		~ 1 P	9	1	<u>v</u>
None	Y			9	×	×
None	~		~ D r	9	14	<u></u>
None	~		~ [] F	9	~	<u>v</u>
None	~		× ) =	9	~	~

### [] [] [] TELETASK Technical handbook » CARDSOFT – PORTA » Schedule E-mail reports with TIMESOFT (or a function)

### GUISOFT

### Table of contents:

Personalised graphical control
Glossary
System Requirements
Schematic Configurations
GUISOFT Licence
Making a GUI
Requirements Session workflow
CREATING A GUI
GUI Selection
GUI Properties
GUISOFT Screen
Adding items to the GUI
Creating a iSGUI
Start with the GUISOFT
iSGUI Selection
iSGUI Features
GUISOFT Screen (iSGUI)
Adding items to the iSGUI
Creating a Control Tower
Terminology
Workflow
Define Functions to monitor and control
Create an initial PROSOFT file
Create a Control Tower configuration
Event logs (alarms)
Get the GUI ready for use
Video door phone, Intercom on GUI and MAIOR Video door phone on GUI (TDS12052 and TDS12053 only)

C 
 C 
 TELETASK Technical handbook » GUISOFT

# Personalised graphical control

# Graphical User Interface (GUI)

GUI is the TELETASK Graphical User Interface, running on a target device to control your domotic system. The software can run on most PC devices: a desktop computer (GUI/GUI+/iSGUI), a tablet PC build in the wall (GUI/GUI+/iSGUI) but also on a Smartphone or tablet (iSGUI),...

The GUI/GUI+ software allows you to control your entire TELETASK system in an intuitive way based on the floor plans of your home or office. Each floor plan represents a part of your house. This part can be a room, an entire floor, the entire house, or any other part.

With the GUI/GUI+ you can control all TELETASK domotic functions of your home and you have the possibility to include IP-Camera's, dynamic HTML pages. The different functions are divided in eight categories: 'Lights', 'Devices', 'Moods', 'Motors', 'Sensor', 'Audio', 'URL or IP Camera' and 'All'.

The iSGUI has the same functionalities as the GUI/GUI+ but offers you the possibility to create automatically a complete and personal application for your, Tablet or PC. Even the iSGUI can integrate IP Camera's.

### Table of contents:

Glossary System Requirements Schematic Configurations GUISOFT Licence

TELETASK Technical handbook » GUISOFT » Personalised graphical control

# Glossary

# GUISOFT

The GUISOFT is a part of the TELETASK PROSOFT Suite software. Using the GUISOFT you will create one or more GUI's for your '.nbt project'.

# iSGUI/GUI+/Control Tower client configuration

An iSGUI/GUI+/Control Tower client configuration is the visualization of the different control screens on your target device. A GUI is created in GUISOFT by creating the 'GUI files' containing all the data for the concerned GUI. The data contains images of the floor plans, used icons...

# GUI Runtime (GUI+)

GUI runtime is the software that needs to be installed on the target device. Without this installation, the GUI will not work on the target device. The GUI runtime creates an environment in which the GUI data is displayed on the target device.

#### GUI+

TDS15105 only Microsoft Windows

# iSGUI

Similar to the GUI Runtime. The iSGUI can work on different platforms:

#### iOS

iSGUI V1 / V2.6 can be downloaded from the App Store.

#### Android

iSGUI V2.6 can be downloaded from Google Play

#### Windows PC or macOS

The iSGUI V2.6 can be downloaded from the TELETASK website.

In some countries the 'app-stores' are or not (completely) available.

# Control Tower

The "Control Tower" software runs on the building management PC, for technical alarm processing and camera surveillance applications. The software is meant to be used by an operator who is responsible for the technical surveillance of a number of apartments, houses or buildings. Thanks to the Control Tower software, up to three (or

six) operators can simultaneously work from any location with an internet connection.

The main screen contains an overview of all houses or buildings. In case of an alarm, the alarm message appears in a dedicated window and the concerned house/building is clearly indicated by a flashing symbol. The alarm is also supported by an alert and a customized voice message, asking for the operator's urgent attention. With permission of the resident, the supervisor can be given access to some of the basic functions of the house and other additional services can be offered. A simple phone call to the operator would be sufficient. For example: change the temperature in your holiday house.

Thanks to the TELETASK DoIP concept, the building can send automatic E-mail and SMS messages to the resident(s), independent from the Control Tower operator.

### Target Device

The target device is the PC, tablet, smartphone, on which the GUI will run.

 Image: Image:

### System Requirements

The target device can be a PC, a laptop, a tablet PC, on which you create the GUI using GUISOFT. The target device should run on MS Win 7, 8.1, 10 (GUI+/iSGUI) or Apple macOS (iSGUI).

### GUI+

For the GUI+ there need to be installed a .NET framework v4.0 (or higher) on the target device. You can download it from: http://www.microsoft.com/NET/

The target system does not have to be the PC on which the GUI in GUISOFT was made.

### iSGUI V2.6

#### iOS:

• iOS 9 or higher

#### Android Smartphone or tablet:

- Adobe AIR compatible
- ARMv7 processor with vector FPU, minimum 550MHz, OpenGL ES 2.0, H.264 and AAC HW decoders
- min. Screen resolution 360x480

#### Windows PC:

• Windows 7, Windows 8.1, Windows 10

#### MAC OS:

• macOS 10.9 Mavericks or higher

**I I I TELETASK Technical handbook** » **GUISOFT** » Personalised graphical control » System Requirements

# Schematic Configurations

There are different possibilities to connect the target system on which the GUI runs with the TELETASK central unit. Furthermore you have the possibility to connect more than one GUI to the central unit. In this way you can control the house from several GUI's. The below drawn schematic drawing explains the different configurations.

# Connect one target system with the domotics

When you connect only one GUI target system with your domotic system the connections between the target system and the central unit can be made in several ways.

### Via LAN

Connecting one target system with a GUI/iSGUI over the Ethernet with the central unit is very simple. Similar to a PC, we use an Ethernet patch cable (CAT5) or a wireless network to connect the target system with a switch or router of the LAN. Connect also the TELETASK central unit with an Ethernet patch cable to the LAN.



### Via USB (only supported in combination with Windows)

For Demo or testing you can connect the target system GUI/GUI+ with the domotics system via a USB. We do not recommend this for a permanent connection.



# Connect two or more target systems with the domotics.

Connecting 2 or more target systems with your DoIP Domotics Central Unit can be done similar to 1 target system, if you have applied the correct LAN method for every target system.

Attention: all target systems, just like the DoIP Central Unit have to be coupled within the same network. This means that the IP address of all systems have to start with the same first numbers. The last numbers have to be different! e.g. 192.168.0.100, 192.168 0.101 and 192.168.0.102,



[] [] [] TELETASK Technical handbook » GUISOFT » Personalised graphical control » Schematic Configurations

# **GUISOFT** Licence

The GUI/GUI+/iSGUI/Control Tower has to be activated before you can use them.

When you buy a GUI/GUI+/iSGUI/Control Tower license, you will receive a 'license code'. With this license code and the serial number of your Central Unit, you can activate the GUI/GUI+/iSGUI/Control Tower.

### How to activate a license:

- Go to www.teletask.be
- Choose Professional from the top menu
- In the License activation section, click on License activation (TELETASK Cloud)
- Sign in to your TELETASK Cloud account if you have one already. If not, click on Create an account and follow the registration procedure.
- After logging in, you should be forwarded to the Activate License page. If not, click here
- Complete the form and click Download activation file
- Wait a few seconds for your activation file to be downloaded (it will also be emailed to you)
- Start PROSOFT and open the correct .NBT project file.
- Import the activation file: choose Extra > Licenses
- Save the .NBT file and transmit it to the central unit

### TELETASK license system

### GUI/GUI+

For every simultaneous working GUI/GUI+ you need an activated license. This means that the GUI/GUI+ can be installed on an unlimited number of target systems. However, there can only run as much GUI/GUI+ applications as there are licenses installed.

For example: with 1 license you can activate 1 built-in touchscreen with GUI/GUI+ continuously. At the other hand the license which is used for the GUI/GUI+ on your Desktop PC, can easily be used on your laptop on the road.

This means that when purchasing a new computer/touchscreen PC you don't need a new license! For testing purposes you can use a GUI/GUI+/iSGUI for three days, without activation.

### iSGUI

For every five simultaneous working iSGUI apps you need an activated license. This means that the iSGUI can be installed on an unlimited number of target systems. However, this is limited to five iSGUI applications that run at the same time.

### Control Tower

For every project, only one TDS15110 Master license is needed.

For every Client building (= nbt file) a TDS15111 Client license is needed. Every Client can be real-time connected with up to 3 Master PC's. If more than 3 real-time Masters are needed, a second Client license is needed in every Client building.

[] [] [] [] [] TELETASK Technical handbook » GUISOFT » Personalised graphical control » GUISOFT Licence

# Making a GUI

The GUI is made with the help of the option GUISOFT in the PROSOFT Suite V2.80.1 or higher. We suggest to make the GUI/GUI+ only after you have configured the complete domotics project in PROSOFT. The GUISOFT will copy all the defined rooms, functions, outputs,...

# Table of contents

Requirements Session workflow CREATING A GUI GUI Selection GUI Properties GUISOFT Screen Adding items to the GUI

Comparison of the second second

### Requirements Session workflow

When you want to install a GUI application, there are a number of steps to be taken. Below you find a diagram with the different steps and in the next chapters they are described in detail.

1	Activate your license at <u>www.teletask.be.</u> You will be able to download the neccessary activation file.	www.teletask.be - log in/out - downloads - activation files
2	Configure the GUI properties and pages.	Start PROSOFT Suite opening the wanted '.nbt'-project and click 'GUISOFT'. Configure the GUI properties in the GUI properties window: resolution, pages ! Do not forget to set the proper Ethernet settings Drag and drop the domotic and multimedia functions onto the wanted pages.
3	Import the activation file.	Click 'Extra>Licenses'. Import the activation file. Click 'ok' to confirm the codes
4	Send NBT file to your DoIP Central unit	Click 'Communication>transmit
5	Export the GUI data files (only for GUI)	Click 'Communication>Create GUI Files' to export the GUI data files. Choose a temporary folder to save the GUI data files. Make a BACK-UP of your GUI files!
6	Install the GUI on the target device	Download the GUI runtime from <u>www.teletask.be</u> (GUI/GUI+/iSGUI), Apple App Store (iSGUI), Google Play (iSGUI) or BlackBerry World (iSGUI)
7	Copy the 'Gui data' directory and its content to the TELETASK GUI directory on the target device (only for GUI)	Copy paste the 'GUI Data' folder into the TELETASK GUI installation fodlermap (on the target device!).
8	Connect the target device with the TDS central unit (LAN / exp. USB)	
9	Start the GUI on the target device by clicking the 'Start GUI' icon on your desktop or in the 'Start' menu.	

 Image: Image:

### CREATING A GUI

Click on the GUISOFT button in the PROSOFT Suite-bar on the left. If you have not yet created a GUI for this specific '.nbt' file you will be asked whether you want to create a new GUI. Click 'OK' to proceed. The GUI properties window will appear on the screen.

E ELETASK Technical handbook » GUISOFT » Making a GUI » CREATING A GUI

# **GUI** Selection

#### Start with selecting the correct GUI type.



#### TDS15105' GUI+

choose this GUI type for use on a Windows PC. Special features of this GUI+ are:

- Support of the dynamic HTML pages
- Messages and alarms
- Availability of different types of skin.
- Charts

#### TDS15101' iSGUI

choose this GUI type for use on a Smartphone, PC or tablet. For more information about creating an iSGUI, please see next chapter.

#### TDS15100' GUI

choose this GUI type for use on an Apple or Linux (or windows) PC.

After you have selected the GUI type, you can start the configuration. In GUISOFT you need to start with determine the necessary features for the new GUI, based on the target system: resolution, connection, skin,

You can convert a GUI to a GUI+ or vice versa but not with an iSGUI!

The GUI type has to correspond with the licence type that's available.

U I TELETASK Technical handbook » GUISOFT » Making a GUI » GUI Selection

### **GUI** Properties

In this start-up screen you will define the resolution of the screen on which the GUI will be displayed (target device), you will create the different pages of the GUI, import the needed floor plans etc. The GUI properties start-up window looks like shown in the picture below.

GUI Name:	GUI+ DIVUS		Communication settings on the target device	90	OK
GUI Type:	TDS15105: GUI+	-	Type of Communication:	Ethemet •	
Target device resolution:	TDS12051 DIVUS	•	IP-address of the central unit	192 168 5 10	Cancel
Width	1024 Height	768	ID Dart or (default EE0EC)	EEDEC	
Skin	Satin Black Skin		ir-Forthir (deladit: 55556).	33336	
2 Run GUI full screen	(which because areas				
Audio feedback on tour	h/click				
GUI Pages:					
Favorites		Add New Pape	Page Settings:		
Kitchen Living room		Contraction of the	Page name:	Favori	tes
Bedroom		Delete Page	Bres employ (cizer 1024 - 521.)		
			Page preview. (size= 1024 x 531 )		Calcularea
			Comp care	am \$	Select Image
					Clear Image
					-
				1000	
			in the second		
			TELETASK	20	
				3/	
			Page background colour:		

The different GUI parameters that need to be set are:

#### **GUI Name**

The name for the GUI e.g. 'GUI' First Floor, 'GUI' Living room, 'GUI' Office... You need to enter a name before you can edit the GUI.

#### **Target device resolution**

Select the screen resolution of the target device.

• Skin: choose the wanted skin. A skin determines the unity of the colour and presentation of the GUI (only available at GUI+. GUI always works with Classic skin).

#### Run GUI full screen

Check this parameter if you want to run the GUI as a full screen application without any borders around the application. This will be typically used for a dedicated PC with a touchscreen.

Uncheck this option if you want the GUI to run like any other application on your PC. Choose this option when you want to use the GUI on your standard home office PC.

This item only disables the window borders. The size of the GUI is still determined by the 'Target device resolution'

#### **Enable Audio Feedback**

Select this option if you want an auditive feedback when you push a button.

The target device need to be equipped with a speaker and sound volume must be on.

#### Type of Communication

Select here the type of connection between your TELETASK central unit and the target device.

#### Ethernet

the connection between the central unit and the PC runs over the LAN network. You will us this typically when your PC is connected to your network or when you want to run the GUI on several PC's.

IP-address Central unit: (only selectable with the Ethernet communication). Insert here the IP-address of the Central Unit.

IP-Port nr: Default 55956 (only selectable with the Ethernet communication). Change this only in case of Port Forwarding. NOT RECOMMENDED!!!

#### USB

the connection between the central unit and the PC is done directly between the USB port of the TELETASK central unit and the PC on which the GUI is active. This way you can connect maximum 1 GUI on your TDS (only for temporary connections).

#### Define new page

this button will add a new page to your GUI. A page can contain anything you want. Still we suggest you to work with rooms, floors, the pages do not have to correspond with the rooms you defined earlier in PROSOFT, and it is possible to create a 'favorite' page in which you combine the most used functions (moods, lights,) with the available camera pictures.

#### Page Name

the name for the page, this name will be displayed in the GUI

#### Select Image

this button allows you to import a background image for the page (the floor plan of the part of the house this image refers to, a photo,). Depending on the resolution and the full screen option the optimized image size for the page is indicated at the left side of this 'Select Image' Button.

The image file needs to be a .jpg, .gif, .png or .bmp file.

#### Select background colour

this button allows you to set the background colour for the selected page. TELETASK advises to use this option only when the background colour of the image is other than white.

#### Arrow up or Arrow down

using the arrow up or arrow down buttons below the list of available GUI pages you can change the sorting position of the selected GUI page in the list.

As soon as you have defined all pages and the communication settings are correct, click 'OK' to continue. The GUISOFT screen will now appear on your screen.

You can always return to this screen to edit the page and or communication settings later by clicking the 'GUI properties' button.

I I TELETASK Technical handbook » GUISOFT » Making a GUI » GUI Properties

### **GUISOFT** Screen

The GUISOFT screen can be divided in three zones: the GUISOFT menu, the functions and symbols library and the GUI preview area.



### The GUISOFT menu

Using the GUISOFT specific menu you create a new GUI, select the GUI you want to change, change the GUI properties of the selected GUI or delete the selected GUI.

#### **New GUI**

It is possible to create more than one GUI for one '.nbt' project. This is typically done when you want to control your domotic functions from several target devices with different specifications (other resolution, other location in the house etc.).

When you want to create a new GUI, click the 'New GUI' button in the GUISOFT menu. The GUI properties start-up window for the new GUI will appear on the screen.

#### Select GUI

When you have more than one GUI created in a project you have to select the correct GUI before editing anything at the GUI. In the 'Select GUI' drop down list you can select the GUI you want to edit.

#### **GUI properties**

To change the properties of the selected GUI, click the GUI properties window. The GUI properties window will appear on the screen in which you can change different setting as the GUI name, type of communication etc.

#### Delete GUI

Clicking this button the selected GUI will be deleted. Before deleting it definitely a remark will appear on the screen asking for your confirmation.

The GUISOFT menu remains equal, independent to the GUI/GUI+/iSGUI you are working in.

### The functions and symbols library

### The functions library

Using the functions library you can browse in the different domotic functions which you have made earlier in the PROSOFT session of the .NBT project.

### The symbols library

Using the symbols library you can choose a GUI icon to drop on the GUI preview.

### The GUI Preview

In the GUI preview (permanent displayed on your PC screen) you can partly see your GUI as it will look like in daily use. The areas where fixed items of the GUI will be placed are shaded. You can't position anything else in these areas. Depending on the resolution/skin of the screen a limited number of page buttons are displayed. Choose the page in which you want to work, just like you would do when controlling the GUI. At the left side of the preview area the different icons as known in PROSOFT are displayed. Clicking on these buttons shows the corresponding functions dropped on the page. The different icons are:

#### Light

displays only the dropped lights of the selected page.

#### Devices

displays only the dropped devices of the selected page.

#### Moods

displays only the dropped moods of the selected page

#### Motors

displays only the dropped motors (curtains, shutters, gates etc) of the selected page.

#### Sensors

displays only the dropped sensor functions of the current page

#### Audio

displays only the dropped audio zone in the current page

#### Camera's and URL pages

displays only the dropped camera and URL functionalities of the current page

#### All

displays all the dropped functions of the current page

I I TELETASK Technical handbook » GUISOFT » Making a GUI » GUISOFT Screen

# Adding items to the GUI

# Drag and drop

After the GUI pages have been defined, you can add several domotic functions you have earlier defined in PROSOFT in the GUISOFT screen using the easy and user friendly drag and drop concept: drag the domotic functions out of the functions or symbols library and drop them on the preview of the preview area.

# Positioning (grid)

To position the different items on the GUI screen, a positioning grid can be used. To activate/show the grid, click the grid icon in the grid toolbar just below the standard toolbar. If the grid is activated the icons you drag onto the GUI screen, will 'snap' to the grid points. The grid can be adjusted to any interval of pixels preferred. Therefore the pixel interval is set in the grid toolbar (standard = 10 pixels).



# Edit the GUI Icon

When you have dragged the function out of the functions library, a standard GUI icon is assigned to the function on the GUI preview. However, you can change the icon image settings. Right click the GUI icon in the preview and select 'Edit GUI Icon' from the drop down list. The 'Edit Item' window will appear on the screen.

When you have dragged the symbol out of the symbols library and dropped it on the GUI preview the 'Edit Item' window will appear automatically so you can assign the desired function to the symbol.

In the 'Edit Item' window you can change some properties of the image and/or the function. In the left part of the 'Edit Item' window you can define the appearance settings of the icon. In the right part of the 'Edit Item' window the function of the GUI item can be changed.

Edit Item								×
Appearance				Function				
Size & location Width (active zone): 50 Height (active zone): 50 X position: 40 Y position: 60		4 4 4	Item Text Text location: RIGHT Text Camera front door	Select Function type: Enter URL http://192.168.5.9/axi Example http://www.ki Example file:///c:/My 0	/pe: URL (eg. a html page or an image)			
Background No background Image Scale image I Fixed image : Visition	(fill act size (o	ive zon	e) 0	Icon Show item for icon:		AI		~
Height: Change In	1 nage			Popup window Default open (Always Default open in "ALL X position: Y position: 2	o open) icons" view 10	Width: Height	320 240	•
			ок	Cancel				

### Appearance:

### 'Size & location'

The size of the touch sensitive zone (active zone) of the GUI item is defined by the 'Width' and the 'Height' parameter. Both parameters are defined in pixels. TELETASK advices to set the width and height parameter at 32 pixels for an optimal user friendly finger control on a standard 15' touchscreen (resolution: 1024x768).

The location of the GUI icon describes the place of the GUI icon on the devices screen using the 'X' and 'Y' coordinates.

### 'Item Text'

Every GUI item can be accompanied by a declarative text. Define both the 'Text location' and the 'text' to add a text to a GUI item.

#### **Text Location**

This parameter defines the position of the text around the GUI item.

#### Text

Enter here the text that appears near the GUI item. By default, the name given in PROSOFT will appear in this field.

### 'Image'

Every GUI item has a default image. However, you can replace the default image of the GUI item with an image out of the TELETASK image library.

#### **Change Image**

Click this button to change the image with an image out of the TELETASK image library.

The 'Change Image' option can also be selected directly from the drop down menu when you right click the GUI

Icon.

#### Scale Image (fill active zone)

When this option is checked, the image will be scaled to fit the 'active size'

• Fixed Image Size (centred): This option allows you to enter a custom size for the image in pixels. The fixed image size can only have the same or a smaller size than the active size. When the image size is smaller than the active size, the image will be placed in the centre of the active zone/size.

#### **No Image**

Select this option when you don't want to display an image for an item (transparent button).

# To create GUI+ icons yourself you have to name the gif's according to a specific pattern:

Most items (lights, devices, ...) have two states "ON" and "OFF". The images for this two states need to be named:

#### ON status

MyImage-on.gif

#### **OFF** status

MyImage-off.gif

For the part "MyImage" you can use your own image name and need to be the same for the on and the off state. The parts "-on.gif" and "-off.gif" need to be exactly like this.

Motors have four states: "Closed", "Closing", "Opened", "Opening". These images need to be named:

#### "Closed"

MyImage-closed.gif

"Closing" MyImage-closing.gif

**"Opening"** MyImage-opening.gif

#### "Opened"

MyImage-opened.gif

Note: It is also possible to create "ON/OFF" images in the "motors" category. These icons can be used for local moods that you want to display in the motor icon.

Items for Cameras, URLs and 'Go-To-Page' only show 1 state (the "ON" state), but there need to be two images in the library, using the "ON" and "OFF" naming convention. You can create an "ON" image, copy it and rename the copy to "-off.gif".

### Function:

### 'Select Function Type'

This option allows you to choose or change the type of function you want to be coupled to the (dragged) GUI Item. You can choose out of different function types:

#### **Standard PROSOFT function**

Use this function to make the GUI item to control a specific domotic function on your TELETASK central unit. The function you select needs to be configurated in PROSOFT. Examples: switching a light, activating a motor, change the sensor preset of the heating...

#### **IP-Camera**

This function takes the URL of an IP camera's MJPEG file to be displayed on the GUI screen, when you click the GUI item. Follow this link for more instructions on how to add a camera to the project.

#### **URL or Image**

Using this function type the GUI item will display a pure html page or an image. The URL in the lower tab page has to be completed and can refer to a location on the Internet (start the URL with 'http:// ...') or to an image (start URL with 'file:/// ...') which is located on the PC on which the GUI is active.(note 3 times the '/' character, e.g. file:///c:/My documents/image.jpg).

A dynamic HTML page is only available on the GUI+.

#### Show chart

Select this to display a Graph about a sensor or an output (Relay, Dimmer, ...).

Add the output/sensor, for which you want a Graph, like for normal control of the output. Then edit the item and change the function type to "Show chart"

For a sensor you do not need to explicitly add the chart. If the sensor is added to the GUI you will be able to see the graph (if you want the Graph for a sensor to be 'default open').

#### Start external program

use this function to start an external program inside the GUI+ runtime.

The behavior of this function is largely depending on the external program itself!!!

#### **Go-To GUI Page**

Using this function type, the GUI item will switch to another page when it is touched.

### 'lcon'

Here you can set up the categories under which the GUI item must be visible. The category is chosen by default from the coupled PROSOFT function. Camera's and URL's arrive by default under the 'Camera' icon. The 'Go-To-GUI-Page' arrive by default at the 'All' icon.

!!!!Items of the category 'All' will always be displayed at the ALL category.

### 'Popup Window'

For some of the function types a 'Control Panel' will be displayed on the screen when you touch the GUI item. A 'Control Panel' popup appears when the GUI item is defined as a URL or Camera function or when the PROSOFT function is a dimmer, a RGB control, an audio zone or a sensor zone. In the 'Control Panel' popup some function type related information is displayed.

#### **URL/Camera function**

the webpage/camera will be displayed on the screen

#### **PROSOFT** function type

the control panel displays additional control buttons for the advanced control of the audio system, the dimmer, the heating/cooling system...are displayed.

Normally you will need to touch the GUI item to display this 'Control Panel'. When you want to have the control panel standard on the screen enable the 'Default Open' check box in the 'Popup Window' area. Additionally you can set for Camera's and URL the width and the height of the 'popup window'/ 'control panel'.

In the category 'All' the 'Default Open' items will only appear as icons, unless also the option 'Default open at 'All' view' is marked.

This option is only available in GUI+ (GUI will present 'default open' items always as icons!).

For the 'Default Open' popup a popup position also needs to be entered. For the other pop-up panels this is not mandatory. If you don't set up the position (position = auto); the GUI will choose the most appropriate location.

Only in the GUI+ you can position the not 'default open' panels manually.

I I TELETASK Technical handbook » GUISOFT » Making a GUI » Adding items to the GUI

# Creating a iSGUI

### Table of contents:

Start with the GUISOFT iSGUI Selection iSGUI Features GUISOFT Screen (iSGUI) Adding items to the iSGUI

I I TELETASK Technical handbook » GUISOFT » Creating a iSGUI

### Start with the GUISOFT

Click on the GUISOFT button in the PROSOFT Suite bar at the left in the PROSOFT Suite window. If you haven't created a GUI for this .NBT project, you will be asked to create a new GUI. The GUI Selection screen will appear.

 Image: Image:

# iSGUI Selection

#### Start with choosing the correct GUI type.



#### TDS15105 GUI+

choose this GUI type for use on a Windows PC.

#### TDS15101 iSGUI

choose this GUI type for use on a Smartphone, Tablet or PC. For more info concerning creating an iSGUI, see next chapter.

#### TDS15100 GUI

choose this GUI type for use on an Apple or Linux (or windows) PC.

### For the iSGUI you can choose between:

#### Define the GUI manually

just like the GUI/GUI+ for PC, you can define the different pages to your wishes. But for the iSGUI there is a quick and easy-to-use alternative.

#### Create the GUI based on the rooms and icons

GUISOFT will by default define all available domotic elements and organize them in the correct categories and rooms. This is all based on the configuration in PROSOFT! After the automatic generation, you are still able to change things about the configuration of the iSGUI.

Once the GUI type is selected, it can't be changed!

The GUI type has to correspond with the activated Licence type.

24/1/2019

The adjustments you make afterwards in PROSOFT are not automatically implemented in the iSGUI configuration.

[] [] [] [] TELETASK Technical handbook » GUISOFT » Creating a iSGUI » iSGUI Selection
### iSGUI Features

In this start screen you can define the different pages of your iSGUI and you set up the connection data. The GUI start screen looks like the figure here below:

GUI properties				×
General GUI Name: Automatically up Passcode Protection Ask for passcode	New GUI 1 date iSGUI based on Rooms and Icons	Ethemet Settings: IP Settings:	Defaut ~	OK Cancel
GUI Pages: Kitchen Living Bedroom Garden	Add new Page Delete Page	Page Settings: Page name:	Kitchen	
Regimes Protect regime but	uttons with passcode			

The different iSGUI parameters which are defined are:

#### **GUI Name**

give in a clear name for the iSGUI e.g. 'iSGUI Parents', 'iSGUI Children'; you have to give a name for the GUI.

#### **Password protection**

check this mark to add a password when connecting the iSGUI (to prevent unauthorised access to the iSGUI from people that have access to the Wireless LAN). This user password can be changed any time in PROSOFT in the "Users & groups" configuration menu.

#### **IP setting**

With this setting the iSGUI uses the IP address entered on the target device to connect to the central unit

Only supported with iSGUI V2.5.

#### **IP setting**

custom

**IP-address Central Unit** give in the IP-address of the Central Unit

#### **IP-Port number**

give in the IP-Port number of the Central Unit (by default: 55956).

To be used for iSGUI V1.

#### Define the new page

using this button you can add a new page to the iSGUI. A page can be any part of the house (a room, a floor, the garden, the complete house). The pages do not have to correspond with the rooms you defined earlier in the PROSOFT session.

#### Page Name

give in the name of the page. This name will be visualised on the GUI.

#### Arrow up and Arrow down

by using the arrow up or down you can change the order of the selected GUI page.

#### Regimes

mark this setting to protect the regime (workday, weekend, presence simulation,...) buttons with password.

When you have defined all pages and set up all the communications settings correctly according to the specific situation, click 'OK' to continue defining the iSGUI. The GUISOFT will appear on the screen.

You can always call the iSGUI property screen to change the page and communication settings.

TELETASK Technical handbook » GUISOFT » Creating a iSGUI » iSGUI Features

### GUISOFT Screen (iSGUI)

The GUISOFT Screen is divided in 3 zones: the GUISOFT menu, the functions and the iSGUI preview.



### The GUISOFT menu

See the GUISOFT menu in the chapter concerning the GUI/GUI+.

### The Functions

In the function library you page through the different domotic functions which were earlier created in the PROSOFT session of the .NBT project. With the drop down menus of the rooms and icons you can create search criteria to quickly find the wished function in the library.

### The iSGUI preview

In the GUI preview you can see how the GUI would look like during daily use.

At the top of the GUI preview you see the actual page you have made earlier. When there are more pages available, you can thumb through them by using the arrow left or arrow right. At the left side of the GUI preview the different categories as known in PROSOFT are shown. When you push these buttons the corresponding functions on this page are visualized. The different icons are:

#### Lights

shows the lights of the active page

#### Devices

shows the devices of the active page

**Moods** shows the moods of the active page

**Motors** shows the motors (curtains, shutters, gates, etc.) of the active page

#### Sensors

shows the sensor functions of the active page

#### Audio

shows the audio zones of the active page

#### Camera's

shows the camera's of the active page

Creating a iSGUI » GUISOFT Screen (iSGUI)

### Adding items to the iSGUI

### Drag and drop.

After the iSGUI pages have been defined, you can add several domotic functions you have earlier defined in PROSOFT in the iSGUISOFT screen using the easy and user friendly drag and drop concept: drag the domotic functions out of the functions or symbols library and drop them on the preview of the preview area.

### Edit the iSGUI Icon

When you have dragged the function out of the functions library, the iSGUI icon is assigned to the function on the iSGUI preview. However you can change the icon image settings. Right click the iSGUI icon in the preview and select "Edit iSGUI Icon" from the drop down list. The "Edit Item" window will appear on the screen.

 Image: Image:

### Creating a Control Tower

### Table of contents:

Terminology
Workflow
Define Functions to monitor and control
Create an initial PROSOFT file
Create a Control Tower configuration
Event logs (alarms)
□ □ □ □ TELETASK Technical handbook » GUISOET » Creating a Control Tower

### Terminology

#### **Control Tower**

This is the equivalent of the GUI+ Runtime. This is the software in which an operator can monitor and control the different connected Central Units.

#### **Control Tower configurator**

This is the equivalent of GUISOFT in PROSOFT. Within the 'Control Tower Configurator' the different Central Units are defined, the audio messages for alarms are imported and the overview page with all the Central Units is created.

#### **Control Tower configuration**

This is the equivalent of the 'GUI Data'. It contains all information about the Central Units, the alarms and the overview page. But instead of being part of a PROSOFT file, the Control Tower configuration is saved in a separate Control Tower configuration file.

 Image: Image:

### Workflow

To setup a Control Tower installation the following steps are essential:

- Define functions to monitor and control
- Create an initial PROSOFT file.
- Create a 'Control Tower Configuration'
- Run the TELETASK Control Tower.

 Image: Image:

### Define Functions to monitor and control

Before you begin the configuration of the Control Tower, you have to decide which functions you want to monitor on all connected Central Units. These functions can be any type: relays, dimmers, sensors, moods, alarms,... Charts are not accessible in the Control Tower.

For example: an 'ALL OFF' general mood, the HVAC system, ...

Alarms are very useful functions for the Control Tower, they can provide the operator with information on water leaks, HVAC system failure, fire alarms, etc.

[] [] [] TELETASK Technical handbook » GUISOFT » Creating a Control Tower » Define Functions to monitor and control

### Create an initial PROSOFT file

Once the list of functions to monitor from the Control Tower is complete, you can start creating an initial PROSOFT file.

This file needs to contain:

- The necessary hardware for all the functions that need to be monitored from the Control Tower (Relay, Dimmer, Motor modules, digital input interfaces, analogue input interfaces,...)
- All functions to be monitored from the Control Tower (Moods, ...)
- All common configuration (e.g if input X is closed, set alarm Y ON)
- A Control Tower client GUI. This is a GUI with only 1 page on which all the items to be monitored / controlled by the Control Tower are placed.
- All the Alarms to be monitored on the Control Tower. For these alarms set the type to 'Alarm' (not to Message). Pay particular attention to the number of beeps for the alarms, the Control Tower uses this to define the alarm type. If desired the Control Tower can play recorded voice messages for critical alarms (e.g. Fire Alarm) so that even if the Control Tower operator is not looking at his screen at that moment, he can still be informed through the audio message. So give each alarm for which an audio message will be used a unique number of beeps (we advise to use high numbers of beeps for this). If the Control Tower receives an alarm with a number of beeps for which no audio message is present, the Control Tower will simply play that many beeps. Make sure that the alarm is enabled on the Control Tower client GUI.

When the initial PROSOFT file is finished, save it for the different Central Units in the project. When you start the configuration of the individual Central Units, start from this initial PROSOFT file and add whatever is necessary. Create an individual .NBT file for each Central Unit.

 Image: Image:

### Create a Control Tower configuration

A Control Tower configuration can be created on any PC, this does not have to be the PC that will run the Control Tower. It is not necessary, but if possible advised, that the configuration PC can connect to the different Central Units (this requires that the Central Units are already running and that the PROSOFT files based on the 'initial PROSOST file' have already been transmitted to the different Central Units).

### Control Tower configurator screen

The Control Tower configurator screen.

- 1. The list of central units that are already added to the Control Tower configuration. Click the Edit button at the bottom to add/remove central units to/from this list.
- 2. The list of alarms that are defined for this Control Tower. Click the Edit button at the bottom to add/remove alarms to/from this list.
- 3. A preview of the overview page from the Control Tower Runtime. Click the Edit button at the bottom to modify general Control Tower settings.



### Define Central Units

The first step is to define the Central Units which will be monitored by the Control Tower. To do so, click the 'Central Units' item in the edit menu (or the 'Edit' button below the list of Central Units on the main Control Tower configurator window).

You will get a new window with an overview of all Central Units that are already defined in the configuration (the first

#### time, this list will be empty).

Click the 'New' button to add a new Central Unit. You will see the window below:

fine central unit				
Central unit name:				
Central unit url:				
stra info				
				<i>2</i> v
				1
4	W.			
Control Tower Data	a:	Not Download	ed	
Disable		If this is checked	the property w	ill not be
		monitored by th when the prope	e control tower rtv is vacant is t	Use this being
		renovated,		

A Central Unit is defined by a unique name for the Central Unit (e.g the number of the flat, the address of the house, ...), and the Url (or IP address) at which the Control Tower can connect to the Central Unit. For a central unit there are two optional information fields:

#### Extra info

can be a (practical) unlimited amount of formatted text. Pictures can also be added to this field, the maximum size for the pictures is 500x500 pixels, larger pictures will be scaled while maintaining aspect ratio. This field can be visualized in 'Control Tower' on top of the main screen. Optionally the control tower operator can modify information in this field during normal operation. This information field is saved as a RTF file (Rich Text Formatting). These RTF files can also be created in external programs (like Word). These files are stored at C:\ProgramData\TELETASK\Control Tower\DoipInfo with the previously defined 'Central unit name' as filename.

It's advised that the externally created RTF files are smaller than 5MB. Files larger than 10MB will not be loaded in the Control Tower.

At the bottom there is also information about whether the Control Tower configurator has already downloaded the Control Tower Data for that Central Unit. When defining a new Central Unit this will always be 'not downloaded'. When finished click 'OK' to add a Central Unit with the given data. You will now return to the overview list and the Control Tower configurator will try to download the Control Tower client data for the Central Unit. After defining all Central Units, the overview may look like this:

House 1	Reload	
192.168.0.83		New
Downloaded		Edit
House 2	Reload	Lon
192.168.0.84		Delete
House 3	Reload	Reload All
192 168 0.85		-
Not Downloaded		

For each Central Unit you will see the same information again: the name, the url and the 'Data state'. In this example the data for 'House 1' at url '192.168.0.83' has been downloaded, for the other Central Units the data has not been downloaded.

To retry to download the data for a Central Unit click the 'Reload' button. If the data for all Central Units needs to be reloaded, click the 'Reload All' button.

### Define Alarms

The next step is to define the alarms for which an audio message needs to be used. If you do not want to use the audio messages, you can skip this step.

The recording of the messages itself is not done by the Control Tower configurator. There are many tools available to do so (both free and commercial). The Control Tower supports the audio formats .wav and .mp3.

To define the audio messages click the 'Alarms' button in the 'Edit' menu, or the 'Edit' button below the alarms section.

In the alarms overview window you will see that there is already 1 alarm defined. This alarm is a special alarm indicating that the connection to a Central Unit is lost (this can be caused by network problems, Central Unit (power) failure, ...). As this alarm is an alarm generated by the Control Tower instead of coming from a Central Unit, the text for this alarm is defined in the Control Tower configurator (for other alarms the text is defined in the PROSOFT file of the dedicated Central Unit).

Preview of the 'Define alarm' window for the 'No connection to Central Unit alarm:

fine alarm	
Alarm name:	No connection to central unit
Line1:	CONNECTION ERROR
Line2:	No connection to central unit
Extra info:	
	/ ×
<w< td=""><td></td></w<>	
< m /oice Message:	Browse Play Delete

For this alarm, you cannot change the name, nor can you define an alarm type, but you can set two lines of text for the alarm and browse for a corresponding audio message.

If no audio message is defined for this alarm, the Control Tower will not give any audible feedback about this alarm. For other alarms (the ones coming from a Central Unit) the 'Define alarm' window looks like:

Define alarm			
Alarm name:	Alarm 255		
Alarm ID:			255 •
Extra info:			
			/ ×
Noise Manage			
Voice Message:	Browse	Play	Delete
		OK	Cancel

For these alarms you can define:

#### Alarm name

This name is purely a description of the alarm and is only used in the Control Tower configurator; it will not appear in the Control Tower itself.

24/1/2019

#### Alarm ID

This ID must match the number of beeps defined within the corresponding alarm of the Central Unit where the alarm has been triggered (e.g. in this case the Alarm that is switched on by the Central Unit when fire is detected needs to have 240 beeps assigned to it).

It is highly recommended that you use a high ID number for alarms with a Voice Message assigned to prevent a continuously beep in case the alarm has been triggered.

#### Extra info

can be a (practical) unlimited amount of formatted text. Pictures can also be added to this field, the maximum size for the pictures is 500x500 pixels, larger pictures will be scaled while maintaining aspect ratio. This field can be visualized in the 'Control Tower' if an alarm is triggered. This fields can be used for procedures that need to be followed when the alarms occur, useful phone numbers, ... Optionally the control tower operator can modify information in this field during normal operation. This information field is saved as a RTF file (Rich Text Formatting). These RTF files can also be created in external programs (like Word). These files are stored at C:\ProgramData\TELETASK\Control Tower\AlarmInfo with the previously defined 'Alarm ID' as filename.

#### Voice Message

Using the 'Browse' button you can browse for a Voice Message to play for this alarm. With the 'Play' button you can have the Control Tower configurator 'play' the selected voice message.

After defining some alarms the Alarms overview window may look something like this:

No connection to central unit Line 1: CONNECTION ERROR Line 2: No connection to central unit	Play	New
Fire alarm Alarm ID: 240	Play	Delete
Temperature to low Alarm ID: 214	Play	

Notice the 'Voice Messages' can be played directly from here (e.g. to verify that they are correct). Also notice that for 'Fire Alarm' no voice message has been selected, in this case the Control Tower will play 240 beeps when a fire alarm is received (when no voice message is needed for an alarm, it is not necessary to add the alarm to the Control Tower configuration. It can be useful though if in a later stage a voice message for that alarm is required).

### Control Tower settings

Now the Central Units and alarms are defined, the actual Control Tower configuration can be done. The first step is to set some general Control Tower settings. To do so, click the 'Overview Page' item in the 'Edit menu' or click the Edit button at the bottom of the page.

If you already have configured a GUI+, the settings on this page will look very familiar:



#### Target device resolution

the screen resolution of the device on which the actual Control Tower will run.

#### **Run Control Tower full screen**

whether the Control Tower needs to run full screen or in window mode

#### Audio feedback on touch/click

whether a sound needs to be played when an item in the Control Tower is touched / clicked.

#### Extended alarm/central unit info is editable by Control Tower Operator

Enable this if the operator may change the Extra Info of the alarms and central units.

#### Page name

the name that will be displayed for the overview page in the Control Tower configurator.

#### Page preview

Use the 'Select Image' button to select a background image for the overview page (notice the recommended size for the image is displayed above the preview for the image).

### Add Central units to the overview page

The main Control Tower configurator window will now look like this:



On the left you see the different Central Units defined in the configuration. To add a Central Unit to the overview page, simply drag the Central Unit from the list to the overview page and drop it to the overview page. A Central Unit can only be added once to the overview page, if you add a Central Unit to the overview page again, the existing item for the Central Unit on the overview page will be deleted. The

symbol next to 'House 1' and 'House 2' indicates that these Central Units have already been added to the overview page House 3 is not yet added to the overview page.

To customize the layout of a Central Unit item on the overview page, right click on the Central Unit item and select 'Edit item' from the context menu.

On the new window that appears you can set the size for the Item, the exact location and if necessary the appropriate location to display a text for this item.

Size and location		Text
Width (active zone):	64	Text Location:
Height (active zone):	64	None
X Position:	827	Text:
Y Position:	584	

TIP: the Control Tower configurator will use the last Width, Height and Text Location in this window as default values for the next Central Units you drag on to the overview page. So if you would like the Width and the Height for all Central Unit items to be 72, drag the first Central Unit on the overview page, and change the size. When you drag the other Central Units on the overview page their size will now be set to 72x72.

### Saving and opening a Control Tower Configuration

To save a Control Tower configuration, click the 'Backup current configuration' item in the 'File' menu. The Control Tower will now save all settings, including Control Tower client data (received from the Central Units), Voice Messages and overview page background image to one Control Tower configuration file.

When you open the Control Tower configurator it will automatically open the last Control Tower configuration used on that pc. To open a different one, simply click the 'Restore configuration from backup' item in the 'File' menu.

 Image: Image:

### Event logs (alarms)

Every event is logged in a file on the Control Tower PC. The location of this file is: C:\ProgramData\TELETASK\LOGS\Control Tower. This events log file will contain:

- Trigger date and time
- Type of alarm,
- Who has cleared the alarm (operator or central unit)
- The date and time when the alarm was cleared
- The central unit on which the alarm occurred

The active alarms are visible in the Control Tower runtime in the 'Active' tab and the cleared alarms can be seen in the 'History' tab. The history list is a list of the last 1000 alarms. The alarms that have happened before, are stored in the log file on the computer.

D TELETASK Technical handbook » GUISOFT » Creating a Control Tower » Event logs (alarms)

### Get the GUI ready for use

### Importing an activation file.

For each GUI+/iSGUI you need to buy a license. You can buy a license from your local distributor.

- One you have received the activation file for the licence, you have to import this in the .NBT file. See Chapter 'Licences'.
- Send the .NBT file to the Central Unit. See chapter 'Send' in PROSOFT.

### Install 'GUI Runtime'

Before you can use the GUI on the specified target device, you have to install the 'GUI Runtime'. You can download the latest version from http://www.teletask.be/en/downloads/.

### GU|+

- Download the latest version of the GUI+ installation program from http://www.teletask.be/en/downloads/
- Start the installation program (setup.exe) on the target device and go through the complete installation.

### iSGUI (iPhone, iPod Touch, iPad)

• Download the TELETASK iSGUI application by using the Apple App Store.

### iSGUI (Android)

• Download the TELETASK iSGUI application by using Google Play.

### iSGUI (Windows PC, macOS)

- Download and install the Adobe AIR platform from www.adobe.com.
- Download the latest version of the iSGUI installation program from http://www.teletask.be/en/downloads/
- Start the installation program (iSGUI.air) on the target device and go through the complete installation.

### Control Tower

- Download the latest version of the Control Tower configurator installation program from https://professional.teletask.be/file8
- Start the installation program (setup.exe) on the target device and go through the complete installation.

### Copy GUI Files to the target device

### iSGUI (iOS, Android, Windows PC, macOS)

- Connect your device with the network which is connected with the Central Unit. (See features of the device).
- Start the iSGUI application.
- The iSGUI will ask for the IP address of the Central Unit. Make sure you put in the correct IP address.
- The GUI data files will automatically be installed on the device.

If you have added/changed items/pages in the iSGUI configuration (Using PROSOFT Suite) you need to 'Reload' the GUI Data on your device to see the new items. To do this:

- Transmit your .nbt file to the central unit (PROSOFT Suite)
- On the start screen of iSGUI press the settings button in the lower right corner
- Click the 'Reload GUI Data' button

### GUI+ (MS Windows)

- Connect your target device with the network, connected to the Central Unit. (See features of the device).
- Start the GUI+ application.
- The GUI data files will automatically be installed on the device.
- The GUI+ will be automatically updated (when a new .nbt file has been transmitted to the central unit).

### Control Tower

• See chapter 'Creating Control Tower'

### Problem Solving

#### 'GUI+'

When a message box appears with the remark that no license is available for the device:

• Check the license codes in GUISOFT or buy a GUI license.

A sensor or audio zone does not appear on iSGUI.

• Check if the audio or sensor zone is assigned to a room (menu edit > rooms).

 Image: Image:

### Video door phone, Intercom on GUI and MAIOR Video door phone on GUI (TDS12052 and TDS12053 only)

The TELETASK MAIOR (TDS12051, TDS12052 and TDS12053) is a "built in" PC with touchscreen designed for GUI+. Besides the standard GUI+ functionalities, the TELETASK MAIOR also offers the possibility to integrate an IP based video door phone system (TDS12052 and TDS12053 only).

Video door phone/intercom integration is also available on other touchscreens running GUI+ (if they are equipped with a microphone and speakers).

This chapter contains instruction specific for MAIOR touchscreens, but integrating video door phone / intercom on other touchscreens is similar.

Analogue video door phone systems can be integrated with TELETASK GUI+ if they are converted to IP (see TDS10119).

The steps necessary for video door phone/intercom integration are:

- PROSOFT SUITE:
- Create IP cameras / Doors and Intercom stations (in the remainder of this chapter both the door units and the Intercom stations will be referred to as 'stations', unless the info is specific for one type of station.)
- Create a GUI+ for TELETASK (MAIOR)
- Add the Video door phone icon (optional)
- GUI+:
- Set up VoIP server and VoIP user
- Assign fixed IP to MAIOR

### PROSOFT SUITE

### Create IP cameras / Doors

See chapter "Cameras & Doors" under PROSOFT – Starting a project for detailed instructions.

ine IP camera or video	door phone	
General		
Camera name:	Front door	Rooms
Video settings		
Camera Url:		
http://192.168.5.9/	axis-cgi/jpg/image.cgi?resolution=320x2	240
Motion JPEG mode:	response, but lower framerate	
O Server streamin	g: higher frame rate	
Authentication (optional,	not recommended for Still image ):	
User name.	admin	
Password	•••••	Test video
VolP Settings		
VoIP Call ID:	901	
DTMF accept call:		
DTMF end call:		
Door opener settings		
TELETASK function:		
Timed function	~ 🗋	
01 » » Open fro	ont door 🗸 😭	
DTMF door code:		
	OK	Cancel

### Create a GUI+

The creation of a GUI+ configuration for a TELETASK MAIOR is similar to the creation of another GUI+. Only the 'Target Device resolution' needs to be set to 'TDS12051 MAIOR', "TDS12052 MAIOR" or "TDS12053 MAIOR".

SUI Naam:	GUI+ MAIOR		Communicatie instellingen op het doelsy	steem	OK
GUI Type:	TDS15105: GUI+	•	Type communicatie:	Ethemet	•
chermresolutie doeltoestel	1152 x 864	•	IP-adres van de centrale eenheid	192 168 5 10	Annuleren
Width	1152 🗧 Height	864 📫	IP-Poort nr (default 55956):	55956	-10
kin:	Satin Black Skin	•			
GUI in 'volledig scherm'	mode uitvoeren				
Auditieve terugmelding b	ij aanraking/click				
GUI Pagina's:					
Favorites		Pagina	Pagina instellingen:		
Living room		INCLOCACE	Pagina naam:	F	avorites
Techical		Wis pagina	Parina preview (grootlas 1152 x 79)		
			TELE TASE, provide 5 devide		Wis figuur
			Pagina achtergrondkleur		2

### Add the video door phone item (optional)

By default the video door phone screen is displayed on the first GUI+ page (favourites) at the moment someone rings the bell. After the conversation the video door phone screen disappears again (when changing the page or executing another function on the GUI+).

If you would like to have the video door phone screen appear on another page or you would like to use the intercom functionality, you can add the video door phone screen manually on GUI+.

To do this select the icon "Camera and URL" and drag the video door phone image to the desired place on the desired page.

TELETASK PROSO	FT 3.2				
PROSOFT	Bestand Bewerken Ver	zenden Egtra Help UI TDS15105: GUI+ MAI val 10+ Offset X 0+	OR • GUI Eigen Offset Y 이다	schappen Copy GUI GUI wiss	en
	Functies Symbool biblic * * Selecteer Ruimte:		Favorites	Kitchen	Living room
CARDSOFT	Kitchen    Kitchen	9			
GUISOFT	Ut & Cam	(ja)			
AV-SOFT				6	Camera back
				http://15	2.168.5.14/axis-cgi/jpg/image.cgi?resc
		49 <sup>4</sup>	SEN 02 Living		
		A A			
					+ <del>-</del>
	NANOS Cen	trale			Niet verbonden

The screen 'Edit GUI Item' opens automatically. Here you can change the image, the icon and the 'default open settings (like for any other GUI Item).

					Function				
Size & location			Item Text		Select Function type:	IP Video doorphone	~		
Width (active zone):	32	-	Text location:						
Height (active zone):	32	-	NO TEXT	~					
X position:	132	•	Text						
Y position:	63	-							
Parkersund									
No background									
C FILO DOCKGIOUNG									
<ul> <li>Image</li> </ul>									
<ul> <li>Image</li> <li>Scale image (</li> </ul>	(fill acti	ve zon	e)		less				
Image  Scale image  Fixed image:	(fill acti size (ce	ve zon	не) 1)		Icon Show item for icon:		Al		~
Image  Scale image  Fixed image :  Width:	(fill acti size (ce	ve zon entered	e) ()		Icon Show item for icon: Popup window		AI		,
<ul> <li>Image</li> <li>Scale image :</li> <li>Fixed image :</li> <li>Width:</li> <li>Height:</li> </ul>	(fill acti size (ce	ve zon entered	e) ()		Icon Show item for icon: Popup window Default open (Always	s open)	Al		~
Image     Scale image     Fixed image     Wridth:     Height:	(fill acti size (cr 1	ve zon entered	e) ()		Icon Show item for icon: Popup window Default open (Always Default open in "ALL	s open) icons‴view	Al		~
Image     Scale image :     O Fixed image :     Width:     Height:     Change In	(fill acti size (ce 1 1 nage	ve zon	e) ()		Icon Show item for icon: Popup window Default open (Always Default open in "ALL X position:	s open) icons" view AUTO 💽	Al Vidth:	330	
Image     Scale image :     O Fixed image :     Width:     Height:     Change In	(fill acti size (cr 1 1 nage	ve zon entered	e) ()		Icon Show item for icon: Popup window Default open (Always) Default open in "ALL X position: Y position:	s open) icons" view AUTO 💽	Al Width: Height	330 314	\$ () ()

REMARK: you can add the video door phone icon only once per GUI+ configuration. If you delete the item, you can add it again (e.g. on a different page).

### GUI+

### Set Up VoIP server and VoIP user

For VoIP you need a VoIP server, this server acts as PBX (telephone exchange). Each device that makes a connection on this server is a VoIP client.

The TELETASK MAIOR comes with a pre-configured VoIP server installed. If another VoIP server is already present (e.g. in a hybrid analogue/VoIP telephone exchange) the VoIP server in the TELETASK MAIOR is not needed. But if no VoIP server is present, no extra costs need to be made for this.

If two or more TELETASK MAIOR devices are placed in the same installation, one of the TELETASK MAIOR devices will act as VoIP server.

In the VoIP server on TELETASK MAIOR the following numbers are available:

- 101-110: Numbers reserved for TELETASK MAIOR devices
- 901-910: Numbers reserved for door units.

To configure the VoIP server and user on the TELETASK MAIOR start your GUI+, go to the locations screen and click the 'Settings' button at the bottom.

GUI+	
Working directory Default (Recommended)	
Custom (Advanced)	Browse
/oIP Settings	
VoIP server:	127.0.0.1
VolD User	101

Enter the VoIP server address and the VoIP User.

If the TELETASK MAIOR for which you are configuring the VoIP server is the VoIP server itself, you can leave the address on 127.0.0.1 (this is the case if you have no other VoIP server present and only one TELETASK MAIOR). In other cases add the IP address of the VoIP server.

The VoIP user can be 101-110 (if the TELETASK MAIOR is the VoIP server).

### Assign a Fixed IP address to MAIOR

If the MAIOR is used as VoIP server it is important to assign a static IP address to the MAIOR touchscreen. Assigning a static IP address to a MAIOR touchscreen is the same as assigning a static IP address to a Windows XP computer. But the MAIOR touchscreens are equipped with special software to protect them from undesired (spyware, viruses) / incorrect (during installation) changes to the operating system. When the MAIOR restarts all changes to the operating system, including changes to the IP settings, are lost unless the MAIOR is restarted using this special software. After the IP address is changed to the correct static one, and the VoIP system is tested, use the "call ewf tool" available from the "start" menu on the MAIOR to permanently save the settings.

### AV-SOFT

### Table of contents:

Multi-Room Multi-Source
Multi-room/Multi-source: the differences
Phase 1: Choose the wanted audio-video configuration
Phase 2: Assigning the RS232 Port and the IR flashers
Phase 3: Configuring the Universal RS232 AV or IP interface
Phase 4: Configuring the audio buttons of the domotics installation
Edit library
Add and edit devices into the library
Record IR codes
Paste IR codes
RS232, IP
Polling codes
Special codes
BACK-UP the AV-SOFT Library
Connection to the RS232 UNIVERSAL AV INTERFACE
RS232 connection
Splitter Cable for audio system
Audio-IP software licence

 Image: Image:

© 2018 TELETASK bvba

....

### Multi-Room Multi-Source

Making a multi-room multi-source system with full flexibility in quality, budget and features. From a few rooms with back-ground music to the perfect and fully integrated home theatre.

To realize the integration of audio/video with the RS232 universal AV interface in a fast and correct way, it is necessary to use a phased set-up. The different phases may look different than you would expect at first sight. Start at the right with '1' on the figure below and step to the left to finalize the installation process.

There are four phases to be distinguished:

- 1. Define the desired audio configuration: In this phase you will have to define the used audio/video sources and amplifiers and how audio/video source signals are connected to the amplifiers
- 2. Assigning the RS232 port and the IR flashers (infrared transmitters: 8 flasher outputs/interface): In this phase each IR flasher is granted to an audio/video component (sources and amplifiers).
- 3. Configuring the RS232 universal AV interface: In this phase, the interface is configured to be able to control the multi- room multi- source audio system.
- 4. Configuring the audio/video buttons of the domotics installation: In this phase, the different audio/video functions are defined on the necessary buttons in the TELETASK system.

The four different phases from above are explained one by one in the text below, but first we give some explanation about multi-room and multi-source



### Table of contents:

Multi-room/Multi-source: the differences

- Phase 1: Choose the wanted audio-video configuration
- Phase 2: Assigning the RS232 Port and the IR flashers
- Phase 3: Configuring the Universal RS232 AV or IP interface
- Phase 4: Configuring the audio buttons of the domotics installation
- I I TELETASK Technical handbook » AV-SOFT » Multi-Room Multi-Source

### Multi-room/Multi-source: the differences

When you want to listen to different audio sources (tuner, CD, MP3, ...) in different rooms at the same time, you will need a power amplifier for every room (or better: 'audio zone'). This is called a 'multi source – multi room' system. If you always have the same source in the different rooms at the same time, this is called a 'multi room' system. The difference between these two kinds of audio installations is shown in figure below.



Today there are several power amplifiers with built-in audio sources. In small tower systems you have all common sources built-in, but even some higher range power amplifiers may have a built in radio tuner or hard disk. The most important and typical feature of such systems, is that the built-in sources are not to be shared with other power amplifiers. You can find a comparing illustration in figure 5.



Depending on the requirements of the user and the available budget, there is to be chosen for internal, external or a mix of internal/external audio sources.

Remark: The tuner is a typical source where different persons listen to different broadcasting stations at the

same time. That is why it is particularly interesting to have several tuner sources available at the same time. A good combination is to have every power Amplifier (for every audio zone or room) equipped with a built-in tuner. This kind of amplifier/tuner combination is easy to find and available at most of the brands.

 Image: Image:

# Phase 1: Choose the wanted audio-video configuration

### Define the requirements

The RS232 universal AV interface is able to control about all audio/video systems available on the market. Example: A TELETASK client wants music in the kitchen, the living room and the bath room. He wants to be able to listen to the radio in the different rooms. In the living room and in the kitchen, he wants to listen to the DVD player and he also plans to buy a MP3 player with three streams (= up to three songs played at the same time).



Listen to the	in the		
	Kitchen	Living Room	Bathroom
Radio	Yes	Yes	Yes
DVD	Yes	Yes	No
MP3 - 1	Yes	Yes	Yes
MP3 - 2	Yes	Yes	Yes
MP3 - 3	Yes	Yes	Yes

The requirements of the user can be summarized in the table.

Based on the requirements of the user, the necessary audio components can be defined and brought into a configuration drawing. For the used example, the schematic drawing should be like in the figure above.

# When you select the components which you want to integrate through IR with the domotics system, you need to take care about:

• The frequency can be between 36 – 38 KHz (most common) or 455 KHz.

!!! The used audio components must support the so called 'discrete on/off codes'. A discrete ON code, switches the audio component to ON. When the component is already ON, when sending the discrete 'ON' code, the system stays in the ON status. A discrete OFF code, switches the component to the OFF status. When the system was already in the OFF status, it remains in that status.

VERY IMPORTANT: Not all brands support these 'discrete ON/OFF' codes and within a brand there are components which support these codes and other components which do not. Therefore always ask your supplier if the device can process the controllable infrared 'discrete ON- and OFF' codes. Also ask if these codes can be generated by the remote control, so you can learn them to the RS232/learnable IR interface which needs these codes for obvious reasons or if the HEX codes are available.

## When you select the components which you want to integrate through RS232, take care about:

- The serial communication of the devices should work on one of the following Baudrates = 9600 / 19200 / 38400 / 57600.
- The interface is always working with no parity, no handshaking, 8 data bits and 1 stop bit.

## When you select the components which you want to integrate through IP, take care about:

• Socket based serial HEX or ASCII string

No high level protocols (http, xml, json,...)

Like for the IR codes there should also be support for 'discrete on/off commands' The protocol of the device should have a different string for ON and for OFF.

To implement feedback codes, it is important that the receive code of the selected device contains the information as well as what this information is about. E.g.: If you would request volume feedback, the receive code must say: volume 50 and not just 50.

In our example the configuration drawing leads to the next set of audio components:

#### 3 separate power amplifiers with each having their own internal tuner

these amplifiers are used to be connected with the speakers in the living room, the kitchen and the bath room. The TELETASK RS232 universal AV interface will control the different sources and amplifiers. In every room it is possible to listen to any tuner frequency, independent from the other rooms.

Remark: Although the user asked to be able to listen to the radio, you can offer him an unlimited and independent radio choice. This solution is to be preferred, because most home audio amplifiers for background music applications are only a limited percentage more expensive with an included tuner. The final cost of this may even be less expensive when compared to three power amplifiers with one separate tuner. Nevertheless, you may not forget to provide the necessary antenna amplifier / splitter to provide the necessary tuner signal to the different tuner inputs of every amplifier/tuner unit. In this example case, you need an antenna amplifier/splitter with at least 3 antenna outputs.

#### 1 x DVD player

This one is external and is connected to the audio signal inputs of both power amplifiers, to be able to listen in the different rooms to the DVD player source.

#### 1 x RS232 MP3 player with 3 streams

This one is also an external audio source, to be connected to every power amplifier. These can contain a huge number of music tracks.



As soon as you have selected the necessary audio components, you can start setting up the configuration drawing. It is absolutely necessary to take good care for the making of this drawing. This will become an important tool to obtain the final solution smoothly.

Optionally you can add the brand and type of the audio component to the drawing.

As soon as the audio configuration reaches its final version, half of the work is done.

Only with an excellent drawing in your hands, you can go for the next step.

This drawing is also necessary to guarantee the support of TELETASK support service.

 Image: Image:
# Phase 2: Assigning the RS232 Port and the IR flashers



With only the audio configuration, the audio system is not yet integrated. Therefore a connection must be made with the TELETASK home automation system by interfacing the audio components with the TELETASK RS232 universal AV interface. The pluggable IR flashers will generate the necessary infrared signals for the audio components to be controlled.

Every audio component should get one IR flashers to transmit to his built-in IR receiver. Indicate the flasher numbers on the configuration drawing.

Alongside of the IR flasher numbers, it is necessary to write down the audio related terms on the drawing. Because of the evolution in the audio world, there can be confusion between traditional audio terms like 'TAPE', 'CD', 'TUNER'; these are mentioned on the amplifier inputs and on the concerned components sources which are connected to them. As an example, the MP3 player source is connected to the VIDEO 1 input on the audio power amplifier. Because audio integration was already possible at the beginning of domotics age, the traditional audio terms are

used. This may cause confusion. Therefore it is possible that the BLU-RAY drive is controlled with the 'CD' button on the TELETASK remote control. Therefore it is necessary to clean-up these confusions right from the beginning. You will understand that the printed audio functions on the TELETASK remote control are fixed, so the traditional audio source names are to be used 'FM' 'CD' 'HDD' 'MP3' 'DVD' 'VID' 'SAT' 'AUX'. You find our clarifying example here below.



SRC 1         FM         FM           SRC 2         CD         DVD	Sources	REMOTE CONTROL	PROSOFT & Touchscreens
SRC 2 CD DVD	SRC 1	FM	FM
	SRC 2	CD	DVD
SRC 3 HDD MP3-1	SRC 3	HDD	MP3-1
SRC 4 MP3 MP3-2	SRC 4	MP3	MP3-2
SRC 5 DVD MP3-3	SRC 5	DVD	MP3-3
SCR 6 VID	SCR 6	VID	
SCR 7 SAT	SCR 7	SAT	

The name on the Remote Control can't be changed.

But in PROSOFT you can choose the name you want to use for each source, a big advantage is the fact that this name also will appear on your screen, your GUI and even your iSGUI. PROSOFT will use your chosen name in the whole program.

With the assigning of the IR flashers and the RS232 Port and the clarification of the possible confusion between audio terms, the schematic drawing is now finalised. In the next phase, this schematic is used to integrate the whole installation into the TELETASK 'AV-SOFT' software.

 Image: Construct of the IR flashers

 Image: Construct of the IR flashers

© 2018 TELETASK byba

### Phase 3: Configuring the Universal RS232 AV or IP interface

After the two first phases, now is the time to program the RS232 universal or IP AV interface with A/V-SOFT. With the configuration drawing at hand, it should be easy to walk through this third phase. The configuring phase is divided in the following steps:

# Assigning IR codes, RS232 strings or IP strings

Assigning IR code, RS232 strings or IP strings to the different components and their functions.

- Start PROSOFT and go to AV-SOFT.
- Select 'Edit' 'Edit AV-SOFT Library'.
- You now see a list of pre-configured audio devices. If your device is listed go to the next step.
- If not, add the new device(s) you need. For detailed information on how to do this, see the chapter 'Edit AV-SOFT Library'.

## Entering the audio configuration in AV-SOFT

• Click 'NEW', and select the correct 'A/V - Interface' type.

TELETASK PROSO	OFT 3.6 - MICROS.nbt				_		×
PROSOFT	Eile Edit Com	munication E <u>x</u> tra <u>H</u> elp					
PROSOFT	Select AV interfac	6					
TIMESOFT				New			
CARDSOFT				Edit			
GUISOFT		Select interface			- 0	×	
AV-SOFT		AV - interfaces					
DALISOFT		TDS14042: Universal RS232 at TDS14065: IR Cookie for AV co TDS15240: A/V IP License	udio interface ontrol				
				ØK	Can	cel	-
2	MICROS+	Central Unit	USB	N	lot Connected		

• At the top of the window you can set general properties about the AV interface (name, AUTOBUS or IP address).

TELETASK PROSC	OFT 3.6 - MICROS.nbt				×
PROSOFT	Eile Edit Communication	E <u>x</u> tra <u>H</u> elp			
PROSOFT	Interface address Name:	Universal RS232 audio interface	ОК		
	Central unit:	A: MICROS+ Central Unit			
CARDSOFT	Bus address:	AUTOBUS 1 V			
GUISOFT	RS 232 port	Add Device			î
DALISOFT	Flasher 1	Add Device			
kenned	Flasher 2	Add Device			
	Flasher 3	Add Device			
	Flasher 4	Add Device			
	Flasher 5	Add Device			
	Flasher 6	Add Device			
	Flasher 7	Add Device			<b>,</b>
	< MICPOSt Car	ntral I loit	LICR	Not Connected	>
	micros+ cer	itier vrint	030	Not connected	

## Assigning Sources

We strongly recommend to start with assigning the sources of the AV devices (multi-source), followed by assigning the zones where these devices have to be active (multi-room).

- Click on the button 'ADD DEVICE' at the RS232 port.
- There will be a pop-up screen, named: 'Select audio device'. In this library you chose the brand and type of audio device you want to connect with the RS232 universal AV interface. (e.g. Russound SMS3). Click OK.

lect Device		D X
Device		
TELETASK	^	New
MMA8 Multiroom Multisource Ampl/server 8 zones		1004
MMA4 Multiroom Multisource Ampl/server 4 zones		1.44.1
APART		
Zone 4		Delete
SDQ5PIR BD4000D		6/515/5
PRIOOR	1.5	
PC1000R		
CONCEPT1		
ARTSOUND		
ART 8.8		
ART 5.4		
ART 2.4		
BOSE		
Lifestyle 48 (Zone 1-15)		
Lifestyle 48 (Main Zone)	~	
^	^	
×	v	
	OK	Cancel

• Now you can give the different sources a name: MP3-1, MP3-2, MP3-3

32 port	Add Device	
AND / TYPE	SMS 3	Edit Delete
- SOURCES	MP2.1 Detaile	
Source name:	MP3-2 Details	
Source name:	MP3-3 Details	

• Then you can go to the correct flasher and do the same exercise for the JVC DVD (flasher 1 was assigned to the JVC-DVD player).

DON'T forget to save your files!

### Assigning Zones

After having configured the different sources, you can now add the devices with different AV zones.

- Choose a flasher and add the correct device to this flasher as you have done with the sources.
- You can now enter a name for the audio zone, the internal tuner, connects the sources to the correct input (example below shows the configuration for the bathroom, as decided in phase 2, no source is connected to the second input).

# Configuring the RS232 universal AV interface.

As soon as all IR codes are assigned to the total configuration, the memorized information can be transmitted from the PC to the TELETASK RS232/IR learnable audio interface.

Therefore the RS232 universal AV interface should stay connected with the PC through the RS232 connection. If you don't have an RS232 COM-port on your PC, you can use the USB to RS232 interface from TELETASK (TDS10117) to connect to the PC (USB). Be aware that the RS232/learnable IR interface is powered through the applied mains adapter. In the figure below you can find the schematic set-up.



If the connection is properly done, you can send the necessary AV-SOFT data which is stored in the PC memory, to the interface:

- Click on the 'Communication' button in the main menu bar of AV-SOFT.
- Click on the 'Transmit to interface' button.

SOFT	File Edit Communication	Extra Help					
- Clurico		AIL+X					
OSOFT	Interface address						
MESOFT	Name:	Universal RS232 audio interface		OK			
	Central unit:	A: MICROS+Central Unit	×				
RDSOFT	Bus address:	AUTOBUS 1	~ 5				
JISOFT	RS 232 port	Add Device					_
-SOFT	BRAND / TYPE						
LISOFT	ARTSOUND	ART 5.4				Edit Delete	
	INTERNAL AV - SOU	RCES					
	Source name 1:	FM 1 Details					
	Source name 2:	FM 2 Details					
	Source name 3:	MP3 Details					
	INPUTS (for AV - SOU	IRCES)					
	FM 1: FM 1	✓ FM 2: FM 2 ✓ MP3: M	4P3 ~ IN 1: N	DNE V IN 2: N	ONE 🗸		
	OUTPUTS (AV - ZON	ES)					
			FM 1	FM 2	MP3		
	Zone name 1:	Zone 25					
	Zone name 2:	Zone 26			$\square$		
	Zone name 3:	Zone 27					
	Zone name 4:	Zone 28					
	Flasher 1	Add Device					
	Flasher 2	Add Device					
	Flasher 3	Add Device					
	Flasher 4	Add Device					

COM Port Nr:	COM1 ~
	harris and a second second
Click OK to program	'Universal RS232 audio interface'
Click OK to program	'Universal RS232 audio interface'

- As soon as the communication is completed, the interface is ready to be disconnected from the PC and to be connected to the AUTOBUS.
- The data in the RS232/IR interface is stored in non-volatile memory, so even if the interface is disconnected from the power supply it will still have the correct data when it is connected again.

# Configuring the AV-IP license.

For TDS15240, no additional configuration is needed. When you're done, transmit the .nbt file to the central unit.

24/1/2019

© 2018 TELETASK byba

# Phase 4: Configuring the audio buttons of the domotics installation

You can assign the buttons or inputs to the required audio function.

If needed, assign an audio zone for this interface in the 'Audio zone' field. If you use the Audio buttons on your TELETASK remote control (TDS12502) with this interface, the selected Audio zone will be controlled.

Next click on the button which you want to use and choose the 'audio' function as the type of function, plus the audio code you want to be generated (for example) 'start CD' (if available; the list is based on your list of learned codes).

			100	
lame:	AURUS-4 XL	Audio zone:	None	×
Central Unit:	A: MICROS+ Central Unit	Sensor Zone:	None	~
Address:	AUTOBUS 1 V 4	RGB zone:	None	~
			Main I Beep on IR o	R Enable 🗹 ommand 🗹
terface type:		Button functions		
DS12021: AUF	IUS-4 XL	Short		
		Audio zone v 26 02 Living room	~	1 12
	1 2 7 8	Audio zone  V 26 02 Living room FM 1 (PRESET -)	~ 0n	
	3 4	Input definition		
	TLEAM	Description: Enable Enable	e Button Control e Remote Control	

REMARK: if you configure a button like this, you will always control an AUDIO ZONE not an AUDIO SOURCE, if needed the zone will relay the information to the correct source. Example: if you select 'Living' and 'DVD', the Central Unit will relay the necessary commands: 'SWITCH ON to zone living' + 'SELECT INPUT DVD to zone living' + 'PLAY to source DVD'.

In some rare cases you may want to control the source itself, this can be obtained with the 'Send IR/RS232 code' function (for normal use this is NOT recommended!)

 Image: Image:

#### © 2018 TELETASK byba

# Edit library

### Table of contents:

Add and edit devices into the library Record IR codes Paste IR codes RS232, IP Polling codes Special codes BACK-UP the AV-SOFT Library

I I TELETASK Technical handbook » AV-SOFT » Edit library

© 2018 TELETASK bvba

# Add and edit devices into the library

### General setup

When you want to add or edit a device in the library, follow the next procedure:

• Click on the Menu: 'Edit', 'Edit AV-SOFT Library'

elect Device		-		×
Device type				
AV device				
O HVAC device				
Device				
TELETASK	^		New	
MMA8 Multiroom Multisource Ampl/server 8 zones (IP)				_
MMA8 Multiroom Multisource Ampl/server 8 zones				
MMA4 Multiroom Multisource Ampl/server 4 zones (IP)			Copy	
MMA4 Multiroom Multisource Ampl/server 4 zones				
AKAY				
DV-P3410				
APART				
Zone 4				
SDQ5PIR				
PR4000R				
PR1000R				
PR1000 (2)				
PC1000R	~			
Double tuner & 3 MP3 players, track & Medium: RS232 ubrary: TELETASK Updated 16 jan 2012 Updated 16 jan 2012 Updated 16 jan 2012	^			
v Inputs: 8 Internal sources: 5	~			
			OK	
				_

You will see the list of devices of the TELETASK library and the user library (per brand). On the right side of this screen you find four buttons: NEW, EDIT, COPY and DELETE. The functions of these buttons are:

#### NEW

you want to add a device which isn't in the list

- You need to enter the Brand and the Type of the device.
- You have to choose between two possibilities:
- Serial RS232, for devices connected through the serial port
- IP, for IP based devices
- IR, for devices controlled trough an Infrared flasher

#### EDIT

you can edit the devices you have added yourself.

- Editing of a device out of the TELETASK library is NOT possible!
- When you need to make changes to a device from the TELETASK library, you can create a copy of a device from the TELETASK library give it a new name and then edit this device.

#### COPY

you can copy a device and just modify the desired features

#### DELETE

you can delete a device you have made.

On the bottom you can also see the features and some comments of the chosen device for your information. After choosing the correct device or after creating a new device you arrive in the screen: 'Define AV device'.

Device identification				
Brand:		TELETASK		~
Type:		MMA8 Multiroom Multisource Amplifier		
Comment		Double tuner & 3 MP3 players, track & volume feedback Updated 16 mar 2017		< >
Properties	AV Properties			
Serial RS232	Amplifier	Number of Amplifiers:	8	÷
O IR for TDS14042	Amp	lifier controls sources		
O IR for TDS14065	🖸 Devi	ce has internal sources		
OIP	Number	of internal sources:	5	-
	O Source	Number of Sources:	0	A V
	O Other devic	e .		
		- 12. View - Vie		
		OK	Can	cel

In this screen you can first add or adjust your personal comments for the chosen device in the box:

#### Comment

This information will be stored and you will see it each time you chose to add this device.

Then you have to choose which type of device you want to configure:

#### Amplifier

If the device is an amplifier (or more than one);

#### Source

If the device is a source (or more than one);

#### Other

(for non-audio devices);

When you choose to add or edit an amplifier you have to check the following options:

- Number of amplifiers
- Amplifier controls sources

This means that the device has his own system to control the connected sources (the sources will not need to be entered in AV-SOFT).

When you check this box you get following extra options: PLAY-STOP-PRESET+-PRESET- PRESET 0 -10 for each

• Device has internal sources (e.g. a tuner)

If so, check the box and give the number of internal sources.

When you choose to add or edit a source you have to enter the number of sources (e.g 1 for a normal tuner, 3 for an MP3 player with three audio outputs).

REMARK: you will not be able to change these settings later, if you want to change it you will have to make a copy of the device.

Depending on the kind of device (RS232 or IR), you have to define some additional settings. See the specific sections for those devices.

In the main part of the window you will have a tab-page for every amplifier, source or other device (e.g. if you have created an AV-device with 4 amplifiers and 3 internal sources, you will have 7 tab pages). On the different tab-pages you can enter or record the codes for that specific amplifier, source or other device.

	device				– 🗆 X
Device					
Summary	RS232 properties				
0.00					C-da
OHEX				Peedback codes	Eloit
ASCI				Baudrate:	38400 ~
MA	Add Carriage return (0x00)	after	code		
MA	Add Line feed (0x0A) after c	ode			
Recorded	d codes				
Amplifier	1 Amplifier 2 Amplifier 3	Amp	plifier 4 Amplifier 5	Amplifier 6 Amplifier 7 Amplifier 8 Source 1 Source 2 Source 3 So	urce 4 Source 5
			Display name	ASCII	
► SYS	STEM OFF		OFF	"OFF.1;	
SYS	STEM ON	8	ON	*ON,1;	
SEL	LECT SRC1	8	FM 1	*SRC.1.SET.1;	
SEL	LECT SRC2	0	FM2	*SRC,1,SET,2;	
SEL	LECT SRC3	8	MM1	*SRC.1.SET.3:	
SEL	LECT SRC4	8	MM2	*SRC,1,SET,4;	
SEL	LECT SRC5	æ	MM3	*SRC.1.SET.5;	
SEL	LECT SRC6	8	IN 1	*SRC,1,SET,6;	
SEL	LECT SRC7	8	IN 2	*SRC.1.SET.7:	
SEL	LECT SRC8	8	IN 3	*SRC,1,SET,8;	
VOL	LUME DOWN START	æ			
VOL	LUME DOWN STOP	8			
VOL	LUME DOWN	8	VOLUME DOWN	"VOL.1.DEC;	
VOL	LUME UP START	8			
1.000	LUME UP STOP	8			
VOL		8	VOLUME UP	"VOL,1,INC;	
VOL	LUME UP	-			

# Types of Codes

The codes you can enter in AV-SOFT can be divided into three categories:

- Send codes (required)
- Feedback codes (optional)
- Polling codes (optional)

'Send codes' are codes that are transmitted from TELETASK to the AV-device. 'Send codes' are available on IR, RS232 and IP. Per device type a different set of codes is available:

Amplifier functions	Source functions	Other functions
ON	PLAY	Code 1-40
OFF	STOP	
SELECT SOURCE 1-8	NEXT	
VOLUME UP and DOWN	PREVIOUS	
VOLUME SET 0-100%*	PRESET 0-9	
MUTE	EXTRA 1-10	

• only available for IP devices

'Feedback codes' are codes that are transmitted from the AV-device to TELETASK. These codes are only available on RS232/IP devices. This code can contain information from the amplifier or source:

Amplifier info	Source info
Zone number *	Source number*
Power status	Track or RDS info, Line 1
Volume level	Track or RDS info, Line 2
Active source	

• This is required for each code.

'Polling codes' are codes that are transmitted from TELETASK to the AV-device. These codes can be used to request a status from a source or amplifier. They are only useful if the feedback codes are defined. Some devices do not require polling codes, they send their status automatically. 'Polling codes' are only available for RS232/IP devices.

 Image: Image:

#### © 2018 TELETASK bvba

# Record IR codes

For an IR device you have to define which carrier frequency is use by the device: 36-38 kHz or 455 kHz (most devices use 36-38 kHz).

To record an IR code follow the procedure below:

• To be able to learn the IR-codes to the RS232/learnable IR generator unit, the unit should be connected to the PC trough an RS232 cable. Alternatively this can be done to the USB port of your PC. Therefore you will need the TELETASK RS232-USB convertor.



• You are ready to record the IR-code. Make sure that both the audio remote control and the TELETASK RS232/learnable interface are close at hand.

New device				×
Device identification				
Brand:		SONY		~
Type:		STR-DE197		
Comment:				~
				~
Properties	AV Properties			
Serial RS232	Amplifier	Number of Amplifiers:	1	÷
O IR for TDS14042	Amp	lifier controls sources		
O IR for TDS14065	🗹 Devi	ce has internal sources		
OIP	Number	of internal sources:	1	-
	O Source	Number of Sources:	0	A V
	O Other devic	e		
		OK		aal
		- OK	Can	Cel

- Select the correct function and then click the 'RECORD Code' button on your PC screen.
- AV-SOFT will display a window with the 'connecting to interface' message. Prepare to activate the button of the appropriate audio function on your audio remote control.

					_
levice					
Summary RS232 properties					
) HEX			Feedback o	codes	Edit
ASCII			Baudrate		19200
Add Carriage return (0x00	D) after (	code			
Add Line feed (0x0A) after	r code				
Recorded codes					
Amplifier 1 Source 1					
		Display name	ASCII		-
SYSTEM OFF	æ		165mS		
SYSTEM ON	8		162mS		
SELECT SRC1	80	TUNER	158mS		
SELECT SRC2	8	CD	160mS		
SELECT SRC3	æ	TAPE	162mS		
SELECT SRC4	8	VIDEO1	158mS		
SELECT SRC5	80	VIDEO2	162mS		
SELECT SRC6	8		NOT RECORDED		
SELECT SRC7	80		NOT RECORDED		
SELECT SRC8	8		NOT RECORDED		
VOLUME DOWN START	æ		NOT RECORDED		
VOLUME DOWN STOP	8		NOT RECORDED		
VOLUME DOWN	8		115mS		
VOLUME UP START	8		NOT RECORDED		
VOLUME UP STOP	⊕		NOT RECORDED		
					>

- Hold the remote control about 30 cm (1 foot) away from the (dark red) transparent front plate of the TELETASK interface.
- The 'Connecting to interface' screen changes into a window displaying 'Press remote control now!' Then (you will see that the 4 led indicators on the interface front panel are blinking) press on the remote control button you want to record in the TELETASK interface. Only during the blinking of the 4 led's a code can be captured. When you are too late you will have to try again.
- When the code is recorded, a message appears on the PC screen. Click on the OK button.

If something is not correct, a message will indicate that no code was recorded. In this case, you can click on the 'Record code' again to try once more.

- After the code is properly recorded, the new code is added to the chosen function. E.g. function SELECT SOURCE 3 corresponds with HDMI on the remote control. Please fill in HDMI in the name field of this function.
- At the bottom of this screen: 'Recorded codes' a graphical representation of the learned IR-code is displayed. This visualization has two purposes:
- It gives a visual control of the recorded code. When a non-expected pattern is displayed, there may have been a disturbance while recording the IR signal and the code will have to be recorded again.

Remark: Even a minor error in the code can disturb the working of the recorded code. If the pattern is not looking 'normal', we advise to learn the code again.

- When you move the Mouse pointer over the graphical code pattern on the PC screen, the pointer will become scissors. You can also see that a part of the pattern becomes red. If you click on the left mouse button, the recorded IR- code will be cut (the red part will disappear). This function is particularly useful to tune codes to each other. This is important for functions like 'VOLUME UP' and 'VOLUME DOWN'. When arranging with the cut function you can make sure that there is an equal number of IR blocks (for example 3), for both the volume up and volume down function so there will be the same volume level change for up and down. This results in a better control as if the number of IR-blocks would be different.
- Repeat the former steps for every Infrared code which is to be learned.
- When you need two or more infrared codes for one command click the 'chain' symbol next to the name of the function. You will see a menu where you can add a new code or a time to wait between two codes.
- To test if a code was recorded correctly select the code and press the 'Test IR code on flasher' button. The code will now be send to the selected flasher and your device should respond as expected. If your device does not do anything or does something other than expected there may be something wrong with the IR code, please record it again. If you have chained more than one function (and waits) all chained codes will be sent to the device in the correct order and the wait times will be respected.

When all new infrared codes are memorized in the system, you can close the 'Record IR Codes' window by clicking on the 'X' button in the upper-right corner. Now you are back in the main window of AV-SOFT. This is the way to learn every infrared code. It makes the TELETASK RS232/IR generator a unique interface at an affordable price level.

 Image: Image:

© 2018 TELETASK byba

## Paste IR codes

On the internet there are several libraries with IR codes in standard HEX format. You can copy these codes there and paste them in the corresponding field of AV SOFT.

This is very convenient when certain codes can't be sent out by the remote control (e.g. discrete ON/OFF codes). If you have a device with multiple internal sources, the codes for preset 0 – 9 are probably the same for all these sources. In that case you can just copy paste the recorded codes from one tab page to the other.

 Image: Image:

© 2018 TELETASK bvba

## RS232, IP

## RS232/IP 'send codes'

For an RS232/IP device you have to choose whether you will enter the codes in HEX or in ASCII-code. If you select ASCII you can also select if a code should end with a Carriage return and/or a Line feed. For RS232 you also have to select the Baudrate: 9600, 19200, 38400 or 57600.

For IP you need to enter the IP port number.

All these settings are depending on the brand and type of device you are adding, refer to the documentation of the manufacturer of the device.

				– 🗆 X
Device				
Summary RS232 properties				
			Feedback codes	Edit
			Parteta a	400
Add Carriage return (0:	(OD) after	r code	baudrate. 38	9400 0
Add Line feed (0x0A) a	fter code			
L	1000			
Recorded codes				
Amplifier 1 Amplifier 2 Amplif	er 3 Am	plfier 4 Amplifier 5	Amplifier 6 Amplifier 7 Amplifier 8 Source 1 Source 2 Source 3 Source	e 4 Source 5
		Display name	ASCII	
SYSTEM OFF	8	OFF	'OFF.1;	
SYSTEM ON	8	ON	*ON,1;	
SELECT SRC1		FM 1	*SRC.1.SET.1;	
SELECT SRC2	ø	FM2	*SRC,1,SET,2;	
SELECT SRC3		MM1	*SRC.1.SET.3;	
SELECT SRC4	ø	MM2	*SRC,1,SET,4;	
SELECT SRC5	8	MM3	*SRC,1,SET,5;	
SELECT SRC6	@	IN 1	*SRC,1,SET,6;	
SELECT SRC7	æ	IN 2	*SRC.1.SET.7:	
SELECT SRC8	æ	IN 3	*SRC,1,SET,8;	
VOLUME DOWN START	æ			
VOLUME DOWN STOP	æ	1		
VOLUME DOWN	8	VOLUME DOWN	"VOL.1.DEC;	
VOLUME UP START	9	F		
	C	*		
VOLUME UP STOP			"VOL 1 INC	
VOLUME UP STOP VOLUME UP		VOLUME UP	102,1,110,	

- In the field display name you can enter a name (optional). You will see this name when you configure the device in PROSOFT.
- For the functions 'SELECT SRC X' it is advised to enter the name of the input of the device (if there is a mark on the

device with AUX2 then type 'AUX2' in the display name field).

- Then enter the HEX-codes or ASCII, which are described in the protocol of the device.
- It's possible to copy similar codes, so you only have to adjust the values where needed.
- Next to the function you will see a 'chain-symbol'; if you click on it you can add a second code to the chosen function. You can add up to 10 codes to one function. (e.g. to add waiting time between 2 codes).

For RS232: at the bottom of this screen you can test the code by clicking on 'Test code from PC port: There will be a test between your PC and the device without any interfering of the TELETASK hardware.

For IP: at the bottom of this screen you can test the codes by selecting a code and click on 'Send'. You will also see the data received from the IP device.

After testing, click ok.

Your codes will be automatically saved in your custom AV-SOFT library 'custom3.3.irdb' file in directory C:\ProgramData\TELETASK\PROSOFT. Whenever you make modifications or create new AV-devices in your project, this file will be updated. The AV-devices that are inside your project will also be saved inside the .nbt file.

REMARK: Be aware that your custom AV-SOFT library on your PC will be synchronised with every .nbt file you open. If you would open an .nbt file which has an AV-device with another configuration as on your AV-SOFT library from your PC, PROSOFT will ask you if you want to keep the device from your library or use the one from the .nbt file with as option to make a backup from the AV-device from your library.

REMARK: PROSOFT versions prior to PROSOFT 3.3.0.60 use the custom.irdb file. PROSOFT will automatically create a copy of this file and save it as 'custom3.3.irdb' for use in newer versions.

### Feedback Codes RS232 and IP

### General

For an RS232 or IP device you can define feedback codes. This is optional but advisable if the AV-device is also controlled directly (e.g. using the remote control from the device or an app on a smartphone or tablet) or if you want to automatically display AV feedback (like volume and track number) on a TELETASK display (like AURUS-OLED (PLUS), AURUS-TFT, etc.). The data that can be received from an AV-device is:

- The power status of a zone (ON or OFF)
- The currently active source on a zone (source 1-8)
- The volume of a zone (0-100%)
- Two lines of track info or RDS info from a source.

The TDS14042 supports up to 6 Feedback codes to receive this info from the AV-device.

For the TDS15240, there is no limit on the number of the feedback codes.

To define 'Feedback Codes', check the option 'Feedback codes' and click the 'Edit' button.

E Feedback codes	Eart
Baudrate:	19200 ~
	Baudrate:

	New
	Edit
	Hemo/e
Part of code character:	

In this window there are two tab pages. One for the 'Feedback codes' and one for the 'Polling codes' (which will be discussed in the next chapter).

At the right there are three buttons to create a new 'Feedback code', to edit an existing one or to remove a feedback code. At the bottom you need to enter a 'Start of code character' and 'End of code character'. You can enter an ASCII character or a hex code in this field. E.g. if you have an ASCII protocol in which the codes starts with a '\*' and ends with a carriage return, you can enter \* in the start of code field and 0x0D in the end of code field ('0x0D' is the hexadecimal representation of carriage return).

To create a new Feedback code, click on the 'New' button. You will now see the 'Define feedback code' window:

Define feedback co	de	- D X
Code Definition Code Name: Sample Code:		Variable or Don't Care character
ZONE SOURCE Protocol Select Protocol:	POWER VOLUME LI	NE1 LINE2 Not defined
		OK Cancel

At the top of the window you have these fields:

#### Code Name

In this field you can enter a descriptive name for the receive code

#### Sample Code

In this field you need to enter an ASCII code that can be received from the AV-device. This code is automatically repeated as individual characters in the field below the sample code.

REMARK: for HEX devices the sample code field is not available. You need to enter the individual bytes directly in the GRID

efine	feed	back	cod	le											×
Cod Cod	e Def	initior me:	•	Pow	ver, V	olume	and	Soun	.e		Vari	able or D	on't C	are char	acter
Sam	ple (	ode:		*z1,	ON,F	M,24					Iden	tifier			
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	ŝ			
•	z	1		0	N		F	М		2	4				

When the sample code is entered, we can define how the different variables can be obtained from this code. Let's have a closer look at the code in this example:

• \*z1,0N,FM,24

Remark: note that the sample code starts with a '\*'. This is the start of code character that was entered in the previous window.

Remark: note that there is no 'end of code character' displayed in this sample code. It is not necessary to add the 'end of code character' in this window.

This code contains 4 variables: the zone number (1), the power status (ON), the active source (FM) and the volume (24). Depending on the brand and type of your AV-device the receive codes can contain either multiple variables in one code (like in this example) or contain only two variables per code but have more different codes. E.g. the codes from another brand could be like this:

- @ZONE1:PWR=ON
- @ZONE1:SRC=FM
- @ZONE1:VOL=24

IMPORTANT remark: Note that the three codes above all contain the zone number. If your AV-device (that has multiple zones) use codes that do not contain zone numbers the device is not compatible with the TDS14042.

### Receive code Protocols

To obtain a variable from a code, there are different 'protocols' available like Single possibility, Position related, Determined by delimiter info, Display characters from position and Exact.

Depending on the type of variable (zone, source, power,..) and the type of code (HEX or ASCII) the different AV interfaces support the protocols as indicated in the tables below:

### RS232 interface TDS14042:

	Zone	Source	Power	Volume	Line 1 or 2
1) Position related	Hex, Ascii	Hex, Ascii	Hex, Ascii	Hex	
2) Determined by Delimiter info				Ascii	Ascii
3) Display characters from position					Hex, Ascii
4) Single possibility			Hex, Ascii	Hex, Ascii	
5) Exact					Hex, Ascii
AV-IP License TDS15240:					
	Zone	Source	Power	Volume	Line 1 or 2

1) Position related	Hex	Hex	Hex	Hex	
2) Determined by Delimiter info	Ascii	Ascii	Ascii	Ascii	Ascii
3) Display characters from position					Hex, Ascii
4) Single possibility	Hex, Ascii	Hex, Ascii	Hex, Ascii	Ascii	
5) Exact					Hex, Ascii

Remark: As you will see, in some cases there are different ways in which you can obtain a variable from a code (using different protocols).

We will now have a look at the individual protocols.

1) Position related:

This mostly used protocol indicates that a specific variable can be found at a predefined position in the code. Example: If you have a device that uses the code:

• z1,0N,FM,24

You could get the zone number from this code as 'Position related' because the zone number can be found at position 3.

Remark: this protocol is limited to a single byte or character. But in some case you can use it to get longer variables from the code. E.g. in the code above you can also get the power status as 'Position related' because at position 6 there is an 'N' for ON and an 'F' for OFF

Remark: this protocol cannot be used if a previous part of the code has a variable length. E.g in the code above you cannot use this protocol for the active source because ON and OFF have a different length

2) Determined by delimiter info:

This protocol is slightly more complex than the others but far more powerful if the different code parts have different lengths. This protocol can only be used if different variables in the code are delimited (separated) by the same character. Example: If you have a device that uses the code:

• \*z1,0N,FM,24

The delimiter is the ','. The volume can now be obtained as the variable after the third delimiter. You also need to define the 'Stop character' for this delimited info. In most cases the 'stop character' will be the same as the delimiter or will be the 'End of code character' but it can also be any other character.

Beside the 'delimiter', the 'Number of delimiter' and the 'stop character' which are required, this protocol has two extra, but optional, parameters:

#### Number of positions skipped after delimiter

if the variable would not immediately start after the delimiter.

#### **Maximum length**

the maximum number of characters that can be part of the variable.

Example: if the code would be:

• \*z1,ON,FM,VOL24BASS3TREBLE2

The volume would be the variable that starts 3 positions after the third delimiter and is terminated by a 'B' character. 3) Display characters from position:

This protocol is only available for track or RDS information from a source. It is very similar to the 'position related' protocol but in this case you define a start position rather than an absolute position. All characters beginning with the start character en terminated by the 'end of code character' will be displayed as track information Example: If you have a device that uses the code:

• \*RDS1,FM,info

The 'Line 1' info for FM can be obtained from the code as all the characters starting at position 10.

Remark: this protocol can only be used if the first part of the code has a fixed length. If there would for example be a second tuner in the device that is referenced as FM2 in the code this protocol cannot be used (in such a case you could use the 'determined by delimiter info' protocol).

4) Single possibility:

This is a very basic protocol. It indicates that a specific variable has a specific value. Example: If you have a device that uses the codes:

- \*z1,0N,FM,24
- \*z1,0FF,FM,24

You could define two receive codes for this and get the 'Power status' from this code as single possibility.

Remark: this protocol can sometimes be useful for the minimum or maximum volume as some AV-devices send different codes (e.g. Mute, Max) for these values than for other volume levels.

5) Display exact characters:

This protocol does not obtain any data from the code, instead it displays a predefined text on 'Line 1' or 'Line 2'. Example: If your AV-device sends the code:

• \*RDS1,FM,RDS ERROR

To indicate that there is no RDS info available for the current radio station, you can display a blank line or 'No info available' or 'FM' or ....

### Defining a receive code

Assume we have a device that uses the receive code from the examples below:

• \*z1,0N,FM,24

This code contains info about the power, the source and the volume status of a particular zone of this amplifier so in the 'Define feedback code' window we give this code the name 'Power, Source and Volume'.

Code	e Nar	me:	5	Pow	ver, V	olume	and	Sourc	:0		Vari	able or Don't Care character
Sam	ple C	ode		*21/	ON,F	M,24					Ider	tifier
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	8
	z	1		0	N	4	F	М		2	4	
ZON	Es	SOUF	CE	POV	VER	VOL	.UME	LI	NE1	LINE	2	

We will now need to obtain all the variables from this code. When you create a new code for every variable the 'Protocol' will be 'Not defined'. This means that there is no information on how to obtain that variable from the code. In our example code there is no information about LINE1 or LINE2 so the protocol for this variables will remain 'Not defined'

### Zone:

The zone variable can be obtained from the code as position related on position 3 for this example. To do this:

- Select the 'ZONE' tab page
- Select 'Position related' from the 'Select Protocol' dropdown list
- Enter '3' in the 'Zone position in code' field.
- PROSOFT will try to obtain the correct character from the code and mark the character in the grid. This allows you to easily verify the information entered in the different fields.

000	de Na	ame:		Pov	ver, S	ource	and	Volur	me		Var	iable or Don't	Care cha	racter
San	nple	Code		*z1/	ON,F	M,24					Ider	ntifier		
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12			
•	z	1		0	N		F	м		2	4			
													-	-
ZOI	NE	SOUR	CE	POV	VER	VOL	.UME	LI	NE1	LINE	2			
P	rotoc	Droto								Beer		late of		
3	erec	FIOIO	COI.							Post	ion re	sateo		~
Ir	fo												-	
Z	one	positio	nin	code:									3	
Z	one	Values	_											_
	TEL	ETASK	( zon	e nr			Z	one v	ralue	in aud	lio de	vice		
ŀ			Zor	ne 1	_							1		
ŀ			Zor	18 2			-					2		-
ŀ			201	ne 3			-					3		
H			200	16 4			-					4		-
ŀ			201	ne s			-					0		-
ŀ			201	100	-		-					7		-
ŀ			700	ne S			-					8		
							100							
н														
- 84														

At the bottom the is a 'translation table' in which you can define which variable corresponds with each 'TELETASK' audio zone. These audio zones first have to be configured in PROSOFT.

In this case we have a device with 4 zones that are referenced in the code as 1-4. Other devices may us A, B, C and D or Main for the first zone and 2, 3 and 4 for the others.

Remark: This table can only contain 1 character for each zone. In the case that the zones are referenced as Main, 2,3, and 4 you can use the characters 'M', '2', '3' and '4' in this table.

### Source:

The TDS14042 only supports obtaining the source as position related, but in this case we have a problem, the position changes when the power changes from ON to OFF. We will solve this by only obtaining the Source information when the amplifier is ON. So we define the source as position related at position 8 To do this:

- Select the 'SOURCE' tab page
- Select 'Position related' from the 'Select Protocol' dropdown list
- Enter '8' in the 'Zone postion in code' field.

Cod	ie Na	me:		Pov	ver, S	ource	and	Volu	me		Vari	able or Don't Care cl	haracter	
Sample Code: 21,0N,FM,24											Iden	tifier		
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12			
•	z	1		0	N		F	М		2	4			
P S In S	rotoci elect fo ource	Proto	col: tion i	n cod	le:					Posit	ion re	lated	~	
S	ource	Valu	es											
	TELE	TASK	soun	ce nr			S	Source value in audio device						
L			FM	11			_	F						
⊢			FN	12			-	M						
⊢			MM	41			-					С		
⊢			MP	12			-	0						
⊢			IN	1			-					A		
F			IN	2			-							
⊢			IN	3										

At the bottom we now have a translation table for the sources. Up to 8 sources can be defined. In this example we have a device that has the sources FM, MP3, CD, DVD and AUX.

Remark: in some case it is impossible to get all the sources from the same code. Suppose we have a device with an

internal tuner that is referenced in the code as FM and 4 inputs that are referenced in the code as IN1, IN2, IN3 and IN4. In this case you need a code for FM and an additional code for the other inputs.

### Power:

With this example code we cannot use the 'position related' protocol for the power as this would generate a problem for the 'Source info'. So for this code we will define the power as single possibility ' $ON'\mu$ 

	eedi	back	cod	le .											~
Code Code	Defi Nan	nition ne:		Pov	ver, S	iource	e and	Volur	ne		Vari	able o	r Don't	Care cha	aracter
Samp	le C	ode:		*z1,	ON,F	M,24					Iden	tifier			
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	9			
-	z	1		0	N		F	м		2	4				
ZONE	S	OUR	CE	POV	VER	VOI	UME	LI	NE1	LINE	2				
Sele	act F	Proto	col:							Singl	e Pos	sbilty			~
Info	ver v	alue	-											ON	~

We will also create a second receive code 'Power OFF' from which:

- We obtain the zone number as 'Position related' on position 3,
- We define the 'POWER' variable as 'Single Possibility', OFF
- We don't obtain other information

Cod	e Def	inition	-										
Cod	le Nar	me:		Pow	er Of	FF			Variable (	or Don't Ca	are chara	cter	
San	ple (	ode:		*21/	OH.				Identifier				
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8						
•	z	1		0	f	f							
201		SOUR	CE	POV	VER	VOI	.UME	LINE1	LINE2				
S	elect	Proto	col:						Single Possibility	,		~	
In P	fo ower	value									OFF	~	

### Volume:

The 'volume' variable can be obtained from the code using the 'Determined by delimiter info' protocol. To do this:

- Select the 'VOLUME' tab page
- Select the 'Determined by delimiter info' from the protocol dropdown list
- Enter ',' as the 'Delimiter'
- Enter '3' as the 'Number of delimiter'

1 z	2 3	4			M,24					Ide	ntifier	
Z	1		5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12		
		$\mathbf{c}_{i}$	0	N	17	F	М	¥(.	2	4	J	
Proto Sele	ct Proto	CE	POW	/ER	VUI	LOME		NE1	Dete	mine	ed by delimiter in	nfo 🔹
Delir Stop	miter: charact	ter:										7
Num	ber of d	elimi	ter:									3
Num	ber of p	ositio	ons sł	tippe	d afte	er deli	miter	r.				0
Maxi	imum le	ngth	volum	e ch	aract	ers:						
Volu	me Rang	ges										
Min:												0
Max	1											50

At the bottom you can also define a 'Min' and 'Max' volume. In this case we have a device that uses 0 as the 'Min' volume an '50' as the 'Max' volume.

Remark: You have to define the 'Min' and 'Max' volume (see technical data form you AV device) to recalculate the volume from 0 to 100 for a correct display on the TELETASK displays.

Remark: Some devices display the volume in dB, e.g from -60dB to 0dB where -60dB is the minimum. In such a case enter '60' (without the '-') as the Minimum and 0 as the Maximum.

### 'Identifiers' and 'Variables or don't care characters'

All our variables are now defined for this code, but we need a mechanism to recognize this code. This is done by 'Identifiers' and 'Variables or don't care characters'.

An Identifier is a character that is always available in this code on a predefined position. In our code (\*z1,ON,FM,24) the Identifiers are:

• \*, z, the first comma, O, N, and the second comma

A 'Variable or don't care character' is a character that is either one of the 'variables' or a character that can be different in different codes but that hasn't got any meaning by itself ('a don't care character'). In this code the variables are:

• 1, F, 2 and 4 (the zone, source an volume variables)

The 'don't care characters are:

• M and the third comma.

The M is a 'don't care character' because this can be different for the other sources.

The third comma is a 'don't care characters' because its position in the code can vary e.g. if the source value is AUX, the position of the third comma is 11 (instead of 10).

So if a receive codes that starts with \*z and where the characters 4-7 are: ',ON,' this code will be recognized as the 'Power, Source and Volume' code name.

When entering a sample code, all characters are automatically marked as 'Identifier' (grey background)

The final thing we have to do is mark the 'variable or don't care characters'. To do this select a character (or multiple surrounding characters) from the grid and click the white 'Variable or don't care character' square. You will see that the characters will now get a white background.

Alternatively you can 'right-click' a character and mark it as 'Variable or don't care character' from the popup menu. Our code should now look like this:

-	- 0-1												
Code Name: Power, Source and Volume									Vari	able or Don't Care character			
Sample Code:				*z1,	ON,F	M.24				Identifier			
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12		
	z	1		0	N		F	М		2	4		

Remark: when closing this window PROSOFT will check that all 'Variables' are marked as 'Variable or don't care character'. If PROSOFT detects a 'Variable' that is not marked as such, it will mark that 'Variable' as 'Variable or don't care'. PROSOFT will display a message that is has done this and give you the options to accept or review the changes.

Remark PROSOFT cannot detect 'don't care characters' (like the M and the third comma). You have to do it yourself.

Remark: if you have accidently marked an 'Identifier' as a 'Variable or Don't Care character' you can mark it as Identifier again using the grey Identifier square (or the right click menu).

Remark: If you make any changes to the sample code all characters are marked as Identifier again.

🛛 🗍 🗍 TELETASK Technical handbook » AV-SOFT » Edit library » RS232, IP

© 2018 TELETASK byba

# Polling codes

Polling codes are codes that are sent from the TELETASK system to the AV device to request the status of a zone or source.

REMARK: Polling codes are optional, some AV system automatically inform connected system when a status changes, other systems do not. See the documentation of your AV-device.

REMARK: Even if the Polling code requests that status of a specific zone, the feedback code from the AV-device must include the zone identifier.

REMARK: It is possible to use one polling code to request the status of multiple zones, as long as the feedback codes for the different zones are sent as individual messages.

REMARK: up to five polling codes can be used with TDS14042

To define a polling code, go to the 'Feedback Codes' window and select the tab page 'Polling codes'



Click the new button to add a polling code, for each zone you can now enter a code (like for send codes) Example: if we can request the status of a zone with the code: \*GET,z1; (where 1 is the zone number) Our polling code will be:

olling code se	ettings	- D X
Name:	poll source, volume and power	]
Zone Nr	Ascii Code	
1	"GET,z1;	
2	*GET.z2:	
3	*GET,z3;	
4	*GET.z4;	
5	*GET,25;	
6	*GET,z6;	
7	*GET,27;	
8	*GET,z8;	
		OK Cancel

 Image: Image:

© 2018 TELETASK bvba
# Special codes

# EXTRA CODES for iSGUI V2.5

On the iSGUI audio page you can add 10 additional functions to control your AV source. To make them active you have to add these extra functions to the Recorded codes list of your AV device.

Primary audio page



Detail page

TELETASK		
84	Zone 1	
	TV	
1	2	3
4	5	6
7	8	9
	0	
4		
Extra 1	< ок ►	Extra 3
Extra 2		Extra 4

Detail page Extra 1 Extra 1 Extra 2 Extra 2 Extra 3 Extra 3 Extra 4 Extra 4 Extra 5 OK (Enter) Extra 6 Up Extra 7 Down Extra 8 Left Extra 9 Right Extra 10 Not visible

Important Remark: All of the extra codes can be recorded to hold any possible functions BUT independent of the recorded IR codes, the extra codes 5 up to 10 will be displayed on iSGUI as arrows and OK, if they have a display name!

# 'Link zone with' action

The 'Link zone with' action allows to Link the selected zone with another zone. When zones are 'linked' they will always play the same audio stream. When the 'source' in one zone is changed, the source in the other zone will also change.

As both zones need to have the same sources available, not all zones can be linked together. The zones that can be linked (to zones of the same type) are:

- Zones on the same multi zone amplifier (e.g. MMA 8)
- Zones from the Nuvo P100/200/3000/3100/3500 players.

When zones are linked, they will remain linked until one of the zones is switched OFF. It is possible to link more than two zones together. The only limitation is in the hardware of the audio system:

- MMA4: 4 zones can be linked as one MMA4 has 4 zones available
- MMA8: 8 zones can be linked as one MMA8 has 8 zones available
- Nuvo: 16 zones can be linked.

For the Nuvo system, linking zones from TELETASK is the same as linking zones in the Nuvo App.

 Image: Image:

# BACK-UP the AV-SOFT Library

It is advised to back-up your library in case you want to install your PROSOFT to another PC. The complete library is stored in de 'appdata' folder of your PC.

#### For WINDOWS 7/8.1/10

'C:\ProgramData\TELETASK\PROSOFT\custom3.3.irdb'

After installing PROSOFT on a other PC, copy the 'custom3.3.irdb' file to the same folder on the new PC. Alternatively, if the 'custom3.3.irdb' hasn't been back-upped, the RS232/IR/IP codes can be extracted from a .NBT file in which they have been used!

• Open an .NBT file containing the device. The device will automatically be added to your current 'custom.irdb' file.

To send the RS232/IR/IP Codes to someone else, create an empty .NBT file, add an Universal RS232/IR Learnable interface or an AV-IP license, add the devices you want to send to the AV interface and save the .NBT file.

 Image: Image:



# Discover our newly extended range of lighting solutions

LEARN MORE

# Create a smart home with TELETASK home automation

Comfort, security and energy management with TELETASK home automation, in case of a renovation or a new home or building. For over 30 years, TELETASK offers home solutions tailored to your needs. Close your curtains with one click,

By using our services such as browsing this website, you accept our privacy policy.

Ok

#### LEARN MORE

TELETASK can't be responsible for potential errors in the data sheets and technical documentation. Changes in the product features can be made at any time, without prior notice. ©, TELETASK, GENT







## START YOUR PROJECT

Find your local distributor or contact us directly



# Connection to the RS232 UNIVERSAL AV INTERFACE

There are several connections that need to be made between the learnable RS232 UNIVERSAL AV INTERFACE, the TELETASK domotic system and the audio system.

In the schematic drawing below all connection are shown.



up to 8 IR flashers for maximum 8 sources



Because the learnable RS232 UNIVERSAL AV INTERFACE is a set top box, TELETASK has chosen for a more aesthetical connection to the AUTOBUS. This connection runs over a short CAT5 patch cable to a RJ45 plug in the wall. Behind the wall plug the AUTOBUS is available. In the table below you can see how the pinning of the CAT5 cable corresponds with the AUTOBUS wires.

AUTOBUS to RJ45 connection table				
1	RJ45 pin	RJ45 Cable Color	AUTOBUS	
	Pin 1	White/Orange	shield	l shield
	Pin 2	Orange	green wire	I IR Link
	Pin 3	White/Green	white wire	В
	Pin 4 + 7	Blue + White/Brown	red wire	12V
	Pin 5 + 8	White/Blue + Brown	black wire	1 0V
$\checkmark$	Pin 6	Green	blue wire	A

# Table of contents:

 RS232 connection
Splitter Cable for audio system

[] [] [] [] TELETASK Technical handbook » AV-SOFT » Connection to the RS232 UNIVERSAL AV INTERFACE

# RS232 connection

In most cases, the connections between the third-party audio device en the Universal A/V interface is done, using a null-modem type RS232 cable.

In some case though, the third party audio device requires a straight type RS232 cable to connect to the Universal A/V interface! Both types of RS232 cable are included with the Universal RS232 interface.

To know which cable you need you can follow the next rule of thumb:

IF you need a straight cable to connect your device to the PC - a null-modem cable is required between the audio device and the A/V interface.

IF you need a null-modem cable to connect your device to the PC - a straight cable is required between the audio device and the A/V interface.

 Image: Image:

# Splitter Cable for audio system

When you set up an audio integration with the TDS14042 RS232 UNIVERSAL AV INTERFACE you will notice that the cabling between the different audio components and audio amplifiers is not that simple. In the drawings you have made during the setup, you will notice that one audio source is connected to several amplifiers etc. To make these connections you need special splitter cables. These splitter cables are optional available with the ref. TDS90160. Below you can find a picture of such a cable in a practical situation.

For more information about the splitter cable, please check out the TELETASK datasheets.

 Image: Image:

# Audio-IP software licence

To integrate an IP based audio system, you have to do two major things:

- 1. Activate your software IP-license (on the www.teletask.be website)
- 2. Configure your audio system in AVSOFT (in PROSOFT)

# Activate your license

When you buy a license, you will receive a 'license code'. With this license code and the serial number of your central unit, you can activate the audio-IP licence.

### How to activate a license:

- Go to www.teletask.be
- Choose Professional from the top menu
- In the License activation section, click on License activation (TELETASK Cloud)
- Sign in to your TELETASK Cloud account if you have one already. If not, click on Create an account and follow the registration procedure.
- After logging in, you should be forwarded to the Activate License page. If not, click here
- Complete the form and click Download activation file
- Wait a few seconds for your activation file to be downloaded (it will also be emailed to you)
- Start PROSOFT and open the correct .NBT project file.
- Import the activation file: choose Extra > Licenses
- Save the .NBT file and transmit it to the central unit

# Configure your audio system

If you need more information on how to configure the integration of some specific audio brands/systems, please click https://professional.teletask.be/Configuring+Audio+Systems+With+the+Audio+IP+License+TDS15240? structure=TELETASK+Technical+handbook" class="wiki wikinew text-danger tips">here .

 Image: Image:

## DALISOFT

# Configuring DALI ballasts with the TDS13621 interface

- Open a project (.nbt file) where a TDS13621 interface is configured for DALI
- Select "DALISOFT" at the left

If PROSOFT is connected with the central unit and if the TDS13621 is connected to the AUTOBUS, there will be a "TDS13621" entry in the selection list

TELETASK PROSO	FT 3.6 - C:\Workspace\NbtTestProjects\TunableWhiteDimmers.nbt			1 <del></del>		×
PROSOFT	Eile Help			▲ De	evelop TE	ELETASK
PROSOFT	DALI Address Type		Version	Devices TDS13621 (A1 001) Search and discover DALI devices Initialize DALI devices Change address ? New address: 0 0	rage .	
	TunableWhiteTestProject	品 192.168.0.84   Connected		NANOS Central	e 1412902	268 🖎

- Under 'Devices' select the correct TDS interface.
- Click 'Search and discover DALI devices'

# Configuring DALI ballasts with the TDS20620V2 DALI Tool

## Connect the TDS20620V2

• Connect the TDS20620V2 DALI configuration tool with the mains, DALI-bus and you PC



- Start PROSOFT and just select 'New MICROS+'. Addressing DALI ballasts will not make any changes on the .nbt project file. So this can be done independently from the TELETASK project configuration.
- Select "DALISOFT" at the left

24/1/2019

## Search DALI devices

TELETASK PROSO	FT 3.6 - NANOS.nbt		- 0	×
PROSOFT	File Help		L Develop	TELETASK
PROSOFT	DALI Address Type	Version	Devices	
ET			TDS20620V2	~
TIMESOFT			Crawbard Korner DML de Ger	
CARDSOFT			Search and discover DALI devices	_
GUISOFT			Initialize DALI devices	
			Change address	
AV-SOFT			New address: 0 \$ Ghonge	
DALISOFT				
	P 272   Searching			NANOS
	ee at peacing			

At the top right corner there will be a list of DALI devices capable of configuring the DALI drivers (ballasts).

If the Dali tool is correctly connected to the PC then there will be a "TDS20620V2" entry in the selection list

# Configuring DALI ballasts

You have two possibilities to start the DALI addressing configuration:

#### "Search and discover DALI devices"

select this to find all devices on the DALI bus without changing their address. Any DALI devices that are not yet initialised will get a free address. When the search is finished, the number of devices in the list should match the number of the physical devices on the DALI bus.

PROSOFT will try to solve double addresses on the DALI bus. The address is removed from the conflicting devices so that they will get reassigned to other addresses

#### "Initialise DALI devices"

select this option to give all DALI ballasts a new address.

Be careful! This option will clear the addresses from all the devices on the DALI bus. After the initialisation is finished, you will get a list of all the devices addressed starting from zero.

PROSOFT always assign addresses by looking for free addresses from low to high.

## Check DALI Addressing

TELETASK PROS	OFT 3.6 - NANOS.nbt		– 🗆 🗙
PROSOFT	File Help		Develop TELETASK     Log out
PROSOFT	DALI Address Type	Version Devices	
NUMCEU	0 Ruorescent lamp	1 TDS20620V2	~
TIMESOFT	1 Fluorescent lamp	1	
	2 Fluorescent lamp	1 Search and dis	cover DALI devices
CARDSOFT			anna an
GUISOFT		Initialize	DALI devices
hanned		Change address 0	
AV-SOFT		New address: 0	¢ Change
DALISOFT			
		P. mic	NAMO
		55 tri bearching	NANUS

When the list is generated, you can scroll through the list with the mouse or with the arrows of your keyboard. Each time a device is highlighted the corresponding (DALI) light is switched to ON and the previous is switched to OFF. So it's easy to see which address is allocated to which device.

### Change DALI Address

Change address	7	
New address:	10	Change

If it's necessary to readdress one or more devices, simply click in the list on the device you want to change. Fill in the new address for that device and press "Change".

If another address was already on this new address, the other device will get the old address.

Remark: readdressing is also possible if your bus is 100% occupied with 64 devices. One device will get removed and rediscovered which will result in a swap. This will however take a bit more time to complete.

#### Finish

Addressing DALI ballasts will not make any changes on the .nbt project file. You can simply close PROSOFT after the configuration.

# Multiple DoIP Central Units

# Coupling of multiple Central Units.

With one TELETASK DoIP Central Unit you can control a large number of in- and outputs. For very large installations or installations where there exists a logical and/or physical division between the different parts of the building/complex it can be necessary/desirable to work with several Central Units. Examples:

- Very large villa's (several central units for the needed in- and outputs)
- Professions (one central unit for the house and one for the practice).
- Hotels
- Company buildings
- ...

Up to ten DoIP central units can easily be connected to each other. It is recommended to situate the central units on a separate part of the network, so the communication between the central units will not be interrupted through internet traffic, copying of files from/to a network hard disk, printing to a network printer,

The number of in- and outputs and the number of functions which can be controlled with a system with several central units is simple the number of one central unit multiplied with the number of central units.

For example: for one central unit max. 500 local moods, 2 central units: 1.000 local moods, 3 central units: 1.500 local moods, 5 central units: 2.500 local moods, 10 central units: 5.000 local moods.

The split up of the intelligence of the several central units increases also the reliability of the system. If one central unit drops out, the other central units can continue functioning, only the hardware (in- and outputs) which are coupled with the defect central unit cannot be controlled any more.

Remark: In case you want to add a cool or heat relais (or dimmer) to a TELETASK sensor (with TDS12309, TDS12310, AURUS, TDS10012, ...), you have to make sure that this relais (or dimmer) is on the same central unit as the one of which the sensor is connected to.

# PROSOFT SUITE

For an installation with several central units, only one .NBT file has to be created which contains all information of all central units.

## PROSOFT

To create a file for several central units you start with a normal file for one central unit.

- Adding a central unit: via 'Extra', 'Central units', 'Add'.
- The added central unit gets automatically a letter (A-J) you can also choose a name and type (MICROS+, NANOS or PICOS) for this central unit.
- Additional central units can be added as described here above (with a maximum of 10 central units).

Remark: you can use different types of central units in one installation with several central units. (e.g. two MICROS+ central units, three NANOS central units and one PICOS).

#### Central Unit bounded

In- and outputs are bounded through hardware to a specific central unit. Either they are direct in- and outputs of a MICROS+/PICOS central unit or they are located on a bus of a certain central unit. Yet, all outputs can be controlled from any central unit.

The address of an interface will be preceded by the letter (A-J) of the central unit on which the interface is connected:

- A1 I24 (Central unit A, bus 1, input interface at address 24)
- C3 O05 (Central unit C, bus 3, output interface on address 5)

In- and outputs are also preceded by the letter of the corresponding central unit:

- REL A23 (relays 23 at central unit A)
- REL B23 (relays 23 at central unit B)
- DIM C1(dimmer 1 at central C)

Contrary to the interfaces and in- and outputs, the functions are mostly not centrally bounded. A local mood can perfectly control the outputs of different central units and also a local mood can be controlled from any central unit. Exceptions on this rule are the Motor function and the RGB function, these functions are closely bounded with the hardware (2 relays or 3 dimmers) and are linked to a specific central unit (the central unit on which the relays or dimmers are defined). Nevertheless these functions can be controlled by every central unit.

In PROSOFT one central unit will always be actif. The active central unit can be changed in the menu bar of the main screen of PROSOFT.

#### Interfaces

If you go to the in- or outputs, you will only see the interfaces which are defined on the active central unit. If you want to couple a relays to an input/function, you will only see the relays of the active central unit (= same central unit as the central unit of the input). If wanted, you can extend this list to a list of all relays by selecting the bottom item double arrow.

Dimmer 👻		- D e
Toggle between: LAST Fade In:	B 01 Administration - Light - Waiting room B 02 Administration - Light - Administration B 03 Administration - Light - Desk B 04 Harbor watch - Light - Central	-
.ong None 🔻	B 05 Manager office - Light - Central B 06 Manager office - Light - Surround B 07 Outside - Light - Quay B 09 Administration - Light - RGB1 - R B 10 Administration - Light - RGB1 - G B 11 Administration - Light - RGB1 - B	
	\$	

#### General moods

Using Moods in a multiple Central Unit project, a new function is added: the global mood. A global mood can control all outputs of all central units. A general mood can only control outputs of one central unit; While a general mood is bounded to one central unit, a global mood is not. Similar to all functions general and global moods can be controlled from every central unit. The number of global moods is restricted to 10.

Remark: A general mood who has been defined as 'global mood', will be count on every central. For example, if there are 45 General moods on central A, 20 for central B and 5 global moods, that you can still make 25 general moods for central B, but no more for central A and also no more global moods.

#### Step Functions

The "active step" of a step function is saved seperatly on each central unit. So if the step function is set to "step 1" on central unit A, activating the step function on central unit B will not set the step function to "step 2" but to "step 1". Activating the step function again on central unit B will set the step function to "step 2" but it will reset the step function on central unit one. Activating the step function on central unit one, will cause it to go to step 1 again.

#### Touch Panels

• All simple touch panels: TDS12117, cookie's, AURUS, AURUS-OLED, proximity readers... can control every output of every central unit.

### TIMESOFT

Every central unit has his own clock tables. From a clock table on a central unit you can control outputs on another central unit. For editing clock tables of a specific central unit, this central unit must be, similar as in PROSOFT, activated.

The active clock table (Automatic / Workday / Weekend / Simulation / None / Custom) is always true for all central units!

### CARDSOFT

Similar to the working of one central unit.

## GUISOFT

A GUI/GUI+/iSGUI always connects to one central unit, but it is possible to control all functions of all central units. This means for example that you only need 1 GUI+ license to control the entire installation from a single Touchscreen.

#### AV-SOFT

Similar to the working of one central unit.

## Communication

PROSOFT Suite sends the needed information to the different central units. For every central unit there is a

connection needed and therefore an Ethernet connection is needed when you want to work with several central units.

C
 I
 C
 TELETASK Technical handbook » Multiple DoIP Central Units

## Energy management

What can be displayed on the TELETASK user interfaces:

Item	Source of the parameter	Displayed unit	TDS12015,16, 17, 12061, 12110, 14050	TDS12022, 32 AURUS- OLED (PLUS)	TDS12064 AURUS- TFT	TDS15101 iSGUI	TDS15105 GUI+	TDS15110 CONTROL TOWER
* Real time c/g (=flow)	Meter with pulse output (TDS12117)	kW or ltr/h or m <sup>3</sup> /h	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х
* c/g today or last 24h (totalized units)	Meter with pulse output (TDS12117)	kWh, Ltr, m³ or in currency (€, \$,£ )	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х
Column chart Total /h, /day /month	Meter with pulse output (TDS12117)	kWh or Ltr or m <sup>3</sup>			Χ**		Χ ***	
Line chart	Any analogue sensor on a TDS analogue input	°C, Lux, %, Ph, km/h, m/s, bar,			Χ ****		X ***	
Smart meter parameters	Smart meter with built-in webserver	kW, kWh, V, A, cosPhi, m³, m³/h, Pactive/Preactive					Х	Х
Electricity balance (max. 1 meter per .nbt file)	Electricity meters with pulse output (on contact inputs of TDS12117)	Real time consumed + generated + balanced in values and currency			Х			
• X: featur	e is supported	on this interface						

- c/g: consumption or generation
- \*: The flow or the total of one pulse input can be visualized. Connect the pulse meter at two inputs of the TDS12117 if you want to display the flow as well as the total at the same time.
- \*\*: Totals/hour are memorized for up to 2 days (up to 2x 24 columns); totals/day are memorized up to 2 months (up to 2 x 31 columns); totals/month are memorized up to 2 years (up to 2 x 12 columns).
- \*\*\*: All values are memorized over the last two years on the GUI+ PC (only).

Remark: for this feature it is required that the "Enable LOG system" option in PROSOFT is enabled.

\*\*\*\*.

- 1. chart/day: one value is memorized in the central unit every 15 minutes for the last 2 days
- 2. chart/week: values per hour instead of /15' for the last 2 weeks.
- 3. chart/month: contains two line charts: min. and max. value reached per day for the last two months.
- 4. chart/year: contains two line charts: min. and max. value reached per month for the last two years.

Remark: With the start of every new day/week/month/year, the values of the oldest day/week/month/year are deleted from the memory.

Remark: The chart data for maximum 100 devices can be memorized per DoIP central unit.

🕋 🌗 🕨 TELETASK Technical handbook » Energy management

# Application examples and technical cases

In this chapter you can find a clarification concerning the use of different TELETASK components and the corresponding software settings/program of a specific theme.

# Table of contents:

 How to integrate IP camera's with TDS
How to intergrate streaming audio devices
Sonos integration
How to integrate a heating and cooling system
How to integrate a light sensor
How to setup an access control system
Configuring a NUVO installation with three RS interfaces
B&O Integration
Implementing NuVo with Audio IP License (TDS15240)
Configuring Audio Systems With the Audio IP License TDS15240
Image:

# How to integrate IP camera's with TDS

#### Table of contents

1. GOAL
1.1. USED EQUIPMENT FOR THIS CASE
1.1.1. CAMERAS:
1.1.2. WAN MODEM
1.1.3. BROWSER AND PC
1.2. THE NECESSARY SETTINGS (OVERVIEW)
2. INSTALLATION AND SETTINGS
2.1. CAMERA SETTINGS (IN THE CAMERA'S):
2.1.1. CHANGE DHCP ADDRESSES TO FIXED IP ADDRESSES:
2.1.2. AXIS P2427-LE CAMERA'S ; SETTINGS EXAMPLE
2.1.3. AXIS P2427-LE CAMERA'S ; SETTINGS EXAMPLE
2.2. TELENET MODEM (=ROUTER) SETTINGS (PORT FORWARDING).
 2.3. PROSOFT CONFIGURATION

# 1. GOAL

With this document you can do all necessary configuration to setup a network of IP-camera's and to visualise them on your TELETASK touch screens and mobile devices.

This case is only an example which uses not only world wide available AXIS IP-cameras from the P14 companion series, but also standard internet modem from Telenet as used in Belgium anno 2018. Your application may be different, but will be comparable as used is this case. If you use cameras other then P14 series from Axis, you will also need the necessary installation manual or you will need to contact your camera/router supplier(s) to obtain the needed information on IP-addressing, port forwarding settings and router details.

#### Security

Be aware that the use of passwords to protect your equipment and your/your customers privacy is not an option. At first level you can setup everything without passwords to make it easier and immediately after tests are positive, you need to provide your equipment including camera access with secure passwords. Always change the default passwords from your equipment to personal passwords which you keep in a safe place as backup.

#### Application:

This integration case will help you to realise the view of the evolved high- resolution cameras on your TELETASK devices. For high resolution pictures and viewing recorded video images of the camera's, you can use third party camera software for desktop applications. This software is independent from the TELETASK visualisation and offers you playback of recorded images, which the TELETASK integration doesn't offer. It is meant for real-time visualisation only.

In case of AXIS camera's, the user can install the free of charge Axis app 'Companion' which is available as app for iPhone and Android and also as PC software for Windows computers. If the cameras are provided with backup memory (internal  $\mu$ SD Card or NAS drive), this software provides all basic controls for inspection and security applications.

Additional paid software is also available from several vendors, for more specific needs and for a higher number of camera's than offered with the Companion software.

## 1.1. USED EQUIPMENT FOR THIS CASE

#### 1.1.1. CAMERAS:

AXIS P14 series outdoor camera's with built-in IR led lighting for night vision.

1 x camera Axis ref. P1427-LE

3 x camera Axis ref. P1447-LE

All four camera's have internal  $\mu$ SD card (128GB) as added option for recording and play-back (via the Axis Companion software).

#### 1.1.2. WAN MODEM

The modem/WAN router is a traditional Telenet (coax wired) router like anno 2018 often used in Belgium.

#### 1.1.3. BROWSER AND PC

For browsing to the different equipment, we used Chrome (Version 67.0.3396.99 - 64-bit), installed on a Windows PC with Windows 10.

## 1.2. THE NECESSARY SETTINGS (OVERVIEW)

To make this case a full solution, you will need to setup the camera's (including security password), the router for making the images available via the internet and at last make the necessary configuration settings in TELETASK PROSOFT general configuration + download to the TDS central unit.

Be sure to make all the setting sin the safe zone, which means that you need to be on-site (connected to the LAN).

If you have other cameras and/or internet modem than used in the case below, the necessary settings which you have to make will be comparable.

Important: It may be the case that you have additional equipment installed like for example a fire wall. In such case additional setting may be necessary to make the solution working. Make also sure to use fixed IP addresses so nothing will change and make the integration stop working after a period of time.

# 2. INSTALLATION AND SETTINGS

# 2.1. CAMERA SETTINGS (IN THE CAMERA'S):

Connect your cameras to you LAN network. Be sure to use a PoE switch in this case because the P1447-LE is a PoE camera. Now install the desktop version of the Axis-Companion software (go to www.axis.com ) and be sure all your cameras are shown on your PC screen before you proceed.

#### 2.1.1. CHANGE DHCP ADDRESSES TO FIXED IP ADDRESSES:

By default the cameras obtained an IP-address from the DHCP router. To change the settings in your camera (P1447-LE in this case), browse to the IP address which you can see in the Axis Companion software desktop version.

Recommended: You can print out a complete "system report" of all camera's from within the Companion software (only in the desktop version).

In this report you will find the necessary IP-addresses of all camera's.

If not yet done, first of all you need to change these DHCP given IP addresses to fixed IP-addresses. Therefore, surf with your browser to the found IP address.

1. Login to the camera:

Surf to the camera address (eg.192.168.24.100 and log-in with the default Axis login and password (if there is one); (see screen capture below)

sign in	60.24.110		
rttps://192.1	08.24.110		
Username	ACCAdmin		
Password			
		Sign in	Cancel

#### 2. Click setup

Select below the tab 'System' and select the 'TCP/IP' icon.

				Use UPnP UPnP nam AXIS P14	9 (II) 16 147-LE - ACCC8EA74E	105	Address	ny es
ask	View area	Apps	System					
			œ		38	÷	Crimer	244P
			Language	Date and time	Orientation	Users	ONVIF	SNMP
				¢	•	16	<b>5</b>	
			тсрир	AVHS	Security	Storage	I/O ports	Events

In the IPv4 screen you can add your preferred fixed IP-address (e.g.: 192.168.24.110)+ Subnet mask + default router (in this case the address of your Telenet router)

IPv4	
Manual IP and manual	DNS
IP address	Subnet mask
192.168.24.110	255.255.255.0
Default router	
192.168.24 1	
Domain name	
Domain name	
+	
Primary DNS server	Secondary DNS server
0.0.0	0.0.0

Extra settings in the camera TCP/IP settings menu: DNS server settings (to be completed in the screen capture above):

The IP camera's get their time information from the internet via an NTP server. Therefore, you will need to define a time server, like to be given in this case "ntp.axis.com". For the camera to be able to translate this domain name to an IP-address, the camera needs to know where to find a domain name server (DNS).

You enter your router IP address (in our example 192.168.24.1) as first DNS server.

As second DNS server you can for example use the Google DSN server 8.8.8.8.

#### Now don't forget to click 'Save' (see capture above)

#### 2.1.2. AXIS P2427-LE CAMERA'S ; SETTINGS EXAMPLE

We decided to use port 10004 as port for the camera. This means that for external access, this port needs to be opened in your WAN router. This is the Telenet router in our case.

In case of an Axis P2427-LE camera, this can be done in the TCP-IP advanced settings menu. See screen capture below.

Bacic Sotun	Advanced TCP/IP Settin	ngs	0		
busic setup	DNS Configuration				
Video	Obtain DNS server address via DHCP	View			
Live View Config	Use the following DNS server address:				
Data data	Domain name:		(use : to separate names)		
Detectors	Primary DNS server:	0.0.0.0			
Applications	Secondary DNS server:	0.0.0.0			
Events	NTP Configuration				
	Obtain NTP server address via DHCP	View			
Recordings	Use the following NTP server address:	-			
Languages	Network address:	ntp.axis.com	(host name or IP address)		
Sustan Ontions	Host Name Configuration	L			
Security	Use the host name:	axis-accc8e4ca48f			
Date & Time	Enable dynamic DNS updates				
+ Network	Register DNS name:		(Axisproduct.example.com		
Basic	TT,	30			
Advanced	Link-Local IPv4 Address				
QoS	Auto-Configure Linkyl anal Address	View			
SNMP	HTTP	have a second second			
UPnP**	HTTP port:	80			
Bonjour	HTTPS				
Storage	HTTPS port:	443			
Maintenance	NAT traversal (port mapping) for IPv4				
Support	NAT traversal is disabled.	Enable			
<ul> <li>Advanced</li> </ul>	Use manually selected NAT router:	(LAN IP	address)		
About	Alternative HTTP port:	10004			
	" If set to blank or 0, a port number will be set	automatically upon enabl	<b>.</b> .		
	FTP				
	🗭 Enable FTP server				
	RTSP				
	Enable RTSP server				
	RTSP port	554			

Don't forget to click the 'save' button.

You can test if the port 10004 is working by browsing to the ip address of your camera +":10004". This, type in your browser for example: 192.168.24.101:10004.

#### 2.1.3. AXIS P2427-LE CAMERA'S ; SETTINGS EXAMPLE

In our case you use the P1447-LE cameras (newer model July 2018), the settings menu is different than for the P1427-LE (older model). You can't enter a secondary port in the P1447-LE settings, but instead you need to change the default port 80, to your preferred port (ig: 10004). For this, you need to use the 'security' icon.

	Security							
	Certifica Client cer Default	ites tificates (self-signed)		HTTP a Allow as HTTP a HTTP p	ind HTTPS cess through and HTTPS ort HTTPS port 443		v	
	CA certific 150973 150973 America Baltimor Class-1 Class-2	cates 1418 1419 Online1 Online2 re_CyberTrust_Root Public-Primary-Certifica Public-Primary-Certifica	+ 0 I	Certifica	te (self-signed)	Save	•	
	IEEE 80	2.1x tificate						
	none		v					
	CA certific	cate						
	none	2788 V.S						
	EAP Iden	tity						
	EAPOL V	ersion		1.				
s System		LLL DUL IN						
e.		38	÷	Gross	See Law	38	٢	4
Language	Date and time	Orientation	Users	ONVIF	SNMP	Stream profiles	Detectors	Maintenance
0	Ð	0				9		
тсрлр	AVHS	Security	Storage	I/O ports	Events	Plain config		

#### Now don't forget to click the 'save' button.

You can test if the port 10004 is working by browsing to the IP-address of your camera +":10004". Type in your browser: 192.168.24.101:10004.

Extra settings in the camera TCP/IP settings menu:

Most of the IP camera's get their time information from the internet via an ntp server. Therefore, you defined above in this document a time server, like given in this case "ntp.axis.com". For the camera to be able to translate this domain name to an IP-address, the camera needs to know where to find a domain name server (DNS).

Below you can see how to do so in the settings of the Axis camera P1447-LE as used in our example case.

You enter your router IP address (in our example below this is 192.168.24.111) as first DNS server. As second DNS server you can for example use the Google DSN server 8.8.8.8. If the first is not available at camera startup (when it needs a time stamp), the camera will check the secondary time server.

-	-	-	10.000
-			
	-		

Manual IP and manual DNS	*	
IP address	Subnet mask	
192.168.24.111	255.255.255.0	
Default router		
192.168.24.1		
Domain name		
Domain name		
+		
Primary DNS server	Secondary DNS server	
192 168 10 120	8.8.8	

# 2.2. TELENET MODEM (=ROUTER) SETTINGS (PORT FORWARDING).

To open the necessary port(s) for access from the internet, browse to your Telenet account (MijnTelenet in www.telenet.be) and go to 'advanced settings'. See the capture below for entering the port. Login menu sequence in the Telenet modem (in Dutch language; dd July 2018)

- Inloggen via 'mijntelenet.be'
- Selecteer 'mijn (bedrijfs)netwerk'
- 'modem details'
- 'geavanceerde instellingen'
- 'IPv4Firewall & Port forwarding'
- nu bekom je het scherm zoals in de capture hieronder

Important: you need to enter the port number twice (Beginpoort and Eindpoort are equal) and make status 'Actief'.

#### Port forwarding @

Opgelet: onderstaande poorten kan je niet gebruiken!

- TCP-poorten: 25, 53, 135, 137, 138, 139, 161, 162, 445 en 1080
- UDP-poorten: 53, 135, 137, 139, 161 en 162

Poortnummers mogen niet overlappen, de beginpoort moet lager zijn dan de eindpoort en de eindpoort mag niet hoger zijn dan 65000.

Lokaal IP-adres	Beginpoort	Eindpoort	Protocol	Status
192.168.24. 31	8080	8080	TCP .	Actief *
192.168.24. 110	10004	10004	TCP .	Actief *
192.168.24. 111	10005	10005	TCP *	Actief *
192.168.24. 112	10006	10006	TCP .	Actief *
192.168.24. 113	10007	10007	TCP *	Niet actief *
192.168.24. 114	10008	10008	TCP *	Niet actief *
192.168.24.			TCP *	Niet actief *
192.168.24.			TCP .	Niet actief *
192.168.24.			TCP .	Niet actief *
192.168.24.			TCP .	Niet actief *

• Example:

CAM1 with IP adres 192.168.20.120: port 10020 to 10020 CAM2 with IP adres 192.168.20.121: port 10021 to 10021 CAM3 with IP adres 192.1.68.20.122: port 10022 to 10022

## 2.3. PROSOFT CONFIGURATION

Now make the necessary settings in PROSOFT – cameras settings. Open your PROSOFT file and go to the IP camera's setting (see capture below))



1. Add a camera and enter the proper IP setting (see capture below in case of Axis camera used in our case)

General		
Camera name:	Main gate	Rooms
Video settings		
Camera Url:		
http://192.168.10.	110/axis-cgi/jpg/image.cgi?resolution	1=480x360
Camera port for cloud a 10010 Motion JPEG mode: Still Image: fast	response, but lower framerate	
O Server stream	ng: higher frame rate	
Authentication (optional,	not recommended for Still Image ):	
User name:	mycamera	
Password	•••••	Test video
VoIP Settings		
VoIP Call ID:		
DTMF accept call:		
DTMF end call:		
Door opener settings		
Door opener settings TELETASK function:		
Door opener settings TELETASK function: None	~ D	
Door opener settings TELETASK function: None	<ul><li>&lt; 四</li></ul>	
Door opener settings TELETASK function: None DTMF door code:	<ul><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><li>)</li><l< td=""><td></td></l<></ul>	

a. Enter the specific string necessary to access your camera (refer to your camera supplier).

Example for Axis camera, if you camera has static IP address 192.168.10.110: http://192.168.10.110/axis-cgi/jpg/image.cgi? resolution=480x360

b. Enter the chosen port (see above in the part of the Telenet router configuration example); example: 10010 (necessary for cloud access from the TELTASK DoIP system)

- c. If your camera has a login and password, enter in the 'Authentication' fields.
- d. Do the same for all camera's you have.

e. You can check if the camer aconfiguration is working, by clicking the 'Test video' button on the PROSOFT screen. If this is not working, please correct any mistakes made in all above settings of this document before you can proceed.

Check if you are able to browse to your camera. If not, this needs to be solved first and then you can check if the above settings in PROSOFT are correct.

f. Don't forget to save your nbt file and to Transmit it to your TELETASK central unit.

You can now check your touch screens and your iSGUI.

For iSGUI, your mobile device needs the new updated information with the new camera menu's. So before to start your iSGUI, select (lower-right corner before clicking connect), go to the tab 'locations', select your project if you have more then one and click on the button below 'Reload GUI data.

Click 'done' and you iSGUI will start-up again and the rooms contain a new button 'Cameras' where you can check your camera or cameras.

## [] [] [] TELETASK Technical handbook » Application examples and technical cases » How to integrate IP camera's with TDS

# How to intergrate streaming audio devices

There are no approved versions of this page.

 Image: Image:

# Sonos integration

# Scope

Below you can find an example on how you can setup the SONOS/TDS system to obtain 10 radio stations and 10 playlists available on your TELETASK touch panels and iSGUI app.

To realise the integration of a SONOS audio system with the TELETASK DoIP system there are two step to be taken:

- SONOS setup
- PROSOFT setup

# SONOS desktop app SETUP

The setup example below explains the basic settings which are to be done in the SONOS desktop app. In this example we will use 10 radio stations and 10 static playlists as presets which can be controlled from your TELETASK system.

This setup is to be done via the Sonos desktop app on your PC or Mac. Don't use your mobile device with mobile Sonos app.



#### Definition of a TELETASK audio zone

This is the same as a Sonos 'room' where you have one or more Sonos speakers installed. Each audio zone has its unique name which you need to define yourself and enter in this Sonos app. If you combine multiple speakers in one audio zone, like for example in a stereo pair, there is also one unique zone name for this zone instead of the two individual speaker names you may have given them first. If you installed this pair in your bath room, you most probably have speaker Left named 'Bath room left' and speaker right 'bath room right'. You will need to give the
paired speakers a zone name like 'bath room' (Sonos may add "(L+R)" to it, but this is not part of the zone name.

So be sure to pair such speakers before you start so you have a unique audio zone name for all the speakers in the room.

As soon as your audio zone names in SONOS are defined, please be sure that you use the same names while entering them later in AVSOFT (part of PROSOFT).

#### Important

"Bathroom" is not the same as "bath room" and is not the same as "Bath room".

If the names in both systems are different the integration with TELETASK will not work. Therefore also, we recommend to keep your zone names short and try to avoid spaces in it as much as possible.

Now you need to make the 10 favourites and 10 playlists (also in your SONOS desktop app).

# How to make 10 FAVOURITES in the Sonos app, ready to be used in PROSOFT

#### What are 'Favourites' in the Sonos system

These are radio stations (in our example from the online radio source "Tunein"). In the mobile app they are called 'stations' (version jan 2018).



Open your Sonos desktop app, select the audio source Tunein and go to the first radio station which you want to have available on your TELETASK system. Click on the down arrow to open the selection box and select 'Add to Sonos favourites'.

Add up to 10 radio stations to the Sonos favourites.

For use in the TELETASK system, every favourite needs to have a sorting number in front of its name. Therefore, go back to the SONOS favourites and rename the ten added radio stations by adding the sequential numbers '01' up to

'10', in front of the radio station name.

So now your favourites list becomes for example:

- 01 BBC1
- 02 London dance scene
- 03 Top radio Gent
- 04 Dubai hits
- 05 Paris news
- 06 Hyderabad festival
- 07 Moscow local radio
- 08 Bach radio
- 09 Studio Brussels
- 10 Jazz radio



Remark: It is possible that some radio stations do not work although you can see them in the Tunein list. But they may not be compliant to the Sonos system.

Now you are ready to make the next step:

Configure your 10 playlists.



#### What is the definition of a playlist

This is a list with a (high) number of audio tracks. In our example the audio tracks come from a streaming source like Deezer or Spotify (paid online music).

In your Sonos desktop app, go to Sonos playlists and select 'new playlist' and give it your preferred name (e.g. Dance'). You can make up to 10 playlists which can later be used and managed by the TELETASK system. Therefore you need to rename the playlists with in front of the name a sequential number between 01 and 10.

So your favourites list becomes for example:

- 01 My favourite music
- 02 Dance 1
- 03 Classic piano
- 04 Pop 90's
- 05 Latest hits
- 06 Jazz
- 07 Blues
- 08 Music tracks
- 09 Dance 2
- 10 Children songs

+	Sonos Playlists	
=	01 Mijn Deezer Fn	
=	02 VBJ sonos List	
=	03 Deezer hits	
	04 Klassiek diner	
=)	05 Klassiek Bach	
=	06 Klassiek piano	
	07 Reggae	
	08 Blues rock	
=	09 Dance	
	10 Jazz	

Don't forget to add your tracks to your playlists: Go to the source (Deezer or Spotify, Apple music, Google play...) and add the tracks, or existing playlists from your source, to the Sonos Playlist (01 to 10).

The Sonos configuration is now finished. Now you need to configure AVSOFT (part of PROSOFT).

# PROSOFT SETUP FOR SONOS

One device in AV-SOFT maps to one zone on your physical audio device. Be sure that speakers in one audio zone (e.g. a stereo pair of SONOS speakers) are paired before you do this. In PROSOFT you need to use the name you gave to the paired set (for example 'kitchen' is made out of two speakers, 'kitchen left' and 'kitchen right'). An audio zone, in PROSOFT is named an audio 'room' (e.g. 'kitchen'). This name will appear on your TELETASK touch

An audio zone, in PROSOFT is named an audio 'room' (e.g. 'kitchen'). This name will appear on your TELETASK touch screens and on your mobile app (iSGUI).

## Add an A/V IP License (TDS15240)

- Before entering the license, you need to activate the obtained TDS15240 license on the TELETASK website (Professional tab). See also the license activation chapter in this handbook.
- After activating your license, start PROSOFT and go to 'AV-SOFT' (see screen capture below)
- Choose new
- Select "TDS15240:A/V IP License" interface and click OK

	CRDS.vbr dit Communication Egtra Halp al 😅 I Mil			- 0 ×
PROSOFT	d AV Itterface			
TIMESOFT		New		
CARDSOFT		Edd -		
GUISOFT	-	Delos		
AV-SOFT	Select interface		– o ×	
DALISOFT	AV - Interfaces TDS14942: Universal RS232 audio interface TDS14945: IR Cookie for AV control TDS15248: AV IP Device			
			Cancel	
	MICROSa Cantral Unit	USB		Net Connected

• Now click 'Add a device' and select your device from the list of brands (see screen capture below). If you can't find your device under its brand, it probably is not (yet) supported. A comparable device from the same brand might work, without guarantee.

Device			
NUVO			New
NV-P3100			
NV-P200			
NV-P100			
ONKYO			
TX-NR509 (uner)			
SONOS			
SUB		-	
PLAYBASE			
PLATEAN			
PLAY 3			
PLAY 1			
CONNECT AMP		_	
CONNECT			
YAMAHA			
RX-A2020 IP		~	
	Medum: Audo IP     Ubray, TELETASK     Type: Angelier     Zones: 1     Input: 2     Input: 2     Input: 2	~	
		OK.	Cascal

In the screen capture above, a SONOS 'PLAY 1' device is selected. Now click 'OK' and enter the room name (screen capture below). Here it is defined as installed in the room 'Kitchen'

#### Important

Important: this name needs to be the same audio zone/room name as given in the SONOS desktop app (see chapter above).

SONOS parameters		×
Zone parameters		
App room name:	Kitchen	
	ОК	Cancel

## Configure the SONOS details

TELETASK supports about all streaming music services which are compatible with your Sonos device.

To speed up the control of your Sonos devices from TELETASK interfaces, your sources are only synchronized once every 24 hours. To force a synchronization, simply restart your central unit.

In the screen captures below, there are three more things to be done.

- 1. Enter the 10 favourites (see chapter above) which you defined in your Sonos desktop app. These are your 10 preferred radio stations.
- 2. Accordingly enter the 10 playlists you have defined in your Sonos desktop app.
- 3. Enter the SONOS zone name ('Kitchen' in this case).

P connection	Add Device				
BRAND / TYPE SONOS	PLAY 1			Config Edit D	elete
- INTERNAL AV - SOU Source name 1: Source name 2:	RCES FAVORITE Details PLAYLIST Details			Audio source details Preset names Preset 1:	Redo 1
FAV: FAVORIT	JRCES) V PLY: PLAYLIS" V IES)			Preset 2: Preset 3: Preset 4:	Klara StuBru
Zone name:	Kitchen	FAVORITES	PLAYLISTS	Preset 5: Preset 6: Preset 7:	MNN Qmusic Qmec hit
Jncontrolled sources	Add Device			Preset 8: Preset 9: Preset 0:	Favorite 8 Favorite 9 Favorite 10

#### 1. Click FAVOURITES – Details and enter the 10 pre-configured Sonos radio stations:

2. Click PLAYLISTS – Details and enter the 10 pre-configured Sonos playliosts

Edit Delete Audio source details Preset names Preset 1: Preset 2: Preset 3: Preset 4:	01 radio 02 stubr 03 gmusi
Edit Delete Audio source details Preset names Preset 1: Preset 2: Preset 3: Preset 4:	02 stubr
Audio source details Preset names Preset 1: Preset 2: Preset 3: Preset 4:	01 redio 02 stubr 03 qmusi
Audio source details Preset names Preset 1: Preset 2: Preset 3: Preset 4:	01 radio 02 stub 03 gmus
Preset names Preset 1: Preset 2: Preset 3: Preset 4:	01 radio 02 stub 03 gmus
Preset 1: Preset 2: Preset 3:	01 redi: 02 stub 03 gmus
Preset 2: Preset 3:	02 stub 03 gmus
Preset 3:	03 gmus
Present 4:	
Lieger 4	04 kla
Preset 5:	05 klara
Preset 6:	06 nieus
Preset 7:	07 nosta
Preset 8:	08 top
Preset 9:	09 mn
Preset 0:	10 bachm
	Preset 8: Preset 8: Preset 9: Preset 0:

#### 3. Enter the Zone name

	Interface address	Date is		ОК		
SOFT	Name:	Kitchen				
DSOFT	Central Unit.	A. NANUS GARAGE	× .			
SOFT	IP connection	Add Device				
	BRAND / TYPE				· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
INFI	SONOS	PLAY 1			Config	Edit Dele
SOFT	INTERNAL AV. CO.	IDCEC				
	Source name 1	EAVORITE Details				
	Source name 1.	Trivorum Details				
	Source name 2:	PLAYLIST Details				
	INPUTS (for AV - SO	URCES)				
	FAV: FAVORIT	V PLY: PLAYLIS" V				
	OUTPUTS (AV - ZO	NES)				
			FAVORITES	PLAYLISTS		

### Final Steps

Click 'OK' to save your configuration. You should now see your new device under Select AV interface. The last thing to do to bind everything together is to assign in PROSOFT rooms, a room to this SONOS device.

- Go back to the PROSOFT tab and click the rooms button from the toolbar.
- Pick a room or create a new one.

TELETASK PROSOFT 3.6 - C:\Users\johan\Dropbox\## Lovendegem Origineel\## DOMOTICA\nbt\test.nbt

PROSOFT	Eile Edit Communicatio	on Extra Help 			
PROSOFT	List Rooms		_		~
TIMESOFT	Select Room	n			
CARDSOFT	Type of list:	Define Room	×	~	ОК
nicus	Number	Name	n	^	
GUISOFT	RM 01	Kitchen			New
HIGH GOLDON I	RM 02				
	RM 03	Cancel			Edit
AV-SOFT	RM 04		-		Curr
mai	RM 05	Data			1 Change
	RM 06	Audio zone Vitaban			LOD/
B DALISOFT	RM 07	Addio zone. Nichen	~		
ILLEON .	RM 08				Delete
	BM 09		-		

- As 'Audio zone' select from the dropdown menu the zone you have just created ('Kitchen' in our example).
- Click 'OK'.

Of course, don't forget to transmit your NBT file to your central unit.



It can take up to ten minutes after a transmit for the connection from the TELETASK installation to your audio devices to become fully operational.

If you want to control your audio system from an AURUS-OLED (PLUS), do not forget to couple the 'PREVIOUS' and 'NEXT' buttons on the 'Audio page' of the AURUS-OLED (PLUS). Select button nr 5 by clicking it with the mouse pointer and activate the 'Couple Horizontal' 'V' mark as on the screen capture below.

(see the chapter on AURUS-OLED (PLUS) for more information).

This 'couple horizontal'on button nr. 5 will activate the artist and track information feedback on your AURUS-OLED.

type:					Button functions					
22. AU	RUS-OLED			×	Short					
n	Sensor	rs	Audio	Extra	Display function (O 🗸 Audio: Previous track					
					~	ON/Off				
		5	2		Long					
		80 M			Display function (D 🗸 Audio: Preset 1					
	3		4			ON/Off				
	5	₹ 21°C ▲ LVNg	6							
	7	14 AN	8		Input definition Description:					
	-				Enable Button Con	trol introl				
	Custo	mize this	screen		Couple Horizontal	]				

Info: Default setting on AUTUS-OLED is for audio systems which don't support feedback information. If not coupled, buttons 5 and 6 will only show an arrow left/right and prev/next instead of artist and track information.

# Grouping

Audio zones can be grouped together to simultaneously play the same music. To configure this, head back to PROSOFT and create a new local mood (or edit an existing one). Then:

- Under Select Output, choose Audio zone from the list of function types
- Choose one of your audio zones
- Select Link with zone from the list of actions
- Pick a second zone that you want to link to the first one

You should now have something similar to this:

Room:		lcon:	Name:	Dimmable		ОК
Kitchen	~ 🗋 🛤	Mood ~	Group	] 🗌 Toggle		Cancel
elect Output:						
Audio zone	~ 01 Kir	Ichen	<ul><li>) 留</li></ul>	Link with zone	~ Liv	/ing ~
None	~		> ] 留		4	~
None	×		<ul><li>」留</li></ul>		~	×
None	V		<ul> <li>) #</li> </ul>		~	
None	~		<ul><li>) 開</li></ul>		~	×
None	~		<ul><li>) 留</li></ul>			×
None	~		< D 🗗		×	×
None	Ŷ		~ ] 留		4	×
None	~		< ] 間		~	×
None	~		V 1 PSI		~	

Activating this local mood from a touch panel or one of our apps will group both zones together.

### Ungrouping

To ungroup a zone, simply turn it off from a TELETASK touch panel or app. That zone will leave the group and stop playing, while the other zones resume.

 Image: Image:

© 2018 TELETASK bvba

# How to integrate a heating and cooling system

Thanks to the TELETASK solutions, the control of a heating/cooling system is much more intelligent than with a conventional system. A TELETASK installation offers powerful integration for heating, cooling and ventilation. Thanks to this integration it becomes simple to automatically switch off the heating/cooling in a room when somebody opens a window or the access control system detects that people are coming home and the heating/cooling system is set to the comfort level...

TELETASK possibilities are only limited by your own fantasy.

Because there are so many different cooling and heating systems on the market, it is not always easy to integrate these systems with a general home automation system. TELETASK developed several products and solutions which allow to integrate close to every system available on the market. Thanks to a wide product range, the user can control the integrated system automatically, from standard push buttons, special touch panels, special touch windows, prestigious touchscreens, by remote control, by mobile telephone, via local computer on wired or wire-less Ethernet or even remote through the internet.

The user interfaces are not described in this chapter, but below, the different steps to set up this integration are described more in detail.

Details of the different components are also to be found in the data sheet of the concerning components or elsewhere in this handbook in the 'Sensor Functions' in the 'Functions' chapter.

Important: the explanation below is done for one temperature zone. Your project may have several heating and/or cooling zones.

Example: If you have different temperature settings in room x and in room y, you will have two temperature zones.

The basics of temperature control explained below are to be considered per zone. You can have as many temperature zones as the maximum available on the central unit in your project.

# The basic operation of a heating/cooling control

When you have a heating and/or cooling system integrated in your TELETASK domotics system, the basic operation is always the same:

- 1. The TELETASK system measures, with its temperature sensor, the actual temperature in a room.
- 2. In the TELETASK system the measured actual temperature is compared with the temperature which was set (is the target) by the user.
- 3. If the actual temperature is lower than the target temperature, than the internal TELETASK heating control system will control the heating system to increase the temperature in the room. (Closing the Relay of the Heating system is the simplest way of control, but TELETASK has more intelligent control algorithms available).
- 4. Time after time, the actual temperature is measured. The TELETASK system decides as soon as the target temperature is reached, to open its output contact again, so the heating system is deactivated.

In case of cooling, the control works the same way, but then about decreasing the temperature instead of increasing. Anyhow, the basic operation is always like above. It only differs in controlling the output. The output control algorithm may be more complex (pulse with modulated output control with predictive algorithm, analogue control, multi-speed fan control...), but the basic operation is always about comparing the actual temperature with the set temperature.

# The available internal temperature control algorithms

## Heating

There are five different control algorithms defined in the TELETASK domotics system. Depending on the type of heating system, you will have to select one of the available algorithms in the control menu.

#### Standard

this is the most basic algorithm for temperature control. The heating output relay is switched on/off when the actual temperature and the set temperature become equal: the output relay contact is opened. When the actual temperature becomes lower than the set temperature: the output contact is closed again. This output contact can be used to control a valve, a fan or a circulation pump.

#### Air

this control algorithm is selected when you want to integrate a fan controlled heating system in a more intelligent way. In this case the TELETASK system uses a pulse width modulation method to control the connected fan. A cycle time of 10 minutes is used. Depending of the difference between the actual and the set temperature, the fan will be activated longer or shorter. This time is also depending on the Temperature. 10Volt = 100% time setting.

Example: The parameter is set to 5°C/10V and the difference between actual and set T is 3°C. Than the heating time will be 6 minutes (3/5 of 10 minutes). After 10 minutes, the difference in temperatures is measured again and a new cycle time is calculated and will be used in the next cycle.

#### **Radiators 15min**

this algorithm is to be selected when you use a heating system with wall mounted (water) radiators of the 'high yield' type. The algorithm works like the 'Air' algorithm, but with a cycle time of 15 minutes.

#### **Radiators 20min**

this algorithm is to be selected when you use a heating system with traditional cast iron (water) radiators. The algorithm works like the 'Air' algorithm, but with a cycle time of 20 minutes.

#### **Floor heating**

This is to be used when the output has to control a floor heating system. The algorithm is the same as above, but with a cycle time of 30 minutes.

Important: the slower the heating transfer process of your system, the longer the cycle time needed.

## Cooling

For cooling, the three control algorithms which are available are 'Standard', 'Air 10min' and 'Air 15 minutes'. The working is equal to the heating algorithms above. The only difference is that the output is activated when the measured temperature is too high instead of to low.

## In practice

These algorithms and their parameters can be configured in the following way:

- Click 'Options' in the PROSOFT menu bar
- Click the 'Sensor' tab.
- Define the different parameters
- Click 'OK' until you are back in the main PROSOFT window.

# Setting up the output control of the heating/cooling system

It is not defined by the control algorithm which output components are used for the output and to control the connected heating system, because there are a lot of different heating/cooling systems. On top of this, every heating/cooling system is different. Therefore, the used components of the TELETASK system have to be selected, linked with a temperature zone and the connected parameters are to be set. How to set this relation is described in the 'Analogue input interfaces' chapter in this handbook.

## A practical example

The family Jones made a wise decision and decided to install a TELETASK system in their house. They also understood that the integration of the heating system was not an option, but just one of the reasons why you should install a home automation system. They have four temperature zones: the ground floor, first floor and two bath rooms with separate temperature settings. Every room in the house is equipped with radiators. The distribution of the hot water is done with four electromagnetic valves (open/close). There is one main water circulation pump.

## Needed TELETASK components

- 4 TELETASK temperature sensors (to be mounted on the best place and on the correct height)
- 4 electrical zone valves (not from TELETASK) connected to four relay outputs of the TELETASK system.
- 1 circulation pump from the heating system which is connected to an output relay of the TELETASK system.
- 1 touch panel (or more) with a display for temperature control.

Remark: the circulation pump will be ON as soon as at least one valve is OPEN. As soon as all valves are closed, the circulation pump is to be stopped, to avoid unnecessary energy consumption.

### In practice

- In PROSOFT go to the 'Extra' 'Options' 'Sensors' menu and select the 'Radiators 20 min' control algorithm.
- In PROSOFT select the desired output unit and define each output relay for the sensor zones which will have to control one of the four valves of the heating system (for example relay output 1, 2, 3 and 4). So you will have to enter the names of the four zones in the relay name fields (relay 1: 'ground floor valve', etc...
- Define the relay which is to control the circulation pump (for example R 5) and add the name 'main circulation pump'.
- Go to the analogue input interface on which the T sensors will be connected and define a first T sensor and give him the name 'Ground floor'.

- In the Properties menu under the tab 'Heat' enter as control method 'standard relay'.
- Select in the On/off field the relay for valve control of the ground floor (R1 in this case).
- Enter the temperature settings for day, night and standby preset. These can always be changed by the user.

Remark: The frost protection is a general parameter which is the same for all temperature zones. You can set this parameter in the 'Extra' 'Options' 'Sensors' menu. Standard this parameter is set to 5°C.

- Repeat this for the other three temperature sensors.
- Now make a condition function 'Heating ON' wherein the valves of the different T zones (R1, R2, R3 and R4) are all noted with an 'OR' relation between them.
- Make a process function which guards the condition function 'Heating ON' (=ON) 'continuous monitoring (ON and OFF)' and which controls the circulation pump (R5).
- Select this process function in the 'auto start' function: in PROSOFT main window, select 'Extra' 'Options' 'Option' and you will find the 'automatic start function' field there in the 'Service options'.
- The whole heating system is now integrated and ready to be started.

 Image: Image:

© 2018 TELETASK bvba

# How to integrate a light sensor

# Scope

This concerns both situations, being the use of a TDS12270 light sensor or a third party light sensor.

In case of TDS12270, this one will be connected to a TDS12309, TDS12310, MICROS+ or PICOS analogue input. In case of the third party sensor, it will be connected to a TDS12310 interface.

# Application

A TDS12270 light sensor can be used for several reasons. Depending on the application, you can use the 'day' and 'night' thresholds which can be set on the sensor board (jumper settings - see datasheet). In other applications these thresholds cannot be used and the light sensor signal is to be used in another way. In other words, the use of the light sensor and his hardware and software settings are always related to the application.

# How to add a light sensor to your project

Adding a light sensor is comparable to adding a temperature or humidity sensor. Also refer to the chapter 'Analogue Input Interfaces'. In PROSOFT it is done as follows:

- Click 'Edit' 'Inputs' in de PROSOFT menu bar.
- Select an analogue input unit or interface or add a new input interface to the system (AUTOBUS).
- Select the desired individual analogue input and select the desired light sensor which will be connected to it. Three different types can be selected: 'dark', 'normal' and 'sun' light sensor.

Specify the different available parameters depending on the type of the selected light sensor. Below, there are two different applications described more in detail:

# CASE: Switching a light in twilight situations (often used case)

To be able to control a light point when it gets dark, there are no specific sensor settings. The light sensor should be set (jumper settings on the sensor circuit board) to a 'dark' (twilight) sensor.

- Make a condition function which you can call 'dark', wherein the sensor value is set to '< 10 Lux'.
- Make a process function 'light ON when dark', in which the condition 'dark' (ON if TRUE & OFF if FALSE (all edges)) is controlled and the desired light point is switched ON when the condition is TRUE.
- Optional: In TIMESOFT you can switch ON the process function for example every day at 5pm and switch it off again at 11pm.
- To switch OFF the light when the process function is switched OFF, set the 'Deactivate handling' to 'When Process Function is de-activated: switch off output'.

## CASE: Control of motorised sun shields and sun screens

To close (or open) electrical sun shields when the light is higher than x lux, the light sensor must be set to 'sun' type (jumper

settings and sensor settings in PROSOFT). In this case, there are extra sensor parameters to be set.

- Go back to the sensor ('Inputs & Others' 'Analogue input interface').
- Put the Sensor type to: 'Light sensor (sun)'
- Below, select 'Flags' from the dropdown box and add a flag. Call it 'No sun'.
- Set the 'Preset 1 (day)' preset to 7078 Lux.
- Go to 'Extra' menu in PROSOFT 'Options' 'Option'-tab and add a 'Local Mood' to the 'Auto Start Function'. In this 'Local Mood' add this light sensor and set it to 'Preset: Day' 'ON'.
- Go to the motor definition to the 'Sun function' tab.
- Add the Flag 'No sun' = 'OFF' to the 'Condition to activate sun function'
- Set the motor position and delays
- Repeat the last two steps for other motors if necessary

Extra parameters which are influencing the sunshield control can be added trough extra process functions combined with flags and clocks.

# The argument 'Hysteresis'

When exceeding the 'day' threshold value, the light sensor will activate the function which is related with it. When the sky is fleeced with clouds, the light values will differ from one moment to another and the system may cross very frequently the preset Lux-threshold. In such case the controlled lights or shields will constantly open/close. This is not what we expect from such system. To solve this problem, the 'hysteresis' was introduced.

Hysteresis means some kind of Lux- window wherein nothing happens. Some kind of zone wherein no threshold is crossed back as soon as it was crossed already. Both the 'day' and 'night' thresholds are provided with a hysteresis. This means in our applications:

- The function or action which was selected in the data field is switched OFF when the measured value is larger or equals the set value + the hysteresis value.
- The function or action which is selected in the data field is switched ON when the measured value is smaller or equals the set value the hysteresis value.





#### Figure A

The result of using a hysteresis is that in case of balancing Lux values (in the Light sensor case) around the threshold value doesn't result in a constant changing control of the connected output (light, motor...). In practice this means that your light is not switching ON/OFF all the time and the sun shields are not opening and closing all the time (refer to the figures above).

The function which is switched by the light sensor is switched OFF when the following errors occur (errors are also displayed on the display when selecting the concerned sensor):

;Data?' the sensor is in initialising mode or the central unit is waiting for sensor information (lasts no longer than maximum a few minutes).

;Sensor?' there is no sensor signal coming into the analogue interface of the TELETASK system. This may be caused by a defect sensor or a cabling error.

The hysteresis is only active on the set 'day' and 'night' thresholds. When a sensor value is called for in another type of function (example: in a condition), then the hysteresis is not used there.

The hysteresis is to be set in general for all light sensors in the PROSOFT 'Extra '> 'Options' > 'Sensor'. The hysteresis is to be set in steps (max. 10). In the TELETASK LUX-table you can find all top and bottom values by using the number of steps you have set.

• Example: The hysteresis is set to 5 steps and the set 'day' threshold is 840 Lux. In the TELETASK Lux table you can see that the bottom hysteresis value, which is in this example 5 steps below, is 630 Lux and the top hysteresis level will be 5 steps up and is 1121 Lux.

# The TELETASK Lux-values table

In this table you can find the working area of the different light sensor types (dark, normal and sun). Beside of this, as a result of the hysteresis setting in PROSOFT, you can use the table to find out about top- and bottom Lux values which are applicable in your case. For more details about hysteresis, see the text on top if this.

$D \downarrow - D \uparrow$	Work area of the 'dark' mode
$N \downarrow - N \uparrow$	Work area of the 'normal' mode; rarely used
$S \downarrow - S \uparrow$	Work area of the 'sun' mode

Step	Lux value	Step	Lux value	Step	Lux value	Example		Step	Lux values
						Hysteresis	Effective %		
1	0,06 D↓	51	17,80	101	334,00	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,		151	5956,00
2	0,12	52	19,00	102	354,00			152	6309,00
3	0,19	53	20,10	103	375,00			153	6682,00
4	0,26	54	21,00	104	397,00			154	7078,00
5	0,33	55	23,00	105	421,00			155	7498,00
6	0,41	56	24,00	106	446,00			156	7942,00
7	0,50	57	26,00	107	472,00	-10	43,8 %	157	8413,00
8	0,58	58	27,00	108	500,00	-9	40,5 %	158	8912,00
9	0,68	59	29,00	109	530,00	-8	36,9 %	159	9440,00
10	0,78 N↓	60	29,00	110	561,00	-7	33,2 %	160	9999,00 N↑
11	0,88	61	31,00	111	595,00	-6	29,2 %	161	10592,00
12	1,00	62	32,00	112	630,00	-5	25,0 %	162	11219,00
13	1,10	63	34,00	113	667,00	-4	20,6 %	163	11884,00
14	1,20	64	37,00	114	707,00	-3	15,8 %	164	12588,00
15	1,40	65	39,00	115	749,00	-2	10,8 %	165	13334,00
16	1,50	66	41,00	116	793,00	-1	5,5 %	166	14124,00
17	1,70	67	46,00	117	840,00	Threshold	Threshold	167	14961,00
18	1,80	68	49,00	118	890,00	+1	5,9 %	168	15848,00
19	2,00	69	52,00	119	943,00	+2	12,3 %	169	16787,00
20	2,20	70	55,00	120	999,00 D↑	+3	18,9 %	170	17782,00
21	2,30	71	59,00	121	1058,00	+4	25,9 %	171	18835,0
22	2,50	72	62,00	122	1121,00	+5	33,4 %	172	19952,00
23	2,80	73	66,00	123	1188,00	+6	41,4 %	173	21134,00
24	3,00	74	70,00	124	1258,00	+7	49,7 %	174	22386,00
25	3,20	75	74,00	125	1333,00	+8	58,7 %	175	23713,00
26	3,50	76	78,00	126	1412,00	+9	68,0 %	176	25118,00
27	3,70	77	83,00	127	1495,00	+10	78,0 %	177	26606,00
28	4,00	78	88,00	128	1584,00			178	28183,00
29	4,30	79	93,00	129	1678,00			179	29853,00
30	4,60	80	99,00	130	1777,00			180	31622,00
31	5,00	81	105,00	131	1883,00			181	33496,00
32	5,30	82	111,00	132	1994,00			182	35480,00
33	5,70	83	118,00	133	2112,00			183	37583,00
34	6,10	84	125,00	134	2238,00			184	39810,00
35	6,50	85	132,00	135	2370,00			185	42169,00
36	6,90	86	140,00	136	2511,00			186	44667,00
37	7,40	87	149,00	137	2660,00			187	47314,00
38	7,90 S↓	88	157,00	138	2817,00			188	50118,00
39	8,40	89	167,00	139	2984,00			189	53087,00
40	9,00	90	177,00	140	3161,00			190	56233,0
41	9,60	91	187,00	141	3349,00			191	59565,00
42	10,20	92	199,00	142	3547,00			192	63095,00
43	10,90	93	210,00	143	3757,00			193	66833,00
44	11,60	94	223,00	144	3980,00			194	70794,00
45	12,30	95	236,00	145	4216,00			195	74988,00
46	13,10	96	250,00	146	4466,00			196	79432,00
47	14,00	97	265,00	147	4731,00			197	84139,00
48	14,80	98	281,00	148	5011,00			198	89124,00
49	15,80	99	298,00	149	5308,00			199	94405,00
50	16,80	100	315,00	150	5622,00			200	99999,00 S↑

# The meaning of a Lux value; practical approach.

When using a light sensor, the Lux values are very important. Everybody knows the 'Lux' argument but for many among us, it is not clear what a certain value stands for. Therefore we supply the table below for your information. Reference examples are included as a practical approach.

#### Lux Light Application field

values area	source	
20-50	General	Cinema room, a shaded museum
50-100	General	Bed room, warehouse, not illuminated exhibition hall
100- 200	General	Indoor at home on a clouded day
200- 500	Spot	Work top in the kitchen, office desk, PC table, Tasks: cutting vegetables, writing a letter, computer work
500- 1000	Spot	Reading a book in a chair with a reading light on, well lighted work top, PC table, hobby area, lighting on a piece of art Tasks: reading a book, fine kitchen work, sewing, measuring, PC work
1000- 2000	Spot	The hobby table, fine mechanical work. Tasks: model- building, pot seedlings, fine graphical work
2000- 5000	Spot + general	Blue sky on a spring day
5000- 10000	Spot + general	Sun reflected on white walls

Based on this table you can decide the settings of your light sensors and the thresholds depending on the application. For the control of a shun shield, the threshold value should be set to 7000 Lux. The light sensor ten should be set to 'sun' (jumper setting).

In twilight situations, a threshold of 100 Lux should be good to control an in- or outdoor ambient light. The sensor should be set to 'dark'.

# Image: Image:

© 2018 TELETASK bvba

# How to setup an access control system

To setup an access control system which is integrated with the home automation system, the different TELETASK software packages are used in combination with each other. In this chapter, we will use a case study where PROSOFT, TIMESOFT and CARDSOFT are used together.

# Description of the case study example

In a family with four persons (mother, father, and two children), all of them can enter the house, front door and back door, by using a TELETASK TAG. Every person has its own TAG unit, hanging together with its car keys. When coming home, the front or back door is opened by having the TAG in front of a proximity reader. At the same time the heating in the living room is set to 'day' level.

The gardener and the cleaning women both have a TAG to, but they are only allowed to enter the house at the backdoor and only on Thursdays between 7:00 am and 07:00 pm. In this case, the heating is not switched to 'day' when they enter the house.

# Needed products:

- 1 x TELETASK domotics central unit MICROS+/PICOS (for example: TDS10012)
- 1 x the necessary parts for the heating control: TELETASK temperature sensors, output relays to control the door openers and the heating pump and valves.
- 2 x Proximity card reader (TDS12142)
- 2 x Electromagnetic door opener unit which are controlled from a TELETASK relay contact from the central unit.
- 6 x Tag TDS12203.

## In practice

### in PROSOFT:

- Define the two magnetic door openers on relay 1 and relay 2
  - Click 'Edit' in the PROSOFT menu bar.
  - Click 'Outputs' and the 'List of Outputs' window appears
  - Select 'MICROS+/PICOS OUTPUTS (1-8)'
  - Select Relay 1 and define 'Room', 'Icon' and 'Name' (example: hall motor front door). Do the same for the relay number 2.
  - Click 'OK' until you are back in the main PROSOFT menu.
- Add the two proximity card reader interfaces end set their AUTOBUS address with the addresses 15 and 16.
  - Click 'Edit' in the PROSOFT menu bar.
  - Click 'Inputs'. The 'Inputs list' window appears.
  - Click the button 'New'.
  - Select 'General interface'
  - Select 'TDS12142: Proximity Reader'
  - Add the AUTOBUS address to the interface: '15' and enter a name for the reader: 'Proximity reader Front door'

- Click 'OK' and repeat for the second proximity reader with address 16.
- Make two 'Timer functions: 'front door opener' and 'back door opener'.
  - Click 'Edit Functions' in the PROSOFT menu bar.
  - Select 'Timer functions'.
  - Click 'New'.
  - Add the 'Name: 'front door opener' in, Select relay 1 and add the opener activation time in. For example: 3 seconds.
  - Click 'OK' and Repeat for 'back door opener'.
- Make a 'Flag' function and call it: 'Thursday 7am-5pm'.
  - Click 'Edit Functions' in the PROSOFT menu bar.
  - Select 'Flag' functions.
  - Click 'New'.
  - Enter the 'Name: 'Thursday 7am-5pm'
  - Click 'OK' until back in the main PROSOFT menu
- Make two 'Local Mood' functions: 'occupants access front door' and 'occupants access back door'
  - Click 'Edit Functions' in the PROSOFT menu bar.
  - Select 'Local Mood' functions.
  - Click 'New'.
  - Enter the 'Name: 'occupants access' and eventually other parameters
  - Add in the local mood the 'timed' function 'door opener front door' and the 'sensor' function 'day'
  - Click 'OK' and Repeat for:
    - 'occupants access back door' with 'timed' function 'back door opener' and sensor function 'Day'
  - Make a 'If-Then-Else' function: 'Employees limited access back door'
  - Click 'Edit functions' in the PROSOFT menu bar.
  - Select 'If-then-else' functions.
  - Click 'New'.
  - Enter the name 'Employess limited access back door'.
  - Select for the 'IF Condition (True): 'Flags', 'Thursday 7am-5pm'.
  - Select 'THEN: the timer function 'back door opener'.

#### • Connect the three functions to the two proximity reader units.

- Click 'Edit Inputs' in the PROSOFT menu bar
- Double click the proximity reader with address 15 (front door)
- Select function button 1
- Select the 'Local Mood' function 'occupants access front door'.
- Click 'OK', Repeat for proximity reader with address16 (back door)
  - Function button 1: 'occupants access back door'
  - Function button 2: Select 'If-Then-Else' function 'back door opener'.
- Save this file and send it to the central unit.

### In TIMESOFT

#### Go to TIMESOFT.

- Make a 'continuous' clock action 'Flag' 'Thursday 7am-5pm', which is activated every week on Thursdays 7am.
  - Click 'Add action'
  - Select the 'Continuous' clock table
  - Select the 'Flag' 'Thursday 7am-5pm'
  - Select the 'Target value' 'ON'
  - Select 'time of action' 7am

- Define the repetition of every Thursday
- Click 'OK'

## • Make a 'continuous' clock action 'Flag' 'Thursday 7am-5pm', which is deactivated every Thursday at 5pm.

- Click 'Action Add'
- Select the 'Continue' clock table
- Select the 'Flag' 'Thursday 7am-5pm'
- Select the 'Target Value' 'OFF'
- Enter time of action as 5pm.
- Set repetition to every Thursday
- Click 'OK'
- Save the TIMESOFT file.

### In CARDSOFT

#### • Add the parameters of the occupants Tags

- Click 'Add' and enter the 'ID' nr. of the TAG.
- Enter the name of one of the occupants
- Select the parameters:
- 'Reader Add.: ALL
- 'Function: 1
- Repeat this for 'Reader Add.: 16; 'Function: 1'

#### • Enter the parameters of the TAG for the employees

- Click 'Add' and enter the 'ID' number of the employees Tags.
- Enter the name of the employee
- Select the parameters:
- 'Reader Add.: ALL
- 'Function: 2

#### • Save the data on your PC and send it from PC to the connected central unit.

When these steps are done and all data is send to the central unit, the access control is integrated and everything will work as described.

[] [] [] TELETASK Technical handbook » Application examples and technical cases » How to setup an access control system

#### © 2018 TELETASK bvba

# Configuring a NUVO installation with three RS interfaces

We also want to give you an example of an installation with three RS232 interfaces without the use of IR-flashers. In this example we will use NUVO devices.

# Phase 1: Define the desired audio/video configuration:



The schematic structure of the audio configuration.

- In this example the configuration drawing leads to the next set of audio components:
  - NUVO Concerto with built-in tuner. Has 8 zones
  - NUVO 3M with built-in tuner which has 3 sources
  - NUVO T2-FAM having 2 tuners.
  - All the above NUVO devices will need a RS232 UNIVERSAL AV INTERFACE so you can control them with your

# Phase 2: Assigning the RS232 Port (s).

With only the audio configuration, the audio system is not yet integrated. Therefore a connection must be made with the TELETASK home automation system by interfacing the audio components with the TELETASK RS232 universal AV interfaces. For each NUVO device you will need a RS232 interface.



With the assigning of the RS232 Port and assigning names to the sources, the schematic drawing is now finalized. In the next phase, this schematic is used to integrate the whole installation into the TELETASK 'AV-SOFT' software.

# Phase 3: Configuring the RS232 universal AV interface.

After the two first phases, now is the time to program the RS232 universal AV interface by means of AV-SOFT. With the carefully prepared configuration drawing at hand, it should be easy to walk through this third phase. Because the devices from our example (the NUVO devices) are already in the TELETASK library we can continue directly with the configuration.

The configuring phase is divided in the following steps:

# Entering the audio configuration in AV-SOFT (from PROSOFT V3.2).

- Start PROSOFT and go to 'Inputs & Others.
- You are in the 'List of interfaces', choose ADD, Audio Interface.
- A new window: 'Define interface function' appears. Here you can give the device a personalised name (which will appear similar in the 'List of interfaces').
- We do this 3 times and give our devices the following names:
  - RS232 NUVO 3M
  - RS232 NUVO T2FAM
  - RS232 NUVO CONCERTO
  - Then you give it the correct address, choose RS232 universal audio interface and then click on 'Edit interface in AV-SOFT'.

### Dedicating Sources:

BRAND / TYPE										
ELETASK	MMA8	Multiroom Mul	Itisource Amplifier			Edit. Delete	3			
NTERNAL AV - SOU	IRCES									
Source name 1:	MP3-1	Details								
Source name 2:	MP3-2	Details								
Source name 3:	MP3-3	Details								
Source name 4:	TUNER 1	Details								
Source name 5:	TUNER 2	Details								
MP3-1: MP3-1 OUTPUTS (AV - ZON	<ul> <li>MP3-2:</li> <li>IES)</li> </ul>	MP3-2 ~	MP3-3; MP3-3	TUNER 1: TUNER 1	V TUNER 2: T	UNER 2 ~ Source 6: N	IONE V Source 7	7: NONE ~ Sou	urce 8: NONE ~	
MP3-1: MP3-1 OUTPUTS (AV - ZON	<ul> <li>MP3-2:</li> <li>IES)</li> </ul>	MP3-2 ~	MP3-3; MP3-3	TUNER 1: TUNER 1	V TUNER 2: T	UNER 2 ~ Source 6: N	IONE V Source 7	7: NONE ~ Sou	urce 8: NONE ~	
MP3-1: MP3-1	✓ MP3-2: IES)	MP3-2 ~	MP3-3: MP3-3 MP3-1	TUNER 1: TUNER 1	V TUNER 2: TI	UNER 2 V Source 6: N	IONE V Source 7	7: NONE V Sou	arce 8: NONE: ~	
MP3-1: MP3-1 DUTPUTS (AV - ZON Zone name 1:	WP3-2: IES)	MP3-2 ~	MP3-3: MP3-3 MP3-1	TUNER 1: TUNER 1 MP3-2	✓ TUNER 2: TI MP3-3	UNER 2 V Source 6: N TUNER 1	IONE Source 7 TUNER 2	7: NONE ~ Sou	urce 8: NONE ~	
MP3-1: MP3-1 DUTPUTS (AV - 20N Zone name 1: Zone name 2:	V MP3-2: IES) Living Kitchen	MP3-2 ~	MP3-3 MP3-3 MP3-1	V TUNER 1: TUNER 1 MP3-2	V TUNER 2: TI MP3-3	UNER 2 Source 6: N TUNER 1 2 2	IONE Source 7 TUNER 2	7: NONE ~ Sou	arce 8: NONE ~	
MP3-1: MP3-1 DUTPUTS (AV - ZON Zone name 1: Zone name 2: Zone name 3:	MP3-2: IES) Living Kitchen Garden	MP3-2 ~	MP3-3: MP3-3 MP3-3 MP3-1	TUNER 1: TUNER 1 MP3-2	✓ TUNER 2: TI MP3-3 ☑ ☑	UNER 2 Source 6: N TUNER 1 2 2 2 2	NONE Source 7 TUNER 2	7: NONE V Sou	arce 8: NONE ~	
MP3-1: MP3-1 DUTPUTS (AV - ZON Zone name 1: Zone name 2: Zone name 3: Zone name 4:	MP3-2: IES) Living Kitchen Garden Bathroom	MP3-2 ~	MP3-3: MP3-3 MP3-1	V TUNER 1: TUNER 1 MP3-2 V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V	MP3-3	UNER 2 Source 6: N TUNER 1 2 2 2 2 2	KONE Source 7 TUNER 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	NONE Sou	arce 8: NONE ~	
MP3-1: MP3-1 DUTPUTS (AV - 20N Zone name 1: Zone name 2: Zone name 3: Zone name 4: Zone name 5:	WP3-2: IES) Kitchen Garden Bathroom Master Bed	MP3-2 V	MP3-3: MP3-3 NP3-1	V TUNER 1: TUNER 1	MP3-3	UNER 2 Source 6: N TUNER 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	NONE Source 7 TUNER 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	P: NONE V Sou	arce 8: NONE ~	
MP3-1: MP3-1 DUTPUTS (AV - 20N Zone name 1: Zone name 2: Zone name 3: Zone name 4: Zone name 5: Zone name 6:	<ul> <li>MP3-2:</li> <li>IES)</li> <li>Living</li> <li>Kitchen</li> <li>Garden</li> <li>Bathroom</li> <li>Master Bed</li> <li>Zone 54</li> </ul>	MP3-2 v	MP3-3: MP3-3 MP3-1	TUNER 1: TUNER 1 MP3-2	✓ TUNER 2: T	UNER 2 Source 6: N TUNER 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	NONE Source 7 TUNER 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	NONE Sou	arce 8: NONE	
MP3-1: MP3-1 DUTPUTS (AV - 20N Zone name 1: Zone name 2: Zone name 3: Zone name 4: Zone name 5: Zone name 6: Zone name 7:	<ul> <li>MP3-2:</li> <li>IES)</li> <li>Living</li> <li>Kitchen</li> <li>Garden</li> <li>Bathroom</li> <li>Master Bed</li> <li>Zone 54</li> <li>Zone 55</li> </ul>	MP3-2 V	MP3-3: MP3-3  MP3-1  MP	V TUNER 1: TUNER 1 MP3-2 V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V	TUNER 2: T	UNER 2 Source 6: N TUNER 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	NONE Source 7 TUNER 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	P: NONE Sou	arce 8: NONE	

- Click on the button ADD DEVICE of the RS232 port
- There will be a pop-up screen, named: 'Select audio device'. In this case we first select the NUVO NV-T2 FAM to connect with the RS232 universal AV interface. Click OK
- Now you can give the different sources a name: TUNER 1 and TUNER 2
- Then you repeat this above procedure for the NUVO NV-3M.
- Don't forget to save your work!

### Dedicating zones:

Repeat the above procedure also for the NUVO CONCERTO NV-18GM.

• In this window you will be able to dedicate the wanted sources in the specific rooms/zones.

Finally you will have to follow the steps as written down in:

• Phase 4: configuring the audio buttons of the domotics installation.

 Image: Image:

© 2018 TELETASK byba

# B&O Integration

# Integration possibilities

There are two different types of integration between TELETASK and B&O:

- 1. Controlling B&O audio devices from TELETASK using the TDS15240 audio IP license.
- 2. Controlling TELETASK from the B&O remote control using the TDS15132 open DoIP protocol license.

The 2 types are independent from each other and are to be configured individually. The choice to implement one or both of the options is up to the client. From the B&O side you will always need the Masterlink gateway (BeoLink Gateway Type 1703 or ML Gateway 1701).

## Controlling B&O audio with TDS15240 audio IP license



TELETASK supports all standard TELETASK commands:

- Zone On/Off
- Zone Volume (Up, Down, Mute)
- Source selection
- Source control (next, previous, 1, 2, ...)
- Audio Feedback is limited to volume feedback (if supported by the B&O interface).

See http://mlgw.bang-olufsen.dk for the compatibility of the B&O audio devices with their Masterlink gateway.

# Controlling TELETASK from the B&O remote control with TDS15132 open DoIP protocol license

First the B&O Masterlink gateway (MLGW) needs to be configured. This is done from the homepage of the MLGW.

There's a pre-configuration table that can be selected and be used to link "Local Moods (1 - 99)" from TELETASK to "Events" from B&O. This can be more than just the "Light" functions (e.g. switching a certain Audio Zone). Testing of the link can also be done through the home page of the MLGW.

We will explain step by step how to integrate B&O and TELETASK for both possibilities.

# 1. Controlling B&O audio devices from TELETASK

### Install B&O Masterlink Gateway

• Setup or find the IP-address of the gateway.

See manual "Installation and setting up guide for ML Gateway" of B&O. The default IP address is 192.168.1.10.

### Configure B&O Masterlink gateway

- Log in with a browser to the gateway and choose "Setup"
- The default login/password is admin/admin

#### On Type 1701:



On Type 1703:

BANG & OLUFSEN BeoLink Gateway	<b>v1.5.2</b>
WEBPANEL	
SETUP	

## Assign all the B&O products on the 1701

For the 1703, see next chapter.

You have to configure all the Masterlink products.

• Select Programming > BeoLink.

Please follow the B&O guidelines to assign the products with a MLN number. At the end of the assignment procedure you must have something like this on the 1701:

					[He	
Info System Pro	gramming Tools			Change ac	lmin passwo	
Devices Macros			Rep	orts Sources	s Favourit	
		Configuration:	Test Discar	d Cancel S	ave Previo	
Devices	BeoLink					
firtual buttons		Basauraa				
-salact		Browse	s	least project file		
Add device		File size must not exce	ed 11Mb	Neus project me		
		BeoLink room	ms			
		Show as				
	Name		Room nu	mber	Delete	
	ROOM BeoSound	5	5		]	
	ROOM Link	6	6		1	
	ROOM BeoCenter	7	7		1	
				1		
	Define rooms	from which you need to receive	ELIGHT and CON	TROL events.		
		uppi crimite				
		MasterLink pro	ducts		Show as CSV	
	Name	MasterLink pro	ducts	Nav-Button	Show as CSV	
	Name BeoCenter 6	MasterLink pro Room number	ducts MLN	Nav-Button	Show as CSV Delete	
	Name BeoCenter 6 BeoLink Passive	MasterLink pro Room number 7 6	ducts MLN 1 2	Nav-Button	Show as CSV Delete	
	Name BeoCenter 6 BeoLink Passive BeoSound 4	Room number       7       6       5	ducts MLN 1 2 3	Nav-Button	Show as CSV Delete	

The MLN number is the number you will use afterwards in PROSOFT as zone number.

### Configure your B&O products on the 1703

### You need zones for your devices

Create the zones you want on the tab 'Zones'

Areas & Zor	ies	Zone settin	igs			
Filter				Name	Kitchen	
Global	+ × ©			Area	Clobal	
Global				Alea	Giobai	•
Kitchen					Terretory Statement	
Add net	w area			Icon	▲ 合し,	

### Add your B&O device's

In the tab 'Resources" you have to add each B&O device you want to control

Resources by system	Resources in BeoLin	k			Filter	
	Zone	Name	Туре		Address	
Finer	- Select zone -	Name	- Select type -	<b>\</b>		Add
soLink irtual Resources	Capture					
	If a product without spe	akers is configured to us	e the speakers from another product volume cont	rol of its sources w	ill not be possit	ble. It is

#### Press on Capture:

Resources by system	Resources in BeoLin	k		1	Filter	
	Zone	Name	Туре		Address	
Filter	Kitchen	Mama	Colort hung			Add
Global	Nachen 💌	Theiring:	- Select type -	<b>•</b>		Auu
BeoLink Artual Resources	<b>F</b>					
	Captured events				Clear	Clos

2010-10-10 10:45:23 MasterLink product activity, device number 495167 Add as "MasterLink product"
The second

During this proces you should be able to find all the device by switching them on. If you encounter problem here please contact you B&O supplier.

Give every device a meaningful name:

24/1/2019

Resources	in Beol	Link				Filter	
Zone		Name		Тури		Address	
Kitchen		BeoLink passive	×	MasterElek product (w/ renderer)		485167	×
Kitchen	V	Name		- Select type -	~		Add

### Enter a MLN number

After you added all device you should also see them at the tab 'Interfaces'

There give every device a unique MLN number between 1 and 8, if you have more then 8 zones to control please contact TELETASK support.

		Manhad Jack mandacts Read lada and	2
Control interfac	es	masterunk product: Beounk passive	
Upers	+	Name	BeoLink passive
admin	0		
B&O Preducts		Address	495167
Other/Decil Ink pecality			and the second s
Carretas	+		
		MLN	4:
Zones settig			
Global			Beo4 navigation bulton
(Jichen)			
Favourbee Linit	+		Show product sources on their tone
			all server broaters asserves on pice traile

### Setup the Masterlink Gateway Protocol

### 1701

• On the System tab, check if the MLGW protocol is configured on OP port 9000

MLGW	TELETASK				
Info	System P	rogramming	Tools		
Network	Date & Time	Text Size	Password	MLGW Protocol	Users
			M	asterlink Gateway P	rotocol
				Enable MLGW proto IP port 9000	col over ethernet
				Authentication requir	red on TCP (Ethernet)

### 1703

• On the Setup tab > Integration Protocols, check if the MasterLink Gateway protocol TCP port is configured on TCP port 9000 and Home Integration Protocol is disabled.

Setup	Home Integration Protocol		
Date & Time Itegration Protocols Network Remote Access System modes Jnits	Over ethernet TCP port	9100	
	MasterLink Gateway protocol for backw Over ethernet TCP port	9000 Requires authentication	
	Over R\$232 USB serial adapter Bit rate	No compatible adapters cor V 9600 V	

#### 9000 is the port number preconfigured in PROSOFT. If necessary it can be changed.

Remark: Don not forget to de-select "Requires authentication"

### Setup products

Depending of the product you may have the possibility of (limited) feedback information to the Masterlink Gateway. Please check the Masterlink Gateway product compatibility document for more information.

Example: for a BeoSound 4 you have to change in the setting menu "STATUS TO MLGW (Master Link Gate Way)" to ON (default OFF).

## Settings in PROSOFT and AV-SOFT

• In AV-SOFT make a new TDS15240: A/V IP License

		-
		_
OK	Cance	4
	ок	OK Cance

Remark: If you didn't yet purchase a TDS15240 license for your central unit you can use it for 3 days after downloading, there will be a test license created automatically.

• Fill in the IP-address (in this example 192.168.0.107)

TELETASK PROS	OFT 3.6 - C:\Users\wba\Desktop\MIC	ROS1.nbt			-	×
PROSOFT	Eile Edit Communication	Extra <u>H</u> elp				
PROSOFT	Interface address			ОК		
TIMESOFT	Name:	A/V IP License				
tionicad	Central unit:	A: MICROS+ Central Unit	~			
CARDSOFT	IP address:	192 168 0 107				
GUISOFT	IP connection	Add Device				 r.
AV-SOFT	Uncontrolled sources	Add Device				
	MICROS+ Central Unit		USB		Not Connected	

• Add Device: BANG & OLUFSEN / ML Gateway 1701

This implementation can use a maximum of 8 B&O zones (MLN) and is preconfigured to use the sources: RADIO, CD, A.MEM, N.RADIO, CDV/DVD, TV, AUX\_V, AUX\_A.

BRAND / TYPE										
BANG OLUFSEN	ML Gate	way 1701 CO				Edit Delete	•			
INTERNAL AV - SOUF	ICES									
Source name 1:	RADIO	Details								
Source name 2:	CD	Details								
Source name 3:	A.MEM	Details								
Source name 4:	N.RADIO	Details								
Source name 5:	CDV/DVD	Details								
Source name 6:	TV	Details								
Source name 7:	AUX_V	Details								
Source name 8:	AUX_A	Details								
UTPUTS (AV - ZONE	S)									
			RADIO	CD	A.MEM	N.RADIO	CDV/DVD	TV	AUX_V	AUX_A
Zone name 1:	Zone 1									
Zone name 2:	Zone 2									
Zone name 3:	Zone 3		$\mathbf{\nabla}$							$\checkmark$

- You can now change the zone names and source names as you wish.
- After this step you are able to use the audio zones in the rest of your TELETASK system.

Do not forget to assign the "Audio Zones" to "Rooms".

• Download to the Central Unit and test.

# 2. Controlling TELETASK from the B&O Remote Control

Only supported on the 1701 for the moment

- Go to the setup webpage of the gateway
- Select 'Programming'
- In the "Devices" list select "Custom strings"
- Press "Add device"

ILGW	TELETAS	¢	
Info	System	Programming	Tools
Devices	Macros		
D	evices	Beolink	
U	evices	BeoLink	
BeoLink	>>		
BeoLink Virtual but	>> ttons		
BeoLink	>> ttons trings		

- Fill in the Description field (e.g.: TELETASK)
- In the IP-Address field, type the IP address of the Central Unit
- In the IP-port enter 55957 which is the port number for the DoIP Protocol.

Custom strings		
	Configu	uration
	Description	TELETASK
	Connection method	Ethernet 🗸
	IP address	192.168.0.83
	IP port	55957 ×

- Download the "DoIP B&O MLGW TELETASK Custom Strings" file from the download section on www.teletask.be (first log in with your professional ID).
- At the bottom "Browse" to the file "MLGW TELETASK Custom Strings.csv"
- Press "Upload text file"

Browse  Preplace  Propend Unload text file
oropideo o upperidi opidad text ille
Developed to a file

Now all commands for toggling local moods 1 to 99, are added as a resource to the gateway.

Info System	Programming	Tools			Change	e admin passwo
evices Macros				Rej	ports Sou	rces Favour
			Configuratio	on: Test Disca	rd Cancel	Save Previo
Devices	Custom string	js: TELETASK	(			Remove
oLink						
tual buttons			Configu	uration		
stom strings: LETASK >>			Description	TELETASK		
elect-	<u>_</u>		Connection method	Ethernet 🗸		
Add device			IP address	192.168.0.83		
			IP port Save s	55957 ettings		
			IP port Save s Reso	ettings		Show as CSV
	N	ame	IP port Save s Resor	55957 ettings urces Match/ce	ommand string	Show as CSV Delete
	Na Toggle local n	ame nood 1	IP port Save s Resor Output (command)	55957 ettings urces Match/c \$,8,7,0,8,0,1,103	ommand string	Show as CSV
	Na Toggle local n Toggle local n	ame nood 1 nood 2	IP port Save s Resor Output (command) Output (command)	55957 ettings urces S.8.7.0.8.0.1.103 S.8.7.0.8.0.2.103	ommand string ,129, ,130,	Show as CSV Delete
	Ni Toggle local m Toggle local m Toggle local m	ame mood 1 mood 2 mood 3	IP port Save s Resor Output (command) Output (command) Output (command)	55957 ettings urces \$\$,8,7,0,8,0,1,103 \$\$,8,7,0,8,0,2,103 \$\$,8,7,0,8,0,3,103	ommand string 129, 130, 131,	Show as CSV Delete
	Na Toggle local m Toggle local m Toggle local m Toggle local m	ame mood 1 mood 2 mood 3 mood 4	IP port Save s Resor Output (command) Output (command) Output (command) Output (command)	55957 ettings urces \$\$8,7,0,8,0,1,103 \$\$,8,7,0,8,0,2,103 \$\$,8,7,0,8,0,3,103 \$\$,8,7,0,8,0,3,103 \$\$,8,7,0,8,0,4,103	ommand string 129, 130, 131, 132,	Show as CSV Delete
	Na Toggle local n Toggle local n Toggle local n Toggle local n Toggle local n	ame mood 1 mood 2 mood 3 mood 4 mood 5	IP port Save s Resor Output (command)	55957 ettings urces \$\$8,7,0,8,0,1,103 \$\$,8,7,0,8,0,2,103 \$\$,8,7,0,8,0,3,103 \$\$,8,7,0,8,0,3,103 \$\$,8,7,0,8,0,4,103 \$\$,8,7,0,8,0,5,103	ommand string 129, 130, 131, 132, 133,	Show as CSV Delete
	Na Toggle local m Toggle local m Toggle local m Toggle local m Toggle local m	ame mood 1 mood 2 mood 3 mood 4 mood 5 mood 6	IP port Save s Resor Output (command)	55957 ettings urces \$\$8,7,0,8,0,1,103 \$\$8,7,0,8,0,2,103 \$\$8,7,0,8,0,2,103 \$\$8,7,0,8,0,3,103 \$\$8,7,0,8,0,4,103 \$\$8,7,0,8,0,5,103 \$\$8,7,0,8,0,6,103	ommand string 129, 130, 131, 132, 133, 134,	Show as CSV Delete

Don't forget to press the Test button and then the Save button.

Now you are able to use these commands through the B&O gateway.

Some examples:

Create buttons on the web page of the gateway:

- On the Programming > Devices page, add some buttons and give them a name and an ID
- Place them on 'Global' room for testing.

Devices	Virtual buttons				
BeoLink			28		
/irtual buttons >> Custom strings: TELETASKselect Add device	N	La Global scenes earby scenes Away scenes	Resources bels for special rooms Global Nearby Away Apply settings	<b>s</b> ] ]	
	Name	Id	Virtual buttons	Sh Presentation hints	ow as CSV
	Button1	101	Special: Global	Always visible     Require confirmation     Compact     Camera view	
	Button2	102	Special: Global	Always visible     Require confirmation     Compact     Camera view	
	Button3	103	Special: Global	Always visible     Require confirmation     Compact     Camera view	

- Go to the Macros page to add commands to the buttons.
- Press "Add macro" to create an action
- Give the macro a name.

Devices	Macros			Reports	Sources	Favourites
			Configuration: Test	Discard Can	cel Save	Previous
M	acros	Macro name: But1	Update name		Clone	Delete
But1 >>						
3ut2		41	Events triggering this mac	ro		
But3		Selected items: Remove Copy				
ight 1			1			
ight 2		Select	Event		Action	
Add macro	New event from driver: Virtual buttons	✓ Add event	Paste events			
		Con Selected items: Remove Copy	nmands executed by this r	nacro		
		Select	Command		Action	
		New command on driver: Custom stri	ngs: TELETASK 🗸 Add comm	and Paste co	mmands	

- Select "Virtual buttons" at "New event from driver"
- Press "Add event".
| Virtual buttons eve        | ent for macro: But1                 |
|----------------------------|-------------------------------------|
| Virtual button:<br>Action: | Button1 (Global) id: 101 V<br>PRESS |
| Finish                     | Cancel                              |

- Select the Virtual Button you have created and select as action "PRESS"
- Press Finish
- In the command section select "Custom strings: TELETASK"
- And press "Add command"

Custom strings: TELETASK command for macro: But1	J
Send string	
Select command Toggle local mood 10	
Finish Cancel	
	I

• Select the mood you want to test

Don't forget to press the Test button and then the Save button.

Afterwards you can go the webpanel http://192.168.0.107/webpanel/ and test your command:

-		
	Button1	
	Button2	
	Button3	
	Back	

You can also add Macros for the remote control of B&O to trigger a mood.

Do this by repeating the previous steps but instead of selecting Virtual Buttons you select "BeoLink" and select "Match LIGHT command".

BeoLink event fo	r macro: Light 2	
0	Match ALL STANDBY	
۲	Match LIGHT command	
0	Match CONTROL command	
For LIGHT and CONTROL,	select room and command:	
Room:	ANY ROOM	
Command:	CIFFER_2 / Digit 2	~
For CONTINUE and KEY_I	RELEASE commands only:	
Match CONT	INUE and KEY_RELEASE ag	ainst original command
Original command to match:	CIFFER_0 / Digit 0	

 Image: Image:

© 2018 TELETASK bvba

# Implementing NuVo with Audio IP License (TDS15240)

These steps describe how to integrate the NuVo Wireless Audio system (e.g.: P3500) with your TELETASK installation by using the IP integration possibility with the Audio IP License TDS15240.

# Necessary items:

- TELETASK Central Unit (connected to a LAN)
- NuVo System connected to the same LAN as the Central unit.
- License for A/V control over IP (TDS15240)
- A PC/Notebook running PROSOFT 3.4.14.0 or higher and physically connected with the same network as the Central Unit and NuVo equipment.

Using VPN or port-forwarding will not work!!!

REMARK: The sources on the Nuvo devices must be configured correctly in order to work with the TELETASK system. To use 'Tune-In' as a source you must add Stations to the 'My Favorites' in the Nuvo App. To use 'Deezer' as a source, you must add 'Playlists' to your Deezer account. To use 'Library' as a source, you must have 'Imported Playlists'. The Nuvo players will import 'Windows Media player' or 'iTunes' playlists from your library. If the 'Imported playlists' item in the 'Library' is empty, create a playlist, using iTunes or Windows Media player, and copy that playlist to your network or USB disk drive. That serves as a library source to the Nuvo system.

# Integration:

Make sure that all components described above are up and running. Follow the 'NuVo getting started procedure' from their app. After these steps, the different NuVo audio zones are defined and have been given names. Please check that these are controllable from the NuVo app.

- Start PROSOFT 3.4.14.0 or higher and open the .nbt file of the project.
- Import the license activation file that you downloaded from the TELETASK website with the license code and the serial number of the Central Unit to which the NuVo will be connected.
- Go to inputs and choose new.
- Select TDS15240: A/V IP License
- Choose "Edit interface in AV-Soft"
- Click on the "Add Device" in the IP connection area.
- Select the correct NuVo device that will be integrated.

PROSOFT will now search for the connected NuVo devices. You'll receive a list of available NuVo Devices (List of IP addresses).

• Open the NuVo app and go to settings > general > about

- You'll find the same list of available devices.
- Select one of the interfaces in the PROSOFT list. A NuVo device will be created in the interface list and it will open in A/V-SOFT.
- Give this interface the same name as in the NuVo app.
- Do this two times: the Interface Name at the top of the window and the Zone Name in the list of "OUTPUTS (AV-ZONES)"
- If you defined favourites in "TuneIn" or Playlists in "Deezer" or in the NuVo Library, you can fill in their names under the "Details" button of the matching sources.
- If a "LINE IN" is defined on the NuVo zone that you will not control with the TELETASK installation, you can add this as an "uncontrolled source" (e.g. MP3 players,...).
- If another "controllable" source is defined in AV-SOFT you can select this one as well on the "LINE IN" input.
- If desired you can disable the control of certain sources at this TELETASK Audio Zone by enabling them.
- Click OK and you can now use the standard audio functionalities within PROSOFT to control the NuVo system.

If you have more than one NuVo Zone (e.g.: P3500 has 3 Zones) you have to repeat the same steps and create new interfaces from the input list for each available NuVo Zone (e.g.: for the P3500 add 3 Audio IP interfaces).

Don't forget to link the "Audio Zones" to the "Rooms" in PROSOFT. Go to rooms, select the desired room and select the corresponding Audio Zone. This will enable the audio control on the TELETASK touchscreens and GUI's.

REMARK: If you want to control the Nuvo system from an AURUS-OLED (PLUS), do not forget to 'couple' the 'PREVIOUS' and 'NEXT' buttons on the 'Audio page' of the AURUS-OLED (PLUS) (see the chapter on AURUS-OLED (PLUS) for more information).

 Image: Image:

© 2018 TELETASK bvba

# Configuring Audio Systems With the Audio IP License TDS15240

## 1. Setup your Sonos or Heos system

#### 1.1. Getting Started

Setting up a Sonos or Heos system is fairly easy. Both systems have the option to connect to your network using Wi-Fi or ethernet. The connection process depends on your preferred brand. Get started with Sonos or Heos.

#### 1.2. Supported Music Sources

The sources provided by Sonos and Heos are virtually endless. To keep everything clear for both the system integrator and the end-user and to keep everything manageable for the central unit, TELETASK has made a selection of supported features. Below is a side by side comparison of the two brands and the features that have been integrated with TELETASK.

Feature	Sonos	Heos
Tuneln	Supported (using Sonos Favorites)	Supported (using Heos Favorites)
Deezer	Supported (using Sonos Playlists)	Supported
Other streaming sources (Spotify, Apple Music, Google Play,)	Supported (using Sonos Playlists)	Not supported
AUX	Line-In and Optical supported*	USB/NAS, Line-In, Optical, Coaxial supported*

\* Verify with your vendor which auxiliary inputs are available on each device: not all Sonos/Heos devices have ports for all inputs

### 1.3. Setting up Favorites and/or Playlists

Some features are supported using Sonos or Heos Favorites or Playlists. Favorites or Playlists are configured using the Sonos or Heos app. For help with setting up Favorites or Playlists, see the Sonos manual (iPhone, Android or desktop) or the Heos manual.

Only ten presets per source are supported. To guarantee a persistent ordering of your presets, TELETASK advises to give them names prepended by a number in the SONOS or HEOS app, for instance "01 - Radio 1" and "02 - News Channel".

## 2. Add A/V IP TDS15240 license

- Go to AV-SOFT
- Choose new
- Select "TDS15240:A/V IP License" interface

PROSOFT	Selecter Universite RS232 inteface	
TIMESOFT		Nimaw
GUESOFT	Select interface	— п х
AV-SOFT	AV Interfaces TDS 14042: Universite RS232 audio interface TDS 14065: IR Cookie waar AV beaturing	
UNLISOT	TDS15240: AVV IP Licentie	
		OK Annulenen

### 3. Add audio device

• Choose the correct Sonos or HEOS from the Sonos or Denon list (or the most comparable)

Interface adres			
Naart	A/V IP Licente		
Centrale:	A: NANOS Centrale		
Padres	87 address of AV device		
IP connection	Voeg toestel toe		
Ongestuurde bro	nana linea taoutel tao		
	Selecteer AV Toestel		
	Toestel	111	
	TELETASK	- ^	Neuw
	MINAS Muteroom Mutesource Ampl/herver's zones (P) MINAA Muteroom Mutesource Ampl/herver 4 zones (P)		
	BANG & OLUPSEN	- 11	
	ML Gaterway 1701		
	DENON	- 12	
	HEDS Link HEDS Homecineme		
	HEOS Drive		
	HEDS Amp		
	HEDS 7		
	HEDS 3		
	HEOS 1		
	NUVO	-	
	NV-P3100		
	NV-P200	v	
	Medum: Audio IP Bibliotheek: TELETASK Type: Ventadoar Zones.1	~	

#### Important

CAUTION: to configure multiple zones of a HEOS Drive, add a new HEOS Drive device for each zone. One HEOS Drive device represents one zone.

## 4. Parameters

- Configure the Sonos or Denon HEOS parameters (this is the only difference compared with NuVo, MMA, ...)
- Only for HEOS: add username and password of you HEOS-account (created with the HEOS app).
- App room name: the name of the zone from the Sonos or HEOS app that you want to control

The room name must be identical. Otherwise, the integration with TELETASK will not work!

Denon HEOS parameter	n	×
HEOS-account User name Password:	<u> </u>	
Zone parameters App room name:		
	OK Annulerer	

## 5. Additional details (similar as NUVO)

- Presets or names of favorites
- Zone name

connection	Voeg	toestel toe						
MERK / TYPE						- M		
DENON	HEOS 1					Config	Editarian toesa	ber bl
INTERNE AV - BRON	NEN							
Source name 1;	TUNEN	Details						
Source neme 2:	DEEZER	Details						
Source name 3:	USB/NAS	Details						
Source name 4:	OTHER	Details						
INGANGEN (voor AV	BRONNEN)							
TUNEN: TUNEI	N ~ DEEZER	DEEZER	<ul> <li>USB/NAS:</li> </ul>	USB/NAE ~	OTHER D	THER ~ AUX-IN:	NONE ~	
UITGANGEN (AV - 20	NES)							
			TL	NEN	DEEZER	USBINAS	OTHER	
7	Zona 1		1		1			

#### Important

Don't forget to add the Audio Zone to a Room

## 6. Grouping

Audio zones can be grouped together to simultaneously play the same music. To configure this, head back to PROSOFT and create a new local mood (or edit an existing one). Then:

- Under Select Output, choose Audio zone from the list of function types
- Choose one of your audio zones
- Select Link with zone from the list of actions
- Pick a second zone that you want to link to the first one

You should now have something similar to this:

Room:		loon:	Name:		Dimmable		OF	(
Klichen	× 11	rtP Mood	Group		Toggle		Card	el.
ielect Output:								
Audio zone	~ 01	Kitchen		~ 1 PT	Link with zone	÷	Living	÷
None	~			< 1 m				
None	~			· 167				
None	÷			~ 1 iff				
None	Ý			· 1177				
None	~			~ [] ff				
None	~			· D 177				
None	~			~ D 🖻				
None	~			· 1177				
None	~			111129				

Activating this local mood from a touch panel or one of our apps will group both zones together.

#### 6.1. Ungrouping

To ungroup a zone, simply turn it off from a TELETASK touch panel or app. That zone will leave the group and stop playing, while the other zones resume.

#### Important

EXCEPTION: with HEOS, group members need a hierarchy: one zone will be the master zone, and other zones in the group are slaves. Turning off that master zone, will turn off all slaves as well. In a local mood, the master zone is the zone on the left. For instance, in the screenshot above, zone Kitchen will be the master, and Living the slave. Other zones that are later linked to the group, will all become slaves.

It can take up to ten minutes after a transmit for the connection to become fully operational from the TELETASK installation.

Image: Image:

© 2018 TELETASK bvba